
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through            
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
 

 

AGENDA 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

REMOTE MEETING HELD VIA TELECONFERENCE 
(As permitted by Governor Pritzker’s Executive Order 2020-07, 2021-14, and Public Act 101-0640) 

 

The President of the Board of Commissioners has determined that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted 
pursuant to the Open Meetings Act is not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. 

 
Citizens may participate in the zoom meeting by going to the following web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84904946682?pwd=b0dtNHNmelpIYit1cTg1cXdlSXRUZz09 
 
For online video access, please use the following Meeting ID and Password when prompted: 
Meeting ID: 849 0494 6682 
Password: 938149 
 
Alternatively, the meeting may be accessed by telephone at: 
1-312-626-6799, If prompted for the following items, please enter:  
Meeting ID: 849 0494 6682, followed by the # symbol 
Password: 938149, followed by the # symbol 
 
Citizens will be offered an opportunity to speak to the Board during the public comment portion. To facilitate this 
and not have individuals speaking over one another, the Park District kindly requests that individuals wishing to 
address the Board via the conference line during public comment notify the Park District via email, as noted below, 
of their intent to address the Board.  Alternatively, citizens may submit public comments by email prior to the Board 
meeting, to be announced by the Park Board President during the public comment portion of the meeting. Email 
submissions (notice of intent to speak or comment via email) should be submitted by Noon on Wednesday, July 14, 
2021, and sent to joe.deluce@champaignparks.org.   
 

Wednesday, July 14, 2021 
7:00 P.M. 

 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
 

B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments must be limited to not more than three (3) minutes. 
 

C. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

D. TREASURER’S REPORT 
 

1. Consideration of Acceptance of the Treasurer’s Report for the Month of June 2021 
 
E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 

1. General Announcements 
 
F. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS 
 

1. Champaign Parks Foundation 
 
G. REPORT OF OFFICERS 
 

1. Attorney’s Report 
 

2. President’s Report 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84904946682?pwd=b0dtNHNmelpIYit1cTg1cXdlSXRUZz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through            
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

 
Regular Board Meeting 
July 14, 2021 
Page 2 
 

H. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items appearing below are considered routine by the Board and shall be enacted by one motion. If 
discussion is desired, that item shall be removed and discussed separately. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, June 9, 2021 
2. Approval of the Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, June 23, 2021 

3. Approval of Resolution Ratifying Change Order No 2 for the Martens Center Construction 
4. Approval of Updates to the Board and Employee Policy Manual 

a. Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Policy 
b. Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Procedure and Guidelines 
c. Bereavement Leave Policy  
d. Criminal Background Investigations Policy 
e. Family and Medical Leave Act Policy  

5. Approval of Inclement Weather Policy 
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. Approval of Disbursements  
Staff recommends approval of the list of disbursements for the period beginning June 9, 2021 and 
ending July 14, 2021. (Roll Call Vote)  
 

2. Approval of Bid for LED Outdoor Lighting at the Hessel Park Courts  
Staff recommends accepting the low, responsible bid, that meets all specifications from Tepper 
Electric, in the amount of $39,740 and authorizing the Executive Director to make the purchase.    
(Roll Call Vote) 

 

3. Approval of Bid for Replacement Vehicle Purchase (Truck #55)  
Staff recommends accepting the only bid received, that meets all specifications, and authorizing the 
purchase of one (1) new 2022 Ford F-550 boom truck from Equipment Technology LLC, in the amount 
of $111,530.49. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

4. Approval to Reject ITEP Grant Agreement 
Staff is recommending the Park District does not enter into a grant agreement with IDOT for the North 
Champaign Trail initiative. IDOT only requires us to send them a letter indicating the District does not 
want to go ahead with the ITEP project. (Roll Call Vote) 
 

J. DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 

1. FY22 Annual Operating Budget 
2. OSLAD Grant Application Discussion 

 

K. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS 
 

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
The Board will convene into Executive Session under the Illinois Open Meetings Act, specifically 5 
ILCS 120/2(c)(1) for the discussion of the appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, 
performance, or dismissal of specific employees of the public body, or legal counsel for the public 
body.  
 
 
 
 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through            
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 

Regular Board Meeting 
July 14, 2021 
Page 3 
 

M. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING 
 

N. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACTION ITEM 
 

1. Approval of Wage Increase for the Executive Director for FY22 
 

O. ADJOURN 
 



 
Minutes of the June 9, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

Page 1 

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE ANNUAL MEETING  
BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS 

 
June 9, 2021 

 
The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held the Regular Board Meeting on 
Wednesday, June 9, 2021 at 7:00 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, 
Champaign, Illinois, and online due to President Miller’s determination that an in-person meeting or a 
meeting conducted pursuant to the Open Meetings Act was not practical or prudent because of the 
COVID-19 disaster. The Regular Board Meeting occurred pursuant to published notice duly given. 
President Miller presided over the meeting. The eleven individuals identified below were physically 
present at the meeting with appropriate social distancing. Citizens were given the opportunity to 
participate in the teleconference at the web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09 or by calling 
312-626-6799. Citizens were also offered the opportunity to submit comments or questions by email 
prior to the meeting. Those comments were to be announced by President Miller during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. Email submissions were solicited from the public through a notice of 
intent to speak or comment to be submitted by noon on Wednesday, June 9, 2021 to be sent to the 
Executive Director of the Park District at: joe.deluce@champaignparks.org. There were no email 
comments or questions submitted by citizens for consideration by the Board. 
 
Present in person: President Kevin J. Miller, Vice President Craig W. Hays, Commissioners Barbara J. 
Kuhl and Jane L. Solon, Attorney Guy C. Hall, Treasurer Brenda Timmons, Joseph C. DeLuce, 
Executive Director, and Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary and Assistant to the Executive Director 
 
Present electronically: Commissioner Timothy P. McMahon.  
 
Staff present in person: Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Andrew Weiss, Director of Planning, and 
Jimmy Gleason, Director of Revenue Facilities 
 
Staff present electronically: Steven Bentz, Director of the Virginia Theatre and Tammy Hoggatt, 
Director of HR, Risk and IT 
 
Call to Order 
President Miller called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 
Comments from the Public 
None. 
 
Communications 
None. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
Ms. Timmons presented the Treasurer’s Report for the month of May 2021. She reported that $2.5 
million dollars in real estate taxes had been distributed to the Park District from the County Clerk. Ms. 
Timmons noted that this distribution was $1.2 million dollars more than what was received last year at 
the same date. She added that the Park District had also received $100,000 in personal property 
replacement taxes from the State.  
 
Commissioner Hays made a motion to accept the Treasurer’s Report for the month of May 2021. The 
motion was seconded by Commissioner Kuhl. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Vice President 
Hays – yes; President Miller – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; and 
Commissioner Solon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
 
 
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


 
Minutes of the June 9, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

Page 2 

Executive Director’s Report 
 
General Announcements 
Mr. DeLuce highlighted a recent grant award from the Illinois Transportation Enhancement Program 
(ITEP) for $34,000 to extend the North Champaign Trail. He also called attention to the recent 
installation of the walls of the Martens Center. 
 
Committee and Liaison Reports 
 
Champaign Parks Foundation 
President Miller reported that Jackson Aaberg had resigned from the Parks Foundation. 
 
Report of Officers 
 
Attorney’s Report 
Mr. Hall reported about his firm’s review of several Board policies. Additionally, Mr. Hall updated the 
Board on the status of an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) with Unit 4 School District for the 
renovation of the Spalding Park tennis courts and his assessment of various aspects of the 
agreement. 
 
President’s Report 
President Miller had no comments to share at this time. 
 
Consent Agenda 
President Miller stated that all items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine and shall be acted 
upon by one motion. If discussion is desired regarding any item, that item shall be removed and 
discussed separately.  
 

1. Approval of Minutes of the Annual and Regular Board Meetings, May 12, 2021. 
2. Approval of Minutes of the Special Board Meeting, May 26, 2021. 
3. Approval of ESS Agreement for Janitorial Services at Dodds Tennis Center  

 
Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. The motion was seconded by 
Vice President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: President Miller – yes; Commissioner 
McMahon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; and Commissioner Solon - 
yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
New Business 
 
Approval of Disbursements  
President Miller stated that the Commissioners had received and reviewed the list of disbursements. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested more information on a drainage expense. Ms. Wallace responded that 
staff would review the report and provide an answer in the near future. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the list of disbursements for the period beginning May 
12, 2021 and ending June 9, 2021. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, 
the vote was as follows: Commissioner McMahon – yes; President Hays – yes; Commissioner Solon – 
yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; and President Miller – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Approval of an Agreement with the Central Illinois Youth Football League (CIYFL)  
Staff recommended the approval of a three-year agreement with CIYFL to coordinate the youth 
football league.  
 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve a three-year agreement with CIYFL to coordinate the 
youth football league. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was 
as follows: Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; 
President Miller – yes; and Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 



 
Minutes of the June 9, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

Page 3 

 
 
Evaluation of Proposal by City of Champaign Regarding Sidewalk Adjacent to the Martens Center 
(Action)  
Mr. DeLuce reported that the City requires the installation of a five-foot sidewalk at the Martens Center 
/ HK Park location due to replating. He noted that the City had previously deferred this decision for five 
years. Mr. DeLuce added that after discussing the Board’s concerns with City staff, the City would be 
willing to contribute $15,000 toward the total construction cost, estimated at $34,778. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested clarification about the Park District’s inquiries to the City and the 
County related to distributions from the American Rescue Plan. Mr. DeLuce responded that staff had 
appealed to the City and the County for a $100,000 distribution from the American Rescue Plan funds. 
 
Vice President Hays requested staff negotiate to have all fees and expenses removed relating to 
future replats.  
 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve the five-foot sidewalk renovation at the Martens Center 
subject to pending negotiations with the City to request it pay half of the estimated total of $34,778. 
The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: President 
Miller – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; and 
Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion passed 5-0.  
 
Old Business 
 
Approval of Resolution Ratifying Change Order No 2 for the Martens Center Construction  
Mr. DeLuce presented the report. He reported that staff had met with Ratio Architects and Broeren 
Russo to address issues with Change Order No 2 and to request cost sharing between the 
organizations for associated expenses. Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested the final cost before proceeding with approval of Change Order No 2. 
Discussion ensued. 
 
Vice President Hays expressed his concerns about the manner in which the change order was 
handled and adherence to the construction agreement.  
 
Commissioner Solon requested clarification on MET’s soil testing process and the inclusion of 
unsuitable soil remediation in the construction agreement. Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioners Kuhl and Solon requested more information about the pay application process and 
whether the architect receives payment when change orders are approved. Mr. Weiss reviewed the 
pay application process and added that the architect does not receive additional payments when 
change orders are issued.  
 
Commissioner Solon made a motion to table the resolution to ratify Change Order 2 to the Broeren 
Russo construction contract for the Martens Center until the full cost assessment is received. The 
motion was seconded by Vice President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: 
Commissioner McMahon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; 
Commissioner Solon – yes; and President Miller – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Discussion Items 
 
1. Strategic Plan – 4th Quarter Updates  
Mr. DeLuce reported that staff had provided progress reports for each Department’s goals. There 
were no questions or comments from the Board about the Strategic Plan updates.  
 
 



 
Minutes of the June 9, 2021 Regular Board Meeting 

Page 4 

Comments from Commissioners 
Commissioner Solon noted observing busy parks and programs. She also requested a minimum of 
eight (8) weeks to review the budget in future years.  
 
Vice President Hays highlighted the walk the river program at Sholem Aquatic Center and the flower 
islands program. Discussion ensued. 
 
Vice President Hays and Commissioner Kuhl also discussed the need to address litter and garbage 
pick up within the parks. Discussion ensued. 
President Miller asked about attendance numbers at the Sholem Aquatics Center. Mr. Gleason 
responded that attendance had been low due to the weather during the first week, however, the pool 
nearly reached capacity the previous Saturday and Sunday.  
 
President Miller also thanked staff for promptly cleaning up graffiti at Glenn Park.  
 
Adjourn 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Hays made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was 
as follows: Commissioner Kuhl – yes; President Miller – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; 
Commissioner McMahon – yes; and Commissioner Solon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
The Annual Meeting was adjourned at 7:46 p.m.  
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Kevin J. Miller, President    Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT 
MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 

BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS 
June 23, 2021 

 
The Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners held a Special Board Meeting on Wednesday, 
June 23, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, Illinois, 
and online due to President Miller’s determination that an in-person meeting or a meeting conducted 
pursuant to the Open Meetings Act was not practical or prudent because of the COVID-19 disaster. The 
Special Board Meeting occurred pursuant to published notice duly given. President Miller presided over 
the meeting. The fourteen individuals identified below were physically present at the meeting with 
appropriate social distancing. Citizens were given the opportunity to participate in the teleconference at 
the web address: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09 or by calling 
312-626-6799. Citizens were also offered the opportunity to submit comments or questions by email 
prior to the meeting. Those comments were to be announced by President Miller during the public 
comment portion of the meeting. Email submissions were solicited from the public through a notice of 
intent to speak or comment to be submitted by noon on Wednesday, June 23, 2021 to the Executive 
Director of the Park District at: joe.deluce@champaignparks.org. There were no email comments or 
questions submitted by citizens for consideration by the Board. 
 
Present in person: President Kevin J. Miller, Vice President Craig W. Hays, Commissioner Jane L. 
Solon, Attorney Guy C. Hall, Treasurer Brenda Timmons, Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director, and 
Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary and Assistant to the Executive Director 
 
Present electronically: Commissioners Commissioner Barbara J. Kuhl and Timothy P. McMahon 
 
Staff present in person: Andrea Wallace, Director of Finance, Jameel Jones, Director of Recreation, 
Tammy Hoggatt, Director of HR, Risk and IT, and Steven Bentz, Director of the Virginia Theatre 
 
Staff present electronically: Dan Olson, Director of Operations and Jimmy Gleason, Director of Revenue 
Facilities 
 
Visitors present in person: Eleanor Blackmon, Alex Nagy, and Luke Day of the City of Champaign. 
 
Janel Gomez of the City of Champaign and Jean Flood of the League of Women’s Voters were also 
electronically in attendance. 
 
Call to Order 
President Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Presentation 
Eleanor Blackmon, Assistant City Engineer presented a status report on several phases of the City’s 
Boneyard Creek Improvements Project. Ms. Blackmon highlighted the City and Park District current 
agrements on current and future improvements within the Boneyard Creek basin at several properties 
that are owned and managed by the Park District, including Wesley, Skelton, Bristol, and Human 
Kinetics Parks and Dr. Martin Luther King Trail.  
 
Ms. Blackmon requested the Board consider several future requests by the City for easements and 
revision of several intergovernmental and license agreements. Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested clarification on the boundaries of Skelton Park pursuant o the current 
license agreement. Ms. Blackmon responded that the City had purchased lots near the park boundaries 
that were not represented in the current license agreement. Discussion ensued.  
 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89438812005?pwd=blVFTkVyKzVOcHk4bkhOS3hFK3N3dz09
mailto:joe.deluce@champaignparks.org


  
Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 2 

Commissioner Miller asked for more information on the timeline for improvements at Wesley Park. Ms. 
Blackmon responded that the project is currently scheduled to proceed in 2022, but the City’s 
improvement priorities might be revised due to requests in other City neighborhoods. 
 
Commissioner Solon asked about the purpose of adding parking spaces to Wesley Park. Ms. Blackmon 
responded that due to the estimated length of the Boneyard trail, the City believes it is appropriate to 
add a parking node at this location.  
 
Mr. DeLuce added that the playground at Wesley Park has nearly met its life expectancy and the Board 
should consider replacing it as part of this improvement project.  
 
Comments from the Public 
None. 
 
New Business 
 

1. Approval of Budget Line Transfers  
Ms. Wallace presented the report. She requested approval of routine transfers, which is a standard 
practice that is completed on a yearly basis to comply with the Park Code and also align expenditures 
with the actual budget. Ms. Wallace outlined the transfers totaling $70,757 for FY21. The transfers do 
not affect the overall budget as other line items would be decreased within the same funds. This is 
being done to comply with the Park Code and for audit purposes 
 
Commissioner Hays made a motion to approve the line item transfers of the FY21 budget be made 
within funds where lines will exceed their original budget. The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner McMahon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – 
yes; President Miller – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; and Vice President Hays – yes. The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 

2. Approval of Setting a Public Hearing on the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance  
Ms. Wallace reported that the budget and appropriation ordinance draft had been made available for 
public viewing at the Bresnan Meeting Center until the public hearing on July 28, 2021 at 5:30 pm. Ms. 
Wallace reviewed notable items such as cash on hand, and estimated taxes to be received. She noted 
that the percentage of individuals who neglected to pay their property tax had increased by 2% from the 
previous year, and it has been estimated that the percentage will increase again in 2022. Discussion 
ensued. 

 
Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve setting a public hearing on the proposed budget and 
appropriation ordinance for Wednesday, July 28, 2021 at 5:30 p.m. at the Bresnan Meeting Center to 
receive public comments upon such ordinance. Ordinance No. 652, the proposed Budget and 
Appropriation Ordinance, is available at the Bresnan Meeting Center for public review. The motion was 
seconded by Vice President Hays. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: President Miller – yes; Vice 
President Hays – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; and Commissioner 
Solon – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 

3. Approval of Accepting Bid for Resurfacing Parkland Way  
Mr. Olson presented the report. He reported that the capital improvement plan outlined several 
disbursements to resurface the most deteriorated sections of Parkland Way on a biennial basis. Mr. 
Olson noted that the bid process had been competitive with more than ten attendees at the pre-bid 
meeting. He stated that staff recommended the low, responsible bid from A & R Mechanical of 
$32,035.75 for resurfacing a 150-foot section of Parkland Way and to authorize the Executive Director 
to enter into the agreement.  
 
President Miller requested clarification on the possibility of bidding another section of Parkland Way for 
repair with the balance of budgeted funds from the FY22 capital improvement plan. Mr. Olson 
responded that the availability of materials would make it difficult to procure the necessary materials 



  
Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 3 

prior to the onset of cold temperatures and fall/winter weather. Mr. Olson noted that the Public Works 
Change Order Act would allow the Park District to complete a change order for up to slightly less than 
fifty percent (50%) of the approved contract price to increase the scope of work if desired. Discussion 
ensued.   
 
Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve accepting the low, responsible bid and authorize the 
Executive Director to enter into a contract with A&R Mechanical for a total of $32,035.73. The motion 
was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Vice President Hays – 
yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; and 
President Miller – yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Mr. DeLuce requested direction from the Board related to working with A & R Mechanical on a change 
order to increase the scope of work for the Parkland Way project. President Miller responded staff 
should seek to use as much as possible of what is budgeted in the FY22 capital improvement plan for 
this project. Attorney Hall suggested that staff present a resolution for the Board to consider if and when 
a change order is proposed.  
 

4. Approval of Resolution to Commit Funds for the Martens Center  
Ms. Wallace reviewed previous financial commitments for the Martens Center including $2 million from 
capital and $300,000 for furniture, fixtures, and equipment. She stated that this resolution would 
reallocate $2,709,548 to support additional Park District obligations for the construction of the Martens 
Center.  
 
President Miller requested clarification on the impact of change orders related to this total. Ms. Wallace 
responded that contingency funds had been allocated in anticipation of change order expenses. 
Discussion and clarifications ensued. 
 
Vice President Hays made a motion to approve a resolution to commit excess reserves for the 
construction of the Martens Center totaling $2,709,548. The motion was seconded by Commissioner 
Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Kuhl – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; 
President Miller – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; and Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion 
passed 5-0. 
 

5. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement with Unit 4 for Spalding Park  
Mr. DeLuce presented the report. He noted that Attorney Hall had developed an agreement based upon 
previous Board discussions. Mr. DeLuce stated that the new agreement maintains Park District 
ownership of the tennis courts, lists the Park District as the lead for construction, outlines project 
expenses between Unit 4 (65%) and the Park District (35%), and defines a future maintenance and 
management plan in which each partner equally splits future expenses and profits. 
 
Commissioner Hays asked if Unit 4 had reviewed the current iteration of the agreement. Attorney Hall 
responded he would deliver a copy to Unit 4’s legal counsel after Board approval. 
 
Commissioner Solon asked for more information on the current status of the shared management of the 
ballfield at Spalding Park with Unit 4. Mr. Jones responded that the joint committee had addressed 
several items, however, schedules, rentals, and maintenance were in order.  
  
Vice President Hays made a motion to approve the IGA between the Park District and Unit 4 School 
District for the construction and ongoing operation of tennis courts at Spalding Park. The motion was 
seconded by Commissioner McMahon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Solon – 
yes; President Miller – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; and 
Commissioner Kuhl - yes. The motion passed 5-0. 
 
Commissioner Kuhl departed the meeting at 6:30 pm. 
 
 



  
Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 4 

6. Approval of a Subrecipient Agreement between the City of Champaign and the Park District for 
the Community Matters Program  

Mr. Jones reported that this annual program supported day camps, after school programs, and special 
events primarily hosted at Douglass Park and Community Center. He noted that additional funds were 
received in the previous year which allowed staff to increase virtual programming at the Springer 
Cultural Center and Leonhard Recreation Center as well as day camp programming at Douglass 
Community Center through the 2021 summer season.  
 
Attorney Hall added that he was working with the City’s legal counsel to resolve concerns related to the 
insurance terms within the agreement, and he indicated that the Board could tentatively approve the 
agreement as subject to the resolution of said concerns with the City.  
  
Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve the Subrecipient Agreement between the City of 
Champaign and the Park District for the Community Matters Program and authorizing the Executive 
Director to execute the agreement subject to resolution of the insurance terms. The term of the 
agreement is from July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022. (Roll Call Vote). The motion was seconded by 
Commissioner McMahon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner McMahon – yes; Vice 
President Hays – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; and President Miller – yes. The motion passed 4-0. 
 

7. Approval to Apply for a Public Museum Grant  
Mr. Bentz presented the report. He stated that the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) has 
announced a grant cycle for the Public Museum Capital Grant program totaling $27 million dollars. He 
commented that staff has engaged Architectural Expressions to develop schematic designs to renovate 
the east lobby into a dual-purpose catering and concessions area in order to reduce congestion 
throughout the building during events.  
 
Mr. DeLuce added that no matching funds would be required from the Park District if the grant award 
should be received. 
 
Commissioner Solon asked if the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency had reviewed the project. Mr. 
Bentz responded that they had not reviewed the proposed design, but that staff is confident that they 
would be amenable to the design’s modest changes.  
 
Commissioner Solon requested staff discuss the changes with potential catering clients. Mr. Bentz 
responded that several caterers had been contacted for input.  
 
Vice President Hays made a motion to authorize staff to apply for a Public Museum Capital Grant in the 
amount of $174,864.48 from the IDNR in support of remodeling the Virginia Theatre front-of-house 
catering kitchen. The motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. Upon roll call, the vote was as 
follows: Commissioner Solon – yes; President Miller – yes; Commissioner McMahon – yes; and Vice 
President Hays – yes. The motion passed 4-0. 
 
Discussion 
 

1. Board and Employee Policy Manual Updates and New Board Policy 
Mr. Scheunemann presented the report. He stated that review of Board policies occurs every five (5) 
years and is standard operating procedure. Mr. Scheunemann requested the Board consider several 
policy updates (listed below) as well as a new Inclement Weather Policy. Discussion and revision 
requests ensued. 
 

a. Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Policy  
b. Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Procedure and Guidelines  
c. Bereavement Leave Policy  
d. Criminal Background Investigations Policy  
e. Family and Medical Leave Act Policy  
f. Inclement Weather Policy  



  
Minutes of the June 23, 2021 Special Board Meeting | Page 5 

 
2.   FY22 Annual Operating Budget  

Ms. Wallace reported about the FY22 annual operating budget. She noted that staff will present 
regarding each department’s budget at the July 14, 2021 Regular Board Meeting. The budget and 
appropriation ordinance will be presented for approval at the July 28, 2021 Special Meeting. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
Several Commissioners requested that the budget be presented to the Board at an earlier date next 
year to allow them more time for review. Discussion ensued. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested additional details for staff salaries at the departmental level. Discussion 
ensued. 
 
Vice President Hays and Commissioner McMahon also requested that budgetary longitudinal data be 
presented for comparative purposes and to guide decision making. Discussion ensued. 
 
Comments from Commissioners 
 
Commissioner McMahon complimented Mr. Sohn for leading a well-organized tennis tournament for the 
Champaign Park District. He also requested more information on the timeline for renovating Lindsay 
Tennis Courts. Mr. Olson responded that the Park District would work with Unit 4’s tennis schedule to 
limit disruptions.  
 
Commissioner McMahon also thanked staff for the memorial tree program and their efforts to raise 
awareness for the program. 
 
Commissioner Solon praised the flower beds throughout the community and shared her excitement for 
the opening of the Virginia Theatre.  
 
Vice President Hays highlighted improvements in waste management in the parks and the “Walk the 
River” program at Sholem Aquatic Center. 
 
Commissioner Solon requested accommodations for an individual with disabilities at the lazy river. Mr. 
DeLuce responded that staff would address the request. 
 
Adjourn 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Hays made a motion to 
adjourn the meeting. The motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. Upon roll call, the vote 
was as follows: President Miller – yes; Commissioner Solon – yes; Vice President Hays – yes; 
Commissioner McMahon – yes. The motion passed 4-0 and the meeting was adjourned at 7:20 p.m.  
 
Approved 
 
 
_____________________________________ ___________________________________ 
Kevin J. Miller, President    Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: July 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of Change Order 2 for the Martens Center Construction 
 
Background 
Construction is underway on the Martens Center with Broeren Russo Builders; excavation for 
exterior foundation walls is ongoing, and excavation for interior walls is imminent.  Contractor 
encountered unsuitable soils in local areas of excavation and estimates a large number of cubic 
yards of earth need to be exchanged for suitable bearing material and concrete was added as 
shown in the attached diagram.  The green and red areas indicate foundation wall excavation; the 
green areas show where the soil bearing was acceptable, and the red areas show where soil had to 
be replaced with suitable material.  The yellow areas indicate interior foundation wall areas of 
excavation that are expected to need replacement with suitable material.  Change Order 2 is to pay 
for the total estimated amount of material and labor needed to replace the soils in the red and yellow 
areas up to and not to exceed $60,000. 
 
Staff followed up the discussion at the May 26th Study Session with a zoom meeting with District 
staff, Ratio Staff and Tyler Adkins from Broeren Russo Builders to follow up with the Park Board 
comments and suggestions.  Tyler then met with Sky Sanborn of Broeren Russo Builders and 
forwarded the following information 
 
Why was the building pad remediated if it was only going to be dug up when doing the 
footings? 

- Building pad preparation happens before footing excavation 
- The building pad remediation was performed per MET recommendation 
- Large scale grading, soil placement and compaction happens with large equipment 
- To perform the building pad remediation, starting and stopping to avoid all eventual footing 

excavations would be significantly slower and more expensive 
 
Why were the footing unsuitable soils not handled at the time of the building pad unsuitable 
soils? 

- This was reviewed and made clear during the building pad unsuitable soils issue resolution. 
- See email thread below from April 6, 2021 for detail 

 
Why was the CO process not followed for the footing unsuitable soils? 

- While not as immediate as it should have been, notification of the issue and remediations 
being implemented per MET’s recommendation were sent to CPD and Ratio  

- After the third email notification regarding this work was sent we were instructed to 
stop.  You and I spoke and you provided direction to proceed, with the understanding that 
the CO would be created and all supporting documentation for T&M provided. 

- While all soil remediation work incurs a delay due to time spent on that remediation, if footing 
excavation work would have halted, a delay in the schedule of approximately 1 month would 
have been incurred due to losing the window for installation of precast. 

- To be clear, if BRBI had halted work, the soil remediations would still have been 
necessary.  Costs would not have been saved.  Time would have been lost. 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
All future changes incurring cost must not proceed until an approved CO is executed. 

- Understood.   
- Please understand that any work stoppage on a critical path activity while awaiting a future 

executed CO will incur an associated delay in the schedule. 
 
In general, I want to make it clear that BRBI has at all times acted in the interests of CPD with regard 
to both cost and schedule.  We are happy to provide the information necessary to help you and the 
board understand that is the case. Thanks, Sky Sanborn 
 
Staff also followed up with a letter to Jim Lopez, President of Broeren Russo Builders. 
 
Additional details will be provided before the Regular Board meeting on 7/14/21. 
 
Prior Board Action 
January 13, 2021 Regular Meeting—Broeren Russo Builders awarded the Martens Center 
construction contract. 
April 14, 2021 Regular Meeting—Change Order 1 for building slab bearing unsuitable soils ratified. 
June 9, 2021 Regular Board Meeting—Change order #2 was put on hold until the work is completed 
and the final amount is included in the change order. 
 
Budget Impact 
The change order will not exceed $60,000. 
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends approval Change Order #2 to the Broeren Russo construction contract for the 
Martens Center. 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by: 
 
 
Andrew Weiss       Joe DeLuce 
Director of Planning      Executive Director 



  SIGNED:  03/14/19
EXPIRES:  11/30/22

01/27/21

We don't expect much, if any
over-excavation in this area due
to the deeper foundations
surrounding the elevator pit

Footing locations where unsuitable soils
encountered through 5/14.

Footing locations where unsuitable soils were not
present. No over-excavation required.

Footing locations remaining to be excavated as of
5/14. Anticipate average of 3'-0" depth of undercut
these locations based on previous information.



Section L.16 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.   

4832-9755-9789, v. 1 

 
 

 
Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Policy 

 
It shall be the policy of the Champaign Park District Board of Commissioners(Park District)  of the Park 
District to follow comply with the provisions of the Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act 
(325 ILCS 5/1, et seq.). 
 
The Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act provides guidelines for the reporting of 
suspected child abuse and neglect, and in certain circumstances, the taking of protective custody of 
abused children. The Act mandates requires the Champaign Park District (Park District) to report 
suspected child abuse or neglect. Park District staff is required to report or cause a report to be made 
to the Illinois Child Abuse Hotline at 1-800-25-ABUSE or 1-800-252-2873 immediately whenever they 
have reasonable cause to believe that a child known to them in their official capacity may potentially 
be abused or neglected. Staff initiating the report should also immediately notify their supervisor, 
department head, or the Executive Director.  Any Park District staff who believes a child is in immediate 
danger of harm, shall first call emergency services.  
 
The Illinois Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS) definition of abuse located on theirits 
website is the mistreatment of children under the age of 18 by a parent or their romantic partner, an 
immediate relative or someone living in their home, a caretaker such as a babysitter or daycare worker, 
or any other person responsible for the child’s welfare. reasonable caretaker. The mistreatment must 
cause injury or harm or must put the child at risk of harm. It Such mistreatment can be physical, sexual, 
or emotional. The definition of Nneglect located inat their website is when a parent or other responsible 
caretaker fails to provide adequate supervision, food, clothing, medical care, shelter, or other basics 
basic needs for a child.  This policy incorporates by reference the definitions of “abused child” and 
“neglected child” containeddefined in the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act and its 
implementing regulations. 325 ILCS 5/1, et seq. and 89 ILCSIL. Admin. Code, Part 300.20. 
 
Park District staff working with children shall fill outcomplete the employee notification forms and follow 
Park District procedures and guidelines concerning the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act. 
 
Approved by Board of Commissioners   September 23, 1999 
Revised by Board of Commissioners   September 14, 2005 
Revised by Board of Commissioners   June 8, 2011 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  May 25, 2016 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  ____ X, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       Craig W. HaysKevin J. Miller, President                                              Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive 
Director 
 
 



Section L.16 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts.  

 

 
 

 
Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Policy 

 
It shall be the policy of the Champaign Park District (Park District) to comply with the provisions of the 
Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act (325 ILCS 5/1, et seq.). 
 
The Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act provides guidelines for the reporting of 
suspected child abuse and neglect, and in certain circumstances, the taking of protective custody of 
abused children. The Act requires the Park District to report suspected child abuse or neglect. Park 
District staff is required to report to the Illinois Child Abuse Hotline at 1-800-25-ABUSE or 1-800-252-
2873 immediately whenever they have reasonable cause to believe that a child known to them in their 
official capacity may potentially be abused or neglected. Staff initiating the report should also 
immediately notify their supervisor, department head, or the Executive Director.  Any Park District staff 
who believes a child is in immediate danger of harm, shall first call emergency services.  
 
The Illinois Department of Children and Family Services (DCFS) definition of abuse located on its 
website is the mistreatment of children under the age of 18 by a parent or their romantic partner, an 
immediate relative or someone living in their home, a caretaker such as a babysitter or daycare worker, 
or any other person responsible for the child’s welfare.  The mistreatment must cause injury or harm 
or must put the child at risk of harm. Such mistreatment can be physical, sexual, or emotional. The 
definition of neglect located at the website is when a parent or other responsible caretaker fails to 
provide adequate supervision, food, clothing, medical care, shelter, or other basic needs for a child.  
This policy incorporates by reference the definitions of “abused child” and “neglected child” defined in 
the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act and its implementing regulations. 325 ILCS 5/1, et 
seq. and 89 IL. Admin. Code, Part 300.20. 
 
Park District staff working with children shall complete the employee notification forms and follow Park 
District procedures and guidelines concerning the Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act. 
 
Approved by Board of Commissioners   September 23, 1999 
Revised by Board of Commissioners   September 14, 2005 
Revised by Board of Commissioners   June 8, 2011 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  May 25, 2016 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
       Kevin J. Miller, President                                              Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
 



Section L.17 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
4847-2735-8957, v. 1 

 
Abused and Neglected Children Procedures and Guidelines 

 
The Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act (ANCRA) (325 JLCS ILCS 5/1, et seq.) provides 
guidelines for the reporting of child abuse and neglect. Following The following are someis a non-
comprehensive list of general guidelines for child abuse or neglect detection and reporting. 
 
Indicators/Warning Signs 
Indicators and warning signs may include, but are not limited to the following: 

1. A child may describe events that appear to be abusive. 
2. A parent may tell you of family practices that are abusive. 
3. A child may have injuries that are not consistent with the stated cause. 
4. A child may have unusually frequent or serious injuries. 
5. A child has frequent "unexplained” bruises and injuries. 
6. A child is observed to have difficulty remaining seated. 
7. A child's attitude and behaviors change dramatically. 
8. A child appears to be routinely depressed, withdrawn or aggressive. 
9. A child's school performance and/or functioning at the park district suddenly declines. 
10. A child's social relationships adversely change. 
11. A child becomes frequently truant both excused and unexcused. 
12. A child may suddenly begin acting out more regularly. 
13. A child may express otherwise unexplained fears of an older person or child. 
14. A child's basic needs for food, shelter, medical or dental treatment and shelter may not be met. 
15. A child may have knowledge of sexual matters that are not age appropriate. 
16. A child may exhibit sexual acting out behaviors with adults, peers, and younger children. 
17. A child may not want to or be afraid to go home after school and/or from park Park district District 

programs. 
 
THE "DO's" and "DON'Ts" in reporting suspected child abuse: 
DO 

1. Phone 1-800-25-ABUSE or 1-800-252-2873 as soon as you suspect child abuse or neglect. 
2. Follow the instructions the Hotline employee gives. 
3. Notify the Park District Executive Director immediately after the report has been made. 
4. Call emergency services if the child is in immediate danger of harm. 

 
DON'T 

1. Call the child's parent and/or caretaker to ask if an allegation is true. 
2. Tell the Hotline worker that your report is an EMERGENCY unless a child is in imminent danger of 

physical or mental abuse or neglect. 
3. Try to investigate the complaint yourself. DO NOT GET PERSONALLY INVOLVED! 
4. Wait a few weeks to see if the situation improves. ACT IMMEDIATELY - CONTACT THE HOTLINE 

AND LET PROFESSIONAL INVESTIGATORS DETERMINE IF YOUR SUSPICIONS ARE TRUE. 
5. Tell everybody else in the program what you suspect. KEEP ANY INFORMATION YOU ARE 

AWARE OF TO YOURSELF AND APPROPRIATE SUPERVISORS! 
6. Promise a child who confides in you that you won't tell anyone what he or she has said. 
7. Ignore a child who makes a statement about abuse. 
8. Let anyone else make your decision about whether to report. MAKE AN EDUCATED DECISION. 

DON'T LET EMOTIONS PLAY A PART IN THE PROCESS!. 
 

Revised by Board of Commissioners   May 25, 2016 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  ____ X, 2021 

 
       Craig W. HaysKevin J. Miller, President                            Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 



Section L.17 

The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
Abused and Neglected Children Procedures and Guidelines 

 
The Illinois Abused and Neglected Child Reporting Act (ANCRA) (325 ILCS 5/1, et seq.) provides guidelines 
for the reporting of child abuse and neglect. The following is a non-comprehensive list of general guidelines 
for child abuse or neglect detection and reporting. 
 
Indicators/Warning Signs 
Indicators and warning signs may include, but are not limited to the following: 

1. A child may describe events that appear to be abusive. 
2. A parent may tell you of family practices that are abusive. 
3. A child may have injuries that are not consistent with the stated cause. 
4. A child may have unusually frequent or serious injuries. 
5. A child has frequent "unexplained” bruises and injuries. 
6. A child is observed to have difficulty remaining seated. 
7. A child's attitude and behaviors change dramatically. 
8. A child appears to be routinely depressed, withdrawn or aggressive. 
9. A child's school performance and/or functioning at the park district suddenly declines. 
10. A child's social relationships adversely change. 
11. A child becomes frequently truant both excused and unexcused. 
12. A child may suddenly begin acting out regularly. 
13. A child may express otherwise unexplained fears of an older person or child. 
14. A child's basic needs for food, shelter, medical or dental treatment and shelter may not be met. 
15. A child may have knowledge of sexual matters that are not age appropriate. 
16. A child may exhibit sexual acting out behaviors with adults, peers, and younger children. 
17. A child may not want to or be afraid to go home after school and/or from Park District programs. 

 
THE "DO's" and "DON'Ts" in reporting suspected child abuse: 
DO 

1. Phone 1-800-25-ABUSE or 1-800-252-2873 as soon as you suspect child abuse or neglect. 
2. Follow the instructions the Hotline employee gives. 
3. Notify the Park District Executive Director immediately after the report has been made. 
4. Call emergency services if the child is in immediate danger of harm. 

 
DON'T 

1. Call the child's parent and/or caretaker to ask if an allegation is true. 
2. Tell the Hotline worker that your report is an EMERGENCY unless a child is in imminent danger of 

physical or mental abuse or neglect. 
3. Try to investigate the complaint yourself. DO NOT GET PERSONALLY INVOLVED! 
4. Wait a few weeks to see if the situation improves. ACT IMMEDIATELY - CONTACT THE HOTLINE 

AND LET PROFESSIONAL INVESTIGATORS DETERMINE IF YOUR SUSPICIONS ARE TRUE. 
5. Tell everybody else in the program what you suspect. KEEP ANY INFORMATION YOU ARE 

AWARE OF TO YOURSELF AND APPROPRIATE SUPERVISORS! 
6. Promise a child who confides in you that you won't tell anyone what he or she has said. 
7. Ignore a child who makes a statement about abuse. 
8. Let anyone else make your decision about whether to report. MAKE AN EDUCATED DECISION. 

DON'T LET EMOTIONS PLAY A PART IN THE PROCESS. 
 

Revised by Board of Commissioners   May 25, 2016 
Revised by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 2021 

 
____________________________   _____________________________   
Kevin J. Miller, President                                                   Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 



3-5 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
All full-time employees are allowed up to three (3) working 
days with pay to attend the funeral of a family 
member. For purposes of this policy, “family member” 
is defined as the employee’s spouse, civil union 
partner, child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, 
sibling, grandchild, parent-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, and sister-in-law. Full-time 
employees are allowed up to five (5) days of paid leave if  
necessary travel is more than 300 miles one way, with  
the written approval of the department head. In turn, the  
employee’s department head should notify Payroll of the  
reason and length of the employee’s absence. Days off are  
to be taken consecutively within a reasonable time of the day of 
the death or day of the funeral, and may not be split or 
postponed. 
 
Upon returning to work, the employee must record 
his absence as a Bereavement Leave through a time off      
request. Proof of death and relationship to the 
deceased may be required. 

Unpaid Time Off:  In addition to the up to three 
days of paid leave described above, an 
employee may also be granted up to ten (10) 
days of unpaid leave due to the death of a child 
and up to six (6) weeks of unpaid leave in the 
event of the death of more than one child 
during a twelve-month period.  The leave must 
be requested within 60 days after the date the 
employee receives notice of the death.  In 
order to be eligible for this additional leave, the 
employee must meet the hours of service 
requirements under the Family Medical Leave 
Act (FMLA).  Child bereavement leave may not 
be taken in addition to unpaid leave permitted 
under the FMLA and may not exceed unpaid 
leave time allowed under the FMLA.   

 



3-5 BEREAVEMENT LEAVE 
All full-time employees are allowed up to three (3) working 
days with pay to attend the funeral of a family 
member. For purposes of this policy, “family member” 
is defined as the employee’s spouse, civil union 
partner, child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, 
sibling, grandchild, parent-in-law, son-in-law, 
daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, and sister-in-law. Full-time 
employees are allowed up to five (5) days of paid leave if  
necessary travel is more than 300 miles one way, with  
the written approval of the department head. In turn, the  
employee’s department head should notify Payroll of the  
reason and length of the employee’s absence. Days off are  
to be taken consecutively within a reasonable time of the day of 
the death or day of the funeral, and may not be split or 
postponed. 
 
Upon returning to work, the employee must record 
his absence as a Bereavement Leave through a time off      
request. Proof of death and relationship to the 
deceased may be required. 

Unpaid Time Off:  In addition to the up to three 
days of paid leave described above, an 
employee may also be granted up to ten (10) 
days of unpaid leave due to the death of a child 
and up to six (6) weeks of unpaid leave in the 
event of the death of more than one child 
during a twelve-month period.  The leave must 
be requested within 60 days after the date the 
employee receives notice of the death.  In 
order to be eligible for this additional leave, the 
employee must meet the hours of service 
requirements under the Family Medical Leave 
Act (FMLA).  Child bereavement leave may not 
be taken in addition to unpaid leave permitted 
under the FMLA and may not exceed unpaid 
leave time allowed under the FMLA.   

 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 

positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.19 

 
Criminal Background Investigations Policy 

 
State Criminal Conviction Background Check 
The Champaign Park District (Park District) is required by state statute (70 ILCS 1205/8-23) to 
obtain criminal conviction information concerning all applicants, and shall perform a criminal 
background check for applicants for all positions. Pursuant to statute, any conviction of offenses 
enumerated in subsection (c) and (d) of said statute shall automatically disqualify the applicant 
from further consideration for working foremployment with the Park District. Any other 
conviction(s) shall not automatically disqualify the applicant from consideration, but rather, the 
conviction(s) shall be considered in relationship to the specific job. Applicants are not required to 
disclose sealed or expunged records of corrections. Applicants may be required to submit 
fingerprints and/or other identification information in order to facilitate such an investigation. All 
information concerning the record of convictions shall be confidential and shall only be transmitted 
to those persons who are necessary to the decision process. The Park District shall comply with 
the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq., when conducting criminal background 
investigations under this policy.  
 
 
 Approved by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 1999 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   February 9, 2011 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   May 25, 2016 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   ________, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
      
        Kevin J. Miller, President                                              Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 

positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.19 

 
Criminal Background Investigations Policy 

 
State Criminal Conviction Background Check 
The Champaign Park District (Park District) is required by state statute (70 ILCS 1205/8-23) to 
obtain criminal conviction information concerning all applicants, and shall perform a criminal 
background check for applicants for all positions. Pursuant to statute, any conviction of offenses 
enumerated in subsection (c) and (d) of said statute shall automatically disqualify the applicant 
from further consideration for employment with the Park District. Any other conviction(s) shall not 
automatically disqualify the applicant from consideration, but rather, the conviction(s) shall be 
considered in relationship to the specific job. Applicants are not required to disclose sealed or 
expunged records of corrections. Applicants may be required to submit fingerprints and/or other 
identification information in order to facilitate such an investigation. All information concerning the 
record of convictions shall be confidential and shall only be transmitted to those persons who are 
necessary to the decision process. The Park District shall comply with the Fair Credit Reporting 
Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1681, et seq., when conducting criminal background investigations under this 
policy.  
 
 
 Approved by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 1999 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   February 9, 2011 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   May 25, 2016 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners   July 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
      
        Kevin J. Miller, President                                              Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 



Section L.13 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
 

 
Family and Medical Leave Act Policy 

 
This policy briefly summarizes rights and regulations under the Family and Medical Leave 
Act of 1993 ("FMLA") and provides generally applicable information relating to leaves 
taken under the FMLA by employees of the Champaign Park District (“Park District”). 
Employees should contact the Department of Human Resources to discuss the specific 
circumstances of their need for leave under the FMLA.  
("FMLA"). 

 
The FMLA provides eligible employees with up to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid leave 
for certain family and medical reasons during a 12-month period. During this leave, an 
eligible employee is entitled to continued group health plan coverage as if the employee 
had continued to work. At the conclusion of the leave, subject to some exceptions, an 
employee generally has a right to return to the same or to an equivalent position. 

 
Certain highly compensated key employees may be denied reinstatement when necessary 
to prevent substantial and grievous economic injury to the Park District's operations. A key 
employee is a salaried employee who is among the highest paid 10% of employees. 
Employees shall be notified of their status as a key employee, when applicable, after they 
request a Family and Medical Leave. 

 
Eligibility 
Any full-time (FT1 or FT2) or part-time (PT1) employee who has worked for the Park 
District for at least twelve (12) months, and for at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month 
period immediately preceding the start of the leave will be eligible. 

 
Reasons for Leave 
A leave may be taken for the following reasons:  

1. Birth and care of a newborn child;  
2. Placement of a child for adoption or foster care in the employee's home;  
3. To care for the employee's parent, spouse or child (put not in-law) with a serious 

health condition; 
4. To attend the employee's own serious health condition which renders the employee 

unable to perform the functions of the employee's job; or 
5. For military leave. 
6. Child Bereavement Leave 

 
For purposes of this policy, "serious health condition" means an injury, illness, impairment, 
or physical or mental condition that involves one of the following: 
 

1. Hospital Care: Inpatient care involving an overnight stay in a hospital, hospice, or 
residential medical care facility, including any period of incapacity relating to the 
same condition; 

2. Absence Plus Treatment: A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive 
calendar days (including any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating 
to the same condition) that also involves either:  

a. Treatment two or more times by a health care provider, by a nurse or 
physician's assistant under direct supervision of a health care provider, or 



Section L.13 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
 

by a provider of health care services under orders of, or on referral by, a 
health care provider; or  

b. Treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion that results in 
a regimen of continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care 
provider; 

3. Pregnancy: Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care; 
4. Chronic Conditions Requiring Treatment: A chronic condition that: requires periodic 

visits for treatment by a health care provider, or by a nurse or physician's 
assistance under direct supervision of a health care provider, including substance 
abuse treatment; continues over an extended period of time; and may cause 
episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity; 

5. Permanent/Long-Term Conditions Requiring Supervision: A period of incapacity 
that is permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may be 
effective. The employee or family member must be under the continuing 
supervision of, but need not be receiving active treatment by, a health care 
provider; 

5.6. Multiple Treatments (non-chronic conditions): Any period of absence to 
receive multiple treatments (including any period of recovery there from) by a 
healthcare provider or by a provider of health care services under orders of, or in 
referral by, a health care provider, either for restorative surgery after an accident 
or other injury, or for a condition that would likely result in a period of incapacity of 
more than three consecutive calendar days in the absence of medical intervention 
or treatment. 

6.7. Under the Illinois Child Bereavement Leave Act, employees otherwise 
eligible for Family and Medical Leavemeeting the definition of employee under the 
FMLA (i.e.in essence, satisfying the work-hour requirements of FMLA) are eligible 
for an additional seven (7ten (10) unpaid days to attend the funeral, of a child or 
an alternative to a funeral; to make arrangements necessitated by the death of the 
child; or to grieve the death of the child. An employee must provide the Park District 
with at least 48 hours' advance notice of the employee's intent to take bereavement 
leave, unless providing such notice is not reasonable and practicable. Employees 
may use accrued leave benefits while taking leave under this Act. The Act does 
not create a right for an employee to take unpaid leave that exceeds the unpaid 
leave time available under FMLA; therefore. Therefore, employees who have 
exhausted their 12-week FMLA entitlement may not take the additional seven10 
days under this Act. Leave provided under this Act must be used within 60 days 
after the employee receives notice of the death of their child. If an employee suffers 
the death of more than one child in any 12-month period, the employee is entitled 
to take up to six weeks of unpaid bereavement leave induring the 12-month period. 

 
Military Leave Entitlements 
Military leaveLeave is given in accordance with the FMLA for reasons relating to active 
duty military service in each of the following cases: 

 
1. AFor qualifying exigencies that arise when the employee’s spouse, son, daughter 

or parent is on covered military member's active duty status, or notificationhas 
been notified of an impending call or order to active duty status; 

2. Up to 26 weeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for a covered service 
member recovering from a serious Injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on 
active duty; and 

3. For any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, civil 

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style:
1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at: 
0.75" + Indent at:  1"



Section L.13 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
 

union partner, child, or parent is on (or has been notified of an impending call to) 
"covered active duty" in the Armed Forces. 

 
Length of Time 
Employees qualifying for leave under the FMLA may take up to a maximum of twelve (12) 
calendar weeks of leave over a rolling 12-month period measured retroactively from the 
last day of leave. Where both spouses are employed by the Park District, their combined 
leave under this policy is twelve (12) weeks over the twelve (12) months where the leave 
involves the birth or adoption of a child or the care of a seriously ill parent. 

 
Leave because of an employee's own serious health condition, or to care for an 
employee's spouse, civil union partner, child or parent with a serious health condition, may 
be taken all at once or, where medically necessary, intermittently or on a reduced work 
schedule. 

 
Intermittent or Reduced Work Schedule Leave 
Intermittent leave is leave taken in separate blocks of time. A reduced work schedule leave 
is a leave schedule that reduces an employee's usual number of hours per workweek or 
hours per workday. 

 
If an employee takes leave intermittently or on a reduced work schedule basis, the 
employee must, when requested, attempt to schedule the leave so as not to disrupt the 
Park District's operations. When an employee takes intermittent or reduced work schedule 
leave for foreseeable medical treatment, the Park District may temporarily transfer the 
employee to an alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits for which the 
employee is qualified and which better accommodates recurring periods of leave. 

 
Serious Health Conditions & Certification Issues 
A Park District representative (the Director of Human Resources, managerExecutive 
Director, or Department Head, but not the employee's direct supervisor) may directly 
contact the employee's health care provider to obtain information required by the medical 
certification form. Further, if a medical certification is incomplete or insufficient, the Park 
District must notify the employee in writing, specify what information is lacking, and give 
the employee seven (7) calendar days (unless not practicable under the particular 
circumstances) to provide the additional information. If the employee does not provide a 
complete certification after this process, the Park District may deny FMLA leave. 
 
Limitations on FMLA Leave 
Leave to care for a newborn or for a newly placed child must conclude within twelve (12) 
months after the birth or placement of the child and shall not be taken intermittently or on 
a reduced work schedule, unless the Park District agrees with respect to an individual 
leave request. 

 
Compensation 
You An employee must substitute any accrued paid vacation days, paid personal days, 
and paid sick days for unpaid leave under this policy, and any such paid time off must 
be taken at the same time as your Family and Medical Leave. All time missed from 
work that qualifies for both Family and Medical Leave and for workers' compensation 
shall be counted toward your the twelve (12) weeks of Family and Medical Leave. If 
you qualifythe employee qualifies for both Family and Medical Leave and any other 
leaves, Family and Medical Leave must be taken first. 



Section L.13 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
 

 
Benefit Continuation 
While a full-time employee (FT1 and FT2) is on FMLA leave, the Park District shall 
maintain the employee's group health insurance coverage under the same conditions 
that the employee had at the start of FMLA leave under the FMLA twelve (12) -week 
period. The employee shall be responsible for any premium contribution and/or 
payment to other employee elected benefit programs. To the extent that an employee's 
FMLA leave is paid, the employee's portion of health insurance premiums shall be 
deducted from the employee's salary. For the portion of FMLA leave that is unpaid, the 
employee's portion of health insurance premiums may be paid to the Park District 
under a system that Is previously agreed upon in writing. Other benefits, if any, such 
as vacation, sick leave, or personal days, shall not accrue while an employee is on 
FMLA leave. Employees on FMLA leave, however, will shall not forfeit any benefits 
that accrued prior to the start of FMLA leave by virtue of taking FMLA leave. 

 
Requesting Leave 
Requests for FMLA leaves must be made in writing. At least thirty (30) days advance 
notice for the birth or adoption of a child or for planned medical treatment should be 
given. In cases of emergency, notice shall be given as soon as possible (usually 
within one (1) or two (2) business days). A delay in submitting this request may result 
in a delay of the start of the employee’s leave. 

 
1. The request must specify, in detail, the reasons for requesting the leave and 

the length of time the employee intends to be away. 
2. In cases where an employee requests leave for the employee's own serious 

health condition or to care for a seriously ill family member, the Park District 
may require medical certification from a health care provider to support the 
request. Medical certification forms are available in the Human Resources 
Department. 

3. If the Park District has reason to doubt the employee's initial certification, the 
Park District may:  

a. With the employee's permission, have a Park District designated 
health care provider contact the employee's health care provider in an 
effort to clarify or authenticate the initial certification; and/or 

b. Require the employee to obtain a second opinion by an independent 
Park District designated provider at the Park District's expense. If the 
initial and second certifications differ, the Park District may, at its 
expense, require the employee to obtain a third, final and binding 
certification from a jointly selected health care provider. 

c. During FMLA leave, the Park District may request that the employee 
provide recertification of a serious health condition at intervals in 
accordance with the FMLA. In addition, during FMLA leave, the 
employee must provide the Park District with periodic reports regarding 
the employee's status and intent to return to work. If the employee's 
anticipated return to work date changes and it becomes necessary for 
the employee to take more or less leave than originally anticipated, the 
employee must provide the Park District with reasonable notice (i.e.in 
essence, within two (2) business days). If the employee gives the Park 
District notice of the employee's intent not to return to work, the 
employee will be considered to have voluntarily resigned. 

 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Right:  -0.02", Numbered +
Level: 2 + Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1.5" + Indent at:  1.75",
Tab stops:  6.56", Left



Section L.13 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
 

Return from Leave 
Upon returning from FMLA leave, the employee shall be reinstated to the employee's original or 
equivalent position with equivalent pay and benefits. In the case of an employee's own serious 
health condition, a physician's statement certifying the employee's ability to perform the essential 
functions of the job is required. However, an employee is only entitled to reinstatement if he the 
employee would have continued to be employed had FMLA leave not been taken. Thus, an 
employee is not entitled to reinstatement if, because of a layoff, reduction in force or other reason, 
the employee would not be employed at the time job restoration reinstatement is sought. 
 
Failure to Return to Work after FMLA Leave 
An employee who fails to return to their position on the first day after the leave of absence has 
expired, shall be considered to have voluntarily resigned. However, pursuant to the Park District's 
American with Disabilities Act Policy, employees may request extended unpaid leave as a 
"reasonable accommodation" under the ADA. The Park District may recover health insurance 
premiums that the Park District paid on behalf of the employee during any unpaid FMLA leave. 
However, the Park District's share of such premiums may not be recovered if the employee fails 
to return to work because of the employee's or a family member's serious health condition or 
because of other circumstances beyond the employee's control. In such cases, the Park District 
shall require the employee to provide medical certification of the employee's or the family 
member's serious health condition. 
 
Additional Information 
For further information or clarification about FMLA leave, please contact the Human Resources 
Department. 
 
 
 
 Approved by Board of Commissioners April 27, 2016 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners  April 14__________, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
      
        Craig W. Hays, President                                              Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 



____________________________________________________________________________________
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.10 

 

 
Family and Medical Leave Act Policy 

 
This policy briefly summarizes rights and regulations under the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993 
("FMLA") and provides generally applicable information relating to leaves taken under the FMLA by 
employees of the Champaign Park District (“Park District”). Employees should contact the Department of 
Human Resources to discuss the specific circumstances of their need for leave under the FMLA.  

 
The FMLA provides eligible employees with up to twelve (12) work weeks of unpaid leave for certain 
family and medical reasons during a 12-month period. During this leave, an eligible employee is entitled 
to continued group health plan coverage as if the employee had continued to work. At the conclusion of 
the leave, subject to some exceptions, an employee generally has a right to return to the same or an 
equivalent position. 

 
Certain highly compensated key employees may be denied reinstatement when necessary to prevent 
substantial and grievous economic injury to the Park District's operations. A key employee is a salaried 
employee who is among the highest paid 10% of employees. Employees shall be notified of their status 
as a key employee, when applicable, after they request a Family and Medical Leave. 

 
Eligibility 
Any full-time (FT) or part-time (PT1) employee who has worked for the Park District for at least twelve 
(12) months, and for at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately preceding the start of 
the leave will be eligible. 

 
Reasons for Leave 
A leave may be taken for the following reasons:  

1. Birth and care of a newborn child;  
2. Placement of a child for adoption or foster care in the employee's home;  
3. To care for the employee's parent, spouse or child (put not in-law) with a serious health 

condition; 
4. To attend the employee's own serious health condition which renders the employee unable to 

perform the functions of the employee's job; or 
5. For military leave. 

 
For purposes of this policy, "serious health condition" means an injury, illness, impairment, or physical or 
mental condition that involves one of the following: 

 
1. Hospital Care: Inpatient care involving an overnight stay in a hospital, hospice, or residential 

medical care facility, including any period of incapacity relating to the same condition; 
2. Absence Plus Treatment: A period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days 

(including any subsequent treatment or period of incapacity relating to the same condition) that 
also involves either:  

a. Treatment two or more times by a health care provider, by a nurse or physician's assistant 
under direct supervision of a health care provider, or by a provider of health care services 
under orders of, or on referral by, a health care provider; or  

b. Treatment by a health care provider on at least one occasion that results in a regimen of 
continuing treatment under the supervision of the health care provider; 

3. Pregnancy: Any period of incapacity due to pregnancy or for prenatal care; 
4. Chronic Conditions Requiring Treatment: A chronic condition that: requires periodic visits 
for treatment by a health care provider, or by a nurse or physician's assistance under direct 
supervision of a health care provider, including substance abuse treatment; continues over an 
extended period of time; and may cause episodic rather than a continuing period of incapacity; 



____________________________________________________________________________________
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.11 

 

 
5. Permanent/Long-Term Conditions Requiring Supervision: A period of incapacity that is 

permanent or long-term due to a condition for which treatment may be effective. The employee 
or family member must be under the continuing supervision of, but need not be receiving active 
treatment by, a health care provider; 

6. Multiple Treatments (non-chronic conditions): Any period of absence to receive multiple 
treatments (including any period of recovery therefrom) by a healthcare provider or by a provider 
of health care services under orders of, or in referral by, a health care provider, either for 
restorative surgery after an accident or other injury, or for a condition that would likely result in a 
period of incapacity of more than three consecutive calendar days in the absence of medical 
intervention or treatment. 

7. Under the Illinois Child Bereavement Leave Act, employees meeting the definition of employee 
under the FMLA (in essence, satisfying the work-hour requirements of FMLA) are eligible for an 
additional ten (10) unpaid days to attend the funeral of a child or an alternative to a funeral; to 
make arrangements necessitated by the death of the child; or to grieve the death of the child. An 
employee must provide the Park District with at least 48 hours' advance notice of the employee's 
intent to take bereavement leave, unless providing such notice is not reasonable and practicable. 
Employees may use accrued leave benefits while taking leave. The Act does not create a right 
for an employee to take unpaid leave that exceeds the unpaid leave time available under FMLA. 
Therefore, employees who have exhausted their 12-week FMLA entitlement may not take the 
additional 10 days under this Act. Leave provided under this Act must be used within 60 days 
after the employee receives notice of the death of their child. If an employee suffers the death of 
more than one child in any 12-month period, the employee is entitled to take up to six weeks of 
unpaid bereavement leave during the 12-month period. 

 
Military Leave Entitlements 
Leave is given in accordance with the FMLA for reasons relating to active duty military service in each of 
the following cases: 

 
1. For qualifying exigencies that arise when the employee’s spouse, son, daughter or parent is on 

covered active duty status or has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty status; 
2. Up to 26 weeks of leave in a single 12-month period to care for a covered service member 

recovering from a serious Injury or illness incurred in the line of duty on active duty; and 
3. For any qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, civil union partner, 

child, or parent is on (or has been notified of an impending call to) "covered active duty" in the 
Armed Forces. 

 
Length of Time 
Employees qualifying for leave under the FMLA may take up to a maximum of twelve (12) calendar weeks 
of leave over a rolling 12-month period measured retroactively from the last day of leave. Where both 
spouses are employed by the Park District, their combined leave under this policy is twelve (12) weeks 
over the twelve (12) months where the leave involves the birth or adoption of a child or the care of a 
seriously ill parent. 
 
Leave because of an employee's own serious health condition, or to care for an employee's spouse, civil 
union partner, child or parent with a serious health condition, may be taken all at once or, where medically 
necessary, intermittently or on a reduced work schedule. 

 
Intermittent or Reduced Work Schedule Leave 
Intermittent leave is leave taken in separate blocks of time. A reduced work schedule leave is a leave 
schedule that reduces an employee's usual number of hours per workweek or hours per workday. 

 
If an employee takes leave intermittently or on a reduced work schedule basis, the employee must, when 
requested, attempt to schedule the leave so as not to disrupt the Park District's operations. When an 
employee takes intermittent or reduced work schedule leave for foreseeable medical treatment, the Park 



____________________________________________________________________________________
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.12 

 

District may temporarily transfer the employee to an alternative position with equivalent pay and benefits 
for which the employee is qualified and which better accommodates recurring periods of leave. 

 
Serious Health Conditions & Certification Issues 
A Park District representative (the Director of Human Resources, Executive Director, or Department Head, 
but not the employee's direct supervisor) may directly contact the employee's health care provider to obtain 
information required by the medical certification form. Further, if a medical certification is incomplete or 
insufficient, the Park District must notify the employee in writing, specify what information is lacking, and 
give the employee seven (7) calendar days (unless not practicable under the particular circumstances) to 
provide the additional information. If the employee does not provide a complete certification after this 
process, the Park District may deny FMLA leave. 

 
Limitations on FMLA Leave 
Leave to care for a newborn or for a newly placed child must conclude within twelve (12) months after the 
birth or placement of the child and shall not be taken intermittently or on a reduced work schedule, unless 
the Park District agrees with respect to an individual leave request. 

 
Compensation 
An employee must substitute any accrued paid vacation days, paid personal days, and paid sick days for 
unpaid leave under this policy, and any such paid time off must be taken at the same time as your Family 
and Medical Leave. All time missed from work that qualifies for both Family and Medical Leave and for 
workers' compensation shall be counted toward the twelve (12) weeks of Family and Medical Leave. If the 
employee qualifies for both Family and Medical Leave and any other leaves, Family and Medical Leave 
must be taken first. 

 
Benefit Continuation 
While a full-time employee (FT) is on FMLA leave, the Park District shall maintain the employee's group 
health insurance coverage under the same conditions that the employee had at the start of FMLA leave 
under the FMLA twelve (12) week period. The employee shall be responsible for any premium contribution 
and/or payment to other employee elected benefit programs. To the extent that an employee's FMLA leave 
is paid, the employee's portion of health insurance premiums shall be deducted from the employee's salary. 
For the portion of FMLA leave that is unpaid, the employee's portion of health insurance premiums may 
be paid to the Park District under a system that Is previously agreed upon in writing. Other benefits, if any, 
such as vacation, sick leave, or personal days, shall not accrue while an employee is on FMLA leave. 
Employees on FMLA leave, however, shall not forfeit any benefits that accrued prior to the start of FMLA 
leave by virtue of taking FMLA leave. 

 
Requesting Leave 
Requests for FMLA leaves must be made in writing. At least thirty (30) days advance notice for the birth 
or adoption of a child or for planned medical treatment should be given. In cases of emergency, notice 
shall be given as soon as possible (usually within one (1) or two (2) business days).  

 
1. The request must specify, in detail, the reasons for requesting the leave and the length of 

time the employee intends to be away. 
2. In cases where an employee requests leave for the employee's own serious health condition 

or to care for a seriously ill family member, the Park District may require medical certification 
from a health care provider to support the request. Medical certification forms are available in 
the Human Resources Department.



____________________________________________________________________________________
The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality 

 of life through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 
Section L.13 

 

 
3. If the Park District has reason to doubt the employee's initial certification, the Park District may:  

a. With the employee's permission, have a Park District designated health care provider 
contact the employee's health care provider in an effort to clarify or authenticate the 
initial certification; and/or 

b. Require the employee to obtain a second opinion by an independent Park District 
designated provider at the Park District's expense. If the initial and second certifications 
differ, the Park District may, at its expense, require the employee to obtain a third, final 
and binding certification from a jointly selected health care provider. 

c. During FMLA leave, the Park District may request that the employee provide 
recertification of a serious health condition at intervals in accordance with the FMLA. In 
addition, during FMLA leave, the employee must provide the Park District with periodic 
reports regarding the employee's status and intent to return to work. If the employee's 
anticipated return to work date changes and it becomes necessary for the employee to 
take more or less leave than originally anticipated, the employee must provide the Park 
District with reasonable notice (in essence, within two (2) business days). If the 
employee gives the Park District notice of the employee's intent not to return to work, 
the employee will be considered to have voluntarily resigned. 

 
Return from Leave 
Upon returning from FMLA leave, the employee shall be reinstated to the employee's original or equivalent 
position with equivalent pay and benefits. In the case of an employee's own serious health condition, a 
physician's statement certifying the employee's ability to perform the essential functions of the job is 
required. However, an employee is only entitled to reinstatement if the employee would have continued to 
be employed had FMLA leave not been taken. Thus, an employee is not entitled to reinstatement if, because 
of a layoff, reduction in force or other reason, the employee would not be employed at the time job 
reinstatement is sought. 
 
Failure to Return to Work after FMLA Leave 
An employee who fails to return to their position on the first day after the leave of absence has expired, 
shall be considered to have voluntarily resigned. However, pursuant to the Park District's American with 
Disabilities Act Policy, employees may request extended unpaid leave as a "reasonable accommodation" 
under the ADA. The Park District may recover health insurance premiums that the Park District paid on 
behalf of the employee during any unpaid FMLA leave.  
 
Additional Information 
For further information or clarification about FMLA leave, please contact the Human Resources 
Department. 
 
 
 
 Approved by Board of Commissioners  April 27, 2016 
 Revised by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
      
        Kevin J. Miller, President                                            Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life 
through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Section XX 
4838-6217-4693, v. 1 

 
Inclement Weather Programming Policy 

 
The Champaign Park District (Park District) offers and undertakes many programs, activities, services, 
and events (“Programming”) each season throughout the year. The Park District is committed to the 
safety and well-being of all participants, volunteers, and staff associated with that Programming. Many 
programs are held outdoors and subject to weather conditions. This policy is intended to provide 
guidance for the Executive Director (Director), Department Heads, recreation supervisors, and staff to 
address cancellations, suspensions, relocations or other modifications of Programming due to actual or 
forecasted inclement weather.   
 
For the purposes of this policy the term “Inclement Weather” includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 Winter Storm Warnings: Forecasted 4-7 inches or more of snow, or 3 inches or more of snow 
with ice accumulation are expected, occurring, or imminent. 

 Severe Thunderstorm Warning: Forecasted storms that without warning have the potential for 
producing hail and sustained winds at or exceeding 40 miles per hour (mph) or gusts of 58 miles 
per hour (mph) or greater, and isolated tornadoes.  

 Lightning Strikes: Lightning associated with approaching thunderstorms which are detected 
within a 10-mile radius of the boundaries of the Park District.  

 Excessive Heat Warning: Current or forecasted high air temperatures combined with high 
humidity levels expected or imminent within twelve (12) hours. This includes when a heat index 
is at least 105° for more than three (3) hours per day for two (2) consecutive days or anytime the 
heat index will reach 110°. 

 Extreme Cold Warning: Current or below zero air temperatures combined with any level of winds 
producing extreme wind chill levels that can cause hypothermia or frostbite. This typically occurs 
when wind-chill readings reach -40° or lower for at least three (3) hours per day. 

In addition to the foregoing, the Park District may use standards, warning systems, and forecasts of the 
National Weather Service for Champaign County to determine when Inclement Weather is forecast or 
occurring. All standards, warning systems, and forecasts may not apply to all facilities, programs, and 
services in all circumstances and are subject to the discretion of the staff, such as an Excessive Heat 
Warning may not warrant the closure of the aquatics center. In the event Inclement Weather is forecast or 
occurring, the Park District will take such reasonable precautions as it determines are necessary or 
appropriate, including, but not limited to: (1) closure of the Park District or any Park District owned or 
controlled indoor or outdoor facility; (2) cancellation, suspension, or delay of Programming; or, (3) if 
practical, Programming relocation or modification.   
 
Closure of Park District 
A decision to close the Park District will be made by the Director or their authorized designee. This action 
may be considered in the event: (1) Champaign Unit 4 Schools, Parkland College, or the University of 
Illinois are closed; (2) Inclement Weather is forecasted, occurring, or imminent; or (3) weather conditions 
are changing to the extent that travel to and from Programming and/or facilities may pose a significant 
risk to the personal safety and well-being of participants, volunteers, and/or staff. Full-time staff will be 
excused from reporting to work or permitted to leave work early; provided that, they may be required to 
remain on-call or communicate remotely if needed. Operations department staff may be required to work 
as determined by the Director or their authorized designee depending on the scope and magnitude of the 
Inclement Weather.  
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life 
through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Section XX 
4838-6217-4693, v. 1 

 
 
Cancellation of Programming 
A decision to cancel Park District Programming shall be made by the Director or their authorized 
designee. This action may be considered in the event: (1) Champaign Unit 4 Schools, Parkland College, 
or the University of Illinois cancel their programs or events; (2) Inclement Weather is forecasted, 
occurring, or imminent; or weather conditions are changing to the extent that travel to and from 
Programming and/or facilities may pose a significant risk to the personal safety and well-being of 
participants, volunteers and/or staff. All staff, with exception of Programming instructors or program 
coordinators, are expected to report to work or remain at work for their designated shift. However, 
employees may submit a request to their immediate supervisor to work remotely and perform their duties.  
Any decision authorizing work from home must be approved by the Director or their authorized designee.  
If Inclement Weather occurs overnight or during a weekend, any decision to cancel, relocate, or modify 
Programming will be made by 6 a.m. on the morning of the scheduled Programming. If Inclement 
Weather occurs during business hours, any decision to cancel, relocate, or modify will be made by 3 p.m. 
for evening Programming, if possible. Any cancelled Programming will be rescheduled at the discretion of 
the Park District.  If the cancelled Programming will not be rescheduled, the Park District will issue 
refunds in accordance with Park District policy. 
 
Suspension or Delay of Programming 
A decision to suspend or delay Programming may be made by the respective program coordinator, which 
must be approved by their Department Head or the Department Head’s authorized designee. Such action 
may be considered when forecasted, occurring, or imminent Inclement Weather precludes Programming 
from occurring when scheduled, but such weather is forecasted to end within a reasonable time after the 
originally scheduled Programming time. All suspension or delay decisions are subject to staff availability 
and room/space scheduling.  Requests for refunds associated with the suspension or delay of any 
Programming shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis in accordance with Park District policy.  
 
Relocate Indoors and Modify 
A decision to suspend or delay Programming will be made by the respective program coordinator, which 
must be approved by their Department Head or the Department Head’s authorized designee.  Such 
action may be considered in the event of the following conditions: (1) Inclement Weather is forecasted, 
occurring, or imminent; (2) the Programming can reasonably be moved indoors and modified or adapted; 
(3) the space under consideration for relocation is available for use; (4) the space is conducive to the type 
of planned Programming in question; and (5) the proposed Programming modification does not create an 
unreasonable safety or quality concern for the program and its participants. 
 
Affiliate Groups 
The Park District shall inform groups with which it has programming agreements (Affiliate Groups) about 
the precautions being taken as a result of Inclement Weather.  In such instances, the Park District shall 
be in communication with the individual(s) whom the respective Affiliate Group has identified to the Park 
District as its representative contact person.  The Affiliate Group may determine in advance of the Park 
District decision to cancel, suspend, relocate, or modify Programming as a result of Inclement Weather. If 
it does so, the Affiliate Group shall inform the Park District.  However, no Affiliate Group shall be permitted 
to utilize a Park District facility or continue with a previously scheduled program if the Park District has 
closed the respective facility or cancelled the subject program or event as provided in this Policy.  
 

Approved by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 2021 
 
 
 

 
 
          Kevin J. Miller, President                                             Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life 
through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Section V.16 

 
Inclement Weather Programming Policy 

 
The Champaign Park District (Park District) offers and undertakes many programs, activities, services, 
and events (“Programming”) each season throughout the year. The Park District is committed to the 
safety and well-being of all participants, volunteers, and staff associated with that Programming. Many 
programs are held outdoors and subject to weather conditions. This policy is intended to provide 
guidance for the Executive Director (Director), Department Heads, recreation supervisors, and staff to 
address cancellations, suspensions, relocations or other modifications of Programming due to actual or 
forecasted inclement weather.   
 
For the purposes of this policy the term “Inclement Weather” includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

 Winter Storm Warnings: Forecasted 4-7 inches or more of snow, or 3 inches or more of snow 
with ice accumulation are expected, occurring, or imminent. 

 Severe Thunderstorm Warning: Forecasted storms that without warning have the potential for 
producing hail and sustained winds at or exceeding 40 miles per hour (mph) or gusts of 58 miles 
per hour (mph) or greater, and isolated tornadoes.  

 Lightning Strikes: Lightning associated with approaching thunderstorms which are detected 
within a 10-mile radius of the boundaries of the Park District.  

 Excessive Heat Warning: Current or forecasted high air temperatures combined with high 
humidity levels expected or imminent within twelve (12) hours. This includes when a heat index 
is at least 105° for more than three (3) hours per day for two (2) consecutive days or anytime the 
heat index will reach 110°. 

 Extreme Cold Warning: Current or below zero air temperatures combined with any level of winds 
producing extreme wind chill levels that can cause hypothermia or frostbite. This typically occurs 
when wind-chill readings reach -40° or lower for at least three (3) hours per day. 

In addition to the foregoing, the Park District may use standards, warning systems, and forecasts of the 
National Weather Service for Champaign County to determine when Inclement Weather is forecast or 
occurring. All standards, warning systems, and forecasts may not apply to all facilities, programs, and 
services in all circumstances and are subject to the discretion of the staff, such as an Excessive Heat 
Warning may not warrant the closure of the aquatics center. In the event Inclement Weather is forecast or 
occurring, the Park District will take such reasonable precautions as it determines are necessary or 
appropriate, including, but not limited to: (1) closure of the Park District or any Park District owned or 
controlled indoor or outdoor facility; (2) cancellation, suspension, or delay of Programming; or, (3) if 
practical, Programming relocation or modification.   
 
Closure of Park District 
A decision to close the Park District will be made by the Director or their authorized designee. This action 
may be considered in the event: (1) Champaign Unit 4 Schools, Parkland College, or the University of 
Illinois are closed; (2) Inclement Weather is forecasted, occurring, or imminent; or (3) weather conditions 
are changing to the extent that travel to and from Programming and/or facilities may pose a significant 
risk to the personal safety and well-being of participants, volunteers, and/or staff. Full-time staff will be 
excused from reporting to work or permitted to leave work early; provided that, they may be required to 
remain on-call or communicate remotely if needed. Operations department staff may be required to work 
as determined by the Director or their authorized designee depending on the scope and magnitude of the 
Inclement Weather.



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life 
through positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

Section V.17 

 
Cancellation of Programming 
A decision to cancel Park District Programming shall be made by the Director or their authorized 
designee. This action may be considered in the event: (1) Champaign Unit 4 Schools, Parkland College, 
or the University of Illinois cancel their programs or events; (2) Inclement Weather is forecasted, 
occurring, or imminent; or weather conditions are changing to the extent that travel to and from 
Programming and/or facilities may pose a significant risk to the personal safety and well-being of 
participants, volunteers and/or staff. All staff, with exception of Programming instructors or program 
coordinators, are expected to report to work or remain at work for their designated shift. However, 
employees may submit a request to their immediate supervisor to work remotely and perform their duties.  
Any decision authorizing work from home must be approved by the Director or their authorized designee.  
If Inclement Weather occurs overnight or during a weekend, any decision to cancel, relocate, or modify 
Programming will be made by 6 a.m. on the morning of the scheduled Programming. If Inclement 
Weather occurs during business hours, any decision to cancel, relocate, or modify will be made by 3 p.m. 
for evening Programming, if possible. Any cancelled Programming will be rescheduled at the discretion of 
the Park District.  If the cancelled Programming will not be rescheduled, the Park District will issue 
refunds in accordance with Park District policy. 
 
Suspension or Delay of Programming 
A decision to suspend or delay Programming may be made by the respective program coordinator, which 
must be approved by their Department Head or the Department Head’s authorized designee. Such action 
may be considered when forecasted, occurring, or imminent Inclement Weather precludes Programming 
from occurring when scheduled, but such weather is forecasted to end within a reasonable time after the 
originally scheduled Programming time. All suspension or delay decisions are subject to staff availability 
and room/space scheduling.  Requests for refunds associated with the suspension or delay of any 
Programming shall be addressed on a case-by-case basis in accordance with Park District policy.  
 
Relocate Indoors and Modify 
A decision to suspend or delay Programming will be made by the respective program coordinator, which 
must be approved by their Department Head or the Department Head’s authorized designee.  Such 
action may be considered in the event of the following conditions: (1) Inclement Weather is forecasted, 
occurring, or imminent; (2) the Programming can reasonably be moved indoors and modified or adapted; 
(3) the space under consideration for relocation is available for use; (4) the space is conducive to the type 
of planned Programming in question; and (5) the proposed Programming modification does not create an 
unreasonable safety or quality concern for the program and its participants. 
 
Affiliate Groups 
The Park District shall inform groups with which it has programming agreements (Affiliate Groups) about 
the precautions being taken as a result of Inclement Weather.  In such instances, the Park District shall 
be in communication with the individual(s) whom the respective Affiliate Group has identified to the Park 
District as its representative contact person.  The Affiliate Group may determine in advance of the Park 
District decision to cancel, suspend, relocate, or modify Programming as a result of Inclement Weather. If 
it does so, the Affiliate Group shall inform the Park District.  However, no Affiliate Group shall be permitted 
to utilize a Park District facility or continue with a previously scheduled program if the Park District has 
closed the respective facility or cancelled the subject program or event as provided in this Policy.  
 

Approved by Board of Commissioners  July 14, 2021 
 

 
 
 
 
 
          Kevin J. Miller, President                                             Joseph C. DeLuce, Executive Director 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE:   July 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:   Outdoor Lighting Purchase – Hessel Tennis, Volleyball, & Pickleball Courts 
 
Background) 
This project consists of purchasing thirty-four (34) new LED light fixtures, six (6) new, cross-arm 
brackets, and four (4) replacement poles for the Hessel Park sport courts.  The lights will be 
installed by District staff.   
 
The current lighting system consists of thirty (30) - 1000 watt, metal halide fixtures on eight (8) – 
30’ poles.  Four (4) new fixtures will be added to the east side for additional lighting on the newly 
configured pickleball courts.    
   
Staff will apply for Ameren Illinois incentives and the District should receive a rebate of roughly 
$0.40 per watt saved. 
                 
Bid Results 
An invitation to bid was published in The News-Gazette. The bids were opened and read aloud on 
Wednesday, June 30, 2021.  The results are as follows:  
 

 
Budget Impact 
$50,000 was budgeted in the FY21/22 Capital Improvement Plan for this project.  There will be 
some additional costs for wire, lift rental, and miscellaneous supplies.   
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends accepting the low, responsible bid, that meets all specifications from Tepper 
Electric, in the amount of $39,740 and authorizing the Executive Director to make the purchase. 
 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by:     
 
Bret Johnson                              Dan Olson   
Assistant Director of Operations               Director of Operations     

Vendor Bid Amount 
Tepper Electric, Champaign IL $39,740.00 
Tiles in Style, South Holland, IL  $41,265.12 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance our community’s quality of life through 
positive experiences in parks, recreation, and cultural arts. 

 
 

 
 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE:  July 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT:  Vehicle Purchase Bid 
 
Introduction 
Staff is requesting Board approval to purchase one (1) new 40’ boom truck, used for electrical 
work throughout the District.  The truck will replace a 2008 Ford F-350 boom truck, that was 
purchased for $58,611. The current mileage is 61,615 and projected to be 65,000 at the time of 
replacement.  This truck has received regularly scheduled maintenance and parts replacement.  
It has a fair amount of exterior rust, paint and dent issues.  It also has a serious internal oil leak 
that would require extensive work to repair.  The torque convertor seems to be failing as well.  
This vehicle will be declared surplus and sold at a later date.  Equipment Technology LLC (ETI) 
has provided a trade-in value of $12,500.  Staff believes the Park District can receive more 
through a sealed bid process.      
   
Prior Board Action 
The Board approved the FY 21/22 Capital budget at the April 14, 2021 regular meeting.  
 
Bid Results 
An invitation to bid was published in The News-Gazette. The bids were opened and read aloud 
on Wednesday, June 30, 2021.  The results are as follows: 
 

Vendor Make & Model Bid Amount 
Equipment Technology LLC, 
Oklahoma City OK  

2022 Ford F-550 
ETIETC35SNT 

$111,530.49 

 
Budget Impact 
$99,000 was budgeted in the FY 21-22 Capital budget for this replacement.  The sale of the 
existing truck will cover the difference exceeding the budgeted amount.        
 
Recommended Action 
Staff recommends accepting the only bid received, that meets all specifications, and authorizing 
the purchase of one (1) new 2022 Ford F-550 boom truck from Equipment Technology LLC, in 
the amount of $111,530.49.     
 
Vehicle Inspection by:                    Prepared by:                                          Reviewed by: 
 
Anthony Howell                              Bret Johnson                                         Daniel Olson 
Mechanic                                       Assistant Director of Operations            Director of Operations  
 



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance the quality of life through positive experiences in 
parks and recreation in our community. 

 
 

 
 
REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: July 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: North Champaign Trail ITEP Grant 
 
Background 
In November 2020 the Park District applied for an Illinois Transportation Program (ITEP) Grant. In June 
2021, staff received a letter from Illinois Department of Transportation (IDOT) that our application was 
successful. While that in itself is good news, recent communication with IDOT concerning ITEP grant 
requirements have made staff conclude that moving ahead using ITEP funds is simply not worth the scope 
of the project.  
 
Budget Impact 
The ITEP commitment for the project would not exceed $32,400 but, because of 80% Federal Highway 
monies funding the ITEP component, the extensive grant requirements (including Phase 1 and 2 
Environmental Assessments, engineering costs, State of Illinois doing the bid letting itself) it is simply not 
worth the additional costs to see a $40,000 concrete sidewalk project come to fruition. In addition, IDOT's 
Federal Aid Coordinator indicated the project would most likely not be constructed until next summer. When 
we applied for the grant last fall staff submitted a project cost (similar to IDNR grants). Transportation grants 
funded with federal money require additional ancillary costs. Staff spoke with Chris Sokolowski, 
Champaign's Assistant City Engineer for Transportation, who mentioned the grant instructions could be 
clearer on exactly what is required for ITEP money. He also indicated the City has a threshold for projects 
they don't consider "worth it" to apply for ITEP funding.  
 
Board Action 

• The FYE22 Capital Budget indicates a $50,000 project for the North Champaign Trail project coming 
from the $432,000 Trails and Pathways fund.  

• The Board signed a resolution at the 10/14/2020 meeting to commit funds when we applied for the 
grant. 

 
Recommendation 
Staff is recommending the Park District does not enter into a grant agreement with IDOT for the North 
Champaign Trail initiative. IDOT only requires staff to send them a letter indicating the District does not want 
to go ahead with the ITEP project. 
 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by:     
 
 
Andrew Weiss        Joe DeLuce, CPRP 
Director of Planning      Executive Director 



D
raft

ANNUAL

BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

Craig W. Hays
Barbara J. Kuhl

Timothy P. McMahon
Kevin J. Miller 
Jane L. Solon

OFFICERS
Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary

Brenda Timmons, Treasurer
Guy C. Hall, Attorney

Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

BUDGET

2022



D
raft

For the Year Ended April 30, 2021
CONTENTS

PAGE
Board of Commissioners and Administrative Staff................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................4

Budget Overview................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................

Tentative Budget Schedule................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................9

Strategic Plan 11
GFOA Distinguished Budget Award 15

Financial Structure, Policy & Process................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................16

Budget Policies & Procedures................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................16

Fund Descriptions and Department Relationships................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................20

Organizational Chart................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................24

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Combined Fund Analysis................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................25

Budget Summary - All Funds Combined................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................34

Position Summary by Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................35

Detailed Line Item Budget - Combined Funds................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................36

Budget Summary by Fund 45
General Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................45

Recreation Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................49

Museum Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................52

Liability Insurance Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................56

IMRF Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................59

Audit Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................61

Special Donations Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................63

Social Security Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................65

Special Recreation Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................66

CUSR Trial Balance by Department................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................71

Police Protection Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................77

Section 4 Capital and Debt
Paving and Lighting Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................79

Capital Improvement Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................87

Bond Amortization Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................87

Bond Proceeds Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................93

Land Acquisition Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................98

Park Development Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................100

Trails and Pathways Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................103

1



D
raft

For the Year Ended April 30, 2021
CONTENTS

PAGE
Martens Center Capital Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................105

Capital Improvement Plan................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................107

Capital Improvement Plan 145
SCHEDULES 146

General Fund: Administration................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................146

General Fund: Marketing & Communications................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................149

General Fund: Facilities................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................151

General Fund: Operations................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................152

General Fund: Planning................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................156

General Fund: Other Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................158

Recreation Administration................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................160

Recreation Fund: Facilities................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................162

Recreation Fund: Sports Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................165

Recreation Fund: Afterschool/Summer Youth Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................167

Recreation Fund: Other Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................169

Recreation Fund: DCC Special Events................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................171

Recreation Fund: Teen Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................172

Recreation Fund: Concessions................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................174

Recreation Fund: Aquatics................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................176

Museum Administration................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................179

Museum Fund: Cultural Arts................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................181

Museum Fund: Special Events................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................183

Museum Fund: Facilities................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................185

Museum Fund: Virginia Theatre................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................187

Museum Fund: Afterschool/Summer Youth Programs/Early Childhood................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................190

Museum Fund: Other Programs................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................192

STATISTICAL SECTION 193
Supplemental Information................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................193

Social Media Profiles................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................195

Assessed Valuation Comparisons................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................196

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................197

Seasonal Part-time Wages................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................198

Salary Classifications................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................202

Statistical Information................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................205

2



D
raft

For the Year Ended April 30, 2021
CONTENTS

PAGE
Employer and Employment Information................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................206

Park and Facility Locator................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................207

Budget and Appropirations Totals by Fund................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................209

Ordinance No. 652................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................211

Certificate of Estimated Revenue................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................221

2019-2022 Strategic Plan Update................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................223

Totals by Fund and Department with Account Detail................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................248

Glossary................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................298

Acronyms................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................................304

3



CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               Board of Commissioners and Administrative Staff
Board of Commissioners

Craig W. Hays

Barbara J. Kuhl

Timothy P. McMahon

Kevin J. Miller

Jane L. Solon

Officers

Joe DeLuce, Assistant Secretary

Guy C. Hall, Attorney

Brenda Timmons, Treasurer

Jarrod Scheunemann, Secretary

Administrative Staff

Executive Director: Joe DeLuce, CPRP

Assistant to the Executive Director:  Jarrod Scheunemann

Director of Finance:  Andrea N. Wallace, CPA, CPRP

Director of Human Resources, Technology & Risk: Tammy Hoggatt, SHRM-SCP

Director of Marketing & Communications:  Chelsea Norton

Director of Operations:  Dan Olson

Director of Planning:  Andrew Weiss

Director of Recreation: Jameel Jones

Director of Revenue Facilities: Jimmy Gleason

Director of Virginia Theatre: Steven Bentz

706 Kenwood Road, Champaign, IL 61821
t 217-398-2550 f 217-355-8421

www.champaignparks.com
4



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               Budget Overview
TO: Board of Commissioners and Officers

FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director

SUBJECT: Fiscal Year Ended (FYE) 2022 Annual Budget

DATE: June 23, 2021

Staff is pleased to present to you the proposal Annual Budget of the Champaign Park District for the
fiscal year beginning May 1, 2021 and ending April 30, 2022. The document reflects the vision,
mission, culture and values of the Park District in our efforts to be responsive to the recreation needs
of the residents and to do so in a fiscally and environmentally responsible manner.

The focus of the FYE2022 budget is to address the goals and objectives outlined in the FYE20-
FYE22 Strategic Plan, which was approved by the Park Board in May 2019. Staff will begin drafting
the next strategic plan in Summer 2021 with approval tentatively set for February 9, 2022. This
budget addresses the needs of the residents by focusing on how the Park District can better serve
the community. The key strategic initiatives of the FYE20-FYE22 Strategic Plan include:

 Marketing - Provide transparent, accurate, and timely information to the community through
delivery of integrated marketing activities.

 Finance - Build a responsive, financially sustainable Park District by aligning resources to
community needs.

 Human Resources Risk Management and Technology - Provide exceptional service and
resources to keep employees safe, empowered, and engaged. Provide park and facility users
with a safe environment. Enhance the employee and park user experience through innovative
technology.

 Operations - Provide safe, distinctive and well-maintained parks, facilities, programs and trails.

 Planning - Develop facility, park, and trail plans that align resources with community needs.

 Recreation - Deliver innovative and customer-focused programming.

 Virginia Theatre - Become the theatre that brings the community together for outstanding
experiences.

 Board/Leadership Team- Strive for excellence by providing outstanding leadership and vision.

Additionally, it reflects the workplace culture we are trying to develop within the Park District.
The Park Board and Leadership Team are working to develop an organization that has the
following attributes:

Fun: Staff look forward to coming to work and enjoy what they do.

Supportive: Staff support and care about each other like family and help make each other’s job
easier. 

Creative: Unafraid of failure, staff are willing to try new ideas and programs without risk and find
ways to say “yes” to the requests that fall within our mission and vision.

Professional: As leaders in the parks and recreation field, staff demonstrate professionalism in the
workplace every day. 

5



Personable: Staff are likeable, courteous, and easy to work with and deliver excellent customer
service. 

Proactive: Staff do not have to be told what to do; they take initiative to get things done. 

To meet the Park District’s commitment of transparency and to satisfy the legal requirements, the
Budget and Appropriations Ordinance will be made available for public inspection for at least thirty
(30) days before it is considered for approval.  The Budget and Appropriation Ordinance will be
made available to the public following the Regular Board Meeting on June 23rd at the Bresnan
Meeting Center, and officially considered for approval at the July 28, 2021 Special Board Meeting.
This should be read in conjunction with the combined financial summary section which addresses
changes in the revenues and expenditures for the upcoming fiscal year.

While the FYE2021 budget cycle presented major challenges surrounding the onset of the COVID-
19 pandemic, FYE2022 looks ahead to future recovery as the State slowly begins to reopen the
economy. The World Health Organization (WHO) declared the COVID-19 virus a pandemic on
March 11, 2020. As a result, the State of Illinois and other States across the U.S. issued Stay at
Home orders to promote social distancing and prevent the spread of the virus. At the same time,
schools were on spring break, and ultimately closed for the remainder of the school year, converting
to online academics. Businesses were also closed to the public unless deemed essential. On April
23, 2020, Governor Pritzker extended the Stay at Home order for the State of Illinois until May 30,
2020, At that time the State of Illinois began gradually reopening businesses by moving into Phase 3
"Recovery" in the Restore Illinois Plan. On June 26, 2020 Champaign (included in Region 6) was
moved to Tier 3 Mitigation and remained there until January 22, 2021 at which time moved into
Phase 4 "Revitalization". Champaign has continued to see COVID rates decline and vaccination
rates continue to increase throughout the county. June 2021 marked the return to Phase 5 "Illinois
Restored" to which all sectors of the economy were reopened with normal operations and continued
use of new safety guidance and procedures.

Through this historic time and through unprecedented measures to slow the spread of the virus, the
economy essentially shut-down in mid-March 2020. With only essential services allowed to operate,
the majority of the workforce was furloughed, or laid off and the number of unemployment claims
were filed at a historic level. Near the end of FYE2021 the Park District experienced an increase in
hiring for the summer programs with some challenges, although it did not achieve pre-pandemic
hiring levels. With the extension of federal unemployment through September 2021 there are still
some former employees that are receiving benefits to which the Park District is now paying 50% of
the state and extended federal benefits. The April unemployment rate for the State of Illinois was at
7.1%, compared to 16.9% one year ago. These rates for Champaign-Urbana during this same time
frame were 5.0% and 10.9%, respectively. The Park District reached a historic low with only 350
unique employees in calendar year 2020, compared to 633 in calendar year 2019, and 706 in
calendar year 2018. The Park District had a total of 170 employees as of the end of March 2021,
with hiring increasing in April. 

6



Similar to the job market, the Federal Reserve took action to cut interest rates to nearly 0%, an all-
time low second only to the financial crisis of 2008. Prior to 2008, the lowest fed funds rate was
between 0.75% and 1.0% in 2003. The interest rates remain at near 0% for the beginning of
FYE2022. With the uncertainty as to how long the economic impact of COVID-19 will have on the
economy, the environment is continually changing to adapt. 

The economic impact of COVID-19 remains uncertain which has caused a continusouly fluctuating
environment. As the fiscal year began in Phase 4, restrictions limiting the number of participants
remained in effect for planning the summer programming at the Park District. With a limit on the
number of participants eligible to enroll for camps due to social distancing guidelines, revenue is
less than pre-pandemic levels. The Virginia Theatre remained closed for improvements for the first
7



quarter of the new budget year with plans underway to begin shows again starting in late August
2021 after more than a year closure.

Capital projects while approved by the Board of Commissioners on April 22, 2020, several were put
on hold requiring all projects regardless of the dollar amount to be brought back to the Board for
formal approval prior to beginning any projects for FYE2021 resulting in a large carryover into
FYE2022 budget year. 

The following pages outline the plan for the Park District and the FYE2022 budget plan as best it can
be determined at this juncture. Staff are pleased to present to you the FYE2022 budget with
anticipated revenues of $25,713,022 and expenditures of $28,856,780.

8



TENTATIVE BUDGET SCHEDULE
May 1, 2021
Start of fiscal year.

June 23, 2021
BOARD ACTION: The date for the Public Hearing is set on the proposed Budget and Appropriations
Ordinance. The Ordinance is prepared and made available to the public for inspection at the Bresnan Meeting
Center.

July 17, 2021
Notice of Public Hearing on the Budget and Appropriations Ordinance is published in the newspaper (at least
one week prior to date of public hearing).

July 28, 2021
BOARD ACTION: Public Hearing on the Budget and Appropriations Ordinance is held. After the hearing, the
Ordinance is approved by the Board.

July 30, 2021
Latest date to file a certified copy of the Budget and Appropriations Ordinance and the Certification of
Estimated Revenue with the Champaign County Clerk's Office.

September 8, 2021
BOARD ACTION: Adopt a Resolution on Intent to Issue General Obligation Bonds and set the date for the
Public Hearing on the proposed bond issue.

October 1, 2021
Notice of Public Hearing on the intent to issue General Obligation Bonds is published in the newspaper (at
least one week prior to date of public hearing).

October 13, 2021
BOARD ACTION: Adopt Resolution of Estimate of Taxes to be Levied for FYE2023. A Public Hearing is held
on the proposed bond issue.

BOARD ACTION: Approval to solicit bids for the issuance of General Obligation Bonds.

October 30, 2021
Annual Audit, Treasurer's and State Comptroller's Reports are filed with the Champaign County Clerk's office
and the State of Illinois.

The Notice of Public Hearing on proposed Tax Levy and Truth in Taxation information is published in the
newspaper (at least one week prior to date of public hearing). The notice is also placed on the Park District
website at www.champaignparks.com.

Staff begin reviewing the current 6-year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and begin working on the list of
capital projects for 2023-2028.

November 1, 2021
Staff begin working on the operating budget for FYE2023 (to be presented in June 2022 at a regular meeting).

November 10, 2021
BOARD ACTION: Hold Public Hearing on proposed Tax Levy, Adopt Tax Levy Ordinance. 

BOARD Action: Approve general obligation bond bid and adopt the bond Ordinance.

November 30, 2021

9



Debt Policy
Pay off the 2020 general obligation bond issue.

December 8, 2021
Make annual principal and interest payment on Alternate Revenue Bonds.

Staff file the property tax levy Ordinance with the Champaign County Clerk's office (due no later than than last
Tuesday in December).

January 12, 2022
BOARD ACTION: Seasonal and part-time rates for next fiscal year are presented and approved.

January 26, 2022
Staff present capital items for FYE2023 and long-term projects for 2024-2028 to the Board of Commissioners
at a study session.

February 9, 2022
BOARD ACTION: Staff present and Board of Commissioners approve the annual tax abatement resolution in
relation to the Alternate Revenue Bonds and authorizes Staff to file the Resolution with the Champaign County
Clerk's Office.

BOARD ACTION: Approval of the updated strategic plan document.

Further discussion of CIP 2023-2028.

March 9, 2022
BOARD ACTION: Capital items and the 2023-2028 CIP are approved by the Board and incorporated into the
FYE2023 budget document.

April 13, 2022
The proposed merit pool for FYE2023 is presented to and approved by the Board.

April 15, 2022
The Park District receives the new property tax extension from the Champaign County Clerk's Office for the
new fiscal year. Staff reviews the calculation and estimated tax rate compared to the Ordinance filed in
December. If the new tax rate exceeds the rate set by the Board through the Ordinance, then Staff submit
revised allocation reductions to the County.

10



Draft

11



Draft

12



Draft

13



Draft

14



D
raft

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PRESENTED TO

Champaign Park District
Illinois

For the Fiscal Year Beginning

May 01, 2020

Executive Director

GOVERNMENT FINANCE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 

Distinguished 
Budget Presentation 

Award 

7KH�*RYHUQPHQW�)LQDQFH�2IILFHUV�$VVRFLDWLRQ�RI�WKH�8QLWHG�6WDWHV�DQG�&DQDGD��*)2$��
SUHVHQWHG�D�'LVWLQJXLVKHG�%XGJHW�$ZDUG�WR�&KDPSDLJQ�3DUN�'LVWULFW��,OOLQRLV�IRU�LWV�DQQXDO�
EXGJHW�IRU�WKH�ILVFDO�\HDU�EHJLQQLQJ�0D\����������,Q�RUGHU�WR�UHFHLYH�WKLV�DZDUG��D�JRYHUQPHQWDO�
XQLW�PXVW�SXEOLVK�D�EXGJHW�GRFXPHQW�WKDW�PHHWV�SURJUDP�FULWHULD�DV�D�SROLF\�GRFXPHQW��DV�DQ�
RSHUDWLRQV�JXLGH��DV�D�ILQDQFLDO�SODQ��DQG�DV�D�FRPPXQLFDWLRQV�GHYLFH��7KLV�DZDUG�LV�YDOLG�IRU�D�
SHULRG�RI�RQH�\HDU�RQO\��:H�EHOLHYH�RXU�FXUUHQW�EXGJHW�FRQWLQXHV�WR�FRQIRUP�WR�SURJUDP�
UHTXLUHPHQWV��DQG�ZH�DUH�VXEPLWWLQJ�LW�WR�*)2$�WR�GHWHUPLQH�LWV�HOLJLELOLW\�IRU�DQRWKHU�DZDUG�

15



FINANCIAL STRUCTURE, POLICY & PROCESS
Budget Policies & Procedures
Overview
The Park District's annual budget for FYE2022 outlines the District’s commitment and plan to provide service
to its residents. Meeting the park, recreational and cultural needs of approximately 88,909 residents with very
diverse needs requires long-range planning, maximum efficiency and use of every dollar.

The annual budget is prepared to allocate available funds and to implement Park District policies. The budget
is the Park District’s plan for distribution of available funds and explains the procedures, assumptions and
organizational structure used in its preparation. The Budget Policies and Procedures outline the budget detail
and provide background information to assist in its review.

This document contains a description of each major fund and the number of staff assigned to each
department, as well as the goals, objectives and issues for the coming year. These goals and objectives,
along with strategic and capital improvement plans, set forth the work program for this fiscal year. Department
heads, Commissioners and staff created these plans, goals and objectives to enhance the Park District’s
parks, recreational and cultural arts services to our residents while maintaining current infrastructure.

The budget coincides with the strategic plan updated in 2019, which can be referenced in the Introduction and
Overview section with ongoing status updates in the Statistical section. Staff will begin updating the strategic
plan for the next cycle beginning in summer 2021.

Basis of Accounting & Budgeting
The Park District uses a detailed line item budget for accounting, financial statements and review purposes.
The Park District prepares a detailed budget by month, based on the program expenditure line. The modified
accrual basis of accounting is used for the Park District’s annual audited financial statements. The budget is
prepared on the modified accrual basis except property tax accruals and deferred revenues are not
recognized.

Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when received in cash, except for
those revenues that can be accrued, which are recognized as receivable when they become measurable, and
are recognized as revenue when they become available to pay current liabilities. Expenditures are recorded
when the liability is incurred except for principal and interest due on long-term debt, which is recognized when
due or when sufficient funds are on hand to pay the current year’s obligation. The accrual basis records
revenues when earned and expenses when the goods or services are received.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and four-letter acronymn (CAFR) is no longer used as of March
2021 as requested by the GFOA policy change. The name moving forward will be the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (COA). The COA shows the status of the Park District’s
finances on the basis of “generally accepted accounting principles” (GAAP) and provides additional statistical
information as well as an in-depth discussion and analysis of the past fiscal year.

Accounting oversight and control is continually provided to adequately safeguard assets and to provide
reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial transactions.

Budget Timeline and Format
The budget timeline includes the planning time that goes into the budget process, including meetings with the
staff and Board. In May/June, a proposed budget is submitted by the staff to the Board of Commissioners for
discussion purposes. This budget includes proposed expenditures and the means for financing them for the
fiscal year that begins May 1. A public hearing is held in June or July, after the budget has been available to
the public for 30 days, to allow Park District residents to make comments on the proposed budget. In June, the
budget is legally enacted through passage of the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance with a final legal
deadline of July. The budget format includes a financial summary section that summarizes the entire Park
District budget. Charts and graphs are used to show budget history and revenue and expense trends. Each
major fund has a separate section including each fund’s description, staff breakdown and operating budget by

16



Budget Timeline and Format (continued)
department. These were the basis for determining which services and operations are to be provided for the
coming year.

Budget Implementation, Review and Amendment
The process continues with the implementation of policies determined during budget development. Budget
policies are implemented in a timely manner. Policies such as fee increases are set at the beginning of a
season or program. Registration and program fees are reviewed on a regular basis, and program reviews are
done on a seasonal basis.

Budgetary control is maintained throughout the year through an internal reporting process. Management
receives monthly reports detailing budget status on a monthly and year-to-date basis to monitor policy
implementation. Major expenditures are verified to budgeted and appropriated amounts prior to the actual
purchase. The Board of Commissioners reviews and approves all Park District expenditures on a monthly
basis.

Policies and Assumptions
Budget policies are designed to establish a framework for providing quality services in an efficient and
effective manner while maintaining long-term financial stability within the established limitations. These
policies are reviewed, modified as appropriate, and adopted annually.

The Park District is committed to maintaining a stable tax rate. Increases to the current rate when levying
funds only occur when absolutely necessary. RY2020 EAV growth of 2.47% attributed to the original
calculated tax rate increasing from .7193 to .7346 per $100 EAV; however due to the Board of
Commissioners' request to keep the tax rate flat, the Park District reduced the extended annual levy by
$328,374 in order to keep the rate unchanged from the prior year.

Typically, when preparing the budget, the Park District utilizes a conservative fiscal policy. Staff are instructed
to begin with the projected expenditures from the prior year and allow for an applicable increase based on the
type of account and any modifications previously approved by the Board for merit increases and benefit
changes. When in doubt staff should use a conservative approach for revenues and budget only anticipated
increases/decreases based on history or known fluctuations. Expenditures should be estimated and budgeted
for fluctuations that may or may not be known, possibly overstating those line items. In the past, this concept
was very evident in budgeting for seasonal staff, maintenance and program supplies. Managers plan for a full
staff for the full season with no missing days and extra supplies for full programs, however the proposed
budget for FYE2022 factors in historical closures and cancellations. For current year assumptions please see
budget overview.

Generally, the Park District prepares a balanced budget in all of the main operating funds, any deviations from
have been noted in the Budget Message in the previous "Introduction & Overview Section". A balanced budget
is a budget where operating revenues meet or exceed operating expenditures, and reserve or carryover
balances are not considered a revenue source unless specifically noted. This occurs when the Board has
authorized spending of any surplus funds or has to set aside additional surplus funds for current or future
capital projects. However, capital fund budgets may not always be balanced as multi-year projects may have
carryover balances when projects extend between years, and the balance is expended as the projects are
completed. As a financial planning tool by the Park District and Board of Commissioners, excess fund
balances may be used through Board approval to finance a significant capital project rather than to borrow
funds.

The Park District maintains a detailed Investment Policy which meets the legal requirements of the State of
Illinois statutes. The policy emphasizes safety of principal, authorized investments and collateralization. Cash
idle during the year is invested in insured or collateralized Certificates of Deposit, State of Illinois Treasurer’s
Funds, the Illinois Park District Liquid Asset Fund and Illinois Metropolitan Investment Fund.

Department heads are responsible for purchases with final approval of the Executive Director. The Park
District’s purchasing policy details what may be purchased and at what levels. Purchases of non-budgeted or

17



over-budgeted line items must be offset by additional revenue sources or savings in a different budget line
item area before the purchase can be made. Contracts $20,000 and over, or in excess of one year must be
Board-approved prior to execution.

The Park District is committed to complying with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) through property
taxes set aside within the Special Recreation fund. Improvements are made not only for facilities and
programs but also continual staff training as well. A significant portion of the special recreation budget is
allocated to making Park District parks and facilities ADA-accessible on an annual basis. Occassionally ADA-
accesible requests from the public are granted as well.

The Park District is also committed to offering and maintaining safe programs, events and facilities. The Park
District has implemented a risk management program and employs a full-time Risk Manager to oversee the
program. The program is evaluated every three years by the Park District’s insurance carrier, the Park District
Risk Management Agency (PDRMA). In 2017, the Park District again attained the highest accreditation score
for its ongoing risk management program. The Park District was due for an evaluation in 2020, but with the
hiring of a new risk manager along with the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, the process has been delayed
an additional year by PDRMA.

The Park District offers a scholarship program to reduce program fees for for some residents who are unable
to participate in programs due to economic hardships. This is funded by public donations to the Parks
Foundation. In addition, for each program registration fee collected, $1 is applied to the youth scholarship
fund.

The Park District levies and collects property taxes in the following funds: General Corporate, Recreation,
Museum, IMRF, Social Security, Police, Audit, Liability Insurance, Paving and Lighting, Special Recreation
and Bond Amortization. By Park District Code statutes, these must be accounted for in separate funds.

In 1997, voters approved a property tax cap for the Park District. This action limits the increase in the
aggregate extension of the tax levy for the Park District to the lesser of 5% or the increase in the Consumer
Price Index plus any new property added to the Park District during the past year. This year’s increase in the
index is set at 1.4%. Also, the act limits the amount of non-referendum debt payment the Park District can
make each year. The Park District’s limit is currently set at $1,212,541.00

Debt Policy
The Park District issues debt to provide financing and pay the cost associated with the acquisition and
improvement of long-term assets and/or to make the annual debt payment on the Alternate Revenue Bonds.
These funds are not used to finance regular operations. The Park District’s primary objective in debt
management is to keep the level of indebtedness within available resources and within the total debt and
payment limits established by state statutes and tax cap legislation.

The legal debt limit for the Park District is 2.875% ($54,705,939) of assessed valuation for total debt issued
and .575% ($10,941,188) for non-referendum General Obligation Bonds. Currently, the Park District has
$1,195,800 of non-referendum General Obligation Bonded debt outstanding which will mature in November
2021 and $2,015,000 of Alternate Revenue Bonds with the final payment due December 15, 2024.

The Park District is scheduled to issue approximately $1,212,541.00 of one-year General Obligation Limited
Bonds in November 2021. Approximately $540,450 will be used to make principal and interest payments on
the outstanding Alternate Revenue Bonds. The remaining proceeds will be used for capital projects as
detailed in the Capital and Debt section.

Fund Balance
Fund balances are classified as follows:

 Non-spendable-amounts that cannot be spent either because they are not in a spendable form or
because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

 Restricted-amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Park District charter,

18



state or federal laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.
 Committed-amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal resolution of

the Park District Board of Commissioners.
 Assigned-amounts that are constrained by the Board of Commissioners’ intent to be used for specific

purposes but are neither restricted nor committed.
 Unassigned-all amounts not included in other spendable classifications. The general fund is the only

fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount.

Personnel
Salaries and wages for all staff are based on set ranges. An annual merit pool is reviewed and approved by
the Board of Commissioners for full-time staff. Any new full-time positions or current positions hired outside of
the set salary range must be approved by the Board of Commissioners, as well as any increase in full-time
positions. All FT2 positions were reclassified to FT1 in the last quarter of FYE2021 as approved by the Board
of Commissioners.

Capital Program
The Park District constantly reviews and re-prioritizes the capital program and budget to meet the Park
District’s maintenance, development and land acquisition goals and standards. The Park District maintains
replacement schedules and strives to follow them. The Park District realizes the capital program budget must
keep pace with Park District growth and new services requested by residents; however, the operating budget
may be restricted or cut back in order to make this possible. Budgets for the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)
are based on planned revenue for the fiscal year, plus any projects set to caryover from the prior fiscal year.
The Board of Commissioners may approve the use of excess reserve funds to cover scheduled future projects
to limit the amount of borrowed funds and to be fiscally responsible.

19



���� ��	
��
����	

��� ��	
 ��
�	��� ���	��	����
 ���������	�
 �������� �� ��� ����
 ��
��� ������ ��� ��	
 ��
�	���

��� ���� �	���	�� ����
 �� ��� ��������� ����
� ����	�� !��� "#�	��$����� �%������
 &��������

'���	�#��� (��� )%&'(*  ������ "���� +�������� %�
�	���� ,����� ,���	��� &�
��# '��	������ 

������ ��� +������� ��� ,������ '��	������� ���	� �
 �� #���#�# 	��� ��	 ��� %&'( ,�����

,���	��� ��� +�������� %�
�	���� (���
� �	�����
 �	�# ��� �����
 ��� ���� �� �
�� ��	 
�������

��	��
�
�

��	
 ��
�	��� ����
 ��� ����	 	�������
���
 �	� �
 ������
�

-���	�(���


,���������������

"��������

)(������	��(���*

.�	
����/�
��

)��	#������(����

/�������0������(���


�������0�
+�������

!����

"#�	��$������

�����,�	����

!����
�	�����


/�������
%#�	���#���


+����
"�1��
�����

��	
�
�������2

#���

�	���
�0�
�������


&�	���
�
/����	

,�������'�������(���


+���������
%�
�	����

%&'(
,������

,���	���
"����

�������
�	��������

&�3�	�(���
�)-��	�����*

����	���(��� '��	�������(��� &�
��#�(���
,�������'��	�������

(���

20



�����������������������

4�  ����!" ����� 5 ��������	���(�����
�

��������	������	��������������������	
�

��
�	�����"��������	
����� ���������	���	�
��#���
�	����������	�� ��	���������
���	����
����
��	������
���������������������	����

��������	���(��������
�������
��
������
����������	���������	�����#���
�	������

��
�
 ���	
�����������������	����������
#�������������
�
��(��������
�#������

�	�����������	���	�������
�����
�������
�
�	�
����������������	�����	�#���
��
"�#���
�	����� �&�	
����� �-��	�����
 �

�������������

6� ��
��!��������� 5 ����'��	�������

(�����
��
����������������	�	��	�������
�	��	�#
���	���	�������
��	���������������
�

������������������#���
�	��������
�
��������
�	��	�#
��	����������������������������	
�

��
�	��������#��
����
����	��	�#�����
��#�

�������
���������
���������������	�����
�	��	�#
7���	������
�
�����
�������������
�

�����������������������	�#���
��
"�#���
�	����� �(��������
 �,��	�
�

�	��	�#
 �"���	
�����8,�##�	�9����

�	��	�#
 �������	��	�#
 �"1�����
 �

/����

���
 �,�������:����
2������

�
/�##������/����	�����-���	��	��	�#
�

;� ��	�������� 5 ����&�
��#�(����

�������
���	����������	����	�
��	��	�#
 �

������������	 �
������������
�����
�	����
�

�����
�������
������/2< �
�##�	�
�����	�
����������	
 ��
�������
�����������


�����������	�
�����

�
��	��������������
������������,�	����	�/����	���/����	 �����

=�	�����������	�������	��	���(�	#��	��
������������	�������
��������	���	�������
�
�	������������������#���
�	��������
�
�����

�� ��������
�����������	���
�
��������
�	��	�#
 ������	�
�����
������������
�

>� 	
�
�!"���
��!��������� 5
�	���	�������
��	�����������	����
�����������

�������
���	��������	�������������/2<�
,�������'��	��������	��	�#�)/<,'* ���

3������	��	�#����������	
���
�	��� ����
<	�������	
���
�	����)<��*��������	
�

��
�	�����
�������#���
�	��������
�	������	�
/<,'������<�����
�������
���������	�����

���	��������������	��	�# ��������	��

����������
�	�����������������	������������

������	
���
�	�����������
������	�����	�
�
�	�������������	����
�
�������������

	��#��$���%����������

4� "�!&�"��'���	��!�
������ 5 ����

+���������%�
�	�����(�����������
���	�����

��	
���
�	���7
���
�	���������	�

�
#�����#�����	��	�#������������	���	���

����
��	������������������	���
�	�����
����	������	�����	�� ��������� ��	���	�� �

������� ���	
�	
7���#���
����� ��������
��������
7���������� ��#����#�����	������
 �
��������������
��������#����#����
�	����
�

�������	��
������
��	����
����������������
��	�������#���
��	�������	
���
�	���7
�	�

�

#�����#�����	��	�#�

6� �""����	�����
�
!"������������

����������� 5 ����%&'(��������
���	�

�������������
�	�
��������	�#�������	
�

��
�	���7
���	������������������%������
�
&���������'���	�#����(��������������������
�����	�������� �����#�������#�
����	
�

4 ???����	
���	�����������	���	�������	
�
��
�	����������#�������#�
������	������

>�@A�������������
���	��������������	
�

��
�	����#�
������	��������������������

��	���������
�����������������(����
,�##�	��
���������	���	�������
��	��

��������������������	
���
�	���7
���	�����

;� 	�
�!"�	�
����' ���� 5 ����(%/"�

(�����������
���	�������	
���
�	���7
�
����	�����������,������,���	��������
&�����	����	���	�������
��	����������������

������	
���
�	���7
���	������������,������
,���	��������&�����	�����������������
�

��������������	
���
�	����

>� !��������� 5 ����"�����(�����������
�

��	��������������	�
�	����������������	
�
��
�	���7
����������������������� ��������
�

#�����������
�������� ��
�������
��	����
�����
�	�1��	�������	�������	���
���������

�	�3���
���	���������,��������%������
��

�	���	�������
��	�������� ����	������
	�
��	��
���	����
����������	��

@� 
�"�
������ 5 �	���	�������
��	��

�������������
�������������	�������������/����
���/��#��������	��
������������������	
��

����������	
��	�����
���������������
 ���	

 �

���������
�����
������������
���	��������

21



���	 ��������
�����#��������
�������������
�
���������
�


�����$�(���)�������

4�  ! *�� �!���"� +��� ����� 5
�	���	�������
��	�����������	����
��������

����
�����	��������
�	������ �#����������

����������������
�	���
 �	������
 ���
�

����
 �
������

�������	
�������
�������
������	

��������������
�#����������������

��	
���
�	����

6� &����!�����,!��������� 5 �	���	��

����
��	���������������
����������������
�	������� �����	�
����������	��	���

�����

���
��

���������������������
����������
������

������	�������	
���
�	����

;� &����
��
��������	�2���
�����

����������	�������������������������
�	�����
�����������������

�������

	���������!�����	�����
��	��	�
�	�������� 
�����
������������	
���
�	������	����

��	���
� ��������#��������	������������
��	
�����
 ���������
 ���������
����
�1���#���������������
���������������

�����

�����������������
���	�����
����
��
������
��������������������������#���

���"���	�����'�������!���
�

>�  ! 
��!" ���
��*�����	����� 5 ���

/�������%#�	���#���
�(������
�

�
�����
�����
������������	��	�#���	�
���������#�	���#���
�����	����	��	�3���
�
������������������	�����
��&������
�

����#��������������	�����������
 �
�������������#�������������������
 �

��	��	����	������#��������
 �
���������
����	����	�����	��	�#
������	��
��	
����

������������	�
�	����������
��	�#�����	�

��	
���
�	��������
�

@� "! ���!
-��	���������� 5 ����+���

"�1��
������(�����������������
�����	����

��
�
��

���������������1��	�����������	
������	
���
�	����

B�  ! �.���*�"�
��������� 5 ���

��	
��������#����(������
��
�����
���

���&���6?4B����!��	��������������##��
����
���	�����	���������#���
�������
��	

�

C� ��!�"	�!���
!�+/! '	����� 5 ���

�	���
������������
�(������
�

�
�����
�������&���6?4B����!��	���������
�����##�������
���	��	���
������������
�

��	��������������	
���
�	����

D� �!����	�
�����������±�7KLV������

��
��
�����
�����������#��	�6?4C���
�������������������
�	�������������

&�	���
�/����	������������������	��	
�#�	���#���
��	���
������E�#��

F������
���	
���	�������������
����
����	��
��������	�
 ����������������
���	�����
�������������������������
�	������

��1��������

4� !
��*��'����� 5 ���
�������������
���	


�������#����
��	�#���'&"����	�
 

��������#������
���������"����2"2��	

�	��	�#��������	
���
�	������#���
��	
����

�������
 �����������	������������������
����	���	
���
�	��������
��:��� �	�����

	�
���
�������	���
����������� ��������

��#���
�	��������������������
��
��������
��	
���
�	����
�����

6� 	
�
�!"����!����	����� 5 ���

,���������������
�(�����
��
�����
����������	���������
���������
�������	�

������
���������������������	
���
�	��� ����

���
�����	��
����
�����	
����	����������
���������	�
��"
������������������

(96??D ���#�3�	����������������	
�������

�������	���	��
��		������	����������	


(����������

;� /��.�� �
!	+����� 5 ����.�	
���

/�
��(�����������������
�����	

��#��	�	������
��������	�����
�����

��������������
�������
�#������������
G6@? ???��������������

��	�#�����	�
�
��	������	�����������	��	�������������

����	���(�����H����������
����������	
���
������

22



Department Fund Relationship

General 
Fund 

(Major)

Recreation 
Fund 

(Major)

Museum 
Fund 

(Major)

Special 
Recreation 

Fund 
(Major)

Special 
Revenue 

Funds

Capital 
& Debt 
Funds

Other 

Non-
Major 

Funds

X X X X X X X

X X X

X

X X

X

X X X X

X

X

X X X

X

X X X

X X

X X

X

Other 

Programs

Planning

Special Events

Virginia 

Theatre

Teen 
Programs

Sports

Each fund described on the prior pages is further broken down into various departments. Those 

departments are reflected in the Departmental Information Section of the budget document, and the 
relationship by fund is noted below.

Cultural Arts

Facilities

Marketing

Operations

Department

Administration

Afterschool / 

Summer Youth 
Programs

Aquatics

Concessions

23



FYE202� Organization Chart
Department Heads  Full�Time Employees  

Residents of 
Champaign

Board of Commissioners

Elected (5 Commissioners)

FTE 0

Treasurer

Appointed

Attorney

(Contract)

Executive Director

FTE 1.0

Director of 
Finance

FTE 1.0

Finance & 
Development

FTE 5.0

Director of Human 
Resources, IT & 

Risk

FTE 1.0

Human 
Resources 
Manager

FTE 1.0

Risk

FTE 1.0

Director of 
Marketing & 

Communications

FTE 1.0

Graphic 
Designer

FTE 1.0

Marketing 
Coordinator 

FTE 1.0

Director of 
Planning

FTE 1.0

Planning 
Coordinator

FTE 1.0

Director of 
Operations

FTE 1.0

Grounds and 
Maintenance

FTE 19.0

Horticulture 
FTE 5.0

Special 
Projects 

FTE 3.0

Director of 
Recreation

FTE 1.0

Special 
Recreation

FTE 5.0

Special Events

FTE 2.0

Cultural Arts

FTE 3.0

Summer Youth 
Afterschool & 

Preschool

FTE 2.0

Facilities & 
Administration

FTE 5.0

Director of 
Revenue 
Facilities

FTE 1.0

Aquatics

FTE 1.0

Sports 
Programs

FTE 4.0

Facilities & 
Administration

FTE 4.0

Summer Youth 
& Afterschool 

Programs

FTE 1.0

Director of 
Virgnia 
Theatre

FTE 1.0

Virginia 
Theatre

FTE 4.0

Assistant to the Executive 
Director

FTE 1.0

24



FINANCIAL SUMMARIES
Combined Fund Analysis
Budget Analysis
The Park District has prepared a budget for FYE2022 that shows a surplus operating budget, and a deficit
capital budget as excess funds are used from prior years to complete projects. A balanced budget is a budget
where operating revenues meet or exceed operating expenses. Reserve balances are not considered an
operating revenue source, but have been utilized in the Champaign-Urbana Special Recreation fund to
continue to meet ADA improvements throughout the Park District as well as the Capital Improvement Fund for
large capital projects. The priorities for the year involve addressing the needs of the Park District by being
more effective and efficient in daily operations and in the pursuit of excellence. The budget reflects the
priorities set by the Park Board of focusing on using current resources only for operations while planning for
larger capital projects in the future such as improvements for trails and pathways throughout the Park District,
Human Kinetics Park outdoor improvements, Martens Center and saving for future land acquisition. Staff
continue to follow the high standards and best practices implemented by the Park District over the years to
provide and maintain our current level of services.

Carryover/Reserve Balance
Since the 120-day reserve requirement was established in 2008, the Park District continues to maintain the
minimum 120-day operating reserves in each of the main operating funds; specifically General, Recreation
and Museum Funds. The Board continues to set aside funds for land acquisition, park development and
trails/pathways. Excess funds are carried over from prior year and/or assigned to capital development in
FYE2022 for the following projects:

 Greenbelt Bikeway Connection $715,500
 Spalding (park and playground development) $658,000
 Martens Center $7,000,000
 CUSR facility $125,000
 Toalson Park sidewalk and earthwork $34,440
 Virginia Theatre Sound System $19,718
 Contingency set aside for Prairie Farm trailer $7,868
 Outdoor basketball courts $50,000
 Outdoor tennis courts $471,000
 Risk management $15,948
 Trail and park path additions $50,000

Revenues:

REAL ESTATE TAXES
Historically, real estate taxes average 70% of the Park District's total revenues excluding transfers. The
current year portion is 65.5%, which is lower than past years due to receipt of several capital grants. Tax
revenues are budgeted at $13,696,200,which is 2.30% more than the prior year actual receipts. In calendar
year 2020, also referred to as revenue year (RY), the assessed valuation of the Park District increased 2.5%
from the previous year as a result of new construction being added to the tax roll and annexation of new
properties into the City boundaries. It is anticipated that the EAV will increase approximately 1.4% in calendar
year 2021 based on the consumer price index. 

REPLACEMENT TAXES (PPRT) 
Due to the volatility of this revenue source in the last few years, combined with the pandemic, unemployment
rates, and no current projections for FYE2022 revenue by the Illinois Department of Revenue; funding levels
were reduced from current year projections for budget purposes. All receipts for this line item are credited to
the Capital Improvements Fund.

25



NON-TAX REVENUE SOURCES
Non-tax revenues are not derived from property or replacement taxes. The Park District’s goal is to strive to
have the non-tax revenues be at least 25% of the total revenue source. Actual non-tax revenues for the prior
fiscal year ended at 28.77% given the increase in grant funding for capital projects. These non-tax revenues
include interest income, program income (charges for services), sponsorships, concessions, special receipts,
and others and are further detailed below in the following section. Current year figures are inflated due to the
inclusion of new grant funding sources awarded for the FYE2022 budget year.

INTEREST INCOME
The Park District benefited from the slightly higher interest rates over the last couple of years allowing for
investments in long-term certificates of deposit at those higher rates. Fortunately, several of those long-
term CD's did not mature until mid 2021 allowing for higher than average interest returns for the prior year
compared to market.  Unfortunately with the downturn in the economy due to COVID-19 and a rise in
unemployment, interest rates have substantially been reduced to zero. The Park District has a few long-
term CD's invested at interest rates up to 2.2% that will be maturing within the next year and a half.
Reinvestments of those funds will be near 0.0%, therefore the Park District should anticipate even further
reduction in interest revenue for the upcoming fiscal year. 

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 
Program income generally is derived from a variety of sources – summer youth and sport camps; preschool
and after school programs; adult and youth sport leagues; tennis programs; facility programs such as fitness,
dance and birthday programs; movies and events at the Virginia Theatre; special recreation programs and
26



activities, pool passes and memberships. Program income is projected to increase by 337.4% for FYE2022.
This increase is due to the re-opening of programs closed due to COVID-19 in the prior year. The Virginia
Theatre revenues in FYE2022 are planned for 75% of a typical year with a reopening date set for August
2021.

CONTRIBUTIONS/SPONSORSHIPS
This line item typically includes sponsorship money for various special events and programming. Scholarship
funds are received from program fees along with the Can You Swing $5 program. In addition, scholarship
funds are raised by the Parks Foundation, and forwarded to the Park District to use towards various program
fees. Combined contributions/sponsorship revenues are budgeted to increase 22.4% from FYE2021.
Contributions expected from the Champaign Parks Foundation to offset capital expenditures for Martens
Center make up the majority of this balance for the new fiscal year as construction began in March 2021. 

MERCHANDISE/CONCESSIONS
This line item includes sales of merchandise and concessions throughout the Park District at the pool, sports
programs, tournaments, events, and performances at the Virginia Theatre. Combined merchandise/
concessions revenue is projected to increase by 4,438.5% as concessions begin to reopen after being shut
down in the prior year. The concessions for the Dodds Soccer continue to be vending machine only, while staff
worked to reopen Dodds and Zahnd Park locations for FYE2022.

GRANTS
Capital grant revenues increased $812,204 as new grants were awarded through Illinois Department of
Natural Resources (IDNR) public museum grant program for Virginia Theatre HVAC $750,000; balance of the
IDNR public museum grant for Virginia Theatre Sound, IDNR OSLAD grant for Spalding Park improvements
$347,000; and IDNR Illinois Bicycle Path grant to improve the Greenbelt bikeway extension for $200,000.

The Park District was awarded a $19,000 operating grant for September 2020 through August 31, 2021, plus
applied for an Illinois Arts Council grant for Museum Fund programs for September to August 2022 the amount
is yet to be determined by the State. These grants are recorded based on expenditures incurred and will not
agree to the budgeted grant award for current fiscal year due to the overlap of the grant years and fiscal years.

SPECIAL RECEIPTS AND OTHER REIMBURSEMENTS
Special receipts include money received from the City of Champaign in lieu of property taxes on the Kraft
property, easement fees collected during the year, rental income and reimbursements. The decrease for
FYE2022 is projected at 23.6% given the prior year included one-time receipts for the sale of land and a
reimbursement for professional fees related to Martens Center capital project for re-design work.

27



INTERFUND TRANSFERS

Schedule of Interfund Transfers

Source Fund Receiving Fund
Amount of 
Transfer

Recurring / Non-
Recurring Purpose

General Martens Center Fund $1,000,000 Non-Recurring Capital

General Land Acquisition 100,000 Recurring
Capital - Future Land 
Acquisition

General Park Development 100,000 Recurring
Capital - Future Park 
Development

General Trails and Pathways 100,000 Recurring
Capital - Future Trails 
and Pathways

Recreation Martens Center Fund 1,859,548 Non-Recurring Capital

Museum Capital Improvements 0 Non-Recurring

Capital - Virginia Theatre  
Sound & network re-
wiring

Bond Amortization Bond Proceeds 1,187,200 Recurring
Debt Service Payment 
2020 GO Bond

Total Transfers $4,346,748

Summary Schedule of Effect of Interfund Transfers Per Fund

Fund Amount Received
Amount 
Provided Net Effect Non-Recurring Amount

General $0 $1,300,000 ($1,300,000) $1,000,000
Recreation 0 1,859,548 (1,859,548) 1,859,548
Museum 0 0 0 0
Bond Amortization 1,187,200 0 1,187,200 0
Bond Proceeds 0 1,187,200 (1,187,200) 0
Capital Improvements 0 0 0 0
Land Acquisition 100,000 0 100,000 0
Park Development 100,000 0 100,000 0
Trails and Pathways 100,000 0 100,000 0
Martens Center Capital 2,859,548 0 2,859,548 0

Total Net Effect $0 $2,859,548

Transfers allow the Park District to utilize accumulated savings to fund a significant amount of capital projects 
in the upcoming years. Those details are provided below.

28



CHAMPAIGN PARKS FOUNDATION
The Parks Foundation was created in 2005. The mission of the Parks Foundation is to provide philanthropic
support for the Park District. Tax dollars are limited and do not provide enough funds for projects,
scholarships, land acquisition and development, park and playground equipment, or facility renovation. The
Parks Foundation keeps parks and recreation resources available for years to come.

Expenditures:

SALARIES AND WAGES
FYE2022 includes 80 full-time positions as the full-time II positions were reclassified in the prior year.
Typically in May, the Park District employs roughly 400 employees, including the full-time staff. This year,
the Park District has 270 staff with continued hiring for the summer months to continue. Overall salaries
and wages are projected to increase 39.7% over the prior year actual. Typically, the Board approves a
merit pool for eligible full-time staff in April. Given the uncertainty the pandemic will have on operations,
any merit increase proposals have been delayed to the fall, at a minimum. 

FRINGE BENEFITS
This includes social security taxes, IMRF, allowances for cell phones/vehicles, health, dental, life, vision
insurance, as well as taxable fringe benefits selected by staff. Examples of Park District taxable fringe
benefits defined by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) include pool passes, Leonhard recreation
membership passes, fitness reimbursements, and value of life insurance over $50,000 as deemed by the
IRS calculations. The number of employees enrolled in IMRF decreased from 109 to 95 since April 2020
as employees continue to work within their scheduled hours and staff are monitoring other employees
that may be nearing the 1,000 hour eligibility factor for enrollment. While wages decrease and number of
eligible IMRF participants decrease it is projected there will be a reduction in employer expenditures as
the overall employer contribution rate continues to decrease annually; however this is purely based on
the actuarial valuation methods used by IMRF and the overall market earnings, which can unexpectedly
change. The Park District budgets health insurance as though everyone eligible will elect coverage. Other
benefits, such as IMRF and social security are calculated on wages as defined by the applicable
legislative body, therefore as personnel numbers increase a similar increase is reflected in benefits.

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES
Contractual services include any type of professional service or contract that the Park District has entered
into. These expenditures are 66.8% higher than the prior year. This includes but is not limited to,
professional fees, architects and engineering services, audit services, legal services, mowing contracts,
credit card fees for processing program fees collected, sales tax fees paid on concessions, annual
maintenance fees associated with software, licenses, dues and memberships, equipment rentals,
conference travel and contractual entertainment. Other line items are to help with the deferred
maintenance and to plan future projects (engineering fees, other professional fees, building repairs, and
service and grounds contracts.)  Professional fees includes added expenditures for Martens Center
capital project to be paid through donations, as well as other capital projects for pickleball courts,
Greenbelt Bikeway Trail, Prairie Farm master plan, Human Kinetics Park improvements, Spalding Park
renovations, plus $4,100 for actuarial services required under the accounting standard related to other
post-employment benefits. The balance of $6,350 for the shop under ground storage tank work is still
pending but is included in FYE2022 expenditures. Savings to offset these increases include a reduction
to printing and postage as the program guide continues to be offered online. Conference and travel was
reinstated within the Park District allowing additional staff to attend conferences as in pre-COVID years.

COMMODITIES AND SUPPLIES
An 89.4% increase is projected for FYE2022. Basic line items such as office supplies, building
maintenance and landscape supplies, cleaning and janitorial supplies and repair parts remain constant as
Park District facilities, equipment and programs continue to grow and age, including the Aquatic Center
pool operation. Reopening of programs and facilities that were either completely or partially closed in the
prior year is the result of the increase. Summer Youth Programming and preschool is planned to operate
in reduced capacity still into FYE2022. The other large contributor is the reopening of the Virginia Theatre

29



in August, after being closed for all of last fiscal year. 

UTILITIES
Utilities are projected to increase 39.9%. The Park District is part of an electric and gas cooperative which
does help to reduce costs.  The electric cooperative renewed in FYE2018 and no rate increases are
planned for FYE2022. With the repurposing of the BiCentennial Center to the CUSR Center in April 2021,
additional increases in utilities are included whereas those expenditures had been previously covered by
the prior user.

INSURANCE
Insurance expenditures decreased 6.1% over prior year. The Park District benefits from participating in
the insurance risk pool with PDRMA. The most significant benefit is sharing the risk with a larger group of
employers thereby reducing the impact of large premium increases. As payroll expenditures fluctuate, so
does the amount of workers compensation premiums. There is a two year lag between the actual
expenditures and when that impacts the future rates. Given the prior fiscal year was not a typical year,
PDRMA refunded a portion of the premiums back to the agencies and allowed them to update the
expenditures based on calendar year 2020 data. The Park District falls into two categories, administration
and maintenance, with maintenance carrying a higher cost/unit for coverage.

ROUTINE/PERIODIC MAINTENANCE
Routine and periodic maintenance and repairs are segregated from the capital budgets and a separate
budget line is utilized to better track the annual and periodic expenditures to maintain or replace existing
infrastructure or equipment under the capitalization thresholds. This mostly consists of general concrete,
park amenities, roadway repairs, fibar for playgrounds, sports field mix for the ball fields, along with
periodic carpet replacement, HVAC repairs, etc. Some of the items, such as pool maintenance occurs
every other year, or every three years creating volatility in the budgeted expenditures. The following is a
listing of the items included in the FYE2022 budget for this category.

30



Champaign Park District
Year End: April 30, 2021
Listing of Projects for Budget Year by Category

Project Proposed 04/2�

Routine & Periodic Maintenance

000ADA  ADA Operating 25,000.00

22RM01  General Painting 30,000.00

22RM02  General Concrete 40,000.00

22RM03  Replacement Fencing 25,000.00

22RM04  General Roadway Patch 6,000.00

22RM05  Park Amenities 30,000.00

22RM07  Playground Surfacing (Fibar) 36,000.00

22RM08  Sports Field Mix 20,000.00

22RM09  Sealcoating And Line Striping 25,000.00

Routine Maintenance 237,000.00

20PM03  Wraps For Showmobile & Box Truck 10,000.00

20PM05  VT Wayfinding Signage Study/Design 18,778.00

21PM02  General Flooring 14,000.00

22PM01  Springer Cultural Center Drainage Study And Plan 6,000.00

22PM02  Office Renovations Ops & Bresnan Server 5,500.00

22PM03  Office Renovations Hays Center 2,000.00

22PM04  Dog Park Shade Structures 22,500.00

Periodic Maintenance 78,778.00

31



CAPITAL EXPENDITURES
The Park District has $13,068,139 budgeted for capital expenditures. More detail on the capital programs
and project schedule is available in the Capital and Debt section of this document. Capital expenditures
related specifically to the Special Recreation capital/ADA projects for both the Park District and Urbana
Park District total $704,507. Of the remaining funds, $7,000,000 is specifically set aside for the Martens
Center project which broke ground in March 2021. Funds were also set aside to pay for the Greenbelt
Bikeway Connection, completion of the Virginia Theatre sound project, Virginia Theatre HVAC system,
Spalding Park improvements, and development and construction for pickleball courts.

DEBT SERVICE
Total debt service for principal and interest in FYE2022 is 2.0% less than the prior year. As the principal
payment increases annually, the interest expenditure is reduced, however not at a proportionate level. The
amount paid is set by the bond amortization schedule in the loan documents, and further outlined in the
“Capital and Debt” section for the bond amortization fund. The debt service interest expenditure includes the
annual interest due on the limited general obligation bonds. 

Overall, the financial condition of the Park District is excellent. Targeted operating reserve balances have
not only been reached, but maintained for over twelve years and budgeted to be maintained in the future.
Operating budgets are balanced. Overall fund balances are projected to end FYE2022 at $27,877,341 on
a modified accrual basis of accounting, which far exceeds the 120-day reserve requirement for the three
main operating funds by $2,958,976.

The data expressed in the “Expenditures per Capita” chart below represents how the Park District is
utilizing its resources based on the total estimated population within the Park District. The census
estimate used for FYE2019 through FYE2020 calculation is 88,029. The census estimate from 2019 of
88,909 was utilized for FYE2021 and FYE2022. Based on this formula, the annual cost to each resident
within the Park District’s taxing boundaries for FYE2022 is $324.56 which breaks down to 54.7%
operating and 45.3% capital. Operating cost per capita remains consistent with prior years and part of the
current year increase is the addition of park space to be maintained. This benchmark is a useful
measurement tool to compare the Park District to other park districts throughout the State. Despite the
increase in expenditures per capita, what is not reflected here, is that excess funds are being utilized in
FYE2022 to pay for various expenditures, mainly capital projects in the current year.

32



33



BUDGET SUMMARY ALL FUNDS COMBINED

FYE2019
Actual

FYE2020
Actual

FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Proposed

%
Change
from PY

Estimated Revenues
Property Tax Revenue $12,588,873 $13,044,401 $13,385,617 $13,696,200 %2.3
Personal Property Replacement

Taxes 266,500 291,721 370,019 300,000 %(18.9)
Charge for Service Revenue 3,060,452 2,541,675 572,600 2,504,412 %337.4
Contributions/Sponsorships 339,727 1,439,864 2,099,801 2,570,956 %22.4
Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 247,824 187,192 4,631 210,177 %4,438.5
Operating Grants 14,970 23,990 9,225 9,100 %(1.4)
Capital Grants - 180,249 962,597 1,774,801 %84.4
Special Receipts 486,111 505,811 349,055 266,678 %(23.6)
Interest Income 535,464 508,193 108,935 33,950 %(68.8)
Transfers from Other Funds 4,351,101 4,572,623 2,239,379 4,346,748 %94.1

Total Estimated Revenues 21,891,022 23,295,719 20,101,859 25,713,022 %27.9
Appropriations
Salaries and Wages

Full-Time Salaries & Wages 3,672,706 3,768,770 3,619,684 3,693,842 %2.0
Part-Time Wages 1,755,071 1,690,778 353,624 1,991,000 %463.0
Seasonal Wages 234,132 180,555 96,402 - %(100.0)

Subtotal: Salaries and Wages 5,661,909 5,640,103 4,069,710 5,684,842 %39.7
Fringe Benefits 1,387,656 1,337,719 1,458,358 1,396,266 %(4.3)
Contractual 2,098,802 1,827,526 1,147,039 1,913,286 %66.8
Commodities/Supplies 915,560 787,576 431,830 817,691 %89.4
Utilities 653,833 559,907 428,815 599,810 %39.9
Insurance 237,713 242,442 237,717 223,220 %(6.1)
Routine/Periodic Maintenance 200,766 205,693 215,782 259,778 %20.4
Capital Outlay 1,912,414 5,233,546 4,926,508 13,068,139 %165.3
Debt Service - Principal 435,000 445,000 460,000 480,000 %4.3
Debt Service - Interest/Fees 120,536 109,783 98,250 67,000 %(31.8)

Transfers to Other Funds 4,351,101 4,572,623 2,239,379 4,346,748 %94.1

Total Appropriations 17,975,290 20,961,918 15,713,388 28,856,780 %85.7

Net Revenues Over (Under)
Appropriations 3,915,732 2,333,801 4,388,471 (3,143,758) %(171.6)
Beginning Fund Balance-All Funds
Unassigned Fund Balance 6,465,040 6,752,256 6,603,164 8,919,698 %35.1
Assigned Fund Balance 12,885,171 16,100,077 18,558,121 21,384,305 15.2
Restricted Fund Balance - CPD ADA 738,213 1,130,897 1,178,341 579,963 %(50.8)
Restricted Fund Balance - UPD ADA 57,730 78,656 56,061 137,133 %144.6

Subtotal: Beginning Fund Balance-All
Funds 20,146,154 24,061,886 26,395,687 31,021,099 %17.5

Ending Fund Balance-All Funds $24,061,886 $26,395,687 $30,784,158 $27,877,341 %(9.4)

34



Fund Balance Summary

Projected
Balance 5/1

Budgeted
Revenues /
Transfers

Budgeted
Expd /

Transfers

Net
Revenues

Over
(Under)
Expd

Projected
Balance

4/30
120-Day
Reserve

Excess
Funds over

120-Day
Reserve

General $ 8,919,698 $ 6,706,894 $ (5,360,344) $ 1,346,550 $10,266,248 $1,334,908 $ 8,931,340
Recreation 5,337,345 3,897,771 (4,983,477) (1,085,706) 4,251,639 1,027,045 3,224,594
Museum 4,292,319 2,791,522 (1,815,944) 975,578 5,267,897 597,023 4,670,874
Special Recreation 1,542,317 1,151,841 (237,624) 914,217 2,456,534 - -

Total Operating Funds $20,091,679 $14,548,028 $(12,397,389) $ 2,150,639 $22,242,318 $2,958,976 $16,826,808
Liability Insurance 508,560 342,490 (340,032) 2,458 511,018 - -
IMRF 468,570 282,190 (230,000) 52,190 520,760 - -
Social Security 196,880 391,310 (395,000) (3,690) 193,190 - -
Audit 13,073 24,405 (26,510) (2,105) 10,968 - -
Police 73,278 24,440 (30,000) (5,560) 67,718 - -

Total Other Special
Revenue Funds $ 1,260,361 $ 1,064,835 $ (1,021,542) $ 43,293 $ 1,303,654 $ - $ -
Bond Amortization - 1,187,200 (1,187,200) - -
Bond Proceeds 484,977 1,187,920 (1,913,536) (725,616) (240,639)
Paving and Lighting 283,263 95,200 (71,000) 24,200 307,463
Capital Improvement 3,157,565 - (1,300,000) (1,300,000) 1,857,565
Land Acquisition 1,137,224 101,000 - 101,000 1,238,224
Park Development 1,118,524 447,900 (658,000) (210,100) 908,424
Trails and Pathways 432,068 100,300 (50,000) 50,300 482,368
Martens Center 2,369,332 5,344,548 (7,479,500) (2,134,952) 234,380

Total Capital Funds $ 8,982,953 $ 8,464,068 $(12,659,236) $(4,195,168) $ 4,787,785
Special Donations 196,376 27,256 (55,196) (27,940) 168,436
Working Cash 250,000 - - - 250,000

Total Other Funds $ 446,376 $ 27,256 $ (55,196) $ (27,940) $ 418,436

Total All Funds
Combined $30,781,369 $24,104,187 $(26,133,363) $(2,029,176) $28,752,193 $2,958,976 $16,826,808

35



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

�������/�0���

�����������	
��

������
� 1"! !2� ",,3 1"! 4�! 2�,3 1"� �,, 5,!3 1"� ��4 ���3

�����������	
��

������
�����	����������� 1!5 �5"3 1!! 22�3 1"2 """ 3 1!� ���3

�����������	
��

������
�����	����� 1��4 �,53 1�"- �",3 1�!2 66,3 1��6 !��3

�������7���#��#�8�� 1"! 255 54�3 1"� �,, ,�"3 1"� �52 6"43 1"� 6-6 !��3

�������������
����
 
!�����
� 1!66 2��3 1!-" 4!" 3 1�4� �"-3 1��� ���3

���������70�9���7���#�����9�����0#�#�8�� 1!66 2��3 1!-" 4!" 3 1�4� �"-3 1��� ���3

�����������"
���!��#�$
��"��
� 1"!� 22�3 1"�4 !�,3 � 1-, �-23

�������������#����% #��#�!�"��
� 1!6- 42- 3 1!!� 4�,3 � 1�"! !2,3

�����&�����'�������(#!
�)��*
 1" !�-3 1" ,2! 3 1" ���3 1" "�-3

�����&�������!%� ���+
���# 
 1"�4 �,63 15, ,66 3 1,, 65- 3 1-6 ",4 3

�����&�����	
#,��
�-
���!� 1�" ,,"3 1!6 25�3 1,5 !,2 3 1�� 6,53

�����&��������.+
��"�
#!*#!* 1! 6,! 3 1-!, 3 1" !54 3 1" 6-! 3

�����&�����/
!%#!*����(#!
�"��
� 1� ",�3 1� �",3 � 14��3

�����0�����	
�*
� ��

� 1� "52 2!�3 1! 6"5 �"23 1,!6 �,�3 1! �6� !��3

�����0��1��/
!%�
�	�
�#�!�23��!�� 
 5�6 5-, 662 "-- 4 2!� 2"� -4,

�����0�4���"�
�#���5,
!�� 15 6"�3 1" -4, 3 12�3 1,��3

�����0�1����
 6

�(#���

� 1"�, "!�3 1",! "-! 3 122 ,2�3 1"!� 5,"3

������:��&���*7�����/;������/�0�� 1� �6� ,2!3 1! 2," 6!6 3 126- !44 3 1! 2�, ,"!3

��7��4�����"��!��
�(#�� 1,2 4�63 16" "!�3 1" �"23 1", 4��3

��7��4�������!��#�!� 15 �-"3 1" �44 !-43 1" 5", 526 3 1! !-� "-63

��7��4��1����!�
#6+�#�!��)	���)"��2�

��#!* 1-5 4423 1"�6 4!,3 1""5 5!4 3 1"", ���3

��7��4��4����!�
#6+�#�!�8)	���)"��2����������� 1!6 ""5 3 1!" ,-6 3 1"2 "423 1!� ���3

��7��4��&����!�
#6+�#�!��)	���)"������	�
�#�! 1-4 "�,3 1-- 4��3 1"�, !!53 1"�2 26�3

��
� "

36



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)"
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

��7��4������
���
��#�!��

 � 1,- 3 1"5! 3 �

��7��4�����"�(���
�(#����!��#�!� 125 62�3 165 "64 3 1,, "�23 1!� ���3

��7��4��1���)"��"�(���
�(#����!��#�!� 1! �"23 1! ��53 1�!53 1! ���3

��7��4��&����!��#�!� 1� !�23 1� !563 1-643 1" 2��3

������70#�;$�#;70�+��70�7��:;�� 1��- 4!43 1" ,�- -"�3 1! �-- -5�3 1! 24� -263

�����&�������!�
��#�!��
,
!+
 1!!5 265 3 1"46 ,"- 3 1� "!23 1"-6 2"! 3

�����&������

�(�!%#�
���
��
���
 16 ,�43 12 ��!3 1" 2�63 16 "543

�����&�70���

�(�!%#�
���
��
���
 1"! 44- 3 12 44"3 � 14 �!53

�����&��4���

�(�!%#�
���
��
���
 1,�3 � � 1"2�3

���������:�0�;��+�70����;70���/�0�� 1!,4 5!, 3 1"54 "-! 3 1, 6�"3 1!"� "443

��1��4�����9
�!��	
��

%�����
%

������#��� � 1"!! 2��3 ! 2�� �

��1��4�����9
�!��	
��

%����2�

��#!*�-���� 14 �"�3 1"" ,2�3 1!" 46�3 16 !2�3

��1��4��7��9
�!��	
��

%����2�

��!*�"���
 14 66�3 1"! 2,�3 12 4��3 1! 52�3

��1��4�����9
�!��	
��

%����"���
����#��� � 124 4,- 3 1-2� ���3 1" 44, 5�"3

�����&��0#� 1", -4�3 1!�, !�-3 1-4, -6�3 1" 45� -�"3

��&��7�7����!�


����!�� 
 12�2 ,6,3 12�5 "-�3 1"�5 -�23 1�� -2�3

�����;0#����#�;0�7�� 12�2 ,6,3 12�5 "-�3 1"�5 -�23 1�� -2�3

��0�����������#�#����
!��� 1"-, 65�3 1"-- �453 1,� "",3 1"!� 26�3

��0��1�����"�
�#����
�
#��� 1!5" !!4 3 1!-6 6-�3 1!", 2�63 1"�4 ""53

��0��1�1���2�(

��
# 6+
�
 
!�� 1"� !�"3 1- 4,�3 15- ��23 16 ���3

��0��4�����9
�!��	
��

%� � � 1! "��3 �

���������;�9�����;�#� 1,56 """ 3 12�2 5""3 1�,- �223 1!66 6453

�����1������
�!�3

��!�3
� �2�(

��+!%� 1, �2" "�"3 1, 24! 6!�3 1! !�- �4-3 1, �,6 4,53

�����#��0�*����*�7��7#:���*�0�� 1, �2" "�"3 1, 24! 6!�3 1! !�- �4-3 1, �,6 4,53

��
� !

37



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)!
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

�����#7#�9���/�0��� 1!" 5-" �!!3 1!� !-2 4"-3 1!� "�" 52-3 1!2 4"� �!!3

���������7��;�#;70�

�������9��;����0��<�&��

"���4������5�
�+�#,
��#

���
 "�, "4" "�- �-, "�- 6!� �

"���4�������
��
� 
!��:
�% 6"� ,!� 64" 556 225 �"" �

"���4�7����233#�
�"��33�"+���
� 225 �!5 255 !�- �2� 54� �

"���4��������!�*

��"+�

,#��
� 6-� 4�6 422 �-! 622 !24 �

"���4�1����2�

��#�!��"��33 5-" ,-, 555 �42 6-" 2�- �

"���4�0�����+���%#�� """ �"� ""2 4�" 2- --6 �

"���4������	
�*
� ����#�#����#

���
 6,, ,�2 25! "�! �2� 2,5 �

"���4�������!��
+���
 !- ,�- !5 25" !� �!2 �

"���4�������+����# 
�"���
#
���!%�;�*
� � � 5", !"2 � 6-� 5,!

�����*�99)#;�����9��;����0��<�&�� � 64! 4�6 � 465 44� � 6"- 65, � 6-� 5,!

"���4������	�
���# 
�"
���!���;�*
� � � "�� -65 " --" ���

"���&�7�7��	��233#�
�"��33�"+���
� !"6 �2! !!� �,, 64 6", �

"���&�0�7��	���+���%#�� ,2 �25 2" -,6 �6 26� �

"���&���7��	��	
�*
� ��#

���
�"+�

,#��
 "�4 624 "�, "!" "" -�6 �

"���&���7��	��"��
���233#�#�� !� 2�� "4 4�" " !-" �

"���&�7�7��	�����#���!���#

���
�"+�

,#��
 "!5 �5! "!� 2�� � �

"���&���7��	���!��
+���
� !"5 -4! !2! ,�" 25 6,- �

"���&���7��	��9
!

���"��33 !�6 46, "-2 ��, 2 4,� �

"���&�4�7��	�������� ��"��33�-#3
�9+�
% 6�- 5�5 266 ,-5 2" �6� �

"���&�&�7��	��"#�
�"+�

,#��
 �2 655 �� 4"4 � !�5 �

"���&�0�7��	��'+#�%#!*�	�
$�2�
!

� 2 2"! ! -44 !5" �

��
� �

38



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)�
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

��������#)#;�����9��;����0��<�&�� " 2-, 6-� " 262 24! ��4 6"� " --" ���

"�7�&���7��	��/��:�+�
�"��33 �4 ,�4 !! �6� " ",5 �

"�7�&������	��/��:�+�
�"��33�2� 6 �4� ! ""5 � �

"�7�&�1�7��	��/���
!����"��33 4� 4�- 6� 4�4 �- �

"�7�&�1����	��/���
!����"��33�2� "! �"" 6 2!6 � �

"�7�&�4�7��	��"
���!���"��33 !62 !5� !", �,4 """ !!- �

���������70�9�<�&�� �-, 2"� ��2 46" ""! ,"6 �

�����#7#�9���9��;����0��<�&�� 2 66" -�- 2 6,� "�� , �6- 4"� 2 65, 5,!

5���&7��7������<�!�
���
# 6+
�
 
!�� !� 4�, !6 255 !4 555 !4 64�

"����7�7����
!�����!�+
�!�
 !� "2! !� 64� !! �-" !" -4�

"����7�77���
%#����:
���(��!�+
�!�
 222 6�- 2-� 4!4 25, �"6 6", �!�

"����7�7���-#3
��!�+
�!�
 "! 2!, 5 "�" 5 ��, 5 ,6�

"����7�7��������5��
!%#�+

� !55 56� !!" 6-2 ,2" �!5 !,! ���

"����7�71���#���	�� 
!�� ,�� 424 ,!5 2"" �!! ��� ,!- ���

"����7�74��5 ����

����#���!�
�	
�*
� ! 25, ! 2-! ! 6�� ! 6,6

"���&7��7������<�!�
���
# 6+
�
 
!�� 2� ,�� �5 5�2 �- 5�" 2� !��

�����*�;0&��$�0�*;#� " �54 626 " ��4 4"- " ,25 �25 " �-6 !66

"�7��������	����*
��!%���#�#!*�5��
!�
 �5 5!6 �2 2"6 � -!, "5 246

"�7��������	
#!�#!*��!%��+��#���#�! 5� 2,� 5" !�, 4 44! !6 5-"

"�7��������"��33��

�#!*� " ��5 "5! 4� �-�

"�7��������-
*���	+6�#���#�!��=��#�
� ", "2- ", -!- 4 �24 "2 224

"�7�����1���%,

�#�#!*�	+6�#�#�� 4- ,42 66 6�! "5 4"5 4" 622

"�7�����4��"��33��
�#!#!* !4 ,5" !6 "!2 5 �!2 !- !�6

"�7�����&���
 6

�(#��>��+
���!%��

� �! !6" !5 4�! !4 46! �, ���

��
� ,

39



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������),
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

"�7�����0����!3


!�
��!%��
�,
� �6 �"5 "- -�5 , �55 !6 452

"�7��������'��
%�5��
!�
 2 !!4 , ,52 6�� , 2��

"�7������������
!
���

� ",� !�2 ""2 6�� ",5 5"! ",� ���

"�7���������
�(#�
����!%�5!*#!


#!*��

� !� 2,! "2! -�" 4, -�5 !� ���

"�7��������	
�3
��#�!���"

,#�
� 52 !2" "�, �5, !6" ,55 "5� "�5

"�7�����4���+%#��5��
!%#�+

� !" 2�� !! ��� !� 45� !6 2"�

"�7���������!�+
�!�
�5��
!�
 -�, -64 � �

"�7����7���-�!%3#����

� �4 !5! �4 �!6 �! "�6 �2 4��

"�7����71���+�������<�!�
 " �-� �5! ,"2 4!,

"�7��������/
(#��
��
��#
 !4 !-" - "25 - �", "4 2��

"�7��������5.+#� 
!���
��#
 !2 66- !, �,2 "� 46! !, !-5

"�7��������'+#�%#!*��
��#
 ,- �!5 �" -", ", �,, �5 -,-

"�7���������
!����5.+#� 
!� ""- �," 44 4,2 "6 �"- 2� "!-

"�7���������
!�������#�#�#
� 26 "�� 24 65� "! 655 �- !2�

"�7�����7��	
�����!�
�� 6 556 2 ,!- , �2� 2 !5�

"�7��������"

,#�
���!�
���� 24 !6! 2- 2�� 6� !�- 25 64�

"�7��������-#�
!�
��!%��

� !� 25! !! �46 �- 62� !� 5��

"�7����1���"

,#�
���!�
��������#�#�#
� "�5 -"� -� �"- 2- 254 4, -"5

"�7����1���"

,#�
���!�
�����9
�+!%� �� 22" �! �,4 !5 46, ,� 22�

"�7����17����!�
���+�����<#!* "!2 4!" "6! ��" "2� ��5 "62 ���

"�7����1����
���	(�!
�5��
!�
 - """ 5 �5� - ��4 "! 2,,

"�7����1���"+6��
#��#�!� " 4!5 ! �4, " "6" " 466

"�7����4���	

��!!
������� !! ,�! !" ,!- "2 -52 64 242

"�7����4���:
���(��!%�;
��!
�� ! !"� ! 2�- " ,"� ! 2,4

��
� 2

40



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)2
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

"�7����&���2�(

���!�
���+���"

,#�
� 42 �-6 2� 4-5 5 -!� 6- ,66

"�7����&�����!�
���+���	

��!!
� "�2 �4! -� ,25 !4 �4" 54 64-

"�7����&����!�

!�"�#�
!%� � � " !�� � 6��

"�7����&�����!�
���+���5!�

��#! 
!� �6- 5!� "64 �55 4 "�� !56 4!�

"�7����0���	�
$��!%��
�

��#�!�5��
��
!�
 " "64 -5� � !�- " 2��

"�7����0���"�(���
�(#�� 26 !24 2� -�" 5 !5, 2� ���

"�7����00���#
�%�"�
�#����
#�� 45 2!5 6� 2-2 12�3 6" -�!

"�7��0�����	
��

���"��
����� !� ��- !" ,64 6 !2� "- ,!"

"�7��0������

%#����
%��

� -2 5�! 44 5"5 !" 4-" 62 56"

"�7��0������
�!�3

����	�
$����+!%��#�!��
��
#��
% ! 4�4 2 �6" 2 "-6 2 "-6

"�7�0������5��
��
%#!�
��-�����!,
�� 
!� � 1"6 "5! 3 � �

������70#���#��9 ! �-5 5�! " 5!4 2!6 " ",6 �4, " -"� 456

"�����7����233#�
�"+���#
� "4 ,,- ", -!� "� ��! ", -��

"�����7����5!,
���
���!%�"���#�!�
� " 24" 42� 5�� " 65�

"�����7�7���+��#���#!*�"+���#
� , ,2" � 22! " "44 � 46�

"�����7�����(
�$���!%�'�!$�"+���#
� " �,- " ,-, " ,!2 " ,��

"�����7����	(���*
��(#��"+���#
� "66 ""� � "��

"�����7�1���	��'��$���!%�"+���#
��?��
���+!%@ 2 -!- ! 5!! , 2-6 ! -��

"�����7�4��'��$���!%���!+��
#��� " 6-6 " 42� 45� " 55!

"�����7�&���#
����#%��
%#����"+���#
��	����"�
�#3#� 5 �-� - 244 ,�� "" �"-

"�����7�0��"�3
���"+���#
� 5 �!" "6 -56 "� "46 - ���

"�����7����"��33�)!#3�
 � !- ��� !2 "�� "" 6�! "5 6,2

"�����7�1��	�
�#�#��!��)!#3�
 � !� -4" "2 ,�4 � ,!" "6 ""2

"�����7����'+#�%#!*���#!�
!�!�
�"+���#
� 4" �,! 2, ""4 ,5 4"5 6� !��

��
� 6

41



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)6
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

"�����7����-�!%����
�"+���#
� �� !�- !2 6,- !� 54� �! ,!2

"�����7����A�!#��
#���"+���#
� !4 ,!- !� -�2 "! 56� !4 -24

"�����7�7��	���*
�+!%���#!�
!�!�
�"+���#
� 2 5,2 " ��- 2 !6! 2 2��

"�����7����	

��
#6
%�'+
!�"+���#
� 65" 5-" � 2��

"�����7����5.+#� 
!���!%������ "6 4"" "5 55, 5 2�� "5 "��

"�����7�1��"(���5.+#� 
!���!%�"+���#
� 6 4"5 6 "!4 2 55! 4 ���

"�����7�4��/
(#��
�5.+#� 
!���
��#
�	�
�� �" 5!! !2 ,�- �5 ,-5 �� ,��

"�����7�&��� 
!#�����#!�
!�!�
�"+���#
� 2 ��� 6 !!2 5 �26 2 ���

"�����7�0��233#�
��5.+#� 
!��/��+
�BC����� ,2 ,!, �6 62" 6 6,� , -��

"�����77���9��>�+
�>9

��
��!%�2#� 6- !�, 2- 45� ,! ��- 64 6��

"�����77����(
 #���� 22 --, 2" ,�- !� 4!6 22 2!�

"�����77���	�#!�� 5 655 "� �-6 ! ,26 "� 65�

"�����777��	��!�����

#��� "!6 ,-2 ""- �"! ""� ,62 ",� ,5�

"�����7�&�����<

���!%�9#3�� 5�- 4"" " �5� �-�

"�����7�0��	��.+
�>�<�
%�>	
#D
� !! "25 !" �,5 � 25" "- �4�

"�����7�����
�

��#�!�	
�*
� �"+���#
� "�4 "4, 5, 6�" ,� 54! ""- 46-

"�����7�����!# ���"+���#
� � �62 " �-! � ! !��

"�����7�����#�(��
����$#!* ! ��� ! ��� " 2!5 " 2��

"�����7�������%�"+���#
� 4! 425 ,- -!, " ��2 2" 5�5

"�����7�����!# ����

% 6 45" 2 466 "!2 2 ���

"�����71����

�(�!%#�
���
��
���
 "�� ",� -� "�� ! 52, 4! �-5

������7��7�;#;��+����9;�� -"2 26� 454 246 ,�! 4-2 5!� "-"

"����1�7���"�!#��
���

���!%��(�
*
� !2 "-- "" "6� ", !�� "5 �-�

"����1�7���9����!%�5�
��
#�#�� ,"� 5"� �!5 45" !"4 �5, �,� 4��

��
� 4

42



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)4
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

"����1�7���;��

 "2, 26� "25 �2, "�4 ,"2 "64 2�2

"����1�77���
�
��  �5��
!%#�+

� 6� !6" 6" 6�- 6� ""6 4� 2"2

������#;9;#;�� 62� 5�� 22- -�4 ,!5 5"2 2-- 5"�

"�1��4�7���;�
$

���� �
!���#�! 5- �,- -2 !2" 5- -5! 5� -��

"�1��4�74��)!
 ���� 
!��	

 #+ - ��- 6 ��2 5 2�� 5 2��

"�1��4�����-#�6#�#����!�+
�!�
 ," !6- ,! �"2 ," 6!6 �4 2��

"�1��4�����5 ���� 
!��	
���#�
� "4 -42 "5 !2" "4 -4� "6 5!�

"�1��4�����	
��

����!�+
�!�
 4- 5"" 5� -!� 4- 6�6 46 2��

�����;0����0�� !�4 4"� !,! ,,! !�4 4"4 !!� !!�

"�4��&�����	

#�%#����#!�
!�!�
 4� �"� ,, �24 �6 �"4 65 445

"�4��&�������+�#!
���#!�
!�!�
 ""6 -5! "�5 -66 "22 !62 "66 ���

"�4��&��7������=�!����#����5��
!%#�+

� "� 44, !! �4� !, !�� !2 ���

������7�#;0�+���;7�;����;0#�0�0�� !�� 466 !�2 6-� !"2 45! !2- 445

"�&��0�����'�!%��
%
 ��#�! ,�2 ��� ,,2 ��� ,6� ��� ,5� ���

�������$#����/;�����;0�;��9 ,�2 ��� ,,2 ��� ,6� ��� ,5� ���

"�0��0��4���!�


���5��
!�
 "!� 2�6 "�- 45� -5 !2� 64 ���

�������$#����/;���;0#����#+*��� "!� 2�6 "�- 45� -5 !2� 64 ���

"���1������/
(#��
����5.+#� 
!� �,- ,5� "!6 �-, ",, 4!4 "!5 ���

"���1���&��	�
$���!��
+��#�!�� 
�,
 
!�� " �-5 242 , ,5, 4�- , 6-, "62 "! 6,- �--

"���1���0��)	�����#������� "!" !�4 "!! �!5 !� "55 !,� �-!

"���1�������
��#
�	
�E
�����!%�5.+#� 
!� ,! -2� "�2 "�� 6, ,!5 2� -,5

"���1������-�!%���.+#�#�#�!��
,
��� 
!� "-- �-2 �"2 � �

��������;#�9�7�#9�� " -"! ,", 2 !�� 2,6 , -!6 2�5 "� �65 "�-

"����0��0���
�!�3

�����2�(

��+!%� , �2" "�" , 24! 6!� ! !�- �4- , �,6 4,5

��
� 5

43



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������)5
���
��������
	���� �!�!"

#$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
�(	������'%���#'�����)�����*%���

$%�
���&
'%�+���'%�� �����,+"- �����,+!� �
'.�������,+!" �
'�'�����,+!!

�����#��0�*����#7�7#:���*�0�� , �2" "�" , 24! 6!� ! !�- �4- , �,6 4,5

�����#7#�9�����7��;�#;70� "4 -42 !-� !� -6" -"5 "2 4"� �55 !5 526 45�

�����0�#���/�0���17/��3��0��������7��;�#;70� 1� -"2 4�!3 1! ��� 5�"3 1, �5! ",43 � !54 ",-

��
� -

44



General Fund
Principal Responsibilities
The General Fund is the Park District's major operating fund and accounts for all revenues and expenditures
that by law, or for administrative control, are not accounted for in separate funds. This fund is used to account
for the Park District's general administrative costs, park and facility operations, maintenance, and planning.
The General Fund is divided into four departments - Administration, Marketing, Operations, and Planning. The
Operations Department is further divided into three divisions - Horticulture, Grounds/Maintenance, and Special
Projects. 

2020-2021 Accomplishments
8.5 DEVELOP STAFF EXCELLENCE
OBJECTIVES:
 Hire quality staff by opening all positions to everyone interested in applying. Status – We continue to open

all positions to the public and in-house staff.

 Implemented a new hiring process which led to a more diverse workforce.

8.6 MAINTAIN A FINANCIALLY SUSTAINABLE DISTRICT
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain the 120 day reserves while providing funds to maintain facilities, parks, programs, services, and

amenities at our current quality standards. Status – Met

 Increase non-tax revenues to 25% to 30% of the operating budget. Status – 28.70% 

2021-22 Goals
8.5 DEVELOP STAFF EXCELLENCE
OBJECTIVES:
 Hire quality staff by opening all positions to everyone interested in applying.

 Develop quality leaders through training, mentoring, and coaching.

 Continue to develop processes and systems to retain staff at greater than 90% every year.

8.6 MAINTAIN A FINANCIALLY SUSTAINABLE DISTRICT
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain the 120 day reserves while providing funds to maintain facilities, parks, programs, services, and

amenities at our current quality standards.

 Increase non-tax revenues to 25% to 30% of the operating budget.

45



General Fund
Revenues are budgeted at $6,706,894, an increase from prior year projected of $201,515 or 3.10% from
last year. Property tax revenues increased 3.55% with planned increase to cover minimum wage
increases. Charges for services revenues decreased as planned for the flower island program given prior
year included multiple years. FYE2021 rates were increased and revenues are based on actual
commitments received. Expenditures, including transfers, are budgeted at $5,360,344, which represents
a increase of $1,171,499 from prior year projected, or 27.97%. This increase is comprised of $1,000,000
in transfers specific to the Martens Center capital project that was committed at the June 23, 2021 special
meeting. The only recurring transfer is $100,000 for land acquisition as it has been and continues to be a
Board priority. Additional transfers for FYE2022 include $100,000 Transfer to Trails & Pathways,
$100,000 to the Park Development Fund, and $0 to the Capital Improvements Fund.

Fund 01 - GENERAL

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 5,877,751 $ 6,128,989 $ 6,330,861 $ 6,555,300

Charge for Service Revenue 121,303 161,370 113,173 121,994

Contributions/Sponsorships 3,594 1,750 - -

Special Receipts 6,503 26,053 8,345 9,600

Interest Income 164,693 117,048 53,000 20,000
Total Estimated Revenues $ 6,173,844 $ 6,435,210 $ 6,505,379 $ 6,706,894

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 2,412,865 $ 2,400,516 $ 2,294,924 $ 2,317,040

Fringe Benefits 375,139 380,043 392,786 399,736

Contractual 660,788 592,153 608,442 743,344

Commodities/Supplies 382,254 312,336 296,996 349,784
46



General Fund
Fund 01 - GENERAL

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Utilities 148,742 135,724 140,794 155,440

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 106,840 113,530 154,903 95,000

Transfers to Other Funds 1,800,000 2,650,000 300,000 1,300,000
Total Appropriations 5,886,628 6,584,302 4,188,845 5,360,344
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 287,216 (149,092) 2,316,534 (1,346,550)
Beginning Fund Balance 6,465,040 6,752,256 6,603,164 8,919,698
Ending Fund Balance $ 6,752,256 $ 6,603,164 $ 8,919,698 $10,266,248

Special receipts cover fees associated with easements, $3,500 per the agreement with Carle at the Fields trail
to cover the cost of maintenance. 

Excluding transfers, total expenditures are planned to increase 4.41%.

Contractual expenditures increased 22.17%. Due to the large number of capital projects that carried over into
FYE2022, corresponding professional services for executed contracts plus amounts for greenbelt bikeway
trail, Spalding park construction administration, and design work for LRC access drive. Also included is the
balance of $6,300 for underground storage tank contract executed in FYE2016 for work in shop yard once
given the okay to proceed with soil sampling by the Illinois EPA. Marketing extended the current contract for
an additional year to hire a consultant for 200 hours of service to capture footage for future videos and
promotional work surrounding programming. Also with addition of new mobile app came an annual
maintenance/license fee of $2,700 which includes a full year of expenditures. 

Routine and periodic maintenance are projected to decrease 38.67% for standard maintenance and the
addition of a new router for sign making, general roof repairs at several facilities, and general flooring that did
not meet the capitalization threshold. 

The General Fund has maintained $1,334,908, the targeted 120 day reserve balance of operating
expenditures, and is projected to have a reserve balance in excess of the target for the next fiscal year ending
FYE2022 of $8,931,340.

47



General Fund

48



Recreation Fund
Principal Responsibilities
The Recreation Fund is established to provide for the planning, establishing and maintaining of recreation and
leisure activities for the residents of the Park District. Real estate taxes are levied in this fund to pay the
administrative costs of the recreation programs provided to the public. The Park District attempts to set
program and admission fees at levels that will cover the direct costs of the programs being offered.

The Recreation Fund is divided into the following divisions – see “Departmental Information” section for further
information.

ADMINISTRATION – established to account for the administrative expenses of the recreation programs,
facilities and departments and recreation special events.

FACILITIES/BALL FIELDS – accounts for programs and activities at the Hays Recreation Center, Douglass
Community Center, Douglass Annex, Douglass Library, Leonhard Recreation Center, Kaufmann Lake, Dodds
Tennis Center and recreation activities at Springer Cultural Center; and accounts for expenditures to maintain
Park District ball fields. Rentals were put on hold during the pandemic with limited rentals beginning in June
2021.

SPORTS – This covers the various adult and youth sport programs offered by the Park District, including
youth and adult softball, sports camps, soccer, developmental sports, basketball, volleyball and senior fitness
opportunities including chair exercises. Summer programs were cancelled with programs gradually added
back as restrictions are lifted surrounding the pandemic including private lessons and soccer clinics.

SUMMER YOUTH AND PRESCHOOL PROGRAMS – accounts for summer youth and the year-round
preschool programs run by the Park District. The majority of these programs were cancelled or substantially
reduced in FYE2021 with reduced programming in FYE2022 in response to the phasing protocol for the State
of Illinois during the re-opening plan.

CONCESSIONS – This covers the concession operations at Dodds Park (ballfields and soccer complex),
Zahnd Park and Sholem Aquatic Center. All facilities were closed for Summer/Fall 2020 and reopened in
Summer 2021, except for Dodds Soccer which remained vending machine sales only.

AQUATICS – This division accounts for the activities at Sholem Aquatic Center. This facility was closed for
FYE2021 and reopened in FYE2022 originally with limited capacity, and then full opening in June 2021.

49



Recreation Fund
2021-22 Goals
6.1 DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT AN INNOVATIVE AND CUSTOMER-FOCUSED APPROACH TO
DELIVERING EXCELLENT RECREATION PROGRAMS AND SERVICES
OBJECTIVES:
 Develop robust health and wellness programs especially for the youth.

 Connect more kids to nature.

 Expand and enhance teen programs with input from teens.

6.2 DEVELOP AN EMPLOYEE ON-BOARDING PROCESS FOR ALL RECREATION STAFF
OBJECTIVES:
 Develop an interim plan and flow chart for staff to follow when necessary to fill-in for other staff.

Fund 02 - RECREATION

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 2,141,365 $ 2,200,525 $ 2,266,600 $ 2,268,900

Charge for Service Revenue 1,641,254 1,419,139 351,341 1,358,086

Contributions/Sponsorships 3,000 3,850 (500) 500

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 128,296 104,001 2,376 126,699

Capital Grants - - 15,097 -

Special Receipts 225,872 246,886 53,644 141,186

Interest Income 106,159 86,728 9,703 2,400
Total Estimated Revenues $ 4,245,946 $ 4,061,129 $ 2,698,261 $ 3,897,771

Appropriations
50



Recreation Fund
Fund 02 - RECREATION

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Salaries and Wages $ 1,821,311 $ 1,789,817 $ 1,030,464 $ 2,004,873

Fringe Benefits 149,687 150,205 156,779 170,580

Contractual 369,599 294,570 109,946 289,850

Commodities/Supplies 318,902 291,253 95,179 304,871

Utilities 351,317 307,203 218,797 333,755

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 28,741 39,753 25,547 20,000

Transfers to Other Funds 1,000,000 400,000 334,200 1,859,548
Total Appropriations 4,039,557 3,272,801 1,970,912 4,983,477
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 206,389 788,328 727,349 (1,085,706)
Beginning Fund Balance 3,615,279 3,821,668 4,609,996 5,337,345
Ending Fund Balance $ 3,821,668 $ 4,609,996 $ 5,337,345 $ 4,251,639
The Recreation Fund has maintained $1,027,045, the targeted 120 day reserve balance of  operating
expenditures, and is projected to have a reserve balance in excess of the target for the next fiscal year ending
FYE2022 of $3,224,594.

51



Museum Fund
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund accounts for special events plus cultural arts programs and services the Park District
provides in the community. Real estate taxes are levied to pay the administrative costs and to help offset
operating costs at the Springer Cultural Center, the Virginia Theatre, Prairie Farm and various concerts and
special events the Park District puts on throughout the year.

The Museum Fund is divided into the following divisions – see “Departmental Information” section for further
information.

ADMINISTRATION – This was established to account for the administrative costs of the fund.

CULTURAL ARTS – Accounts for many of the cultural arts programs and activities of the Park District
including the Park District’s leading role in the local cultural consortium, pottery classes, youth theatre dance
and ballet programs located at Springer Cultural Center. Summer in-person programming was cancelled
through August 2020, with attendance increasing 25-50% as the Park District gradually began to offer more
programming. 

FACILITIES – Covers the programs and activities at the Springer Cultural Center and Prairie Farm.

SPECIAL ACTIVITIES/EVENTS – Accounts for the special activities and events the Park District provides
throughout the year. Major events in this division include Neighborhood block parties, summer concerts and
artistic-themed summer day camps and preschool classes.

VIRGINIA THEATRE – covers all the activities at the historic Virginia Theatre. Facility closed to the public for
all of FYE2021 and the closure is set to continue through August 2021 while a new HVAC system is being
installed at the theatre.

The Museum Fund has maintained $597,023,the targeted 120 day reserve balance of operating
expenditures, and is projected to have a reserve balance in excess of the target for the next fiscal year
ending FYE2022 of $4,670,874.

52



Museum Fund

2021-22 Goals
6.3 EVALUATE AND UPGRADE FACILITIES TO MEET CUSTOMER AND STAFF STANDARDS
IN ORDER TO PROVIDE OUTSTANDING PROGRAMS AND SERVICES
OBJECTIVES:
 Update necessary equipment for all programs and associated facilities.

7.1 DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT CUSTOMER FOCUSED PROGRAMS AND SERVICES AT THE
VIRGINIA THEATRE
OBJECTIVES:
 Plan and implement a celebration of the 100th anniversary of the Virginia Theatre.

7.2 ESTABLISH A PLAN TO STRIVE TOWARD OPERATIONAL SELF-SUFFICIENCY AT THE
VIRGINIA THEATRE
OBJECTIVES:
 Pursue business relationships and partnerships with Live Nation, JAM, and other major national

production companies to incorporate their offerings into future Park District programming, to maximize
return on investment in House-presented events.

53



Museum Fund

54



Museum Fund
Fund 03 - MUSEUM

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 1,592,476 $ 1,658,608 $ 1,713,908 $ 1,760,400

Charge for Service Revenue 1,148,927 837,108 100,269 886,951

Contributions/Sponsorships 42,047 53,519 1,967 14,800

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 119,528 83,191 2,255 83,478

Operating Grants 14,970 23,990 9,225 9,100

Special Receipts 30,210 47,765 6,699 35,058

Interest Income 71,763 66,205 10,500 1,735
Total Estimated Revenues $ 3,019,921 $ 2,770,386 $ 1,844,823 $ 2,791,522

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 989,850 $ 981,708 $ 497,365 $ 854,957

Fringe Benefits 101,507 104,756 84,086 94,245

Contractual 867,559 577,939 73,690 618,097

Commodities/Supplies 167,079 132,144 23,400 116,392

Utilities 153,218 116,980 69,224 83,475

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 26,234 9,500 8,500 48,778

Transfers to Other Funds 350,000 280,000 358,800 -
Total Appropriations 2,655,447 2,203,027 1,115,065 1,815,944
Net of Revenues Over

Appropriations 364,474 567,359 729,758 975,578
Beginning Fund Balance 2,630,728 2,995,202 3,562,561 4,292,319
Ending Fund Balance $ 2,995,202 $ 3,562,561 $ 4,292,319 $ 5,267,897
Transfers to other funds decreased 100% due to amount of carryover, no additional funding was needed for
capital projects in FYE2022 out of this fund.

55



Liability Insurance Fund
Principal Responsibilities
The Liability Insurance Fund covers the costs of insurance and the risk management program. Real estate
taxes are levied in this fund to pay for and administer the Park District's required insurance coverage. The
insurance coverage includes public officials' liability, general liability, property, workers' compensation,
unemployment insurance, employment practices, pollution and other coverage. The Park District employs a
full-time Risk Manager to administer and train staff on the Park District's safety and risk policies and
procedures. The Risk Manager's salary and the related safety expenditures are charged to this fund. The
Park District is a member of the Park District Risk Management Agency (PDRMA), a self-insurance pool for
park districts and municipalities in Illinois. Currently there are more than 145 districts and municipalities
participating in the pool.

Performance Indicators

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Operating Expenditures Per Capita $ 3.84 $ 3.53 $ 4.15 $ 3.82

Incidents of Vandalism 24 13 3 20
Park District Risk Management

Agency Accreditation Level A
Achieved YES YES YES YES

56



Liability Insurance Fund

Fund 04 - LIABILITY INSURANCE

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 329,814 $ 346,681 $ 357,302 $ 342,300

Charge for Service Revenue (40) 60 - -

Special Receipts - 23,045 - -

Interest Income 10,935 9,236 1,500 190
Total Estimated Revenues $ 340,709 $ 379,022 $ 358,802 $ 342,490

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 48,597 $ 45,248 $ 54,606 $ 53,800

Fringe Benefits 9,029 10,707 14,008 13,950

Contractual 2,675 4,752 90 234

Commodities/Supplies 9,301 3,901 6,002 6,700

Capital Outlay 42,950 16,357 64,087 50,948

Insurance 225,535 229,634 226,296 214,400
Total Appropriations 338,087 310,599 365,089 340,032
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 2,622 68,423 (6,287) 2,458
Beginning Fund Balance 443,802 446,424 514,847 508,560
Ending Fund Balance $ 446,424 $ 514,847 $ 508,560 $ 511,018

Revenues are budgeted at $342,490, a decrease from prior year projected of $16,312 or 4.5%. Property tax

57



Liability Insurance Fund
revenues decreased 4.2% as planned due to less funds needed in current year for capital expenditures.
Expenditures are budgeted at $340,032  which represents a $25,057 decrease from prior year projected, or
6.9%.

Salaries and wages decreased 1.5% based on the year-end salary accruals for timing differences.

Fringe benefits decreased 0.4%. 

Insurance decreased 5.3%  based on actual salary and wage expenditures as well as experience ratings and
the overall risk pool. This data is based on calendar year 2019. The decreases seen in FYE2021 will not be
reflected in the insurance premiums until January 2023.

Capital outlay is projected to decreased 20.5% as more projects were completed in prior fiscal year for
controlled access at all facilities. The current year does include the purchase of replacement AED machines
for the remaining facilities. 

58



IMRF FUND
Principal Responsibilities
IMRF FUND – The IMRF Fund accounts for the expenditures related to the Park District's portion of the
pension contribution paid for eligible Park District employees. To be eligible to participate in the plan, an
employee must work 1,000 hours during the year in one or multiple positions. As set by statute, eligible
Regular Plan members are required to contribute 4.5% of their IMRF reportable earnings. The employer
annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2021 is 6.10% and for calendar year 2022 is 5.46%. The
employer also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits, all of
which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF
Board of Trustees while the supplemental retirement benefits rate is set by statute.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Filed monthly wage reporting in a timely manner as required.

 IMRF contribution rate increased from 5.30% to a rate of 6.1% effective January 1, 2021 based on the
actuarial calculation by IMRf.

2021-22 Goals
 Continue to monitor reporting of members to verify accuracy of earnings being reported to IMRF.

 File all applicable wage reports in a timely manner as required each month.

Revenues are budgeted at $282,190, a decrease from prior year projected of $5,868  or 2.1%  from last year.
Property tax revenues increased 2.4% to coincide with the employer contribution rate increase. Expenditures
are budgeted at $230,000 which represents a $20,000 increase from prior year projected, or 9.5% as
additional employees are eligible to participate..

The Park District had a total of six employees retire in the past year. IMRF’s actuarial calculation does take
this into consideration when determining the IMRF employer contribution rate, therefore the Park District
should only see minor adjustments, if any in future years.

Fund 06 - IMRF FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 331,087 $ 319,314 $ 275,422 $ 282,000

Interest Income 7,426 7,661 900 190

59



IMRF FUND
Fund 06 - IMRF FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Total Estimated Revenues $ 338,513 $ 326,975 $ 276,322 $ 282,190

Appropriations

Fringe Benefits $ 277,007 $ 210,515 $ 210,000 $ 230,000
Total Appropriations 277,007 210,515 210,000 230,000
Net of Revenues Over

Appropriations 61,506 116,460 66,322 52,190
Beginning Fund Balance 224,282 285,788 402,248 468,570
Ending Fund Balance $ 285,788 $ 402,248 $ 468,570 $ 520,760

60



AUDIT FUND
Principal Responsibilities
AUDIT FUND – The Audit Fund accounts for auditing expenditures related to the Park District’s annual
financial audit, which is mandated by state statute (50 ILCS 310/9), as well as grant audits as required by the
written grant agreement. Property taxes are levied to provide resources for this annual expenditure, plus
minimal interest income.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Awarded the Government Finance Officers Association for the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

(CAFR) Award for FYE April 30, 2020.

 Received an unmodified audit opinion on the annual financial audit for FYE2020, which is the best one to
receive.

 Projected fund balance at April 30, 2021 is $15,178 or 63.8% of actual expenditures, target is 25%.

 Obtained updated actuarial calculation for other post-employment benefits required under GASB
Statement No.75.

2021-22 Goals
 Receive an unmodified (clean) opinion on the annual financial audit for FYE2021.

 Obtain COA Award through GFOA for FYE2021.

 Complete financial audit and file all annual reports as required before deadlines.

 Obtain actuarial calculation for other post-employment benefits required under GASB Statement No.75.

Revenues are budgeted at $24,405 an increase from prior year projected of $182 or 0.8% from last year.
Property tax revenues increased 0.9% with remaining revenues decreasing. Expenditures are budgeted at
$26,510 which represents a $2,730 increase from prior year projected, or 11.5%. This increase is to cover the
full bi-annual actuarial valuation that was last conducted in 2019, with every other year being updated for any
applicable plan changes.

Performance Indicators

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Target
FYE2022

Operating Expenditures Per Capita $ 0.24 $ 0.25 $ 0.27 $ 0.30
61



AUDIT FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Target
FYE2022

Received GFOA award for COA

Unmodified Opinion Received

Fund 08 - AUDIT FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 21,394 $ 23,715 $ 24,188 $ 24,400

Interest Income 370 271 35 5
Total Estimated Revenues $ 21,764 $ 23,986 $ 24,223 $ 24,405

Appropriations

Contractual $ 21,500 $ 22,300 $ 23,780 $ 26,510
Total Appropriations 21,500 22,300 23,780 26,510
Net of Revenues Over (Under)

Appropriations 264 1,686 443 (2,105)
Beginning Fund Balance 12,785 13,049 14,735 15,178
Ending Fund Balance $ 13,049 $ 14,735 $ 15,178 $ 13,073

62



SPECIAL DONATIONS FUND
Principal Responsibilities
The Special Donations Fund is used to track available resources for scholarships towards Park District
programming. Those eligible for scholarships must complete an application and funds are distributed based on
several criteria as well as available funding. There are no budgeted staff for this fund. Staff projected revenues
to be consistent with prior years. As always, if revenues are below projected, then less scholarships would be
awarded. The process for awarding scholarships allows the recipient of funds to decide to use 100% of their
allotment at once, or allocate the scholarship funds evenly over selected programs providing more flexibility. 

The total scholarship funds available at April 30, 2021 for the next fiscal year are comprised as follows: 

 Champaign-Urbana Special Recreation – 4%

 Douglass Daycamp and Swim Lessons – 5% 

 General Scholarships – 90.5%

 Teens In Action – .5%

Fund 12 - SPECIAL DONATIONS FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Contributions/Sponsorships $ 63,405 $ 75,566 $ 48,304 $ 27,196

Interest Income 2,645 2,468 305 60
Total Estimated Revenues $ 66,050 $ 78,034 $ 48,609 $ 27,256

Appropriations

Contractual $ 58,994 $ 56,262 $ 13,480 $ 55,196
Total Appropriations 58,994 56,262 13,480 55,196
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 7,056 21,772 35,129 (27,940)
Beginning Fund Balance 132,419 139,475 161,247 196,376
Ending Fund Balance $ 139,475 $ 161,247 $ 196,376 $ 168,436

63



SPECIAL DONATIONS FUND

64



SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
Principal Responsibilities
The Social Security Fund accounts for the employer portion of expenditures for FICA and Medicare
payroll taxes on eligible taxable wages paid to employees. The current rates are 6.20% for FICA and
1.45% for Medicare. Champaign-Urbana Special Recreation’s (CUSR) portion of expenditures are
transferred to the CUSR fund and paid out of those separate property tax dollars. The remaining
expenditures are paid with real estate taxes that are levied specifically for this fund. Revenue is derived
of property taxes and interest income. Staff continue to reduce the amount of the property tax levy as a
means to use excess fund balance and cash on hand to cover a portion of the annual social security and
Medicare expenditures. 

Fund 14 - SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 352,480 $ 352,160 $ 390,793 $ 391,200

Interest Income 5,387 3,254 350 110
Total Estimated Revenues $ 357,867 $ 355,414 $ 391,143 $ 391,310

Appropriations

Fringe Benefits $ 400,301 $ 395,405 $ 308,000 $ 395,000
Total Appropriations 400,301 395,405 308,000 395,000
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations (42,434) (39,991) 83,143 (3,690)
Beginning Fund Balance 196,162 153,728 113,737 196,880
Ending Fund Balance $ 153,728 $ 113,737 $ 196,880 $ 193,190

65



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
Principal Responsibilities
The Special Recreation Fund is used to account for the joint program between the Champaign Park District
and the Urbana Park District (UPD) through an intergovernmental agreement. Real estate taxes are levied for
this fund to help provide for the operational activities.  Monies from UPD's real estate tax levy are also placed
in this fund and recorded as contribution revenue. The Park District is the administrative agency for the
program. Both Park Districts set aside .0175 of the .04 tax rate for ADA expenditures, whereas the remaining
.0225 is used for operating activities. Both Districts levy at a maximum tax rate of .04.

Champaign-Urbana Special Recreation (CUSR) serves people of varying ages and disabilities by providing
recreational programs and inclusion services, which enhance the quality of life for both Urbana and
Champaign residents. CUSR has an administrative four-member board composed of Champaign Park District
and Urbana Park District staff with input from the Special Recreation Advisory Committee, however all
activities must be approved by both Park District's Board of Commissioners.

Program areas promote the acquisition of skills, awareness of resources, and appreciation of recreational
programs, time management and planning, and normalized age-appropriate development of benefits to
enhance each participant’s quality of life. The program advocates for and assists with full accessibility and
inclusion of people of all ages and abilities into community opportunities.

Responsibilities include afterschool programs, basic living skills, education programs, creative classes,
dances, specialized transitional, inclusion services (UPD/CPD), special events, Special Olympics (bowling,
basketball, volleyball, bocce, softball, track and field, and power lifting), sports, summer camps, trips and
theatre classes. 

Organizational chart for the next budget year includes 5 full-time employees and 72 part-time seasonal
employees.

66



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

Employees Funded by Special Recreation - Positions and Numbers (FT1 and FT2)

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

CUSR Manager 0.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
CUSR Adult Program Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
CUSR Athletics & Volunteer Coordinator 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
CUSR Program Director 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
CUSR Receptionist 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
CUSR Youth & Teen Program Coordinator 0.2 0.7 0.7 1.0
Total FTE's 4.2 4.7 4.7 5.0

2021-22 Goals
8.5 DEVELOP STAFF EXCELLENCE
OBJECTIVES:
 Hire quality staff by opening all positions to everyone interested in applying. Status – We continue to open

all positions to the public and in-house staff.

 Implemented a new hiring process which led to a more diverse workforce.

8.6 - MAINTAIN A FINANCIALLY SUSTAINABLE DISTRICT

OBJECTIVES:
 Increase non-tax revenues to 25-30% of the operating budget through increasing scholarships funds and

67



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
sponsorships, plus promoting programming to new participants.

Capital projects budgeted in FYE2021 that carried over into FYE2022 included the following:

 CUSR Center final completion $125,000

For more details please refer to the Capital and Debt section of this document, specifically the Capital
Improvement Plan document.

The following table displays the ending fund balance by fiscal year between the two Park Districts.

Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
Fund Balance Components

Fund Balance,
Ending
Consists of:

FYE2019
Actual

FYE2020
Actual

FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Operating $ 744,262 $ 791,198 $ 1,062,877 $ 1,085,569

Restricted Fund Balance - CPD ADA 1,130,897 1,178,341 579,963 451,748

Restricted Fund Balance - UPD ADA 78,656 56,061 137,101 5,000
Fund Balance,

Ending $ 1,953,815 $ 2,025,600 $ 1,779,941 $ 1,542,317

Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
Fund Balance,
Ending
Consists of: FYE2019 FYE2020

Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 702,510 $ 729,861 $ 744,375 $ 765,200

Charge for Service Revenue 145,868 120,923 7,817 137,381

Contributions/Sponsorships 223,027 233,543 244,045 243,460

68



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

Fund Balance,
Ending
Consists of: FYE2019 FYE2020

Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Special Receipts 1,200 900 6,797 800

Interest Income 45,530 39,033 6,575 5,000
Total Estimated Revenues $ 1,118,135 $ 1,124,260 $ 1,009,609 $ 1,151,841

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 389,286 $ 422,814 $ 191,461 $ 454,172

Fringe Benefits 74,986 86,088 61,171 92,755

Contractual 83,744 107,075 28,745 62,127

Commodities/Supplies 31,523 29,492 10,183 39,944

Utilities 556 - - 27,140

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 13,774 22,370 24,200 25,000

Capital Outlay 164,397 371,828 928,087 679,507

Insurance 12,178 12,808 11,421 8,820
Total Appropriations 770,444 1,052,475 1,255,268 1,389,465
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 347,691 71,785 (245,659) (237,624)
Beginning Fund Balance 1,606,124 1,953,815 2,025,600 1,779,941
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,953,815 $ 2,025,600 $ 1,779,941 $ 1,542,317

Overall expenditures increased 10.7% from projected as $128,215 in capital projects rolled over from prior
year ADA reserves. Of this amount, $240,092 is specific to UPD’s ADA fund balance that the Park District
administers as requested. Other budgetary differences include:

69



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND
 Fringe benefits increased 51.6% resulting vacancies in the prior year along with one staff person that

elected to opt out of health insurance coverage which lowers the annual expenditure to the Park District.
The budget includes being fully staffed in the new year with benefits elected by those employees.

 Contractual increased 116.1% as programming resumed after a year of alternative programming and no
travel or fieldtrips in the past year.

 Commodities increased 292.3% to accommodate the restart of programming and travel.
 Utilities  increased as CUSR moved into their own facility in April 2021. In lieu of paying rent,

CUSR will now cover the actual facility costs in the new year.
 Insurance premiums decreased 22.8% from PDRMA as they allowed a recalculation of premiums

due to COVID-19 and the substantial decrease in personnel costs this past year. 

70



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

������������

� 4( 4&&���������4��#�	�	��
��	,� 526�'(768 5226'7068 5�'&&&'2668 5�'&�%' 7&8
	
��
�

	��	
	
�	
��
�

	������������������������������� ����� !	 " ��! �##� " ��
���

 " ��
��


 "
	
��
�

	��	
		�	
��
�

	�����������������������$�%&%��� ��!��!	 " ����

� " �	
�			 " ����


 "
	
��
�

	��	
	
�	
��
�

	������������������������� ��
 ���! " ��	#��	� " ���
���� " ������

 "
	
��
�

	���
�
�	
��
�

	��������� ��
�
�
 " ��#�
�� " ���
 
 " �
�


 "
	
��
�

	���	

�	
��
�

	�������'��������� �	��

 " �!

 " ������ " �!

 "
	
��
�

	���	�
�	
��
�

	���(������$)*���$����   �	 
 "  
	
��
�

	�� 	
��	
��
�

	�������)*������*����*������������ �#!�  
 " �	
�� �� " �		!�!� " �		��


 "
	
��
�

	�� 	
 �	
��
�

	�������)*�����+*����*������%���&�$�% ����		! " ��	��#� " �	
�	 
 " ����


 "
	
��
�

	�� 	
!�	
��
�

	�������)*������*����*�������������� �# �	�� " �##� �� " �	
����! " �	

�
�
 "
	
��
�

	�� 	

�	#


��	
��
�

	��,�-./,�0   �
�


 "  

�*�� �# 	��� " �## ��� " 5�'&&&'2668 5�'&�%' 7&8

� 4( 4& &�����/���*���
,

��� 5%'7728 5�'9(98 5�'&&&8 5%'�(&8
	
��
�


��#		
�	
��
�


�������$�%��� �����# " �	�!�! " �	�


 " ���	�
 "

�*�� �����# " �	�!�! " 5�'&&&8 5%'�(&8

� 4( 4& �����""�1�������	
	� 5( '(2�8 5(�'�7�8 & &
	
��
�

	��#		
�	
��
�

	�������$�%��� ��
��#	 " ��	�	�	 "   

�*�� ��
��#	 " ��	�	�	 " & &

� 4( 4& (����
����,
���	,� 59' 92 8 57'&%&8 & 59'�0&8
	
��
�

���#		
�	
��
�

��������$�%��� �!�
!# " ���
�
 "  �!�	�
 "

�*�� �!�
!# " ���
�
 " & 59'�0&8

� 4( 4& 0���!,*��1�""���
,

��� 5 '677 8 50'07 8 5�'06%8 59'9&98
	
��
�

���#		
�	
��
�

��������$�%��� �
� �� " �����
 " �	�� � " �!�!
! "

�*�� �
� �� " �����
 " 5�'06%8 59'9&98

� 4( 4& 7�����"�	�$��:"��� 52'2 �8 5� '�&08 50'06&8 59'� &8
	
��
�

��� 	

�	
��
�

����������(��� �	�


 " �
��#
 " �!	
 " �#

 "
	
��
�

���#		
�	
��
�

��������$�%��� �!�#
	 " �#�!	� " ����

 " � ��

 "

�*�� �#�#
	 " �	
�	
� " 50'06&8 59'� &8

� 4( 4& 9�������" 57'6(( 8 5('%%28 56&8 57' 7&8
	
��
�

!��#		
�	
��
�

!�������$�%��� ��� �� " �����# " � 
 " ���
�
 "

�*�� ��� �� " �����# " 56&8 57' 7&8

� 4( 4& 2����#*$���
,

��� 5(&'%2&8 5�7'� 08 5�'(��8 5�2'& &8
	
��
�

#��#		
�	
��
�

#�������$�%��� ��
��#
 " �	��	
� " �	��		 " �	#�


 "

�*�� ��
��#
 " �	��	
� " 5�'(��8 5�2'& &8

� 4( 4&7&����;�"
���,,$��
,

�� 5(('� �8 5( '0�08 & 5(6'&&&8

��
" �

71



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������4�
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

	
��
�
�
�� 	

�	
��
�
�
����������  ��

 "   
	
��
�
�
��#		
�	
��
�
�
�������$�%��� ����	
	 " ��
�		� "  �� �


 "

�*�� ����	
	 " ��
��	� " & 5(6'&&&8

� 4( 4&7�����:"
�	
����
	�� 5��'69&8 57' �&8 & 59'67&8
	
��
�
�	��#		
�	
��
�
�	�������$�%��� �		� !
 " ���
	
 "  �!� �
 "

�*�� �		� !
 " ���
	
 " & 59'67&8

� 4( 4&7(�����"�	�$��$/��	�� 5�('7 68 52'26%8 & 5�%' (08
	
��
�
�����	

�	
��
�
���������'���������  �	

 "   
	
��
�
����#		
�	
��
�
���������$�%��� �	���
 " �#�! � "  �	��
�� "

�*�� �	���
 " �#�# � " & 5�%' (08

� 4( 4&7%�����,
���<��	��"�� 5%'�228 5('066 8 5� &8 5�'6008
	
��
�
����#		
�	
��
�
���������$�%��� ���	## " ����  " �	

 " �	� �� "

�*�� ���	## " ����  " 5� &8 5�'6008

� 4( 4&70����,
�=	#����$/����� 5�7'6&%8 5� '� 98 5( 9 8 5%%'0( 8
	
��
�
����#		
�	
��
�
���������$�%��� �	�� 
� " �	
�	
! " ��
! " ������
 "

�*�� �	�� 
� " �	
�	
! " 5( 9 8 5%%'0( 8

������,��$��":"�*"� 5�'��9'�% 8 5�'�(0'(7&8 5�'&&2'7&28 5�'� �'90�8

������12��3/.�4�0

� 4( 4&&���������4��#�	�	��
��	,�  �7' � 62%' &7 �'(�2'7�( �'&6%'99(

	
��
�

	�
�	���	
��
�

	����.-5���0�4-�6� 	��#
 	�	

 	��

 	�
�


	
��
�

	�
�	���	
��
�

	�$�3/6-5�(�-5.7���0�4-�6� �!�#  �
�
!
 �
�
	
 ����



	
��
�

	�
�	���	
��
�

	�'/8����0�4-�6� 
�
 �
	 �
� ��


	
��
�

	�
�	�
�	
��
�

	��$�%��-9:��.0 		�!
� 		�	!
 #�!

 	��




	
��
�

	�
�	���	
��
�

	�%�����-9:��.0 �
��
� ���	
� 	��


 ���




	
��
�

	�
�	� �	
��
�

	��:25,9����00/0.-�6���4,;4-: 	�! 	 	 	

 	 


	
��
�

	�
��
	�	
��
�

	��,0.-;����3�$-/5/�; ��
�� ��
!
 �

 ��




	
��
�

	�
��
��	
��
�

	��4/�./�;���3���25/6-./�; 
�

! 
���
    ��	



	
��
�

	�
��
��	
��
�

	��.-88�$��./�; �	    
	
��
�

	�
��

�	
��
�

	�'�;-5���<5/6-./,�0&�,./6�0 	� 
 	�!     
	
��
�

	�
��
��	
��
�

	��3��4./0/�;&��<5/6/.9 ! ���  �



	
��
�

	�
��
 �	
��
�

	��.-88��4-/�/�; ��
�
 	�	
� ��
 	�




	
��
�

	�
��
!�	
��
�

	�$�:<�407/20�����0���3�%��0  �
 	�	�� !
� 	�




	
��
�

	�
��
#�	
��
�

	��,�8�4��6����3��4-��5  �	 	   #  ��




	
��
�

	�
�����	
��
�

	���.,��55,=-�6� �!�    
	
��
�

	�
��
	�	
��
�

	����.-5�%-6/5/./�0 	��


 �	�


   
	
��
�

	�
��
��	
��
�

	���4�/6���,�.4-6.0 ����
 ����! !  �� 



	
��
�

	�
��

�	
��
�

	�'�����������%���  	! 	! �


	
��
�

	�
�����	
��
�

	���55��7,����12��0� �
# �	� �!
 �!


	
��
�

	�
�� 
�	
��
�

	���40,���5��,0.0   �	
 	�




	
��
�

	�
��!
�	
��
�

	��.7�4��,�.4-6.�-5���4�/6�0 	� ��    
	
��
�

	�

�
	�	
��
�

	��88/6����225/�0 
�� �!# �

 �



��
" (

72



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������4(
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

	
��
�

	�

�
��	
��
�

	�����5,2�0���3��.-./,�-49 ��!   �!


	
��
�

	�

�
��	
��
�

	���25/6-./�;���225/�0 �	
 ��� ## �



	
��
�

	�

��#�	
��
�

	��88/6�&��>�/2:��.�?-5���@A	



  ���	! 
���  
	
��
�

	�

��!�	
��
�

	�%5,=�40���3��-430 �    
	
��
�

	�

��#�	
��
�

	��5->��0���=-430���3��4/B�0 �	� �
# ! �



	
��
�

	�

�

�	
��
�

	���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 �!
 � � �
! �



	
��
�

	�

�
��	
��
�

	�%,,3���225/�0 !# �   
	
��
�

	�
 	�	�	
��
�

	�C,4D�40��,:2��0-./,� ��#�� ��
�� ���		 	�!



	
��
�

	�
 ��
�	
��
�

	�'/-</5/.9���0�4-�6� ��!�# ���	� ���

 ��




	
��
�

	�
 ����	
��
�

	��:25,9:��.��4-6./6�0 #	� #�# !	
 ��


	
��
�

	�
 ����	
��
�

	��4,2�4.9���0�4-�6� 
��!
 
���� 
�


 ��#



	
��
�

	�
!

��	
��
�

	������,���-2/.-5��12��3/.�4�0 	��  � ���� 
 ����

 �
�




	
��
�

	�
#�	��	
��
�

	��4�3/.��-43�%��0 ��
�	 	��
� !�
 	��



	
��
�

	��	

!�	
��
�

	���������� �# #!   
	
��
�

	��	

#�	
��
�

	�*����-2/.-5���� 	�	��
 	�����! ���	!! ��
�
#�

	
��
�

	� 
�
	�	
��
�

	�%�55��/:���-5-4/�0���3�C-;�0   �
�


 	#��!�


	
��
�

	� 
�
��	
��
�

	��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    �#�




	
��
�

	� 
�
	�	
��
�

	��88/6���.-88&��22,4. �
���	 �	��

 �
�!		  
	
��
�

	� 


	�	
��
�

	�$-�-;�40&��2�4�/0,40 �����
 �����# �
�	
!  
	
��
�

	� 	

	�	
��
�

	��4,;4-:&%-6/5/.9��/4�6.,4 	
��##� #!�� � �!�!��  
	
��
�

	�!
�
��	
��
�

	�����88/6���.-88&��22,4. #�#    
	
��
�

	�!	

��	
��
�

	��������65�0/,���/30���� ������ �#���� 
�


  
	
��
�

	�!�

��	
��
�

	��55,=-�6�0&��/:<�40�:��.0 	�
�#      
	
��
�

	�
��

�	#


��	
��
�

	�'�;-5���<5/6-./,�0�-�3��,./6�0   	�#  
	
��
�

	�
��

��	


��	
��
�

	�'�;-5���<5/6-./,�0�-�3��,./6�0   	�#  
	
��
�

	�
��	��	#


��	
��
�

	��467/.�6.���3���;/���4/�;�%��0  ���	#� 	!���
  
	
��
�

	�
��	
�	#


��	
��
�

	��4,8�00/,�-5���4�/6�0       
	
��
�

	��	

!�	 

	
�	
��
�

	���������� ���� "    
	
��
�

	��	

!�	!


��	
��
�

	��-4D��,�0.4�6./,�&�:24,��:��.0 �!�!�� 	!!�
!� 
��#�!  
	
��
�

	��	

!�	#


��	
��
�

	���������� 	�� ��    
	
��
�

	��	

!�	#


��	
��
�

	����������  �	���� !	��# 	 	�
�




	
��
�

	��	

!��



��	
��
�

	����������  �#�	#�   
	
��
�

	��	

!��	


��	
��
�

	����������   �
�


 ���	


	
��
�

	��	

!���


��	
��
�

	��������    �		��



�*�� 
	��
	
  #��

� �'(�2'7�( �'&6%'99(

� 4( 4& &�����/���*���
,

��� 7'6& 9'&&9 06( %'(79
	
��
�


�
��##�	
��
�


�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 �	# �	  	!


	
��
�


�

�

�	
��
�


���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 ��� � � !� ��


	
��
�


�

�
��	
��
�


�%,,3���225/�0 ��  � � �


	
��
�


� 
�
��	
��
�


��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0   �	# ����!

	
��
�


�!	

��	
��
�


�����4,;4-:��/4�6.,4&��2�4�/0,4 	�� 
 !�	   
	
��
�


�!	 
��	
��
�


�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 ����
 ��!
#   

�*�� �� 

 !�

! 06( %'(79

� 4( 4& �����""�1�������	
	�  6'02&  %'9(0 & &
	
��
�

	�
��
 �	
��
�

	��.-88��4-/�/�; �
# 	 �   
	
��
�

	�
��##�	
��
�

	�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 	��!
 	�  	   
	
��
�

	�

�	
�	
��
�

	��.-88�*�/8,4:0  �!�   
	
��
�

	�

�	��	
��
�

	��-4./6/2-�.�*�/8,4:0 	�
 !!   
	
��
�

	�

�

�	
��
�

	���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 #  #��   

��
" %

73



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������4%
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

	
��
�

	�

�
��	
��
�

	�%,,3���225/�0 !	
 !#	   
	
��
�

	�!	

��	
��
�

	�����4,;4-:��/4�6.,4&��2�4�/0,4 #�	� !�	��   
	
��
�

	�!	 
��	
��
�

	�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 ���
�� �	�
��   

�*�� 
 ��#
 
��!�� & &

� 4( 4& (����
����,
���	,� ��'2%9 2' 2( 996 (%'620
	
��
�

��
���	�	
��
�

��?�7/65����2-/4 ��   ��




	
��
�

��

�� �	
��
�

��?�7/65�&�>�/2:��.���2-/4��-4.0 #�	 	 
 !�
 	�




	
��
�

��

��
�	
��
�

���-0�%��5��4�-0����3��/5 
� #� ���� � !�




	
��
�

�� 
�
��	
��
�

���-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    		� #�

	
��
�

��!	

��	
��
�

���������4-5��.-88 	�

# 	����   
	
��
�

��!	 
��	
��
�

������-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 ��� # ��

   

�*�� 		�#�! #�
#� 996 (%'620

� 4( 4& 0���!,*��1�""���
,

��� 0'2(7 0'6&� �'& � 2'90(
	
��
�

��
��!	�	
��
�

���,�.4-6.�-5���40,���5 ����
 �� 	� #�	 
��!!

	
��
�

��
��##�	
��
�

��%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20    �



	
��
�

��

�

�	
��
�

����64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 		� �
   �



	
��
�

��

�
��	
��
�

��%,,3���225/�0 ���    �#


	
��
�

�� 
�
��	
��
�

���-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    ���	�

	
��
�

��!	

��	
��
�

���������4-5��.-88 	�� 	

   
	
��
�

��!	 
��	
��
�

������-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 #
� 	�!
�   

�*�� ��#�� �� 
	 �'& � 2'90(

� 4( 4& 7�����"�	�$��:"��� 9'�7( �('(97 0'06& 9'� &

	
��
�

��
��
��	
��
�

���3��4./0/�;&��<5/6/.9 	�	
 #�� ��	 	�




	
��
�

��
��

�	
��
�

���>�/2:��.����.-5   	

  �



	
��
�

��
��
	�	
��
�

�����.-5�%-6/5/./�0 ���   �



	
��
�

��
��!
�	
��
�

���.7�4��,�.4-6.�-5���4�/6�0 ���

  ��

 ��!�
 �


	
��
�

��
��!
�	
��
�

���,�.4-6.�-5���.�4.-/�:��. �

   �



	
��
�

��

�	
�	
��
�

���.-88�*�/8,4:0    	



	
��
�

��

��#�	
��
�

���5->��0���=-430���3��4/B�0 ��� ! ��
!	 	�
#
 ��  


	
��
�

��

�

�	
��
�

����64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 �
# 	#� !! ��


	
��
�

��

�
��	
��
�

��%,,3���225/�0 �
� � # #	 ��


�*�� !�	�� 	���!� 0'06& 9'� &

� 4( 4& 9�������" �'%% �'02� (&% 0'%6&
	
��
�

!�
��!
�	
��
�

!��,�.4-6.�-5���.�4.-/�:��. �

 �

  �



	
��
�

!�
��##�	
��
�

!�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 �
 #	  ���

	
��
�

!�

�

�	
��
�

!���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 �#	 ��� �
� ��


	
��
�

!�

�
��	
��
�

!�%,,3���225/�0 ��# ��	  �



	
��
�

!� 
�
��	
��
�

!��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    ���
�

	
��
�

!�!	

��	
��
�

!��������4-5��.-88 �� �
   
	
��
�

!�!	 
��	
��
�

!�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 �! ��   

�*�� 	���
 	��#	 (&% 0'%6&

� 4( 4& 2����#*$���
,

��� (7'77& (�'9(0 �'%67 (('%97
	
��
�

#�
��!	�	
��
�

#��,�.4-6.�-5���40,���5 	�


 	�


  	�




��
" 0

74



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������40
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

	
��
�

#�
��##�	
��
�

#�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 	
�
�
 ���!�  ��	��

	
��
�

#�

�	
�	
��
�

#��.-88�*�/8,4:0  �� !�
  !�


	
��
�

#�

�

�	
��
�

#���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 ��
 	��!�  �� 	�
#


	
��
�

#�

�
��	
��
�

#�%,,3���225/�0 
�
�� ��

� 
� 
���


	
��
�

#� 
�
��	
��
�

#��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0      !�#!�

	
��
�

#�!	

��	
��
�

#��������4-5��.-88 ��

� ��!#	 ��  
	
��
�

#�!	 
��	
��
�

#�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 
� �� ��
!
 ��  

�*�� �����
 �	�!�� �'%67 (('%97

� 4( 4&7&����;�"
���,,$��
,

��  &'077 79'777 ( '7 & 7 '72 
	
��
�
�
�
��
 �	
��
�
�
��.-88��4-/�/�; �#     
	
��
�
�
�
��##�	
��
�
�
�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 ��   �


	
��
�
�
�

�	
�	
��
�
�
��.-88�*�/8,4:0 	�
 	�
  	�


	
��
�
�
�

����	
��
�
�
��5�-�/�;&E-�/.,4/-5���225/�0 �   	



	
��
�
�
�

�

�	
��
�
�
���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0  	� 	�
��  	��



	
��
�
�
�

�
��	
��
�
�
�%,,3���225/�0 	�	#� �	!  �



	
��
�
�
� 
�
��	
��
�
�
��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    �����


	
��
�
�
�!	

��	
��
�
�
�����4,;4-:��/4�6.,4&��2�4�/0,4 !�� � !�!
!  ��

  
	
��
�
�
�!	 
��	
��
�
�
�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 �
�
�� 
!�
�� 	!�


  

�*�� 

���� �!���� ( '7 & 7 '72 

� 4( 4&7�����:"
�	
����
	�� �('((2 9'%29 (&& �%'962

	
��
�
�	�
��##�	
��
�
�	�%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 ��!

 
� �   �

#

	
��
�
�	�

�

�	
��
�
�	���64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 	�
		  � �

 	�
		

	
��
�
�	�

�
��	
��
�
�	�%,,3���225/�0 ��
	# 	�!#	  ��!



	
��
�
�	� 
�
��	
��
�
�	��-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    	�#
#

	
��
�
�	�!	 
��	
��
�
�	�����-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 	���#   !   
�*�� 	����# !��#! (&& �%'962

� 4( 4&7(�����"�	�$��$/��	�� �2'7&7 (�'(9� ( 2 %9'( 9
	
��
�
���
��
	�	
��
�
������.-5�%-6/5/./�0 �� �� 
�
�#  
�
�


	
��
�
���
��##�	
��
�
���%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 	�� # ���	
  ��




	
��
�
���

�	��	
��
�
����-4./6/2-�.�*�/8,4:0  #�#  	�	



	
��
�
���

�

�	
��
�
�����64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 �	� 	
 �

 �



	
��
�
���

�
��	
��
�
���%,,3���225/�0 	�� ���  ��


	
��
�
��� 
�
��	
��
�
����-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    �#�	!!

	
��
�
���!	�
��	
��
�
�����0.4�6.,40&���4�/;7.��.-88 	�	
� ��	#
   
	
��
�
���!	

��	
��
�
����������4-5��.-88 ���#� 	��#�   
	
��
�
���!	 
��	
��
�
�������-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43  ��!!  ��#�  #  

�*�� 	#��
� �	��!	 ( 2 %9'( 9

� 4( 4&7%�����,
���<��	��"�� 0 ( 7&( �(% �'02 

	
��
�
���

�	��	
��
�
����-4./6/2-�.�*�/8,4:0  �
�  �



	
��
�
���

�

�	
��
�
�����64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0  �	�	 "  	�


	
��
�
��� 
�
��	
��
�
����-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0   	

 	�
�


	
��
�
���!	 
��	
��
�
�������-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 �
� �
 ��  
�*�� �
� �
� �(% �'02 

��
"  

75



������	
����
���	��
	��������������������������� ������ �������4 
!"�
���#����
	$�%&'�(&(�

�)�)*#
"��+
,*�	�
�-	����"��	$�./��*�#

���,*�� �"��&01�2 �"��&01(& �
,3"��"#�&01(� �
,�,�"#�&01((

� 4( 4&70����,
�=	#����$/�����  %'%6� 09'(27 & 62'�(7

	
��
�
���
��
��	
��
�
����.-88�$��./�; 	��   �	


	
��
�
���
��
 �	
��
�
����.-88��4-/�/�; �

 	�
  �



	
��
�
���
��##�	
��
�
���%/�53&�2�6/-5��4/20 #	#  #�  ��#��

	
��
�
���

�	
�	
��
�
����.-88�*�/8,4:0  �!�  

�

	
��
�
���

�	��	
��
�
����-4./6/2-�.�*�/8,4:0 	�
 !!  �!�

	
��
�
���

����	
��
�
����5�-�/�;&E-�/.,4/-5���225/�0 �
   	



	
��
�
���

�

�	
��
�
�����64�-./,�&�4,;4-:���225/�0 	�
�� 	���
  ��	



	
��
�
���

�
��	
��
�
���%,,3���225/�0 #� � 
  	�	



	
��
�
��� 
�
��	
��
�
����-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0     	�
	�

	
��
�
���!	

��	
��
�
�������4,;4-:��/4�6.,4&��2�4�/0,4 	
� �! !� !
   
	
��
�
���!	 
��	
��
�
�������-9��-:2��.-88&'/8����-43 �#�
!
 ����

   

�*�� 
��� 	 �!��#� & 62'�(7

� 4( 4&2�������$#	�
��"�
"��	,���"��"
  92 & & &
	
��
�
#	�
���	�	
��
�
#	��-0���3��5�6.4/6./9 ���    
	
��
�
#	�
�����	
��
�
#	�C-.�4 	
�    
	
��
�
#	�
�����	
��
�
#	���5�6,::��12��3/.�4�0 !    
	
��
�
#	�!
#
��	
��
�
#	����)�/53/�;���4�/6��C,4D�4 ��    

�*��  !#  & &

� 4( 4&2%�����������	$	�	"��4�)	�"��"��	�$��"��"
 & & 27 0 '%(&
	
��
�
#��
��
��	
��
�
#����0.��,�.4,5    ��


	
��
�
#��
���
�	
��
�
#����4�/6���,�.4-6.0���%-6/5/./�0    	� !


	
��
�
#��

��
�	
��
�
#��)�/53/�;�$-/�.��-�6����225/�0    	�




	
��
�
#��

����	
��
�
#���5�-�/�;�&�E-�/.,4/-5���225/�0   #�
 ��




	
��
�
#��
���
�	
��
�
#���-�/.-49�%��0�-�3��7-4;�0    �



	
��
�
#��
���	�	
��
�
#���-0�-�3��5�6.4/6/.9    ���




	
��
�
#��
�����	
��
�
#��C-.�4    	�!



	
��
�
#��
�����	
��
�
#����5�6,::��12��3/.�4�0    ��#�


	
��
�
#�� 
�
��	
��
�
#���-4.��/:����-0,�-5�C-;�0    	���!


�*��   27 0 '%(&

������,��$��>�"�#	�*
"� 66&'000 �'& ('06 �'(  '(79 �'%92'07 

�������.���������4"�*�3�4��123 5%06'72�8 56�'69 8 (0 '7 2 (%6'7(0

� 4&&4&&&������� 5�'7&7'�(08 5�'2 %'9�28 5('&( ' 2( 8 56�6'&278
	
�

�


��
	�
�	
�

�


���0.4/6.�3+*������ �
 � �
 " � !��
� " �
��
�	 " �	� �	�� "
	
�

�


��
	�	�	
�

�


���0.4/6.�3+������� � �!��	� " �	�	�
�!# " �	�	 !���	 " �
 #�#�� "
	
�

�


��
�

�	
�

�


��00/;��3�%��3�)-5-�6� �!	
�	!	 " � ������ " � #	�	#
 "  

�*�� �	��
��	�� " �	�#
��!	# " 5('&( ' 2( 8 56�6'&278

�����)"
	��	�
��*�#�)�$���" 5�'7&7'�(08 5�'2 %'9�28 5('&( ' 2( 8 56�6'&278

�������#	�
��*�#�)�$���" 5�'2 %'9� 8 5('&( '7&0 8 5�'662'2%%8 5062'06( 8

��
" 7

76



POLICE PROTECTION
Principal Responsibilities
The Police Fund allows the Park District to levy taxes specifically to contract or hire licensed police officers for
security purposes. Real estate taxes are levied for this fund to contract directly with the City of Champaign for
the use of City police officers at various Park District facilities and special events, or to contract with retired
police officers. The officers are on site at the Park District’s pool, parks, facilities and special events during the
year to help maintain safety at various facilities and events as needed. Reserves not specifically allocated can,
by state statute, be transferred to the Long-Term Capital Improvement Fund; however this has not occurred at
the Park District.

Revenues were reduced in FYE2021 to utilize excess funds, however then COVID-19 resulted in summer
special events being cancelled as well as the pool therefore no police services required for those areas. In
order to maintain safety within the parks, the Park District contracted with retired police officers to be park
ambassadors for West Side Park and Hessel Park. The park ambassadors were present multiple times per
week throughout the summer through Labor Day providing education and awareness to the visitors of the
park.

77



SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Target
FYE2022

Operating Expenditures Per Capita $ 0.18 $ 0.18 $ 0.17 $ 0.34

Fund 19 - POLICE PROTECTION

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 22,666 $ 23,715 $ 14,885 $ 24,400

Interest Income 1,702 1,419 160 40
Total Estimated Revenues $ 24,368 $ 25,134 $ 15,045 $ 24,440

Appropriations

Contractual 15,579 16,141 15,508 30,000
Total Appropriations 15,579 16,141 15,508 30,000
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 8,789 8,993 (463) (5,560)
Beginning Fund Balance 55,959 64,748 73,741 73,278
Ending Fund Balance $ 64,748 $ 73,741 $ 73,278 $ 67,718

Additional use of the Park Ambassadors is planned for FYE2022  increasing the number of visits and parks
that are monitored. Due to an increase in police incident calls and an increase in the number of vacancies at
the police department, the Park District added Park Ambassadors to Sholem Aquatic Center for Summer 2021
as well as some special events. Staff plan to utilize a portion of excess funds in the next fiscal year to cover
these expenditures, while still maintaining a healthy reserve balance within the fund.

78



PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Paving and Lighting Fund levies real estate taxes as its funding source to be used for the construction, maintenance
and lighting of streets, roadways, sidewalks and parking lots within the parks and facilities maintained by the Park
District. The primary source of revenue is property tax revenues, with some additional revenue received through interest
income, and occasionally transfers from other funds.

2021-2022 Goal
8.2 PLAN AND DEVELOP CAPITAL PROJECTS
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain quality of existing facilities, parks and trails.

 Set aside excess accumulated funds to pay for replacement of pavement sections at Parkland Way over
the next several years.

79



PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND CONTINUED

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 09 - PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Property Tax Revenue $ 86,848 $ 91,233 $ 93,043 $ 95,000
Interest Income 3,717 3,771 430 200

Total Estimated Revenues $ 90,565 $ 95,004 $ 93,473 $ 95,200

Appropriations
Routine/Periodic Maintenance $ 25,177 $ 20,540 $ 2,632 $ 71,000
Capital Outlay 23,491 50,000 - -

Total Appropriations $ 48,668 $ 70,540 $ 2,632 $ 71,000
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations 41,897 24,464 90,841 24,200
Beginning Fund Balance 126,061 167,958 192,422 283,263
Ending Fund Balance $ 167,958 $ 192,422 $ 283,263 $ 307,463

80



������	
����
���	��
	����������������������������
"#�
�$�%����
	&�'()�*(*+

�	��	�
�,-��
,.#����-,
�/0%
#��"#�
�12����#
,
2

�
,.#�� �
,�,�#%�(34**

��������	��&��
,.#���

������,0�	�#�5��#
	,%	��6�	��#����#

���������	
	��
���
��	�	 3()(((

���������	
	��
�������������� 7)(((

���������	�
�����
���
����
	�������
� *8)(((

������,0�	�#�6�	��#����# 9+)(((

81



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Capital Improvement and Repairs fund was established for the development of a funding program for capital
improvements and repair projects not funded by the Park District’s other funds. Revenue is accumulated in this fund in a
variety of ways, including corporate property replacement taxes; state, city and federal grant programs when applicable,
payment in lieu of city property taxes, transfers of unallocated reserve balances from other Park District funds and from
the Champaign Park Foundation.

82



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND CONTINUED
Two TIF districts were formed in FYE2019; downtown fringe TIF and Bristol Park. Neither TIF includes any advance
surplus payments throughout the course of the TIF. Due to the lost EAV when the AC Humko Plant TIF formed in
FYE2016, the City of Champaign has agreed to pay $13,334 through FYE2037 for this area referred to as the North
Mattis Avenue Surplus Payment.

No transfers are included in the current year given the amount of carryover items included.  

Capital expenditures include prior year carry-over of the following projects: 
 Greenbelt Bikeway Connection - $715,500

 Toalson Park Sidewalk and Earthwork - $34,440 ($16,900 applied to Hessel Park pickleball court lining of
courts)

 Virginia Theatre Sound $19,718

 Contingency Prairie Farm Trailer (from FYE2019) $7,858

 Outdoor basketball court improvement $50,000

 Pickleball Courts $300,000

 LRC Utility Access Drive $40,000

 Tennis Court REplacement at Lindsay $471,000 (with additional funding to come out of bond proceeds
fund)

83



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND CONTINUED
2020-2021 Accomplishments
1.2 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Develop and implement a mobile app for the Park District - Completed

4.1 OPERATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Focus on the upgrades and improvements to the Operations facilities. - Completed

7.3 VIRGINIA THEATRE
OBJECTIVES:
 Work with Planning and Operations staff to support renovation and maintenance efforts for projects to

include: roof replacement, HVAC upgrade, wayfinding signage, sound, and lighting upgrades. Status -
Virginia Theatre sound project is complete.

8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Complete construction of Heritage Park - Completed

8.3 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Sound project at Virginia Theatre - Complete

2021-2022 Goal
7.3 VIRGINIA THEATRE
OBJECTIVES:
 Work with Planning and Operations staff to support renovation and maintenance efforts for projects to

include: HVAC upgrade, wayfinding signage, and tuckpointing.

8.3 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Complete HVAC project at Virginia Theatre.

84



CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND CONTINUED

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 16 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Personal Property Replacement Taxes $ 266,500 $ 291,721 $ 370,019 $ 300,000
Contributions/Sponsorships - 200,000 - -
Capital Grants - 42,619 750,000 1,227,801
Special Receipts 217,043 152,634 190,448 80,034
Interest Income 38,676 49,161 8,000 1,000
Transfers from Other Funds 850,000 2,880,000 693,000 -

Total Estimated Revenues $ 1,372,219 $ 3,616,135 $ 2,011,467 $ 1,608,835

Appropriations
Contractual $ 6,681 $ 10,338 $ 16,000 $ -
Capital Outlay 1,092,306 3,898,210 1,130,842 2,871,576
Transfers to Other Funds 60,000 74,723 55,107 -

Total Appropriations $ 1,158,987 $ 3,983,271 $ 1,201,949 $ 2,871,576
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations 213,232 (367,136) 809,518 (1,262,741)
Beginning Fund Balance 2,501,951 2,715,183 2,348,047 3,157,565
Ending Fund Balance $ 2,715,183 $ 2,348,047 $ 3,157,565 $ 1,894,824

85



������	
����
���	��
	�������������������������� ��
$%�
���&����
	'�()*�+)+"

�	��	�
�,-��
,.%����-,
�/0&
%��$%�
�12����%
,
2

�
,.%�� �
,�,�%&�)34++ ���,���	,�

��������	��'��
,.%���

���������	

��

�����
��������
���������� 5"6*6))

�����������
������	�����
��
���� �	����	� "5*6))

�����!��"�	#�������
��	
���$�������
%�����
�� "7*5"8 �

&�������������#
����'$����&�&� 5*868 �

&����(��)$����	�����
���

���$	���*
+
��
%
�� 6)*)))

&����,��)$����	-.����	��
�������$	���*
+
��
%
�� ())*)))

&�������/*��0��
����1��
���2	�3
�)44�5
������*2 3)*)))

&����,���
�������$	��*
+
��
%
���6�/������ 35"*)))

&&������������#
����'$����'����
�7
�	�&�&& 6)*)))

&���&���"�	#�������
��	
�8"1������/�4
���4
�� "*+))*))) �

+*85"*65#��������	��'��
,.%���

�� ��	
���

��������
�����	����������
�������	����
������	�
�	������
������
�����
�
��
���

��

�� �

��
��	���� ����!�����"�	������#��������
��������
���	���	���	���������$�	�����

�	����%����&	���
���
�������
�����������	����������
�������������
�$�	��'�	����
���

��	�����	
�����
���	���
�(��!�	����
��
�����������
�
�����$�	������	���

86



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Bond Amortization fund levies real estate taxes to pay the principal and interest associated
with the annual General Obligation Bond issued by the Park District. As of May 1, 2021 the Park
District has $1,195,800, plus total interest in non-referendum General Obligation Bonds
outstanding that is due to be paid November 30, 2021. The revenues received are transferred to
the bond proceeds fund to record the payment. The general obligation debt is considered short-
term, therefore the debt is recorded as a liability and is not reflected as debt service expenditures
in the budget detail.

87



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND CONTINUED
The Park District has $2,015,000 of Alternate Revenue General Obligation Bonds outstanding,
breakdown is shown later in this section. The current year debt payment and interest on this
outstanding debt is $540,450. This debt payment will be financed by a portion of the proceeds
from the General Obligation Bond issue and will be paid out of the bond proceeds fund. The
remaining GO Bond will be used for roof replacement, vehicle replacement, playground
replacement, and some smaller capital improvements.

The intention is to transfer 100% of cash receipts to the Bond Proceeds Fund to pay debt service
and for new capital projects; therefore these should be close to 100%. Staff have continued to
meet this goal.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Paid off the 2019 general obligation debt as required by the maturity date.

 Received the 2020 general obligation bond proceeds in December 2020.

2021-2022 Goals
 Continue to annually roll over the general obligation bond while maintaining a competitive interest rate.

88



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND CONTINUED

89



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND CONTINUED
Debt Service Schedule

Type Payment Rate Principal (P) Interest (I) Total P&I
Due Date

General Obligation Bonds, 11/30/2021 %0.30 $ 1,195,800 $ 3,587 $ 1,199,387

06/15/21 %3.00 0 30,225 30,225

12/15/21 %3.00 480,000 30,225 510,225

06/15/22 %3.00 0 23,025 23,025

12/15/22 %3.00 495,000 23,025 518,025

06/15/23 %3.00 0 15,600 15,600

12/15/23 %3.00 515,000 15,600 530,600

06/15/24 %3.00 0 7,875 7,875

12/15/24 %3.00 525,000 7,875 532,875

$ 2,015,000 $ 153,450 $ 2,168,450

90



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND CONTINUED
Legal Debt Margin

Assessed Value (2020 Levy Year) $ 1,949,867,358

Legal Debt Margin

Debt Limitation - 2.875% of Total Assessed Value 56,058,687

Total Debt Application to the Debt Limit

General Obligation Bond Series 2020 1,195,800

Alternate Revenue Bonds 0

Total Debt Applicable to Debt Limit 1,195,800

Legal Debt Margin 54,862,887

Total Net Debt Applicable to the Debt Limit as a % of
the Debt Limit %2.13

Historical Debt Limit %

FYE2020 %2.14

FYE2019 %2.28

FYE2018 %2.28

FYE2017 %2.51

FYE2016 %2.51

FYE2015 %2.48

FYE2014 %2.39

FYE2013 %2.26

91



BOND AMORTIZATION FUND CONTINUED
Champaign Park District

Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 21 - BOND AMORTIZATION FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Property Tax Revenue $ 1,130,482 $ 1,169,600 $ 1,174,240 $ 1,187,100
Interest Income 6,863 5,426 280 100

Total Estimated Revenues 1,137,345 1,175,026 1,174,520 1,187,200

Appropriations
Transfers to Other Funds $ 1,141,101 $ 1,167,900 $ 1,191,272 $ 1,187,200

Total Appropriations 1,141,101 1,167,900 1,191,272 1,187,200
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations (3,756) 7,126 (16,752) 0

Beginning Fund Balance 13,382 9,626 16,752 0
Ending Fund Balance $ 9,626 $ 16,752 $ 0 $ 0

92



BOND PROCEEDS FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Bond Proceeds fund is restricted to and used by the Park District for the purchase, development,
renovation of land, facilities, buildings and equipment owned by the Park District. The proceeds from the
General Obligation Bond are utilized to pay the debt service on the alternate revenue bonds, as well as
invest in capital assets as outlined in the capital improvement plan. The funds received are transferred from
the Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund. As the general obligation debt is considered short-term, the debt
is recorded as a liability and therefore not reflected as debt service expenditures in the budget detail. The
deficit fund balance at the end of the year is expected to be eliminated in the subsequent fiscal year by the
transfer of funds from the Bond Amortization/Debt Service Fund as part of the repayment of the short-term
bond.

93



BOND PROCEEDS FUND CONTINUED
Capital expenditures include carry-over projects from prior year as follows: 

 Playground replacement - $110,000

 Parkland Way section replacements - $100,000

 Tuckpointing at the Virginia Theatre - $150,000

2020-2021 Accomplishments
8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Dodds 3-Plex scoreboard replacements. - completed

 Roof Replacement at Virginia Theatre - completed

2021-2022 Goals
8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain quality of existing facilities, parks and trails.

 Create new fun and safe park amenities. 

 Playground replacement

 Parkland Way pavement section replacement

94



BOND PROCEEDS FUND CONTINUED

95



BOND PROCEEDS FUND CONTINUED
Champaign Park District

Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 22 - BOND PROCEEDS FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Interest Income $ 29,980 $ 28,185 $ 3,400 $ 720
Transfers from Other Funds 1,141,101 1,167,900 1,191,272 1,187,200

Total Estimated Revenues $ 1,171,081 $ 1,196,085 $ 1,194,672 $ 1,187,920

Appropriations
Contractual $ 3,428 $ 3,428 $ 3,428 $ 3,428
Capital Outlay 564,571 448,636 629,270 1,363,108
Debt Service - Principal 435,000 445,000 460,000 480,000
Debt Service - Interest/Fees 120,536 109,783 98,250 67,000

Total Appropriations $ 1,123,535 $ 1,006,847 $ 1,190,948 $ 1,913,536
Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations 47,546 189,238 3,724 (725,616)

Beginning Fund Balance 244,468 292,014 481,252 484,976
Ending Fund Balance $ 292,014 $ 481,252 $ 484,976 $ (240,640)

96



�
(�(�� �$./�� !��(���	(�

0$%$$$

�0%&$1

&$$%$$$

&&$%$$$

&.%$$$

#$%$$$

&2%$$$

2$%$$$

33%$$$

������	
����
���	��
	����������������������
���
��� ��!�
	"�#$%��$�&

'	��	�
�()��
(*�����)(
��+ 
������
�,-�����
(
-

�
(*���

��������	��"��
(*����

���������	
���
���������������	
����


����������������
	��������	�� ���	
����!

��������"	�#�	�$�%	&�����	
����
���

���

�����'��"�	&���(�$�����	
����


�����)��*���������
�����(�
��	��

��++����,����	����������

�����'����������-.(�����
�"(���/�0��$�1����

�����2�� (
$��������
��3��0
��������	
����


����������0�
�������	
����


���������������	�*0�	
���*(
#����
����	�$������-�
	�� &2$%$$$

02.%&$1��������	��"��
(*����

$GGLWLRQDO�FDSLWDO�SURMHFWV�QRW�DVVLJQHG�D�SURMHFW�QXPEHU�
���������� 6KDGH�6WUXFWXUHV���3RRO��������� ���������
� 3OD\JURXQG�5HSODFHPHQW�� ��������
� &RQGHQVRUV�6KRS�	�97� � ���������
� 3LFNOHEDOO�&RXUWV�� � ��������
� +HVVHO�3LFNOHEDOO�&RXUWV� � ���������
� $GGLWLRQDO�)XQGV�IRU�/LQGVD\�7&� ���������
� &DUU\RYHU�IURP�SULRU�\HDU�� ���������
� � 7RWDO� � � ��������

97



LAND ACQUISITION FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Land Aquisition fund was established in FYE2012 for the purpose of offsetting the costs of future land
purchases. Each year as part of the budget process a $100,000 transfer is budgeted from the General Fund
to set aside for any potential land purchases.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Transferred $100,000 from excess fund balance from the General Fund into the Land Acquisition Fund for

future purchases.

 Added proceeds from sale of one land parcel at Trails of Abbey Fields Subdivision to the fund.

2021-2022 Goals
 Continue to set aside surplus from the General Fund into the Land Acquisition Fund so funds are available

when land is identified for purchase.

98



LAND ACQUISITION FUND CONTINUED
As the goal of the Park District is to set aside funds for future land purchases, the revenue and expenditure
analysis is skewed due to timing of those transfers and projected expenditures. In addition, rather than
presenting the fund balance as a percentage of expenditures as with the other funds, the cumulative fund
balance by fiscal year has been shown instead.

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 24 - LAND ACQUISITION FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Interest Income $ 14,677 $ 18,757 $ 2,175 $ 1,000
Transfers from Other Funds 160,000 174,723 155,107 100,000

Total Estimated Revenues $ 174,677 $ 193,480 $ 157,282 $ 101,000

Appropriations

Total Appropriations $ - $ - $ - $ -
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations $ 174,677 $ 193,480 $ 157,282 $ 101,000
Beginning Fund Balance 611,785 786,462 979,942 1,137,224
Ending Fund Balance $ 786,462 $ 979,942 $ 1,137,224 $ 1,238,224

99



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Park Development  fund was established in May 2016 by Board action to commit funds for future
developments in the parks. The only source of planned revenue aside from future Board approved transfers, is
interest income.  

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Transferred $100,000 for future projects deemed priorities by the Board of Commissioners. 

8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Awarded an IDNR OSLAD grant for  the outdoor amenities and received $347,000 for Spalding Park,

which requires a 50% match from the Park District.

2021-2022 Goals
8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Complete paths, lights and new playground at Spalding Park.

 Additional funds of $100,000 to be transferred in for future projects as deemed priorities by the Board of
Commissioners. 

8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain quality of existing facilities, parks and trails.

100



PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND CONTINUED

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 25 - PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Capital Grants $ - $ - $ - $ 347,000
Interest Income 19,031 20,319 2,500 900
Transfers from Other Funds 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Total Estimated Revenues $ 119,031 $ 120,319 $ 102,500 $ 447,900

Appropriations
Capital Outlay $ 24,500 $ - $ 12,228 $ 658,000

Total Appropriations 24,500 - 12,228 658,000
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations 94,531 120,319 90,272 (210,100)
Beginning Fund Balance 813,402 907,933 1,028,252 1,118,524
Ending Fund Balance $ 907,933 $ 1,028,252 $ 1,118,524 $ 908,424

101



������	
����
���	��
	�������������������������
#$�
���%����
	&�'()�!(!*

�	��	�
�+,��
+-$����,+
�./%
$��#$�
�01����$
+
1

�
+-$�� �
+�+�$%�(23!!

��������	��&��
+-$���

���������	
��
����
����
�����
���
�����	�������� 4"5)(((

4"5)(((��������	��&��
+-$���

102



TRAILS AND PATHWAYS FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Trails and Pathways fund was established in May 2016 by Board action to commit funds for trails and pathways
throughout the Park District.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
 Transferred $100,000 into fund for future trails and pathways.

8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Replaced pedestrian bridge between Heritage and Kaufman Lake Parks connecting paths.

2021-2022 Goals
5.2 PLANNING
OBJECTIVES:
 Work to complete the trail connections with the Carle at the Fields Trail and other trails in the area.

8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain quality of existing facilities, parks and trails.

 Additional funding of $100,000 to be transferred into this fund to be used for future trail and pathway
development within the Park District.

103



TRAILS AND PATHWAYS FUND CONTINUED

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 26 - TRAILS AND PATHWAYS FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Interest Income $ 4,961 $ 6,930 $ 802 $ 300
Transfers from Other Funds 100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000

Total Estimated Revenues $ 104,961 $ 106,930 $ 100,802 $ 100,300

Appropriations
Capital Outlay $ - $ 53,500 $ 29,650 $ 50,000

Total Appropriations - 53,500 29,650 50,000
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations 104,961 53,430 71,152 50,300
Beginning Fund Balance 202,525 307,486 360,916 432,068
Ending Fund Balance $ 307,486 $ 360,916 $ 432,068 $ 482,368

104



MARTENS CENTER CAPITAL FUND

Principal Responsibilities
The Martens Center Capital fund was established in FYE2018 as a direct result of a donor contribution. This
fund contains money for capital improvements made at this specific site through donations and fundraising
efforts, as well as saving for start-up costs when the facility is opened in the future. Receipts from this fund
include anticipated donations, grant funding, and transfers which will be used for contractual expenditures to
develop the existing park. FYE2022 includes grant revenue awarded for the completion of the Human
Kinetics Park Outdoor improvements.

2020-2021 Accomplishments
8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Continue fundraising, begin design/development and bid out construction of the Martens Center.

 Completed the planning and design for the outdoor improvements and began project construction.

 Started construction on the Martens Center facility in March 2021.

105



MARTENS CENTER CAPITAL FUND CONTINUED

2021-2022 Goals
8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Continue construction of Martens Center facility with antipated completion date of March 2022.

 Complete the outdoor improvements at Human Kinetics park using OSLAD grant award.

Champaign Park District
Budget Category Totals by Fund

Fund 27 - MARTENS CENTER CAPITAL FUND

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues
Contributions/Sponsorships $ 4,654 $ 871,636 $ 1,805,985 $ 2,285,000
Capital Grants - 137,630 197,500 200,000
Special Receipts - - 83,122 -
Interest Income - 42,321 8,200 -
Transfers from Other Funds 2,000,000 150,000 - 2,859,548

Total Estimated Revenues $ 2,004,654 $ 1,201,587 $ 2,094,807 $ 5,344,548

Appropriations
Contractual $ 7,800 $ 142,358 $ 253,930 $ 84,500
Commodities/Supplies - - 70 -
Capital Outlay 199 395,015 2,132,344 7,395,000

Total Appropriations 7,999 537,373 2,386,344 7,479,500
Net of Revenues Over

(Under) Appropriations 1,996,655 664,214 (291,537) (2,134,952)
Beginning Fund Balance - 1,996,655 2,660,869 2,369,332
Ending Fund Balance $ 1,996,655 $ 2,660,869 $ 2,369,332 $ 234,380

106



Capital Improvement Plan 

For Fiscal Years Ended April 30 

2022�2027 

PRESENTED TO BOARD:  February 10, 2021 

Approved by Board of Commissioners:  April 14, 2021 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

107



1 |Final 2022�2027 CIP Narrative 

Overview 

The capital improvement plan (CIP) budget encompasses capital outlay expenditures and non�
capital improvements.  

Capital Outlay 

The capital budget authorizes and provides the basis for control of expenditures for the 
acquisition of significant Park District assets and construction of all capital facilities.  A six�year 
CIP is developed, reviewed and updated annually. The projects outlined in the CIP includes the 
CIP for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2022 (FYE2022) budget year, as well as the projected 
plan for the next five fiscal years in accordance with Park District policy. The 2022�2027 CIP is 
presented to the Board of Commissioners for review and final approval prior to the presentation 
and adoption of the overall Park District budget. 

Capital budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year, however, if a project is in 
progress or delayed, staff may roll the project forward until it is completed, unless re�assigned 
by the Board of Commissioners. As capital improvement projects are completed, the operations 
of these facilities are funded in the operating budget as noted in the project details. 

Capital Improvement Project Guidelines 
The project must: 

x Have a monetary value of at least $10,000 for equipment or $20,000 for infrastructure or
land improvements.

x Have a useful life of at least three years.
x Result in the creation of a fixed asset, or the revitalization of a fixed asset.
x Support the Park District�s strategic plan or board priorities.

Included within the above definition of a capital project are the following items: 
x Construction of new facilities.
x Remodeling or expansion of existing facilities.
x Purchase, improvement and development of land.
x Operating equipment and machinery for new or expanded facilities.
x Planning and engineering costs related to specific capital improvements.

The final compilation of requests, sources of funding and scheduling presented to the Board of 
Commissioners are based on discussions with the leadership team and review by the Executive 
Director. By providing this planning and programming of capital improvements the effect of 
capital expenditures on the annual budget is determined. This provides an orderly growth of 
Park District assets and allows for proper planning of resources in future years.  

For the current 2022�2027 CIP the majority of the capital projects are either carried over from 
prior year or were increased based on grant�funded projects as detailed later on in that section. 
The focus for FYE2022 is to finish up projects that were red�lined in the prior fiscal year and to 
complete the grant related projects in addition to construction on the new Martens Center. 

The Park District�s capital projects may include items such as the redevelopment of land, 
buildings, playgrounds, outdoor hard courts (tennis and basketball), athletic fields, aquatics, 
vehicles, and equipment. If these assets are not maintained in good condition, or if they are 
allowed to become obsolete, the result is often a decrease in the usefulness of the assets, an 
increase in the cost of maintaining and replacing them and a decrease in the quality of service.  

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

108



2 |Final 2022�2027 CIP Narrative 
 

The average cost to fund these types of projects (excluding major renovations) is $2 million per 
year. 

Each year it is important to identify and pursue the funding sources for capital improvements. 
Staff also need to explore innovative means of financing facility renovations and maintaining 
existing parks and amenities. 

CIP Funding Sources 
The CIP utilizes funding from grant funds when available, revenue bonds, recreation funds, non�
referendum general obligation bonds and donations through the Park Foundation. 

General Fund 
The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Park District and includes administrative, 
maintenance, parks and all other financial resources except those required to be accounted for 
in another fund. Funding is provided from property taxes, interest income, and other receipts 
such as easement fees.  Available fund balance in excess of 33% of annual budgeted operating 
expenditures may be transferred to the Capital Improvements Fund to support future capital 
projects with Board approval.  

Recreation Fund 
This fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the operation of recreation programs 
and facilities. Financing is provided from fees and charges for programs and activities as well as 
the annual property tax levy. Program numbers are used to account for separate recreation 
programs such as swimming, senior programs, preschool, and day camp programs.  Funds 
used for capital projects as deemed by the CIP, will be transferred to the Capital Improvement 
Fund annually as part of the annual budget. Examples of past projects funded with these dollars 
include, projects related to the Leonhard Recreation Center, Dodds Tennis Center, Douglass 
Community Center, and Sholem Aquatic Center. 

Museum Fund 

This fund is a special revenue fund used to account for the operation of cultural arts programs 
and facilities. Financing is provided from fees and charges of programs and activities as well as 
the annual property tax levy.  Program numbers are used to account for separate cultural arts 
programs such as special events, Douglass Community Center/Annex, Virginia Theatre and 
Springer Cultural Center programs. Funds used for capital projects as deemed by the CIP, will 
be transferred to the Capital Improvement Fund annually as part of the annual budget. 

Champaign�Urbana Special Recreation (CUSR) Fund 

This fund is a Special Revenue Fund established to account for revenues derived from a 
specific annual property tax levy and expenditures of these monies for the CUSR program to 
provide special recreation programs for physically and mentally handicapped. This is a joint 
program created through an intergovernmental agreement with the Urbana Park District. Of the 
annual tax levy, 43.75% is set aside specifically to fund ADA improvements.  It also assists in 
making the existing facilities accessible as required by the ADA (Americans with Disabilities 
Act). Funds will be used in FYE2022 to complete the renovation project the new home of CUSR 
programs and staff as well as to meet the ongoing ADA transition plan items not yet completed. 

Interest and Miscellaneous Income 

Interest and miscellaneous income represents interest income earned on the capital projects 
funds� investments and other miscellaneous revenues related to capital projects. Over the past 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

109



3 |Final 2022�2027 CIP Narrative 

year, this has been a substantial amount, however with interest rates declining substantially 
over the last six months, the amount available will be minimal compared to the prior years. 

Grants 

The Park District has had an impressive record of success obtaining grants from various 
agencies and organizations. Grants awarded in prior and current/future years for capital projects 
include the following: 

x OSLAD Grants are grant funds from the Open Space Land Acquisition and
Development Act (OSLAD). The Act provides for grants to be disbursed by the Illinois
Department of Natural Resources to eligible local governments for the purpose of
acquiring, developing, and/or rehabilitating land for public outdoor recreation purposes.
Awarded $400,000 OSLAD grant for the outdoor park improvements at Human Kinetics
Park and $347,000 grant for Spalding Park Improvements.

x PARC Grants (Park and Recreational Facility Construction Act) were created by Public

Act 096�0820 effective November 19, 2009 to provide grants to be disbursed by IDNR to
eligible local governments for park and recreation unit construction projects. Park or
recreation unit construction project means the acquisition, development, construction,
reconstruction, rehabilitation, improvements, architectural planning, and installation of
capital facilities consisting of, but not limited to, buildings, structures, and land for park
and recreation purposes and open spaces for natural areas. Staff submitted an
application for the current funding cycle for the Martens Center building project in
amount of up to $2.5 million, unfortunately the Park District received notice in March
2021 that this project was not selected for funding.

x LWCF Grants (Land and Water Conservation Fund) awarded by IDNR to eligible local

governments for the acquisition or development of land. The Park District was awarded
a grant in FYE2019 to purchase the land for the Martens Center development. This grant
does require a fifty�percent match, which is being provided by a private donor. A final
close�out was submitted in fall 2019, and the Park District received a grant
reimbursement of $120,000 in February 2021 to close out this project.

x Public Museum Grants awarded by IDNR. The grant award originally awarded in 2014
for the Virginia Theatre sound system project was reinstated in 2019, and the project
began in the fall 2020 and is scheduled to wrap up in May/June 2021. The total awarded
under this program is $750,000 with an extended grant completion date of July 2021. In
December 2020, the Park District was awarded a new grant of $750,000 for the Virginia
Theatre HVAC and Life Safety project to be fully completed by March 16, 2023. This
project is underway and is included in FYE2022.

x Illinois Bicycle Path Grant Program � Per Illinois Department of Natural Resources

website (https://www2.illinois.gov/dnr/grants/Pages/BikePathProgram.aspx) this program

�was created in 1990 to financially assist eligible units of government to acquire,

construct, and rehabilitate public, non�motorized bicycle paths and directly related

support facilities. Grants are available to any local government agency having statutory

authority to acquire and develop land for public bicycle path purposes. Revenue for the

program comes from a percentage of vehicle title fees collected pursuant to Section 3�

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

110



821(f) of the Illinois Vehicle Code.� The Park District was awarded a $200,000 grant to 

assist in the Greenbelt Bikeway Connection Path. In addition, Staff submitted an 

application for the current funding cycle for another request to assist in connecting the 

Pipeline Trail to Porter Park which is a future capital project. No word on the status of the 

grant application at this time. 

Non�Referendum Limited Obligation Park Bonds 
Non�Referendum Limited Obligation Park Bonds are bonds that are secured by the full faith and 
credit of the issuer. General obligation bonds, issued by local governments are secured by a 
pledge of the issuer�s property taxing power. The legal debt limit for non�referendum bonds is 
.575% of assessed valuation. The Park District has the capacity to issue $10,941,188 in general 
obligation bonds� however the debt service extension base (DSEB) on these bonds limits 
maturities to $1,195,800 per year. The Park District uses the funds from these bonds to fund 
capital improvements and to develop, maintain and improve parks and facilities, acquire land, 
and replace outdated equipment. Funds are also used to pay the debt service for the Sholem 
Aquatic Center revenue bonds payable June 15 and December 15, annually through 2024. 

Our current non�referendum bonding plan will provide $3 million over the next three years. 
Based on current economic conditions and revenue and expenditure projections, funding is not 
sufficient to maintain all existing system assets and build new park and recreation facilities. 

Impact on the Operating Budget 
The majority of the Park District�s assets are invested in its physical assets or infrastructure, 
such as land, buildings, swimming pool, equipment, and outdoor/indoor courts.  If regular 
maintenance on these assets to keep them in quality operating condition does not occur, or the 
assets are not replaced before they become obsolete, then this results in an increase in 
maintenance and repair expenditures, a decrease in the usefulness and safety of the asset, and 
ultimately a decrease in the quality of standards that the Park District strives to achieve.    

The overall capital improvement plan projects will most likely result in a reduction of long�term 
operating expenditures, while staying on scheduled maintenance and replacement timelines 
with higher�efficiency equipment should meet the strategic goal of reducing energy 
consumption. See the attached CIP schedule for specifics by project as to the operating budget 
impact. 

Summary 

This year the Park District CIP for FYE2022 totals $12,8�0,0�0. The 2022�2027 CIP was 
approved at the April 14, 2021 Board of Commissioners regular meeting. The major capital 
projects included in the upcoming fiscal year include Spalding Park improvements (lights, paths, 
and playground replacement), HVAC and life safety upgrades at the Virginia Theatre, 
continuation of security camera installation at various facilities and parks, as well as outdoor 
improvements at Human Kinetics Park, construction of Martens Center, Greenbelt bikeway 
connection path project�DQG�WKH�DGGLWLRQ�RI�SLFNOH�EDOO�FRXUWV. Other capital funding is to be used 
for maintaining our existing parks and facilities, and vehicle/equipment replacements. 

The following is a breakdown of the capital projects presented to the Board of Commissioners 
and budgeted for the following year, with a brief description of the major projects. Not included 

4 |Final 2022�2027 CIP Narrative 
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

111



5 |Final 2022�2027 CIP Narrative 

in the $12,8�0,070, is a $100,000 transfer from the General Fund to the Land Acquisition Fund 
that will come from operating budget in FYE2022. Other transfers that may be added from the 
General Fund through the operating budget process includes two $100,000 transfers to the Park 
Development Fund and Trails/Pathways Fund. 

FYE2022 Capital Summary 

Appendix A:  Six�Year Capital Improvement Program with Descriptions 
Appendix B:  Replacement Schedules 
Appendix C:  Six Year Funding Schedule 

From New 
Funds 

Grant & 
Foundation 

Funds  

From Carryover / 
Excess Reserves 

Totals 

Capital Outlay $2,195,192 $6,527,078 $�,�17,500 $11,�39,770 

Non�capital 
improvements 

4�8,200 0 97,100 5�5,300 

ADA 415,000 0 0 415,000 

Total CIP Expenditures $3,0�8,392 $6,527,078 �,�14,600 $12,8�0,070 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

112



1 | Final 2022�2027 CIP, approved 4�14�2021     Attachment A 

2022�2027 CIP 

Project Name Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Capital 
Budget 

Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Operating 
Budget 

2022 2023  2024 2025 2026 2027 Totals All 
Years 

Appendix B 
Project 
Details Refer 
to Page 
Number 
Below 

ADA General 
Projects #220002 

293,000 22,000 $315,000  $315,000  $315,000  $315,000  $315,000  $315,000  $     1,890,000 

Dog Park 
Improvements 

22,500 $22,500 $45,000 $22,000 89,500     5 

Bi�Centennial 
Project #190003 

95,000 5,000 100,000 100,000 2 

Greenbelt Bikeway 
Trail #190006  

715,500 20,000 735,500 735,500 2 

Contingency 
#220001 

50,000 50,000 70,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000 420,000 

Equipment 
Replacement � 
Rolling  

15,000 100 15,100 15,000 115,000 100,000 50,000  25,000 320,100 19 

Non�Rolling 
Equipment Plan 

33,300 17,000 50,300 50,300     9 

Non�Recurring 
Projects  

60,000 13,500 73,500 53,500 127,000 8 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

113



2 | Final 2022�2027 CIP, approved 4�14�2021     Attachment A 

Project Name Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Capital 
Budget 

Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Operating 
Budget 

2022 2023  2024 2025 2026 2027 Totals All 
Years 

Appendix B 
Project 
Details Refer 
to Page 
Number 
Below 

LRC Utility Access 
Drive off Kenwood 
Rd. #210010 

41,000 3,000 44,000 44,000 3 

Martens Center 
estimate only 
#180012 

$7,000,000 7,000,000 4,082,107 11,082,107 2 

Human Kinetics 
Park Outdoor 
Improvements 
(OSLAD Grant with 
50% match) 
awarded February 
2019 #200018 

375,000 25,000  400,000 400,000 2 

Outdoor Basketball 
/ Volleyball Court 
Replacement Plan 
#200007 

50,000 100 50,100 160,000   50,000     110,000 50,000 99,000 519,100 10 

Outdoor Sports 
Lighting 
Replacement Plan 

50,000 0 50,000 175,000 180,000 300,000 60,000  450,000 1,215,000 12 

Parking Lot 
Refurbishment 

240,000 160,000 140,000 540,000 13 

Playground 
Replacement 
#210013 

200,000 100 200,100 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 200,000 1,200,100 14 

Recurring 
Maintenance � 
Facilities 

1,260,000 53,000 1,313,000 90,000 71,100 65,200 59,000 45,200 1,643,500 16 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

114



3 | Final 2022�2027 CIP, approved 4�14�2021     Attachment A 

Project Name Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Capital 
Budget 

Amount 
included 

in 
FYE2022 

Operating 
Budget 

2022 2023  2024 2025 2026 2027 Totals All 
Years 

Appendix B 
Project 
Details Refer 
to Page 
Number 
Below 

Recurring 
Maintenance � 
Parks 

100,000 137,000 237,000 263,000 134,210 241,400 127,200 233,200 1,236,010 17 

Recurring 
Maintenance � 
Sports 

0 45,000 45,000 75,000 35,000 39,000 27,000 38,000 259,000 18 

Risk Management 
Improvements & 
Updates 

35,000 35,000 35,000 105,000 

Roof Replacement 
Plan   

0 0 0 0 178,000 100,000 45,000 15,000 338,000 20 

Sholem 
Mechanical 
Improvements Plan 

57,000 45,000 102,000 58,000 50,100 25,000 49,600 27,000 291,700 21 

Spalding Park 
Improvements 
(Partial grant 
funded) #190012 

668,000 26,100   694,100 694,100 2 

Technology 
Annual and Non�
Recurring Projects 

95,000 95,000 100,000 195,000 4 

Tennis Center 
Ceiling Fans 
#210017 

14,000 0 14,000 14,000 2 

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

115



ϰ�ͮ�&ŝŶĂů�ϮϬϮϮͲϮϬϮϳ��/W͕�ĂƉƉƌŽǀĞĚ�ϰͲϭϰͲϮϬϮϭ� ��ƚƚĂĐŚŵĞŶƚ���

3URMHFW�1DPH� $PR XQW�
LQFOXGHG�

LQ�
)<(�����
&DSLWDO�
%XGJHW�

$P RXQW�
LQFOXGHG�

LQ�
)<(�����
2SHUDWLQJ�

%XGJHW��

����� ����� ������ ����� ����� ����� 7RWDOV�$OO�
<HDUV�

$SSHQGL[�%�
3URMHFW�
'HWDLOV�5HIHU�
WR�3DJH�
1XPEHU�
%HORZ�

7HQQLV�&RXUW�
,PSURYHPHQW��
5HSODFHPHQW�
��������

�������� ���� �������� �������� ������� �������� �������� �������� ����������

7RDOVRQ�3DUN�
6LGHZDON�	�
(DUWKZRUN�&DUU\�
2YHU�IURP�)<(�����
3URMHFW���������

������� ���� �������� ������� ��

7UDLO�DQG�3DUN�3DWK�
$GGLWLRQV�

������� ���� ������� �������� ������� ������� �������� ��������� �������� ���

7UDLOHU�3XUFKDVH�
IRU�XVH�ZLWK�
DQLPDOV�DW�3UDLULH�
)DUP���������

������ ������ ������ ��

9HKLFOH�
5HSODFHPHQW�
�HQWLUH�'LVWULFW��

������� ���� ������� ������� �������� �������� �������� ������� �������� ���

9LUJLQLD�7KHDWUH�
7XFNSRLQWLQJ�	�
)LUH�(VFDSH��

��������� �� �������� �������� ��

9LUJLQLD�7KHDWUH�
:D \I LQGLQJ�
6LJQDJH�6WXG\�
���30���

������� ������� ������� ��

3LFNOH�%DOO�&RXUWV� �������� ������� �������� ��������

����������� �������� ����������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� �����������

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

116



APPENDIX B - 1
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

117



APPENDIX B - 2
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

118



APPENDIX B - 3
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

119



APPENDIX B - 4
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

120



APPENDIX B - 5
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

121



APPENDIX B - 6
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

122



APPENDIX B - 7
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

123



APPENDIX B - 8
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

124



APPENDIX B - 9
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

125



APPENDIX B - 10
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

126



APPENDIX B - 11
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

127



APPENDIX B - 12
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

128



APPENDIX B - 13
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

129



APPENDIX B - 14
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

130



APPENDIX B - 15
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

131



APPENDIX B - 16
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

132



APPENDIX B - 17
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

133



APPENDIX B - 18
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

134



APPENDIX B - 19
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

135



APPENDIX B - 20
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

136



APPENDIX B - 21
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

137



APPENDIX B - 22
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

138



APPENDIX B - 23
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

139



APPENDIX B - 24
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

140



APPENDIX B - 25
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

141



APPENDIX B - 26
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

142



APPENDIX B - 27
FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

143



&,3�����������)XQGLQJ�6RXUFHV

)XQGLQJ�6RXUFH ���� ���� ������ ���� ���� ����

�7RWDOV�$OO�

<HDUV�

*HQ��5HF��0XVHXP �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� ����������
���/LDELOLW\ ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ������� ��������
���3DYLQJ�	�/LJKLWQJ ������� �������� ������� �������� ������� �������� ��������

���&865��$'$�&3'�RQO\� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� �������� ����������
���&DSLWDO�,PSURYHPHQW ���������� �������� �������� �������� ���������� �������� ����������
���%RQG�3URFHHGV ���������� ���������� �������� �������� �� �� ����������
���/DQG�$FTXLVLWLRQ �� �� �� �� �� �� ��
���3DUN�'HYHORSPHQW �������� �� �� �� �� �� ��������

���7UDLOV�DQG�3DWKZD\V ������� �������� ������� ������� ������� �������� ��������
���0DUWHQV�&HQWHU��LQFOXGHV�)RXQGDWLRQ��	�+.�3DUN ���������� ���������� �� �� �� �� �����������
���)RXQGDWLRQ �������� �� �� �� �� �� ��������

����������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� ���������� �����������

)XQGV�

$YDLODEOH��

�������� 5HYHQXHV ([SHQGLWXUHV

�3URMHFWHG�

(QGLQJ�)XQG�

%DODQFH��

����������

*HQ��5HF��0XVHXP ����������� �������� ��������� �����������
���/LDELOLW\ �������� �������� ��������
���3DYLQJ�	�/LJKLWQJ �������� ������� �������� ��������
���&865��$'$�&3'�RQO\� �������� �������� ��������� ��������
���&DSLWDO�,PSURYHPHQW ���������� �������� ����������� ����������

���%RQG�3URFHHGV ���������� ���������� ����������� ����������
���/DQG�$FTXLVLWLRQ ���������� �������� �� ����������
���3DUN�'HYHORSPHQW ���������� �������� ��������� ��������
���7UDLOV�DQG�3DWKZD\V �������� �������� �������� ��������
���0DUWHQV�&HQWHU��LQFOXGHV�)RXQGDWLRQ��	�+.�3DUN ����������� �������� ����������� ����������
���)RXQGDWLRQ �������� ��������� �������

����������� ���������� ������������ �����������

 ' LVWULFW�VRXUFHV�GRHV�LQFOXGH�WKH�0DUWHQV�&HQWHU�IXQGV�KHOG�DW�WKH�)RXQGDWLRQ�LQ�WRWDO

)RXQGDWLRQ�)XQGLQJ

)XQGV�

$VVLJQHG�WR�

�����&DSLWDO
'R J�3DUN ������
0D UWHQV�&HQWHU ����������
9LUJLQLD�7KHDWUH ��������

����������

5ROORYHU�RI�%DODQFHV�E\�)XQG

&,3�([SHQGLWXUHV�E\�)<(

)281'$ 7,21�6RXUFHV�RI�)XQGV

',67 5,&7�6RXUFHV�RI�)XQGV

FINAL Rev2 4-14-21

144



145



General Fund: Administration
Principal Responsibilities
Department Summary - General Fund: Administration - Accounts for the Park District's general
administrative costs, including but not limited to human resources, finance, information technology, board
expenses, safety and other general costs. Revenue source is mostly property tax and interest income.

Employees Funded by Administration - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Administration
Executive Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant To The Executive Director 1.00 1.00 1.04 1.00

2.00 2.00 2.04 2.00

Finance
Director Of Finance 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant Director Of Finance 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Development Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Accounting Clerk 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Accounting and Procurement Clerk (Allocated) - - - 0.20
Accounting Clerk (FT2) (Allocated) - - - -
Accounts Payable Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Administrative Assistant 0.87 0.87 0.87 0.90
Building Service Worker @ BMC 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

6.87 6.87 6.87 6.10

HR & IT (Risk is under Fund 04)
Director Of HR, IT & Risk 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Human Resources Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Accounting Clerk (FT2) (Allocated) - - 0.11 -
Administrative Assistant (Finance) - - - 0.10

2.00 2.00 2.11 2.10
Total FTE's 10.87 10.87 11.02 10.20

146



General Fund: Administration
2021-22 Goals
2.1 FINANCE 
OBJECTIVES:
 Continuously evaluate and improve processes to maximize efficiencies related to purchasing.
 Assess the impact of minimum wage increases and assist with strategy to manage costs over

the next five years.

3.1 HUMAN RESOURCE, TECHNOLOGY, AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
OBJECTIVES:
 Attract, develop, and support a diverse community of Park District employees who are engaged

in their work, and motivated to perform at their full potential. Determine the level of service for
parks, facilities and amenities to meet all residents’ needs.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Operating Expenditures per Capita 18.28 $ 17.93 $ 18.32 $ 18.47

General Fund
Department Summary - General Fund: Administration

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue 5,877,751 $ 6,128,989 $ 6,330,861 $ 6,555,300

Charge for Service Revenue 3,722 3,334 285 1,000

Contributions/Sponsorships 3,594 1,750 - -

Special Receipts 1,240 10,500 2,730 1,300

Interest Income 164,693 117,048 53,000 20,000

Total Estimated Revenues $ 6,051,000 $ 6,261,621 $ 6,386,876 $ 6,577,600

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 779,349 $ 833,711 $ 842,450 $ 782,880

Fringe Benefits 362,699 371,977 383,569 383,536

Contractual 302,612 232,360 278,372 301,960

Commodities/Supplies 71,460 34,636 24,002 28,711

Utilities 51,047 47,176 46,432 50,475

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 41,599 58,142 53,787 95,000

Transfers to Other Funds 1,800,000 2,650,000 300,000 1,300,000

147



General Fund: Administration
General Fund

Department Summary - General Fund: Administration

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Total Appropriations $ 3,408,766 $ 4,228,002 $ 1,928,612 $ 2,942,562
Net of Revenues Over (Under)

Appropriations $ 2,642,234 $ 2,033,619 $ 4,458,264 $ 3,635,038

148



General Fund: Marketing & Communications
Principal Responsibilities
A program of the General Fund which promotes the Park District's mission and goals by positioning its staff,
volunteers, programs, events and sponsors within the community. The department markets to more than
80,000 residents. Primary responsibilities include designing external and internal promotional pieces and
advertisements, market research, media relations, placement of all Park District advertising, producing
Program Guide located at https://champaignparks.com/programs/program-guide/ (allocated between the
Recreation and Museum funds as this is the program guide for those programs), promotions, visual images,
strategic planning and other marketing-related projects. 

Employees Funded by Marketing - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Director Of Marketing & Communications 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Graphic Designer (Allocated) 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
Marketing Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Total FTE's 2.25 2.25 2.25 2.25

2020-2021 Accomplishments
1.2 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Develop and implement an app for the Park District - completed
 Launched a new podcast
2021-22 Goals
1.1 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Work with program coordinators on a seasonal basis to develop marketing plans for identified

program focus areas.
 Continue to focus on videography to highlight the Park District.

1.3 MARKETING AND COMMUNICATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Develop marketing standards and templated branding for events.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

CPD Facebook Followers 9,117 10,935 10,500 -

149



General Fund: Marketing & Communications
General Fund

Department Summary - General Fund: Marketing & Communications

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 83,713 $ 84,732 $ 82,737 $ 84,800

Fringe Benefits 844 847 809 840

Contractual 40,260 37,048 27,618 41,410

Commodities/Supplies 6,780 4,282 1,214 4,368

Total Appropriations $ 131,597 $ 126,909 $ 112,378 $ 131,418
Net of Revenues Over (Under)

Appropriations $ (131,597) $ (126,909) $ (112,378) $ (131,418)
Total expenditures decreased 4.7% from prior year.

150



General Fund: Facilities
Principal Responsibilities
Total expenditures are comparable to prior year for Douglass branch library.

General Fund
Department Summary - General Fund: Facilities

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Special Receipts $ 810 $ 355 $ - $ -

Total Estimated Revenues $ 810 $ 355 $ - $ -

Appropriations

Contractual 10,415 7,499 8,445 -

Commodities/Supplies 3,134 291 417 -

Utilities 3,254 372 2,091 -

Total Appropriations $ 16,803 $ 8,162 $ 10,953 $ -

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ (15,993) $ (7,807) $ (10,953) $ -

151



General Fund: Operations
Principal Responsibilities
Oversees the enhancement, maintenance and daily operations of all Park District facilities, parks, grounds,
equipment, park features, and trails as well as facility rentals and park permits. The department includes: 

 Horticulture/Natural Areas Division - improves the aesthetic quality of the Park District through design,
installation and maintenance of flowers, plantings, installation and maintencance of natural and prairie areas
and signage. Responsibilities include flower islands, all beds within the parks, ornamental plantings, natural
areas and prairies, and park signs.

 Grounds/Maintenance Division - maintains all structures within the Park District including all buildings,
swimming pools and splash pads, picnic pavilions, fountains, irrigation, lighting and park signage. Also
responsible for all HVAC, electrical, plumbing, carpentry, fleet maintenance and assists with ADA
upgrades.Manages the Park District’s turf, trees and trash removal. Responsibilities include oversight of all
contract mowers, the mowing and trimming of the Park District’s “signature” parks, and all arbor duties,
including removal, care and installation. This division also has responsibility for removal of all park
litter/trash, as well as the Park District recycling program.  

 Special Projects - maintains the Park District’s playgrounds, hard courts, disc golf course, park amenities
and sports fields. Responsibilities include oversight of playground installations, park benches and amenities,
as well as the preparation, maintenance and repair of softball, baseball, football and soccer fields. This
division also operates the fabrication/welding shop.

Employees Funded by Operations- Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Operations
Admin Asst & Reservations Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Director Of Operations 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Assistant Director of Operations - - - 1.00
Supervisor of Grounds - - - 1.00
Supervisor of Maintenance - - - 1.00
Supervisor of Construction - - - 1.00
Fabricator (FT2) 0.80 0.80 0.63 -
Grounds & Maintenance Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Grounds Specialist 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Grounds Specialist-Lead Arborist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Grounds Worker I 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Horticulture Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Horticulture Specialist I 2.00 0.80 1.00 1.00
Horticulture Specialist II 1.00 2.20 2.00 2.00
Horticulture Worker I 1.00 - - -
Horticulture Worker II - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Maintenance Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Maintenance Worker II 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Maintenance Worker II - HVAC 1.00 - - -
Natural Areas Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Special Projects Specialist 1.00 0.33 1.00 1.00
Special Projects Supervisor 0.50 0.50 0.50 -
Special Projects Worker I 1.00 0.92 1.00 1.00
Sports Field Worker I - - - 1.00
Trade Specialist/Carpentry 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Trade Specialist/Electrician 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

152



General Fund: Operations

Employees Funded by Operations- Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Trade Specialist/HVAC - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Trade Specialist/Mechanic 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Trade Specialist/Plumbing & Electrical 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Trash/Recycling Worker I 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00

- - - -
Total FTE's 26.30 25.55 26.13 28.00

2020-2021 Accomplishments
4.3 OPERATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Distribute monthly project updates sheet to Operations and Planning staff. COMPLETED
8.1 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Complete construction of the Operations Shop facility. COMPLETED
8.3 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Complete Virginia Theatre roof project. COMPLETED

2021-22 Goals
4.2 OPERATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Encourage Operations employees at all levels to stay current with best management practices. 
 Evaluate the level of full-time Operations employees against the Park District size, acreage, and

number of facilities.

153



General Fund: Operations
4.3 OPERATIONS
OBJECTIVES:
 Distribute monthly project updates sheet to Operations and Planning staff. 

8.2 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
 Maintain quality of existing facilities, parks and trails.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Operating Expenditure Per Capita $ 24.37 $ 23.20 $ 22.28 $ 23.32

- - - -

General Fund
Department Summary - General Fund: Operations

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 112,806 $ 153,331 $ 108,158 $ 116,194

Special Receipts 4,453 15,198 5,615 8,300

Total Estimated Revenues $ 117,259 $ 168,529 $ 113,773 $ 124,494

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 1,411,705 $ 1,328,687 $ 1,256,143 $ 1,335,860

Fringe Benefits 10,675 6,389 8,002 14,520

Contractual 268,535 295,929 255,344 306,024

154



General Fund: Operations
General Fund

Department Summary - General Fund: Operations

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Commodities/Supplies 296,986 270,472 270,858 314,805

Utilities 92,321 85,778 89,672 102,365

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 65,241 55,388 101,116 -

Total Appropriations $ 2,145,463 $ 2,042,643 $ 1,981,135 $ 2,073,574

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $(2,028,204) $(1,874,114) $(1,867,362) $(1,949,080)

Total revenue budgeted for FYE2022 is $10,721 more than the prior year as flower island fees are now billed
in advance of the planting season coupled with an increase in fees for FYE2022.

FYE2022 budgeted expenditures are 4.7% more than prior year. 

155



General Fund: Planning
Principal Responsibilities
This department was re-established towards the end of FYE2017, and split out from the Operations
Department. It is responsible for the planning, design and development of new and existing projects
throughout the Park District. In addition this department seeks out and applies for grants specific to their
projects, specifically OSLAD, PARC, SEDAC, and DCEO grants as they become available.

Employees Funded by Planning - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Director Of Planning 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Park Planner I 1.00 - - -
Park Planner II 1.00 1.00 1.00 -
Planning Coordinator - 1.00 1.00 1.00
Total FTE's 3.00 3.00 3.00 2.00

2020-2021 Accomplishments
5.2 CONTINUE TO DEVELOP A CONSISTENT TRAIL SYSTEM BY CONNECTING PARKS WITH
TRAILS AND FOLLOWING THE CPD TRAIL PLAN
OBJECTIVES:
 Completed the trail connections with the Carle at the Fields Trail and other trails in the area

8.1 COMPLETE CAPITAL PROJECTS IN A TIMELY MANNER AND WITHIN BUDGET
OBJECTIVES:
 Completed Heritage Park improvement project. 

 Complete paths, lights and new playground at Spalding Park  Status – Awarded $347,000 IDNR OSLAD
grant for Spalding Park Improvements.

8.2PLAN AND DEVELOP CAPITAL PROJECTS
OBJECTIVES:
 Completed the BiCentennial Center renovation for CUSR in April 2021.

8.3 MAINTAIN THE VIRGINIA THEATRE FACILITY WHILE PRODUCING QUALITY PROGRAMS
AND EVENTS
OBJECTIVES:
 Completed sound project at Virginia Theatre

2021-22 Goals
See strategic planning document in the statistical section for specific details.

Total FYE2022 expenditures are 37.1% higher than prior year mostly due to contractual. The increase in
contractual services is to fulfill the contracts entered into during FYE2021 for ongoing capital improvement
projects plus an additional amount for unplanned projects that may arise throughout the year.

156



General Fund: Planning

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Operating Expenditures Per Capita $ - $ 1.94 $ 1.68 $ 2.30

General Fund
Department Summary - General Fund: Planning

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 134,704 $ 149,959 $ 109,924 $ 110,000

Fringe Benefits 921 830 406 840

Contractual 38,956 19,317 38,663 93,300

Commodities/Supplies 811 359 122 250

Total Appropriations $ 175,392 $ 170,465 $ 149,115 $ 204,390

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ (175,392) $ (170,465) $ (149,115) $ (204,390)
Total expenditures increased 37.1% from prior year however are more in line with prior years actual.
Expenditures shifted from a full-time employee to contracting more work out in FYE2022.

157



General Fund: Other Programs
Principal Responsibilities
This program offers the Eddie Albert Garden Plots for everyone from the beginning gardener to the
experienced. These plots are available in two sizes with elevated plots provided for participants with
disabilities. Total FYE2022 the overall budget is in line with prior years with no major changes. 

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

Target
FYE2022

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %209.98 %182.08 %170.76 %136.17

158



General Fund: Other Programs

General Fund
Department Summary - General Fund: Other Programs

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 4,775 $ 4,705 $ 4,730 $ 4,800

Appropriations

Contractual $ - $ - $ - $ 400

Commodities/Supplies 154 186 171 525

Utilities 2,120 2,398 2,599 2,600

Total Appropriations $ 2,274 $ 2,584 $ 2,770 $ 3,525
Net of Revenues Over

Appropriations $ 2,501 $ 2,121 $ 1,960 $ 1,275

159



Recreation Administration
Principal Responsibilities
The Recreation Fund is established to provide for the planning, establishing and maintaining of recreational
services for the residents of the Park District. Real estate taxes are levied in this fund to pay the administrative
costs of the recreation programs provided to the public. The Park District attempts to set program and
admission fees at levels that will cover the direct costs of the programs being offered.

Employees Funded by Recreation Administration - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Recreation Administration
Cultural Arts Manager 0.70 0.70 0.70 0.70
Director Of Recreation 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Director of Revenue Facilities - - - 1.00
Total FTE's 1.20 1.20 1.20 2.20

160



Recreation Administration

Recreation Fund
Department Summary - Recreation Administration

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 2,141,365 $ 2,200,525 $ 2,266,600 $ 2,268,900

Special Receipts 31 - 5,760 -

Interest Income 106,159 86,728 9,703 2,400

Total Estimated Revenues $ 2,247,555 $ 2,287,253 $ 2,282,063 $ 2,271,300

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 108,442 $ 150,727 $ 173,117 $ 200,000

Fringe Benefits 148,986 149,631 156,098 170,220

Contractual 104,003 87,574 28,804 64,230

Commodities/Supplies 3,406 2,396 1,129 2,700

Routine/Periodic Maintenance - 17,533 14,301 -

Transfers to Other Funds 1,000,000 400,000 334,200 1,859,548

Total Appropriations $ 1,364,837 $ 807,861 $ 707,649 $ 2,296,698

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ 882,718 $ 1,479,392 $ 1,574,414 $ (25,398)

161



Recreation Fund: Facilities
Principal Responsibilities
The Recreation Fund facilities department accounts for all the expenditures required to maintain the building
for programming, such as staffing, maintenance supplies, contracts, etc.

Employees Funded by Facilities - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Building Service Worker @ LRC 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
Leonhard Recreation Center Facility Coordinator - - 0.4 2.0
Leonhard Recreation Center Facility Manager 1.0 1.0 1.3 1.0
Leonhard Recreation Center Program Coordinator - 1.0 0.1 -
Leonhard Recreation Center Receptionist FT2 1.8 1.6 1.2 0.8
Program Manager - - 0.1 0.2
Total FTE's 3.8 4.6 4.0 5.0

2021-22 Goals
6.3 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Prioritize capital needs for facilities and programming. Implement non-capital improvement

budget.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Measure

Facility Attendance

Leonhard Rec Center 102,944 102,944 71,570 60,000

162



Recreation Fund: Facilities

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Sholem Aquatic Center 71,846 84,883 73,412 -

Dodds Tennis Center 25,422 27,145 21,885 20,000

Douglass Center 21,533 18,308 21,649 15,000

Douglass Annex 12,205 12,327 4,582 5,000

Hays Rec Center 13,108 14,483 8,162 5,000

Memberships

Leonhard Rec Center 2,103 2,107 2,527 2,650

163



Recreation Fund: Facilities
Recreation Fund

Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Facilities

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 132,424 $ 136,876 $ 78,110 $ 140,955

Special Receipts 132,953 140,848 18,475 76,266

Total Estimated Revenues $ 265,377 $ 277,724 $ 96,585 $ 217,221

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 513,861 $ 487,718 $ 418,732 $ 560,057

Fringe Benefits 210 211 158 -

Contractual 49,538 40,447 44,851 41,189

Commodities/Supplies 88,335 99,281 63,514 97,661

Utilities 206,972 197,564 171,748 211,170

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 14,686 4,900 11,246 -

Total Appropriations $ 873,602 $ 830,121 $ 710,249 $ 910,077

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ (608,225) $ (552,397) $ (613,664) $ (692,856)

164



Recreation Fund: Sports Programs
Principal Responsibilities
This department covers the various adult and youth sport programs offered by the Park District, including
youth and adult baseball, softball, sports camps, soccer, basketball, volleyball, tennis and senior sports
programs.

Employees Funded by Sports Programs - Positions and Numbers (FT1 and FT2)

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Adult Sports Coordinator 0.80 0.75 0.28 -
Aquatics & Fitness Manager - - 0.11 0.25
Aquatics/Tennis Coord 0.75 0.75 0.41 -
Douglass Park Program Coordinator 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25
Leonhard Recreation Center Program Coordinator 0.15 0.13 0.07 -
Program Manager - - 0.06 0.13
Sports Manager - - 0.38 1.00
Tennis & Sports Concessions Manager - - 0.34 0.75
Tennis Pro Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Youth Sports Coordinator 1.00 1.00 0.54 -
Total FTE's 3.95 3.88 3.44 3.38

2021-22 Goals
6.4 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Add video fitness related programs at various recreation centers to provide more opportunities

for fitness.
 Create a community-wide health wellness campaign, possibly exploring with local partnerships.

165



Recreation Fund: Sports Programs

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %112.2 %118.2 %80.2 %97.8

Tennis Center Facility Attendance 25,422 27,145 21,885 20,000

Recreation Fund
Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Sports Programs

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 491,693 $ 425,304 $ 202,497 $ 406,323

Contributions/Sponsorships 3,000 3,100 (500) 500

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 6,437 5,002 1,506 6,187

Special Receipts 72,851 92,392 29,409 50,820

Total Estimated Revenues $ 573,981 $ 525,798 $ 232,912 $ 463,830

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 316,697 $ 319,613 $ 244,992 $ 343,945

Fringe Benefits 491 363 435 360

Contractual 82,646 59,379 18,729 56,845

Commodities/Supplies 54,760 40,478 16,550 47,897

Utilities 51,529 25,071 9,681 25,235

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 5,645 - - -

Total Appropriations $ 511,768 $ 444,904 $ 290,387 $ 474,282

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ 62,213 $ 80,894 $ (57,475) $ (10,452)

166



Recreation Fund: Afterschool/Day Camps
Principal Responsibilities
This department accounts for summer day camps and the year-round preschool programs run by the Park
District, including the Leonhard Recreation Center Day Camp and the Douglass Day Camp

Employees Funded by Afterschool/Day Camp - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Douglass Park Program Coordinator 0.55 0.55 0.55 0.55
Leonhard Recreation Center Program Coordinator 0.40 0.50 0.27 -
Total FTE's 0.95 1.05 0.82 0.55

2021-22 Goals
6.1 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Expand and enhance teen programs with input from teens.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %116.1 %93.3 %58.9 %92.2

Revenue is at least 100% of Direct Costs Yes No No No

167



Recreation Fund: Afterschool/Day Camps
Recreation Fund

Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Afterschool/Day Camps

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 476,385 $ 407,613 $ 65,054 $ 299,590

Capital Grants - - 15,097 -

Special Receipts 165 240 - -

Total Estimated Revenues $ 476,550 $ 407,853 $ 80,151 $ 299,590

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 367,858 $ 401,702 $ 129,324 $ 296,930

Contractual 21,671 18,464 714 7,370

Commodities/Supplies 21,024 17,202 6,011 20,728

Total Appropriations $ 410,553 $ 437,368 $ 136,049 $ 325,028

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ 65,997 $ (29,515) $ (55,898) $ (25,438)

168



Recreation Fund: Other Programs
Principal Responsibilities
The Recreation Fund: Other Programs department consists of school’s day out programming, senior
programming at Douglass and Hays facilities, as well as the Sholem Sharks Swim Team.

Employees Funded by Other Programs - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Aquatics & Tennis Mgr - - 0.02 -
Aquatics Coordinator 0.05 0.05 - -
Douglass Adult & Senior Coordinator 0.85 0.85 0.71 0.85
Leonhard Recreation Center Program Coordinator 0.20 0.20 0.11 -
Program Manager - - 0.09 0.20
Total FTE's 1.10 1.10 0.93 1.05

2021-22 Goals
6.1 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Focus on quality over quantity in program offerings to grow participants and efficiency. 

6.2 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Increase cross-training opportunities. Provide more internal training opportunities surrounding

trends.
 Develop a comprehensive training program.

169



Recreation Fund: Other Programs

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %53.8 %49.8 %31.8 %37.3

Recreation Fund
Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Other Programs

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 78,388 $ 61,369 $ 5,680 $ 51,900

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 10 628 - -

Special Receipts 500 1,161 - -

Total Estimated Revenues $ 78,898 $ 63,158 $ 5,680 $ 51,900

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 82,791 $ 73,182 $ 17,499 $ 75,063

Contractual 45,705 36,569 13 48,885

Commodities/Supplies 18,025 16,952 367 15,311

Total Appropriations $ 146,521 $ 126,703 $ 17,879 $ 139,259

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (67,623) $ (63,545) $ (12,199) $ (87,359)

170



Champaign Park District
Principal Responsibilities
Douglass Special Events produces community-wide special events and manages the Park District’s volunteer
program. Responsibilities include Juneteenth Celebration, C-U Days, Nightmare on Grove, Eggs-ploration,
Bunny Brunch, Breakfast with Santa, and other smaller special events throughout the year.

2021-22 Goals
6.1 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Focus on quality over quantity in program offerings to grow participants and efficiency. 

6.2 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Increase cross-training opportunities. Provide more internal training opportunities surrounding

trends.
 Develop a comprehensive training program.

Recreation Fund
Department Summary - Recreation Fund: DCC Special Events

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Contributions/Sponsorships $ - $ 750 $ - $ -

Total Estimated Revenues $ - $ 750 $ - $ -

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 591 $ 3,962 $ 2,728 $ 4,868

Contractual 915 550 - 1,890

Commodities/Supplies 4,204 3,464 948 4,949

Total Appropriations $ 5,710 $ 7,976 $ 3,676 $ 11,707

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (5,710) $ (7,226) $ (3,676) $ (11,707)

171



Recreation Fund: Teen Programs
Principal Responsibilities
Connect the teens in the community to the outdoors and recreation activities and programs. Teen camp is
provided in the Douglass Park area along with assistance from the Community Matters Program. Staff also
offer the TIA (Teens in Action) program and the LIT (Leader in Training) program at the Leonhard Recreation
Center.

Employees Funded by Teen Programs- Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Douglass Adult & Senior Coordinator - - 0.1 0.2
Total FTE's - - 0.1 0.2

Error: All data values are zero. 

172



Recreation Fund: Teen Programs
Recreation Fund

Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Teen Programs

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 3,567 $ 4,165 $ 1,726 $ -

Contractual 745 - - -

Commodities/Supplies 224 32 - -

Total Appropriations $ 4,536 $ 4,197 $ 1,726 $ -

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ (4,536) $ (4,197) $ (1,726) $ -

173



Recreation Fund: Concessions
Principal Responsibilities
Covers the concession operations at Dodds Park, Zahnd Park and Sholem Aquatic Center. The sole revenue
is from concessions sold.

Employees Funded by Concessions - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Adult Sports Coordinator 0.20 0.25 0.09 0.20
Aquatics & Tennis Mgr - - 0.02 -
Aquatics Coordinator 0.05 0.05 - -
Total FTE's 0.25 0.30 0.11 0.20
.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

Target
FYE2022

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %95.92 %90.61 %4.44 %96.15

Revenue is at least 100% of Direct Costs No No No No

174



Recreation Fund: Concessions
Recreation Fund

Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Concessions

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ - $ 239 $ - $ 700

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 121,849 98,371 870 120,512

Total Estimated Revenues $ 121,849 $ 98,610 $ 870 $ 121,212

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 49,037 $ 40,951 $ 14,552 $ 55,264

Contractual 12,885 11,382 1,886 16,348

Commodities/Supplies 62,149 53,597 2,753 51,850

Utilities 2,965 2,901 414 2,600

Total Appropriations $ 127,036 $ 108,831 $ 19,605 $ 126,062

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (5,187) $ (10,221) $ (18,735) $ (4,850)

175



Recreation Fund: Aquatics
Principal Responsibilities
Accounts for the activities at Sholem Aquatic Center. The Sholem Aquatic Center is a family waterpark run by
the Park District. Opened in 2006, Sholem is home to two twisting body slides, a winding tube slide that exits
into a lazy river, a lap lane area, zero depth entry, children's pool, plenty of play features, a full service
concessions area, and grassy lawns with plenty of shaded seating. Sholem is proudly lifeguarded by our
internationally award winning Ellis & Associates certified staff.

Employees Funded by Aquatics - Positions and Numbers 

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Aquatics & Fitness Manager - 0.34 1.00 1.00
Aquatics & Tennis Mgr - 0.33 - -
Aquatics Coordinator 0.90 0.90 - -
Total FTE's 0.90 1.57 1.00 1.00

176



Recreation Fund: Aquatics

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

Target
FYE2022

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %80.96 %79.23 %- %67.50

Meet target of at least 100% of Direct Costs No No No No
Archieve Ellis & Associates International

Aquatic Award Yes Yes N/A Yes

177



Recreation Fund: Aquatics
Recreation Fund

Department Summary - Recreation Fund: Aquatics

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 462,364 $ 387,738 $ - $ 458,618

Special Receipts 19,372 12,245 - 14,100

Total Estimated Revenues $ 481,736 $ 399,983 $ - $ 472,718

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 378,467 $ 307,797 $ 27,794 $ 468,746

Fringe Benefits - - 88 -

Contractual 51,491 40,205 14,949 53,093

Commodities/Supplies 66,775 57,851 3,907 63,775

Utilities 89,851 81,667 36,954 94,750

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 8,410 17,320 - 20,000

Total Appropriations $ 594,994 $ 504,840 $ 83,692 $ 700,364

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (113,258) $ (104,857) $ (83,692) $ (227,646)

178



Museum Administration
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund administration department accounts for all the administrative costs associated with the
fund, including personnel, benefits, contractual services, supplies, etc.

Employees Funded by Administration - Positions and Numbers 

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Cultural Arts Manager 0.30 0.30 0.30 0.30
Director Of Recreation 0.50 0.50 0.50 0.50
Total FTE's 0.80 0.80 0.80 0.80

2021-22 Goals
6.1 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
Focus on quality over quantity in program offerings to grow participants and efficiency.

179



Museum Administration

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Administration

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Property Tax Revenue $ 1,592,476 $ 1,658,608 $ 1,713,908 $ 1,760,400

Special Receipts - - 118 -

Interest Income 71,587 66,189 10,500 1,560

Total Estimated Revenues $ 1,664,063 $ 1,724,797 $ 1,724,526 $ 1,761,960

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 71,878 $ 74,259 $ 83,335 $ 78,000

Fringe Benefits 96,607 99,837 79,335 85,775

Contractual 41,123 37,873 5,930 22,768

Commodities/Supplies 1,921 1,303 97 1,200

Routine/Periodic Maintenance - 9,500 - 24,000

Transfers to Other Funds 350,000 280,000 358,800 -

Total Appropriations $ 561,529 $ 502,772 $ 527,497 $ 211,743
Net of Revenues Over

Appropriations $ 1,102,534 $ 1,222,025 $ 1,197,029 $ 1,550,217

180



Museum Fund: Cultural Arts
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund cultural arts department accounts for Springer Cultural Center which provides a 26-room
multipurpose facility featuring informal performance space, exhibit space, dance studio, fitness room, ceramic
studio, studio space, rehearsal and meeting space. Responsibilities include Art Exhibits, ceramics, dance arts
program, Youth Theatre, music programs, rentals, special interest, visual arts programs and workshops.

Employees Funded by Museum - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Cultural Arts Coordinator 0.8 0.8 0.8 0.8
Dance Arts Director FT2 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0
Douglass Park Program Coordinator - - - -
Youth Theatre Program Director FT2 0.8 0.8 0.8 1.0
Total FTE's 2.4 2.4 2.4 2.8

- - - -

2021-22 Goals
6.1 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
Focus on quality over quantity in program offerings to grow participants and efficiency.

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Fund: Cultural Arts

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 214,442 $ 197,512 $ 62,398 $ 248,133

Contributions/Sponsorships 7,112 4,358 - 3,800

181



Museum Fund: Cultural Arts
Museum Fund

Department Summary - Museum Fund: Cultural Arts

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Special Receipts 10,305 9,034 1,319 11,418

Total Estimated Revenues $ 231,859 $ 210,904 $ 63,717 $ 263,351

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 150,292 $ 156,262 $ 76,978 $ 174,706

Fringe Benefits - - 770 4,000

Contractual 54,177 46,133 19,165 85,757

Commodities/Supplies 19,292 17,930 531 22,259

Utilities 1,712 1,474 1,562 1,775

Total Appropriations $ 225,473 $ 221,799 $ 99,006 $ 288,497

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ 6,386 $ (10,895) $ (35,289) $ (25,146)

182



Museum Fund: Special Events
Principal Responsibilities
Special Events produces community-wide special events and manages the Park District’s volunteer program.
Responsibilities include concerts in the parks, Taste of C-U, Halloween Funfest, Eggstravaganza, Nite Lite
Egg Pursuit, Streetfest, Flannelfest Block Parties, Touch a Truck and other smaller special events throughout
the year. Special events are cancelled through August 2020, possibly later.

Employees Funded by Special Events- Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Special Events & Volunteer Coordinator 1.00 0.80 0.80 1.00
Special Events Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Total FTE's 2.00 1.80 1.80 2.00

2021-22 Goals
6.2 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
Develop a comprehensive training program.

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Fund: Special Events

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 69,733 $ 63,091 $ 2,369 $ 21,975

Contributions/Sponsorships 31,700 40,875 1,000 4,500

183



Museum Fund: Special Events
Museum Fund

Department Summary - Museum Fund: Special Events

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Total Estimated Revenues $ 101,433 $ 103,966 $ 3,369 $ 26,475

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 85,340 $ 90,684 $ 79,089 $ 72,438

Fringe Benefits 844 847 808 850

Contractual 98,412 122,321 5,066 66,425

Commodities/Supplies 23,133 24,666 14,286 19,599

Total Appropriations $ 207,729 $ 238,518 $ 99,249 $ 159,312

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (106,296) $ (134,552) $ (95,880) $ (132,837)

184



Museum Fund: Facilities
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund facilities department accounts for all the expenditures required to maintain the building for
programming, such as staffing, maintenance supplies, contracts, etc. Also includes the pottery studio.

Prairie Farm is a replica of a turn-of-the-century farm complete with barns, farmhouse, pond, pasture and
flower garden. It is open to the general public during the summer months. The farm features traditional farm
animals and a petting zoo. No admission is charged. Prairie Farm is closed for 2020.

Employees Funded by Museum Fund: Facilities- Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Building Service Worker-SRC 1.00 1.00 0.90 1.00
Cultural Arts Coordinator 0.18 0.18 0.18 0.18
Douglass Community Center Receptionist II 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Leonhard Recreation Center Facility Manager - - 0.20 -
Springer Cultural Center Facilities Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Total FTE's 3.18 3.18 3.28 3.18

2021-22 Goals
6.3 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
 Prioritize capital needs for facilities and programming. Implement non-capital improvement budget.

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Fund: Facilities

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

185



Museum Fund: Facilities
Museum Fund

Department Summary - Museum Fund: Facilities

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 41,913 $ 42,930 $ 19,174 $ 53,127

Contributions/Sponsorships 3,235 3,286 967 1,500

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 40 - - 150

Special Receipts 1,299 2,085 - 6,140

Total Estimated Revenues $ 46,487 $ 48,301 $ 20,141 $ 60,917

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 192,400 $ 223,133 $ 27,498 $ 124,228

Fringe Benefits 843 847 - -

Contractual 31,940 28,062 59 9,674

Commodities/Supplies 39,091 37,665 2,779 20,010

Utilities 69,693 50,461 11,018 16,400

Routine/Periodic Maintenance 26,234 - - 6,000

Total Appropriations $ 360,201 $ 340,168 $ 41,354 $ 176,312

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (313,714) $ (291,867) $ (21,213) $ (115,395)

186



Museum Fund: Virginia Theatre
Principal Responsibilities
Virginia Theatre offers a 1,463 seat historic venue for performing arts programs accessible to Champaign,
Urbana and surrounding communities. Responsibilities include community partnerships, concerts, event
coordination, event production, membership campaign, movies, plays, recitals, rentals and The News-Gazette
Film Series. The Virginia Theatre was closed all of FYE2021 with a target reopening in August 2021.

Employees Funded by Virginia Theatre - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Director Of The Virginia Theatre 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
VT Box Office Manager 0.80 0.80 1.00 1.00
VT Front Of House Coordinator 1.00 1.00 - 0.80
VT Sales & Public Relations Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
VT Technical Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Total FTE's 4.80 4.80 4.00 4.80
FYE2021 VT Front of House Coordinator was vacant all of last fiscal year.

2021-22 Goals
7.2 VIRGINIA THEATRE
OBJECTIVES:
Pursue relationships/partnerships with new regional and national event promoters, to increase
diversity and strength in rental programs.
Revise theatre staffing to flatten out structure, minimizing redundancy and adding focus on box
office and administrative work, to support growing rental and house-presented activity while
increasing efforts to recruit advertisers and sponsors.

187



Museum Fund: Virginia Theatre
7.3 VIRGINIA THEARE
OBJECTIVES:
Create a business plan for the operation of the Virginia Theatre.
Develop plans for a revision and enhancement of theatre website, social media engagement, and e-
newsletter services.

8.3 PARK BOARD/LEADERSHIP TEAM
OBJECTIVES:
Reduce the tax support at the Virginia Theatre but maintain current entertainment levels.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenues as a % of Direct Expenditures, goal
is > 75% %69.92 %66.56 %2.04 %64.54

Website Visits - - - -

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Fund: Virginia Theatre

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 724,710 $ 442,536 $ 182 $ 496,550

Contributions/Sponsorships - 5,000 - 5,000

Merchandise/Concessions Revenue 119,488 83,191 2,255 83,328

Special Receipts 7,141 23,441 4,382 7,500

Interest Income 176 16 - 175

Total Estimated Revenues $ 851,515 $ 554,184 $ 6,819 $ 592,553

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 415,934 $ 375,927 $ 217,075 $ 349,208

Fringe Benefits 3,213 3,225 3,173 3,620

Contractual 638,816 340,586 43,445 430,423

Commodities/Supplies 78,000 47,776 5,077 50,761

Utilities 81,813 65,045 56,644 65,300

Routine/Periodic Maintenance - - 8,500 18,778

Total Appropriations $ 1,217,776 $ 832,559 $ 333,914 $ 918,090

Net of Revenues Under Appropriations $ (366,261) $ (278,375) $ (327,095) $ (325,537)

188



Museum Fund: Virginia Theatre

189



Museum Fund: Afterschool/Day Camp/Early Childhood
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund includes preschool activities such as Art Smart Kids and Creative Kids day camps.

Employees Funded  - Positions and Numbers

Position
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Preschool Supervisor FT2 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00
Total FTE's 0.75 0.75 0.75 1.00

2021-22 Goals
6.2 RECREATION
OBJECTIVES:
Develop a comprehensive training program. 

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenues as a % of Direct Cost %133.8 %149.1 %127.9 %117.9

Revenue is at least 100% of Direct Costs Yes Yes Yes Yes

190



Museum Fund: Afterschool/Day Camp/Early Childhood
Museum Fund

Department Summary - Museum Fund: Afterschool/Day Camp/Early Childhood

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Charge for Service Revenue $ 98,129 $ 91,039 $ 16,146 $ 67,166

Total Estimated Revenues $ 98,129 $ 91,039 $ 16,146 $ 67,166

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 67,621 $ 55,535 $ 11,966 $ 51,377

Contractual 3,091 2,964 25 3,050

Commodities/Supplies 2,623 2,575 630 2,563

Total Appropriations $ 73,335 $ 61,074 $ 12,621 $ 56,990
Net of Revenues Over

Appropriations $ 24,794 $ 29,965 $ 3,525 $ 10,176

191



Museum Fund: Other Programs
Principal Responsibilities
The Museum Fund: Other Programs department is the Showmobile. Additional expenditures includes $1,500
to purchase gel lights and to replace broken equipment, including new sound board, speaker stands, and
speakers.

Performance Indicators
FYE2019

Actual
FYE2020

Actual
FYE2021
Projected

FYE2022
Budget

Revenue as a % of Direct Expenditures %121.9 %215.2 %61.8 %200.0

Revenue is at least 100% of Direct Costs Yes Yes No Yes

Museum Fund
Department Summary - Museum Fund: Other Programs

FYE2019 FYE2020
Projected
FYE2021

Budget
FYE2022

Estimated Revenues

Special Receipts $ 11,465 $ 13,205 $ 880 $ 10,000

Appropriations

Salaries and Wages $ 6,385 $ 5,908 $ 1,424 $ 5,000

Commodities/Supplies 3,019 229 - -

Total Appropriations $ 9,404 $ 6,137 $ 1,424 $ 5,000

Net of Revenues Over (Under) Appropriations $ 2,061 $ 7,068 $ (544) $ 5,000

192



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Park District Profile

Organization Date Organized in 1911, the Park District was established as a separate unit
of local government in 1955 by referendum.

Government Type Five elected Commissioners serve as the Board of Commissioners for
the Park District. Commissioners are elected to serve six-year terms and
receive no compensation.

Officers The Commissioners elect a President and Vice President, appoint a
Treasurer, Board Secretary and Assistant Secretary.

Location Park District is located in East Central Illinois.

Boundaries The boundaries of the Park District are nearly coterminous with the City
of Champaign and encompass approximately 25 square miles.

Population The Park District's population per the 2010 census is 81,055, and
currently estimated as of July, 2020 at 88,909. The Park District also
serves the University of Illinois population and the City of Urbana.

Assessed Value The equalized assessed valuation (EAV) for real estate located within
Park District boundaries estimated for RY2020 is 1,949,867,358.

Tax Rate The property tax rate for 2021 payable in 2022 is estimated to be 0.7193
per $100 of EAV, same rate as the prior year.

Current Budget The Park District's total budget for FYE2022 is $29,032,384 (including
transfers). The fiscal year begins May 1 and ends April 30.

Park Resources The Park District maintains 63 parks comprised of community parks,
neighborhood parks, mini parks and 30 walking/bike trails totaling more
than 691 acres. There are 34 miles of path and trails. Recreational
facilities include one aquatic center with three water slides, two
recreation centers with gymnasiums, two senior centers, the Springer
Cultural Arts Center, the Virginia Theatre (a 1463 seat auditorium), a
six-court indoor tennis facility, 24 outdoor tennis courts, 25 softball and
baseball fields, 22 soccer fields, six volleyball courts, 33 outdoor
playgrounds, two skate parks, a children’s petting zoo, a dog park, 20
picnic shelters, four small lakes for fishing, and shared gymnasium
space at two elementary schools. 

Program Services The Park District offers over 1,400 programs and activities per year
including but not limited to: athletics, group fitness, fitness events,
music, dance, drama, day camps, cultural and performing arts,
preschool and youth programs, swimming, tennis, senior programs,
special events and trips.

Staff The Park District has an appointed executive director responsible for the
administration of the Park District. The Park District Board of
Commissioners has authorized 80 full-time I staff (more than 37
hours/week). In addition, the Park District employs an average of 580
additional part-time seasonal and temporary workers in any given year.

193



SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Affiliations The Park District is affiliated with the National Recreation and Park
Association (NRPA), the Illinois Association of Park Districts (IAPD) and
the Illinois Park and Recreation Association (IPRA).

Awards The National Gold Medal Award for Excellence in Parks and Recreation
was received in 1979, 1990 and 1998. The Champaign-Urbana Special
Recreation Association, which is administered by the Park District, won
the Gold Medal for its classification in 2000.

The Park District earned the Distinguished Agency Award and
designation in 1999 and was re-certified in 2006, 2011 and 2018.

The Park District has received the Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting for twenty-five consecutive years
(1995-2020). The Park District also received the Distinguished Budget
Presentation Award for FYE2021, which marks the fourteenth
consecutive year.

For the past several years, the Park District’s aquatics staff has earned
Ellis & Associates Platinum and Gold International Aquatic Safety
Awards – these awards recognize the top performing lifeguard staffs in
the world.

Contact Information Champaign Park District
706 Kenwood Road
Champaign, IL 61821
Phone:  217-398-2550
Fax:  217-355-8421
Website:  www.champaignparks.com

194



SOCIAL MEDIA:

Facebook https://www.facebook.com/ChampaignParkDist

Twitter https://twitter.com/champark

Instagram https://instagram.com/champaignparkdist/

Pinterest https://www.pinterest.com/champark/

YouTube https://www.youtube.com/user/ChampaignParkDist

195



Assessed Valuation Comparisons

 RY 2015 RY 2016 RY 2017 RY 2018 RY 2019 RY 2020
Farm 740,150 763,690 837,790 841,840 1,002,800 1,055,900
Industrial 12,791,620 13,103,690 13,952,270 14,018,940 14,372,090 14,601,770
Commercial 680,053,846 778,470,399 842,786,406 865,720,994 918,888,016 941,817,753
Residential 856,759,228 882,988,622 915,894,920 951,343,567 967,542,759 991,453,168
Railroad 992,773 942,423 1,024,136 1,185,438 1,009,588 938,767
TOTAL 1,551,337,617 1,676,268,824 1,774,495,522 1,833,110,779 1,902,815,253 1,949,867,358

196



Tax Rates, Levies, and Collections

Historical Tax EAV, Rates, and Collections

Year
Assessed
Valuation Tax Rate Taxes Collected

1999 738,490,572 0.6263 4,672,833
2000 804,839,227 0.6395 5,203,752
2001 863,909,695 0.6627 5,766,874
2002 918,220,166 0.6754 6,244,301
2003 974,471,183 0.6843 6,707,950
2004 1,031,948,826 0.6782 6,981,975
2005 1,191,143,418 0.6597 8,039,809
2006 1,325,034,312 0.6414 8,662,150
2007 1,453,398,642 0.6190 8,996,538
2008 1,547,895,455 0.6157 9,530,392
2009 1,545,794,493 0.6300 9,738,505
2010 1,550,079,751 0.6529 10,120,470
2011 1,533,547,237 0.6789 10,411,252
2012 1,529,262,864 0.7088 10,839,415
2013 1,503,718,963 0.7645 11,495,931
2014 1,527,189,530 0.7264 11,063,851
2015 1,551,337,617 0.7443 11,531,605
2016 1,676,268,824 0.7149 11,960,653
2017 1,774,495,522 0.7149 12,581,418
2018 1,833,110,779 0.7149 13,044,398
2019 1,902,815,253 0.7193 13,385,617
2020 1,949,867,358 0.7193 -

Current Year Tax Rate Detail
Fund Rate Assessed Valuation Tax Extension Rate Limit
General 0.3440 1,949,867,358 $ 6,707,544 0.3500
Bond Amortization 0.0623 1,949,867,358 1,214,767 -
IMRF 0.0154 1,949,867,358 300,280 -
Police 0.0013 1,949,867,358 25,348 0.0250
Audit 0.0013 1,949,867,358 25,348 0.0050
Liability Insurance 0.0180 1,949,867,358 350,976 -
Social Security 0.0205 1,949,867,358 399,723 -
Museum 0.0924 1,949,867,358 1,801,677 0.1500
Recreation 0.0909 1,949,867,358 2,322,292 0.3700
Paving and Lighting 0.0050 1,949,867,358 97,493 0.0050
Special and Recreation 0.0400 1,949,867,358 779,947 0.0400
Total 0.7193 $ 14,025,395

197



Department Position Dates of Employment CPD Wages as of 7/1/2020 1/1/2021

Aquatics
Pool Manager  April � Sept* 12.00$                                                13.50$                                                         

Assistant Pool Manager  April � Sept* 11.50$                                                12.50$                                                         

Lifeguard May � Sept 10.50$                                                11.50$                                                         

Swim Lession Manager May � Sept 11.50$                                                12.50$                                                         

Asssistant Swim Lesson Manager May � Sept 10.50$                                                11.50$                                                         

Swim Lesson Instructor June � Aug 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Swim Team Coach May � July 12.00$                                                13�20 (DOQ)

Swim Team Assistant Coach May � July 10.50$                                                11.50$                                                         

Concession Manager   Mar � Sept* 11.50$                                                12.50$                                                         

Assistant Concession Manager May�Sept 10.50$                                                11.50$                                                         

Concession Worker  May � Sept 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Front Desk Manager May�Sept 11.50$                                                12.50$                                                         

Front Desk Assistant Manager May�Sept 10.50$                                                11.50$                                                         

Front Desk Worker May � Sept 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

     Summer Programs
*Director May � Aug 12.00$                                                13.00$                                                         

*Assistant Director May � Aug 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Day Camp Leader May � Aug 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Bus Driver May � Aug $   20.00 � 25.00  $  20.00 � 25.00

* Plus $1 for teaching certificate

Youth Theatre
Assistant Director Ongoing 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Choreographer Ongoing 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Music Director Ongoing 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Operations
Flower Worker I April � Nov* 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Flower Worker II April � Nov 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Natural Areas I April � Nov 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Natural Areas II April � Nov 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Operations Laborer I April � Nov 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Operaions Laborer II April � Nov 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Sports Field Worker I April � Nov 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Sports Field Worker II April � Nov 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Prairie Farm
Director April � Sept 12.00$                                                13.00$                                                         

Assistant Director � animal care April � Sept 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         
Assistant Director � children's 

programming April � Sept 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Leader May � Sept 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Special Events
Special Events Assistant Director Mar � Aug 12.00$                                                13.00$                                                         

Driver (Showmobile/Bus) Mar � Nov $20.00�30.00 $21.00�31.00

Inflatables Worker Mar � Nov 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

CUSR

Program Director May � Aug                                                                         13.00                                                                          14.00 

Day Camp Assistant Director May � Aug                                                                         11.25                                                                          12.25 

*Day Camp Leader May � Aug                                                                         10.25                                                                          11.25 

198



Inclusion/Program Specialist Year Round                                                                         14.00                                                                          15.00 

*Inclusion Assistant May � Aug                                                                         10.25                                                                          11.25 

*Sports and Community Support Staff May � Aug                                                                         10.25                                                                          11.25 

Program Leader May � Aug                                                                         13.00                                                                          14.00 

Bus/Van Driver Year Round 15.00 �20.00 15.00�20.00

* Plus $1 for teaching certificate

Sports
Youth Sports Instructor Ongoing 10.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Sports Site Supervisor Ongoing 10.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Sports Site Worker Ongoing New Position $11.50

Sports Concessions Worker April � Oct 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Youth Soccer Official April � May and Sept � Oct

Youth Trainee (under 18): 

$14/game

Adult Trainee (18+): $18/game

U8/10 � Unlicensed: $20/game 

 U8/10 � Licensed: $30/game

U12/14 � Unlicensed: $25/game

U12/14 � Licensed: $35/game

Youth Trainee (under 18): $14/game

Adult Trainee (18+): $18/game

U8/10 � Unlicensed: $20/game 

 U8/10 � Licensed: $30/game

U12/14 � Unlicensed: $25/game

U12/14 � Licensed: $35/game

Youth Softball Official May � July

Unlicensed: $45/game 

Licensed: $55/game

Youth Trainee (under 18): $30/game

Adult Trainee (18+): $40/game  

Unlicensed: $45/game 

Licensed: $55/game

Youth Hoops Official Jan � Mar

Youth Trainee:  $15/game

Adult Trainee: $18/game

Unlicensed: Cross Court �

$30/game, Full Court � $20 

Licensed: Cross Court �$35/game, 

Full Court � $30

Youth Trainee:  $15/game

Adult Trainee: $18/game

Unlicensed: Cross Court �$30/game, 

Full Court � $20 

Licensed: Cross Court �$35/game, 

Full Court � $30

Adult Softball Official Apr �Oct Licensed: $27/game Licensed: $27/game

Adult Basketball Official Nov � Mar

Trainee: $20/game

Unlicensed: $25/game

Licensed: $35/game

Unlicensed: $25/game

Licensed: $35/game

Adult Volleyball Official Sept � April

Trainee: $17/game

Unlicensed: $20 /game

Licensed: $25/game

Trainee: $17/game

Unlicensed: $20 /game

Licensed: $25/game

Afterschool

Afterschool Program Director Part�time 12.00$                                                13.00$                                                         

Afterschool Assistant Director Part�time 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Afterschool LeaderLeader Part�time 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

School Out Leader Part�Time $10.00 11.00$                                                         

Cultural Arts

Dance Instructor Part�time $14.00 to $26.00 (DOQ) $15.00 to $27.00 (DOQ)

Special Interest Instructor Part�time

Paid on per class basis, a 

percentage of class fees

Paid on per class basis, a percentage of 

class fees

Pottery Instructor Part�time $14.00 to $22.00 (DOQ) $15.00 to $23.00 (DOQ)

Pottery Supervisor Part�time $17.00 to $25.00 (DOQ) $18.00 to $26.00 (DOQ)

199



Facilities

Building Openers Part�time 10.75$                                                11.75$                                                         

Receptionist Part�time 10.75$                                                12.00$                                                         

Building Service Worker Part�time 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Recreation Leaders/Site Supervisors Part�time 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Teen Recreation Leader Part�time 10.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Facility Supervisor Part�time 11.00$                                                12.50$                                                         

Marketing
Graphic Artists (formerly Marketing 

Assistant) Part�time $15.00 to $23.00 (DOQ) $16.00 to $24.00 (DOQ)

Operations

Horticulture I Part�time 13.00$                                                14.00$                                                         

Horticulture II Part�time 14.00$                                                15.00$                                                         

Natural Areas Worker I Part�time 13.00$                                                14.00$                                                         

Natural Areas Worker II Part�time 14.00$                                                15.00$                                                         

Operations Worker I Part�time 14.00$                                                14.00$                                                         

Operations Worker II Part�time 14.00$                                                15.00$                                                         

Sports Field Worker I Part�time 13.00$                                                14.00$                                                         

Sports Field Worker II Part�time 14.00$                                                15.00$                                                         

Preschool

Preschool Instructor Part�time 11.00$                                                12.00$                                                         

Virginia Theatre

Concessions Worker Part�time 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Box Office Recptionist Part�time 11.25$                                                12.25$                                                         

 Senior Program

Senior Recreation Leader Part�time 12.00$                                                13.00$                                                         

Sports

Paid on a per game rate: Paid on a per game rate: 

$8/game for youth and adult 

soccer $8/game for youth and adult soccer
$7/game for youth and adult 

basketball

$7/game for youth and adult 

basketball
$3/game for youth and adult 

softball

$3.50/game for youth and adult 

softball

$6/game for youth and adult 

volleyball $7/game for youth and adult volleyball

Group Fitness Instructor Part�time $15.00 to 30.00 $16.00 to 31.00

Birthday Party Leader Part�time 10.00$                                                11.00$                                                         

Tennis Private Lesson Instructor Part�time New Position $15.00 � $31.00 (DOQ)

Tennis Instructor Part�time $11.00�26.00 $12.00�27.00 (DOQ)

Technology

Technology Specialist Part�time $16.00�26.00 (DOQ) $17.00�27.00 (DOQ)

Human Resources Clerk Part�time 10.25$                                                11.25$                                                         

Sports Assignor Part�time

200



201



 
 

POSITION 
CLASSIFICATION    

FY19�20/20�
21 
STARTING 
WAGE 
RANGE 

FY19�20/20�
21 WAGE 
MAXIMUM 

FY21�22 
STARTING 
WAGE 
RANGE 

FY21�22      
WAGE 
MAXIMUM 

CLASSIFICATION I         

 $12.50/hour 
($26,000)  

$20.71/hour 
($43,077) 

$13.50/hour 
($28,080)  

$21.71/hour 
($45,219) 

Building Service Worker 
 
Dance Arts Director  

TO 
$15.00/hour 

($31,200) 

TO 
 $17.61/hour 

($36,629) 

Grounds Worker I 
 

  

Horticulture Worker I     

Maintenance Worker I     

Receptionist I        

Special Projects Worker I     

Sports Field Worker I     

Trash/Recycling Worker      
      
          

CLASSIFICATION II         

Accounting and 
Procurement Clerk 

$13.31/hour 
($27,693)  

$21.52/hour 
($44,767) 

$14.37/hour 
($29,900)  

$23.24/hour 
($48,343) 

Senior Coordinator TO TO  

Administrative Assistant 
$15.71/hour 
($32,683) 

 $18.80/hour 
($39,104) 

Facility Coordinator I 
 
Grounds Worker II 

    

Horticulture Worker II 
    

Maintenance Worker II 

Preschool Supervisor 

    

Receptionist II     

Special Projects Worker II     

Sports Field Worker II     

Youth Theatre Director     

          
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

202



 
 

     
     
     

CLASSIFICATION III         
Accounts Payable 
Coordinator 

$16.13/hour 
($33,554)   

$26.09/hour 
($54,267) 

$17.42/hour 
($36,234)   

$28.18/hour 
($58,609) 

Box Office Manager  TO TO  

 
Building Service Worker 
 Supervisor 
 
Facility Coordinator II  

$19.36/hour 
($40,269) 

 $22.80/hour 
($47,424) 

 
Cultural Arts Coordinator 
  

    

CUSR Adult Program 
Coordinator  

    

CUSR Athletics & 
Volunteer Coordinator  

    

CUSR Inclusion 
Coordinator  

    

Douglass Park Program 
Coordinator 

    

Front�of�House 
Coordinator 

    

Graphic Designer     

Grounds Specialist     

Horticulture Specialist     

Maintenance Specialist     

Marketing Coordinator         

Natural Areas Specialist  
        

Park Planner I  
        

Special Events/Volunteer 
Coordinator 

        

Special Project Specialist         

Sports Coordinator         

Sports Field Foreman         

Trade Specialist         

          
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

203



 
 

     
     

CLASSIFICATION IV         

Aquatics Manager 
$18.14/hour 

($37,738) 

$29.34/hour 
($61,035) 

$19.59/hour 
($40,750) 

$31.69/hour 
($65,909) 

Cultural Arts Manager TO TO  

CUSR Program Manager 
$21.76/hour 

($45,261) 
$25.64/hour 

($53,331) 

Douglass Park Manager     

     

Horticulture Specialist II 
 
Grounds Specialist II  

    

Human Resources 
Manager 

    

Park Planner II     

Revenue Program Manager     

 
Special Events/Volunteer 
Manager 

    

Sports Manager     

Tennis Center Manager  
    

Trade Specialists II   
    

VT Sales & Public 
Relations Manager 

    

VT Technical Manager     

CLASSIFICATION V 
(Salaried)         

Development Director 
$20.73/hour 
($43,118)  

$33.52/hour 
($69,722) 

$46,567  $75,300 

Grounds Supervisor TO TO  

Horticulture Supervisor 
$24.87/hour 
($51,733) 

 $60,933 

Head Tennis Professional  

Leonhard Recreation 
Center Manager 

    

Maintenance Supervisor 
    

Martens Center Manager 
    

Risk Manager 
    

Special Projects 
Supervisor 

    

     
          

DEPARTMENT 
DIRECTORS AND 

ASSISTANT DIRECTORS Market  Market  Market  Market  
          

204



Statistical Information1

Total Population 88,909

Population Breakdown
Race and Hispanic Origin
White, not Hispanic %64.2
Black or African American %18.6
Asian %13.3
American Indian & Alaska Native %0.1
Native Hawaiian & Other Pacific Islander %0.0
Two or more races %2.7
Hispanic or Latino %6.3

Age and Sex
Male %51.4
Female %48.6
Persons under 18 %16.5
Persons 65 and over %9.9
Persons under 5 %5.3

Income and Poverty (2012 - 2016)
Persons below Poverty Level %25.0
Median Household Income $48,415

Education
High School graduate or higher, % of persons age 25+ %94.8
Bachelor's degree or higher, % of persons age 25+ %49.5

Housing (2012 - 2016)
Owner-Occupied Housing Unit Rate %42.6
Median Value of owner occupied housing units $161,800
Median Gross Rent $952

Principal Taxpayers2

Taxpayer Type of Business % of EAV
Champaign Market Place, LLC Retail (Shopping Center) %1.09
Campus Property Management Housing %1.74
Bankier Family Developer %0.67
The Carle Foundation Hospital %0.81
Kraft Heinz Foods Co. Manufacturer %0.63
Shapland Realty, LLC Developer %0.62
Green Street Realty Housing %1.93
GEM Realty Capital Inc. Developer %0.74
Edward Rose Development Co. Developer %0.63
Campus Acquisitions 308 Green LLC Developer %0.76

_________
1Source: U.S. Census Bureau Quick Facts report for City of Champaign, Illinois located
www.census.gov
2Source: Champaign County Treasurer, Champaign, Illinois

205



Employer and Employment Information3

Major Area Employers Business or Product
# of

Employees
University of Illinois Post-Secondary Education 14,502
Carle Clinic Association & Carle Foundation Hospital Healthcare 6,921
Community Unit School District No. 4 Education 1,870
Parkland Community College District No. 505 Post-Secondary Education 1,588
Kraft Heinz Food Product Manufacturing 925
Christie Clinic Association Health Care 916
Presence Health / OSF Healthcare Healthcare 774
Plastipak Manufacturing 650
City of Champaign Government 598
Busey Bank Banking 461

Percent

Employment by Industry
Education, Health and Social Services %41.0
Entertainment, Recreation, Accommodation and

Food Services %11.70
Retail and Wholesale Trade %10.20
Professional, Management and Administrative %9.20
Manufacturing %6.1
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate, Public

Administration %5.70
Communications and Information %2.70
Construction %1.70
Other %11.70

Employment by Occupation
Management and Professional %46.40
Sales and Office Occupations %21.60
Service Occupations %19.60
Product, Transportation and Material Moving %8.90
Natural Resources Construction Maintenance %3.50

__________
1Source: Economic Development Corporation and Bureau of Labor Statistics



207



208



Ordinance #652

BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE
For the Year Ended 2022

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE COMBINED
ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION OF

FUNDS FOR THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY,ILLINOIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING ON THE
FIRST (1st) DAY OF MAY 2021, AND ENDING ON THE THIRTIETH DAY (30th) OF APRIL 2022

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF PARK COMMISSIONERS OF THE CHAMPAIGN PARK
DISTRICT, CHAMPAIGN COUNTY, ILLINOIS:

SECTION 1. It is hereby found and determined:

(a) This Board has heretofore caused to be prepared a combined Annual Budget and
Appropriation in tentative form, which Ordinance will be conveniently available for public
inspection for at least 30 days prior to final action thereon; and

(b) A public hearing will be held at the Bresnan Meeting Center, 706 Kenwood Road,
Champaign, Illinois, on the 28th day of July 2021 on said Ordinance, notice of said
hearing having been given by publication in the Champaign News Gazette, being a
newspaper published within the District, at least one week prior to such hearing; and

(c) That all other legal requirements for the adoption of the Annual Budget and
Appropriation of this Park District for the fiscal year beginning May 1, 2021 and ending
April 30, 2022 have heretofore been performed.

Section 2. The following sums of money, or so much thereof as may be authorized by law for the
following objects and purposes, be and the same are hereby budgeted and appropriated for the
fiscal year beginning the first (1st) day of May 2021 and ending the thirtieth (30th) day of April 2022.

Each of said sums of money and the aggregate thereof are deemed necessary by this Board to
defray the necessary expenses and liabilities of this District during the fiscal year beginning May 1,
2021 and ending April 30, 2022 for the respective purposes set forth.

All unexpended balances of the appropriations for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2021 and prior
years are hereby specifically re-appropriated for the same general purposes for which they were
originally made and may be expended in making up any insufficiency of any other items provided in
this appropriation ordinance, in making this appropriated, shall constitute the general corporate fund
and shall first be placed to credit of such fund.

Section 3. The following determinations have been made and are hereby made a part of the
aforesaid budget:

An estimate of the cash on hand at the beginning of the fiscal year is expected to be
$30,781,369.

An estimate of the cash expected to be received during the fiscal year from all sources is
$25,713,022.

An estimate of the expenditures and transfers contemplated for the fiscal year is $29,032,384.

An estimate of the cash expected to be on hand at the end of the first year is $27,462,007.

An estimate of the amount of taxes to be received during the fiscal year is $13,696,200.

Section 4. The receipts and revenues of the Champaign Park District derived from sources other

209



Ordinance #652

BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE
For the Year Ended 2022

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE COMBINED
ANNUAL BUDGET AND APPROPRIATION OF

FUNDS FOR THE CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
CHAMPAIGN COUNTY,ILLINOIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING ON THE
FIRST (1st) DAY OF MAY 2021, AND ENDING ON THE THIRTIETH DAY (30th) OF APRIL 2022

than taxation and not specifically appropriated, and all unexpended balances from the preceding
fiscal year not required for the purposes for which they were appropriated and levied, shall constitute
the General Corporate Fund and shall first be placed to credit of such fund.

Section 5. All ordinances or parts of ordinances conflicting with any of the provisions of this
ordinance be, and the same, are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. If any item or portion
thereof of this budget and appropriation ordinance is for any reason held invalid, such decision shall
not affect the validity of the remaining portion of such items or the remaining portion of this
ordinance.

Section 6. This ordinance shall be full force and effective immediately upon its passage.

Passed this 28th day of July 2021.

AYES:

NAYS:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

[SEAL]

CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT

By

______________________________
Kevin Miller, Board President

ATTEST:

______________________________
Jarrod Scheunemann, Board Secretary

210



Ordinance No. 652
Budget & Appropriations Totals by Fund

May 1,2021 through April 30, 2022

2021-22
Fund Description Final Budget

01 General $ 5,486,844 $ 5,895,843

02 Recreation 5,042,381 5,423,483

03 Museum 1,807,144 1,928,013

04 Liability Insurance 340,032 374,035

06 IMRF FUND 230,000 253,000

08 Audit Fund 26,510 29,161

09 Paving And Lighting Fund 71,000 78,100

12 Special Donations Fund 55,196 60,716

14 Social Security Fund 395,000 434,500

15 Special Recreation Fund 1,388,465 1,527,150

16 Capital Improvements Fund 2,871,576 3,158,734

19 Police Protection 30,000 33,000

21 Bond Amortization Fund 1,187,200 1,305,920

22 Bond Proceeds Fund 1,913,536 2,056,890

24 Land Acquisition Fund - 750,000

25 Park Development Fund 658,000 723,800

26 Trails And Pathways Fund 50,000 55,000

27 Martens Center Capital Fund 7,479,500 8,227,450

Appropriations - All Funds $ 29,032,384 $ 32,314,795

211



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

Fund 01 - GENERAL

Salaries and Wages
70201 Full-Time Salaries And Wages 2,085,160 2,168,566
70202 Part-Time Seasonal Wages 231,880 241,155
Salaries and Wages 2,317,040 2,409,721

Fringe Benefits
53132 Dental Insurance 12,210 13,431
53133 Medical Health Insurance 335,000 368,500
53134 Life Insurance 4,800 5,280
53137 Employee Assistance Program 1,526 1,679
83003 Allowances/Reimbursements 46,200 50,820
Fringe Benefits 399,736 439,710

Contractual
54201 Postage And Mailing 3,753 4,128
54202 Printing And Duplicating 5,430 5,973
54204 Staff Meetings 150 165
54205 Legal Publications/Notices 5,728 6,301
54206 Advertising/Publicity 19,483 21,431
54207 Staff Training 10,300 11,330
54208 Memberships, Dues And Fees 16,939 18,633
54209 Conference And Travel 15,300 16,830
54210 Board Expense 4,500 4,950
54212 Attorney Fees 125,000 137,500
54214 Architect And Engineering Fees 20,000 22,000
54215 Professional Fees 110,180 121,198
54234 Landfill Fees 30,050 33,055
54236 Auto Allowance 84 92
54241 Vehicle Repair 12,500 13,750
54242 Equipment Repair 8,100 8,910
54245 Building Repair 5,600 6,160
54250 Equipment Rental 13,800 15,180
54253 Pest Control 1,100 1,210
54254 Service Contracts 41,960 46,156
54255 License And Fees 23,760 26,136
54260 Service Contracts-Facilities 2,840 3,124
54261 Service Contracts-Grounds 38,000 41,800
54263 Contractual Mowing 165,000 181,500
54264 Cell Phone Expense 8,500 9,350
54265 Subscriptions 1,115 1,227
54270 Personnel Costs 36,541 40,195
54275 Health And Wellness 2,547 2,802
54280 Other Contractual Services 12,500 13,492
54291 Park And Recreation Excellence 1,500 1,628
59412 Property/Sales Tax 284 289
59414 Credit Card Fees 800 903
Contractual 743,344 817,398

Commodities/Supplies

212



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

55301 Office Supplies 8,000 8,800
55302 Envelopes And Stationary 800 880
55303 Duplicating Supplies 1,300 1,430
55304 Checks And Bank Supplies 1,400 1,540
55305 Photographic Supplies 105 116
55307 Books And Manuscripts 300 330
55308 First Aid/Medical Supplies 4,500 4,950
55309 Safety Supplies 8,000 8,800
55315 Staff Uniforms 12,769 14,046
55316 Participant Uniforms 275 303
55320 Building Maintenance Supplies 18,200 20,020
55321 Landscape Supplies 22,425 24,668
55322 Cleaning /Janitorial Supplies 5,130 5,643
55323 Playground Maintenance Supplies 5,500 6,050
55324 Prescribed Burn Supplies 500 550
55325 Equipment And Tools 15,500 16,665
55326 Shop Equipment And Supplies 7,000 7,700
55327 Vehicle/Equipment Repair Parts 26,000 28,600
55328 Amenity Maintenance Supplies 5,300 5,830
55329 Office/ Equipment Value <$10000 600 660
55330 Gas,Fuel,Grease And Oil 48,900 53,790
55331 Chemicals 11,400 12,540
55332 Paints 500 550
55333 Plant Materials 137,200 150,920
55348 Flowers And Cards 300 330
55349 Plaques, Awards And Prizes 2,096 2,306
55350 Recreation/Program Supplies 2,828 3,111
55352 Fish Restocking 1,500 1,650
55354 Food Supplies 1,456 1,602
Commodities/Supplies 349,784 384,380

Utilities
56230 Sanitary Fees And Charges 10,000 11,000
56231 Gas And Electricity 49,600 54,560
56232 Water 59,700 65,670
56233 Telecomm Expenditures 36,140 39,754
Utilities 155,440 170,984

Routine/Periodic Maintenance
58001 Periodic Maintenance 5,500 6,050
58002 Routine Maintenance 216,000 237,600
Routine/Periodic

Maintenance 221,500 243,650

Transfers to Other Funds
59409 Transfers To Other Funds 1,300,000 1,430,000

Appropriations - Fund 01 5,486,844 5,895,843

Fund 02 - RECREATION

213



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

Salaries and Wages
70201 Full-Time Salaries And Wages 887,346 909,530
70202 Part-Time Seasonal Wages 1,131,731 1,188,318
Salaries and Wages 2,019,077 2,097,848

Fringe Benefits
53132 Dental Insurance 4,900 5,390
53133 Medical Health Insurance 145,000 159,500
53134 Life Insurance 1,720 1,892
53137 Employee Assistance Program 600 660
83003 Allowances/Reimbursements 18,360 20,196
Fringe Benefits 170,580 187,638

Contractual
54201 Postage And Mailing Expense 2,525 2,778
54202 Printing And Duplicating 3,863 4,249
54204 Staff Meetings 30 33
54205 Legal Publications/notices 200 220
54206 Advertising/Publicity 7,489 8,238
54207 Staff Training 15,736 17,310
54208 Memberships, Dues And Fees 12,411 13,652
54209 Conference And Travel 6,485 7,134
54234 Landfill Fees 1,575 1,733
54236 Auto Allowance 640 704
54241 Vehicle Repair 2,000 2,200
54242 Equipment Repair 13,768 15,145
54245 Building Repair 24,349 26,784
54250 Equipment Rental 3,269 3,596
54251 Rental Facilities 5,845 6,430
54253 Pest Control 3,190 3,509
54254 Service Contracts 11,410 12,551
54255 License And Fees 1,974 2,171
54260 Service Contracts-Facilities 36,798 40,478
54261 Service Contracts-Grounds 2,550 2,805
54264 Cell Phone Expense 3,664 4,030
54265 Subscriptions 460 506
54270 Personnel Costs 20,500 22,550
54280 Other Contractual Services 1,504 1,654
54281 Contractual Personnel 23,013 25,314
54282 Intern Stipend 3,600 3,960
54285 Contractual Entertainment 1,200 1,320
54299 Field/Special Trips 41,328 45,461
59412 Property/Sales Tax 12,574 13,831
59414 Credit Card Fees 26,100 28,710
Contractual 290,050 319,056

Commodities/Supplies
55301 Office Supplies 5,150 5,665
55303 Duplicating Supplies 1,960 2,156
55307 Books And Manuscripts 702 772
55308 First Aid Supplies 5,719 6,291
214



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

55315 Staff Uniforms 3,413 3,754
55316 Participant Uniforms 11,683 12,851
55320 Building Maintenance Supplies 33,000 36,300
55321 Landscape Supplies 10,000 11,000
55322 Cleaning /janitorial Supplies 16,377 18,015
55325 Equipment And Tools 2,600 2,860
55327 Vehicle/equip Repair Parts 3,400 3,740
55330 Fuel Purchases 9,630 10,593
55331 Chemicals 44,120 48,532
55332 Paints 10,180 11,198
55333 Plant Materials 3,280 3,608
55348 Flowers And Cards 80 88
55349 Plaques, Awards And Prizes 7,981 8,779
55350 Recreation/program Supplies 62,693 68,962
55354 Food Supplies 16,803 18,483
55360 Merchandise For Resale 56,100 61,710
Commodities/Supplies 304,871 335,357

Utilities
56230 Sanitary Fees And Charges 6,390 7,029
56231 Gas And Electricity 210,100 231,110
56232 Water 93,430 102,773
56233 Telecomm Expenditures 23,835 26,219
Utilities 333,755 367,131

Routine/Periodic Maintenance
58001 Periodic Maintenance 44,500 48,950
58002 Routine Maintenance 20,000 22,000
Routine/Periodic

Maintenance 64,500 70,950

Transfers to Other Funds
59409 Transfers To Other Funds 1,859,548 2,045,503

Appropriations - Fund 02 5,042,381 5,423,483

Fund 03 - MUSEUM

Salaries and Wages
70201 Full-Time Salaries And Wages 479,946 494,344
70202 Part-Time Seasonal Wages 375,011 386,261
Salaries and Wages 854,957 880,605

Fringe Benefits
53132 Dental Insurance 3,000 3,300
53133 Medical Health Insurance 77,000 84,700
53134 Life Insurance 1,430 1,573
53137 Employee Assistance Program 345 380
83003 Allowances/Reimbursements 12,470 13,717
Fringe Benefits 94,245 103,670

215



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

Contractual
54201 Postage And Mailing 10,298 11,328
54202 Printing And Duplicating 12,698 13,968
54206 Advertising/Publicity 42,583 46,841
54207 Staff Training 1,000 1,100
54208 Memberships, Dues And Fees 3,150 3,465
54209 Conference And Travel 1,000 1,100
54215 Professional Fees 1,000 1,100
54234 Landfill Fees 4,105 4,516
54242 Equipment Repair 2,430 2,673
54245 Building Repair 9,000 9,900
54250 Equipment Rental 35,610 39,171
54251 Rental Facilities 27,628 30,391
54253 Pest Control 570 627
54254 Service Contracts 2,600 2,860
54255 License And Fees 7,175 7,893
54260 Service Contracts-facilities 33,500 36,850
54265 Subscriptions 191 210
54280 Other Contractual Services 55,437 60,981
54281 Contractual Personnel 27,478 30,226
54285 Contractual Entertainment 284,620 313,082
54299 Field/special Trips 3,000 3,300
59412 Property/sales Tax 6,563 7,219
59414 Credit Card Fees 37,661 41,427
Contractual 609,297 670,228

Commodities/Supplies
55301 Office Supplies 1,150 1,265
55302 Envelopes And Stationary 500 550
55303 Duplicating Supplies 200 220
55305 Photographic Supplies 25 28
55307 Books And Manuscripts 880 968
55308 First Aid/Medical Supplies 800 880
55315 Staff Uniforms 824 906
55316 Participant Uniforms 2,373 2,610
55320 Building Maintenance Supplies 8,000 8,800
55322 Cleaning /Janitorial Supplies 3,700 4,070
55329 Office/ Equipment Value <$10000 1,500 1,650
55330 Gas,Fuel,Grease And Oil 1,100 1,210
55348 Flowers And Cards 10 11
55349 Plaques, Awards And Prizes 4,221 4,643
55350 Recreation/Program Supplies 45,257 49,783
55351 Animal Supplies 2,200 2,420
55354 Food Supplies 22,654 24,919
55355 Animal Feed 5,000 5,500
55360 Merchandise For Resale 15,998 17,598
Commodities/Supplies 116,392 128,031

Utilities
56230 Sanitary Fees And Charges 1,300 1,430
56231 Gas And Electricity 62,000 68,200
216



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

56232 Water 12,575 13,833
56233 Telecomm Expenditures 7,600 8,360
Utilities 83,475 91,823

Routine/Periodic Maintenance
58001 Periodic Maintenance 48,778 53,656

Transfers to Other Funds

Appropriations - Fund 03 1,807,144 1,928,013

Fund 04 - LIABILITY INSURANCE

Salaries and Wages
70201 Full-Time Salaries And Wages 53,800 59,180

Fringe Benefits
53132 Dental Insurance 300 330
53133 Medical Health Insurance 12,720 13,992
53134 Life Insurance 90 99
83003 Allowances/Reimbursements 840 924
Fringe Benefits 13,950 15,345

Contractual
54270 Personnel Costs 234 257

Commodities/Supplies
55306 CPR Books And Supplies (Tort Fund) 2,900 3,190
55309 Safety Supplies 1,000 1,100
55329 Office/ Equipment Value <$10000 2,800 3,080
Commodities/Supplies 6,700 7,370

Insurance
57131 Workers Compensation 82,100 90,310
57137 Unemployment Premium 8,500 9,350
57220 Liability Insurance 35,000 38,500
57222 Employment Practices 16,200 17,820
57224 Property Insurance 72,600 79,860
Insurance 214,400 235,840

Capital Outlay
61515 Repair Projects And Equipment 50,948 56,043

Appropriations - Fund 04 340,032 374,035

Fund 06 - IMRF FUND

Fringe Benefits
53135 IMRF Payments 230,000 253,000

217



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

Appropriations - Fund 06 230,000 253,000

Fund 08 - AUDIT FUND

Fringe Benefits
54217 Audit Expenses 26,510 29,161

Appropriations - Fund 08 26,510 29,161

Fund 09 - PAVING AND LIGHTING FUND

Routine/Periodic Maintenance
58002 Routine Maintenance 71,000 78,100

Capital Outlay

Appropriations - Fund 09 71,000 78,100

Fund 12 - SPECIAL DONATIONS FUND

Contractual
54292 Scholarships 50,000 55,000
59415 Transfer To Parks Foundation-Restricted 5,196 5,716

55,196 60,716

Appropriations - Fund 12 55,196 60,716

Fund 14 - SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

Fringe Benefits
53136 FICA Payments 395,000 434,500

Appropriations - Fund 14 395,000 434,500

Fund 15 - SPECIAL RECREATION FUND

Salaries and Wages
70201 Full-Time Salaries And Wages 196,820 216,502
70202 Part-Time Seasonal Wages 257,352 283,087

454,172 499,589

218



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

Fringe Benefits
53132 Dental Insurance 1,560 1,716
53133 Medical Health Insurance 44,600 49,060
53134 Life Insurance 420 462
53135 IMRF Payments 12,000 13,200
53136 FICA Payments 34,000 37,400
53137 Employee Assistance Program 175 193

92,755 102,031

Contractual
54201 Postage And Mailing 2,000 2,200
54202 Printing And Duplicating 4,100 4,510
54204 Staff Meeting 210 231
54205 Legal Publications/notices 500 550
54206 Advertising/publicity 2,100 2,310
54207 Staff Training 2,200 2,420
54208 Memberships, Dues And Fees 1,500 1,650
54209 Conference And Travel 4,000 4,240
54241 Vehicle Repair 3,000 3,300
54250 Equipment Rental 450 495
54251 Rental Facilities 5,780 6,358
54253 Pest Control 420 462
54254 Service Contracts 2,700 2,970
54255 License And Fees 20 22
54260 Service Contracts-facilities 1,780 1,958
54264 Cell Phone Expense 380 418
54270 Personnel Costs 1,500 1,650
54280 Other Contractual Services 25 28
54281 Contractual Personnel 7,188 7,907
54285 Contractual Entertainment 900 990
54299 Field/special Trips 17,574 19,331
59414 Credit Card Fees 1,300 1,430

59,627 65,430

Commodities/Supplies
55301 Office Supplies 600 660
55302 Envelopes And Stationary 380 418
55303 Duplicating Supplies 300 330
55315 Staff Uniforms 1,639 1,803
55316 Participant Uniforms 1,784 1,962
55322 Cleaning/janitorial Supplies 2,750 3,025
55327 Vehicle/equipment Repair Parts 1,000 1,100
55330 Gas,fuel,grease And Oil 8,000 8,800
55349 Plaques, Awards And Prizes 5,075 5,583
55350 Recreation/program Supplies 8,991 9,890
55354 Food Supplies 10,925 12,018

41,444 45,589

Utilities
56230 Sanitary Fees And Charges 400 440
56231 Gas And Electricity 22,000 24,200
219



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

56232 Water 1,800 1,980
56233 Telecomm Expenditures 2,940 3,234

27,140 29,854

Insurance
57131 Workers Compensation 1,800 1,980
57220 Liability Insurance 2,500 2,750
57222 Employment Practices 620 682
57224 Property Insurance 3,900 4,290

8,820 9,702

Routine/Periodic Maintenance
58003 ADA Non-Capital Expenditures 25,000 27,500

Capital Outlay
61508 CPD - ADA 439,415 483,357
61509 UPD Capital ADA 240,092 264,098

679,507 747,455

Appropriations - Fund 15 1,388,465 1,527,150

Fund 16 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS FUND

Capital Outlay
61508 Park Construction/Improvements 2,871,576 3,158,734

Transfers to Other
Funds

Appropriations - Fund 16 2,871,576 3,158,734

Fund 19 - POLICE PROTECTION

Contractual
54281 Contractual Personnel 30,000 33,000

Appropriations - Fund 19 30,000 33,000

Fund 21 - BOND AMORTIZATION FUND

Transfer To Other Funds
59409 Transfers To Other Funds 1,187,200 1,305,920

Appropriations - Fund 21 1,187,200 1,305,920

Fund 22 - BOND PROCEEDS FUND

Contractual

220



Ordinance No. 645
Budget & Appropriations Details by Fund

May 1, 2021 through April 30, 2022

Account Description
2021-22
Budget Appropriations

54215 Professional Fees 3,428 3,771

Capital Outlay
61504 Vehicles / Equipment 128,000 140,800
61508 Park Construction/Improvements 1,235,108 1,358,619

1,363,108 1,499,419

Debt Service Principal
59405 Bond Redemption 480,000 480,000

Debt Service Interest/Fees
59407 Interest Expense 67,000 73,700

Appropriations - Fund 22 1,913,536 2,056,890

Fund 24 - LAND ACQUISITION FUND

Capital Outlay
61504 Land Acquisition - 750,000

Appropriations - Fund 24 - 750,000

Fund 25 - PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND

Capital Outlay
61508 Park Construction/Improvements 658,000 723,800
Appropriations - Fund 25 658,000 723,800

Fund 26 - TRAILS AND PATHWAYS FUND

Capital Outlay
61508 Park Construction/Improvements 50,000 55,000
Appropriations - Fund 26 50,000 55,000

Fund 27 - MARTENS CENTER CAPITAL FUND

Contractual
54202 Printing And Duplicating 1,000 1,100
54212 Attorney Fees 18,000 19,800
54215 Professional Fees 65,500 72,050

84,500 92,950

Capital Outlay
61508 Park Construction/Improvements 7,395,000 8,134,500
Appropriations - Fund 27 7,479,500 8,227,450

CERTIFICATION OF 
ESTIMATE OF REVENUE

FISCAL YEAR 2022
I, Brenda Timmons, do hereby certify that I am the duly qualified Treasurer of the Champaign Park

221



District and the Chief Fiscal Officer of said Park District.  As such officer I do further certify that the
revenues, by source, anticipated to be received by the Park District in the fiscal year beginning May
1, 2021 and ending on April 30, 2022 are estimated to be as follows:

ESTIMATE OF REVENUE
Source of Revenue Amount

Property Taxes $ 13,696,200

Personal Property Replacement Tax 300,000

Charges for Services 2,504,412

Contributions & Sponsorships 2,570,956

Concessions & Merchandise 210,177

Grants 1,783,901

Interest 33,950

Bond Proceeds (Reflected as a Transfer) 1,187,200

Special Receipts/Other 266,678

Transfer to Other Funds 3,159,548

Total Estimate of Revenue $ 25,713,022

IN WITNESS WHEROF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of the Champaign Park
District this 28th day of July, 2021.

SEAL

__________________________________________

          Brenda Timmons, Treasurer, Chief Financial Officer



223



224



225



226



227



228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



������	
����
���	��
	�� �����������
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

������������

 #� #�  #���&���
������	�	��
��	'� /0! 1#!   2 /0!"0#!0"# 2 /0!�30!3402 /0!144!0  2
	
�	
�		
��
	
	�	
�	
�		
�
��
���������� ���������
� ���
������ � �����	���
� ��������		 �

	
�	
�		
���	�	�	
�	
�		
��� �!�" �
������� �

��	�� � ����			� ��	�			�

	
�	
�		
���
�	�	
�	
�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� �
���	� �
	���� � �
���	� �
��		 �

	
�	
�		
���
�	�	
�	
�		
���%������&'(���&�)�� 	 ��� � �
��		� 	

	
�	
�		
���
		�	
�	
�		
��
�)����%�
� ������� �
���	 � 	 	

	
�	
�		
���

��	
�	
�		
�
��*��&�+��� ������� ������ � ����� �
�			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	�
�			� �����
���
 � /0!�30!3402 /0!144!0  2

 #�" �  #���5��
��	'������	�	��
��	'�  /4!#0 2   
	
��	�		
���
�	�	
��	�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� 	 ���			 � 	 	

	
��	�		
���
�	�	
��	�		
���%������&'(���&�)�� 	 �
�	 � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 	 ���
�	 �   

 #�" � 4#�������������6�	��������  /�!1  2  /�!1  2
	
��	�	�
���
�	�	
��	�	�
��
�#��$���#��
�� 	 ����		 � 	 ����		 �

 #�" � 4������
��6�	�������� /"0�2  /103 2 /�  2
	
��	�	�����
�	�	
��	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� ����� 	 ����� ��		�

 #�" � 4+���(�'7�
�������� /##"!3 0 2 /#1�!��#2 /# 3!#13 2 /##0!#-+ 2
	
��	�	�����

��	
��	�	���
��*��&�+��� �

���	�� �
�����
 � �
	��
��� �

��
�� �

 #�" � 41�����
��(�'7�
� /+!#- 2 /+!1�32 /1! +4 2 /+!1  2
	
��	�	�����
�	�	
��	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� ���
�	� ������ � ���	��� ����		 �

 #�� � -3����'%
�����$
������	)
�
8 /3# 2 /�112   
	
��	�	�����
		�	
��	�	�����)��$��)#�&� ��
	� ���� � 	 	

 #�0 � -0������	����)�
��&�
���� /+!4412 /+!4 1 2 /+!4� 2 /+!3  2
	
��	�	�����

��	
��	�	���
��*��&�+��� ������� ����	� � �����	� ����		 �

 "� #�  #���*��
���	'�����	�	��
��	'� /"!"+4!111 2 /"!"34!"1�2 /"!"3"! 0�2 /"!"4#!�  2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� ���
�
����� ����		���� � ��������		� ��������		 �

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ �
	��
��� ������� � ����	�� ����		 �

	��	
�		
���
�	�	��	
�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� ��
� 	 �����	� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����������� ���������� � /"!"3"! 0�2 /"!"4#!�  2

 "�� � " ����'%
���������9 /�!�332 /"!-"�2  /+1 2
	���	�	�	���
		�	���	�	�	���)��$��)#�&� ������� ������ � 	 ���	�

 "�� � "#���:�8�������
 /" !+++ 2 /"�!1"32  /"!1  2
	���	�	�
���
		�	���	�	�
���)��$��)#�&� ��	����� ������� � 	 ����		 �

 "�� � 40���$����(	����  /#"!��-2   
	���	�	�����
�	��			
	�	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� 	 �
����� � 	 	

��
� #

248



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�� � -"����'%
������'��%�	�8������
 /##! +- 2 /#�!44#2 /�!13�2 /"!0  2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� ���
��� �
��	
� � �
�	��� �
��		 �

	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����1�23./���2�31 " 	 	 ����		� 	

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �
����� �
���	 � ��� �
��		 �

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����
�#��$��5�)�� ���	� ��
� � ��	� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �

�	��� �
����
 � /�!13�2 /"!0  2

 "�� � -��������$	�������	��������
 /#-! -0 2 /#3! � 2   
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �
��	��� �
��	�	 � 	 	

 "�� � -+���;�%<�������� /#!+412 /#!3+12 /#�12 /#!   2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �
����� �
���� � �
��� �
�			 �

 "�� � -4���$6�,��=	�	'��*����� /#0!00+2 /#1!1��2 /�!--32 /#0!1  2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �
������ �
����� � ������� �
���		�

 "�� �#11����'
���
� /#"! 4�2 /# !+ �2 /"-!4+1 2 /�"!4#12
	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���
!,4!.-�+��" �
��	��� �
	��	� � �������� �����
��

 "�� �#0 �����'���
��*��
���	'�������
 /#3#!#332 /#4-!�1"2 /1-!#"+ 2 /#0#!+102
	���	�
�	���
		�	���	�
�	���)��$��)#�&� ������	� �����
	 � �
	�			� ����	�	�

	���	�
�	���
�	�	���	�
�	��
�#��$���#��
�� ��
���	� ������� � ��
�� ��
�����

	���	�
�	���
�	�	���	�
�	���%������&'(���&�)�� �
� 	 	 	

	���	�
�	���

��	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-�+��" 	 	 �
�	�	� ���	�� �

	���	�
�	���

��	���	�
�	�5��0,!�
,! 3,��,6���2,-� 	 	 ��	 ���		

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	�&�&'���%�
�+��� �

������ �
����
� � ����	
	� �
	����� �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�
�
��� �
������ � /1-!#"+ 2 /#0#!+102

 "�+ � "1����'��������	�������
 /"3#!0#+ 2 /"4 !1-0 2 /#+�!30�2 /"1-!3+" 2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �
�	��� ��	� � ����� �
�	
	 �

	���	�	������		�	���	�	���*!.� �
!,2��0" 	 	 ���
		� 	

	���	�	�����
	��	���	�	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� ������� ���		� � �
��	�� ���
�� �

	���	�	�����

	�	���	�	���'�$$�&�#%�)��(��*� �
��	�� �
���� � �
�	�	� �
�
	� �

	���	�	�����


�	���	�	�����)7�&�#�(�����&� �
	������ ������� � �������� ����
���

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!3�. ��$�"",�" ��
���
� ������	 � �������� ��	�����

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	�����#8(�������)*�)* ������� ���� � �
����� �
���� �

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �

���	
� �
		�	�� � ����

�� �
	����� �

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���&�&'���%�
�+��� �
������ �
����� � ������� �
��	���

	���	�	�����
�	��			
��	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� 	 ������� � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
��
�� ���	���� � /#+�!30�2 /"1-!3+" 2

 "�+ � 01���(	�������=���� /#"!1��2 /##!4 + 2 /#!00�2 /+!4  2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	����
�)����%�
� �
�			� ��		 � 	 	

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �

����� �

��	� � �
����� ����		 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������ �

��	� � /#!00�2 /+!4  2

 "�+ � 3"�����%���>'<�)��� /3 !0"1 2 /4+!3 + 2 /#�!�� 2 /�-!"-42
	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	�����%������&'(���&�)�� 	 ���� � 	 	

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" ��	����� ����	�	 � �
����	� ��������

��
� "

249



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	����� �����	� � /#�!�� 2 /�-!"-42

 "�+ � 3������%���?'���8)��� /#1!3"3 2 /#0!+# 2   
	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �
������ �
���
	 � 	 	

 "�+ � 31����'%���$�����)��� /#0!#-" 2 /#0!1#02 /"!400 2 /"+!�"12
	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� ���
	�� ���
�� � 	 �����	 �

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �
��	��� �
����
 � ������� �
��	���

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
��
��� �
���
� � /"!400 2 /"+!�"12

 "�+ � 30����'%���>'<�)��� /"!41- 2 /0!#042 /+!-#+ 2 /3!4"" 2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	����
�)����%�
� 	 ��		 � �		 ��		�

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" ����
�� ������ � ����
�� ������ �

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���5��0,!�
,! 3,���!���2,-� 
���� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� ���
�� � /+!-#+ 2 /3!4"" 2

 "�+ � 33����'%���>'���
 /�#!"4 2 /#+!4+- 2 /#3!-13 2 /� !4�"2
	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	�����%������&'(���&�)�� ���
	�� ������ � ������� ���			 �

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" ����
��� �

��		 � �
����	� ��������

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
���	� �
����� � /#3!-13 2 /� !4�"2

 "�+ �#1 ���&
'%��(	�������
'

��� /"-!1+0 2 /"�!"4-2 /-!33# 2 /" !++3 2
	���	�
�	���

��	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-�+��" �������� ������� � �����
� ��	�����

	���	�
�	���

��	���	�
�	�5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� 
�� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ������� � /-!33# 2 /" !++3 2

 "�+ �#1+���>�
	�
�
�(	����� /"+3 2 /"!113 2 /"4�2 /0!0�+2
	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���
!,4!.-�+��" ����� ������ � ����� ������ �

 "�+ �#-1���6'�'
�>�	������=��'����� /-!310 2 /#+!3032 /#�!0412 /#4!#-�2
	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���
!,4!.-�+��" �������� �����	� � �
���
�� �����		�

	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� ������ 
����� ����� ����	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� �
����� � /#�!0412 /#4!#-�2

 "�+ �#-0���>�'
�������� /1!4012 /1!�- 2 /0"0 2  
	���	�
�����
�	�	���	�
�����%������&'(���&�)�� 	 �

	 � 	 	

	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���
!,4!.-�+��" �
������ �
����� � ����� 	

	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� ���

 ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� �����	 � /0"0 2  

 "�+ �#-4����'����>'���
�*������ /#3!1412 /#+!1432 /4!0#02  
	���	�
�����
		�	���	�
�����)��$��)#�&�9+�#�$������)��$ �
������ �
����� � ����
�� 	

 "�+ �#-3���$����(	����*����� /++!-4# 2 /�4!"0#2 /#+!4 - 2 /�3!10 2
	���	�
�����
		�	���	�
�����)��$��)#�&�9+�#�$������)��$ ������
� �����	� � �
���	�� ������	�

	���	�
�����
�	�	���	�
�����%������&'(���&�)�� 	 ��� � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������
� ������
 � /#+!4 - 2 /�3!10 2

��
� �

250



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�+ �"  ����'%���?'���8)��� /�!40�2 /+!03+2  /"!�-#2
	���	��		���

��	���	��		�
!,4!.-�+��" ������� ����		 � 	 ������ �

	���	��		���

��	���	��		�5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� ��	�� ���
� 	 �����

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� ������ �  /"!�-#2

 "�+ �" "�����%���>'���
 /�!+-�2 #!3#3  /#!#032
	���	��	����

��	���	��	��
!,4!.-�+��" ������� 
��
� 	 �
�
�� �

 "�+ �" �����'%
������'%�� /#0!-+�2 /#+! 1" 2 /0�32 /-!3#3 2
	���	��	����
		�	���	��	���
�)����%�
 ���			� ���
		 � 	 	

	���	��	����

��	���	��	��
!,4!.-�+��" �
������ �
	��

 � �
�
��� ������ �

	���	��	����

��	���	��	��5��0,!�
,! 3,��,6���2,-� 	 	 ��
 ���	�

	���	��	����
���	���	��	���
�#��$��5�)�� ���	� �
���
 � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������ �
��	�� � /0�32 /-!3#3 2

 "�1 �  +����'%
������<��
���''� /" !4-3 2 /#4!3 3 2  /" !   2
	���	�		����

��	���	�		��
!,4!.-�+��" ��	����� �
���	� � 	 ��	�			�

 "�1 �  1���&	
����9��'
� /#-!+++ 2 /#1!+ # 2   
	���	�		����

��	���	�		��
!,4!.-�+��" �
������ �
���	
 � 	 	

 "�1 �  0����'%
�����>��''�@��5%����8� /#!+#42 /4 + 2  /##!"�"2
	���	�		����

��	���	�		��
!,4!.-�+��" �
��
�� ��	� � 	 �

�����

 "�1 � ##���$%�8)���,>7	�
�����
 /#+3!1- 2 /##3!�+12 /+"!4� 2 /--!3�+2
	���	�	

���

��	���	�	

�
!,4!.-�+��" �
������� �

��
�� � ������	� ��������

	���	�	

���
���	���	�	

��
�#��$��5�)�� ����� ��
� � 	 ��		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�����	� �

����� � /+"!4� 2 /--!3�+2

 "�1 � #"�����'���
����8����� /#4#!0"�2 /#0"!430 2 /#�!"##2 /3#!+3 2
	���	�	
����
�	�	���	�	
����%������&'(���&�)�� �
��� ���	 � 	 	

	���	�	
����

��	���	�	
��
!,4!.-�+��" �
�
����� �
������ � �
���

� ��
���	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�
����� �
������ � /#�!"##2 /3#!+3 2

 "�1 � #�����'%
�������8����� /1�!��12 /1 !�#"2 /#4!"-- 2 /��!3+ 2
	���	�	
����
�	�	���	�	
����%������&'(���&�)�� ��� 	 	 	

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��*!.� �
!,2��0"���$,2./ 	 	 �
��	��� 	

	���	�	
����

��	���	�	
��
!,4!.-�+��" �������� ��	��
� � ����	�� ������	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ��	��
� � /#4!"-- 2 /��!3+ 2

 "�1 � #0����'��%�	�8�6����
��&
��� /#!+�42 /1 4 2 /�!#+#2  
	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��*!.� �
!,2��0"���$,2./ 	 	 ���
�
� 	

	���	�	
����

��	���	�	
��
!,4!.-�+��" �
����� ��	� � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
����� ��	� � /�!#+#2  

 "�1 � #4�����'���
���<��
���''� /11!-## 2 /�0!-332 /#!#"4 2 /+1!+" 2
	���	�	
����

��	���	�	
��
!,4!.-�+��" �����

� ������� � �
�
��� ������	�

��
� +

251



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�1 �#++����
����''������� /�!--12 /1!  " 2 /"!0+�2 /4!43+2
	���	�
�����

��	���	�
���
!,4!.-�+��" ������� ���		� � ������� ������ �

 "�0 � "0���>�'����>7	������ /#-!1 " 2 /#-!304 2 /�!14 2  
	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� 	 �
�
�
 � 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� �
	� ���� � 	 	

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" �
������ �
��	�� � �����	� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
���	�� �
����� � /�!14 2  

 "�0 �#� ����'%
�����>��	'
� /+�!3�"2 /�+!+ 42 -"+ /�3!"0 2
	���	�
�	���
�	�	���	�
�	��
�#��$���#��
�� ��		� 	 	 	

	���	�
�	���

��	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-�+��" �������� �����	� � ��� ������	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� �����	� � -"+ /�3!"0 2

 "�0 �#�#���:�8��>��	'
� /+!+"#2 /"!"+1 2  /�!   2
	���	�
�
���

��	���	�
�
�
!,4!.-�+��" �����
� ������ � 	 ���			 �

 "�0 �"+#���>��''�@��5%����8� /##!#+�2 /0!0�-2 /�! �+2 /# !0+ 2
	���	���
���

��	���	���
�
!,4!.-�+��" �

�
��� ������ � ���	��� �
	���	�

 "�03� -"����'%
������'��%�	�8������
  /41 2   
	�����	�����
		�	�����	����
�)����%�
� 	 ���	 � 	 	

 "�0-� "+���>�'�����A%��	�������
 /34!4 1 2 /41!"3�2  /41!   2
	�����	�����
		�	�����	���#�)#�����)���5�)(� �����	�� ������� � 	 ����			�

 "�0-� +#���B�������
� /"!+01 2   /# !"  2
	�����	�
���
		�	�����	�
�#�)#�����)���5�)(� ������� 	 	 �
	�			�

	�����	�
���
�	�	�����	�
�5��03�4�&.2:3����./�" 	 	 	 ��		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� 	  /# !"  2

 "�0-� 3 ����'������
� /"4!0"4 2 /"�! 332 /34 2 /�1!1#"2
	�����	�	���
		�	�����	�	�#�)#�����)���5�)(� �������� ����	�� � ���	� �����
��

 "�0-� 33����'����>'���
��'����9 /+! 1" 2 /"�-2  /1  2
	�����	�����
		�	�����	���#�)#�����)���5�)(� ���	��� 	 	 	

	�����	�����
�	�	�����	���5�)7�)*�&�#%�)����$�� 	 ���� � 	 ��		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	��� ���� �  /1  2

 "�4 � ""���>�'�����A%��	��������
 /+3#!4�02 /�--!-3�2  /+4"!4#3 2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	��������)���#;�����$�� �
������� �
	���	� � 	 ��	�����

	���	�	�����
	��	���	�	���7��$���7&�����)���$�� ��������� ���	��	� � 	 ��
����� �

	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �
��
��� ����
� � 	 �
��
		�

	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� ����		� ������ � 	 	

	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	�����%������&'(���&�)�� ����	�� �
���� � 	 	

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
!,4!.-�+��" ����	��� ������	 � 	 ��������

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
����� �������� �  /+4"!4#3 2

��
� 1

252



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������1
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 �� #�  #���6%��%��(%��������	�	��
��	'� /#!00+! 0�2 /#!4"+!4-4 2 /#!4"+!1"0 2 /#!40#!-0 2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� �
��������� �
������	� � �
��
���	�� �
���	��		 �

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ ��
����� ����
�� � �
	��		� �
���	 �

	��	
�		
���
�	�	��	
�		
��1�23./���2�31 " 	 	 �

�� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�����	��� �
�������� � /#!4"+!1"0 2 /#!40#!-0 2

 ��#1� #+���$���@���%��� /#! 1" 2 /#!+�42  /#!#0" 2
	��
��	
�����		�	��
��	
��*��)��
��#��7� �
�			� �
���	 � 	 ���	�

	��
��	
����

��	��
��	
��
��*��&�+��� ���� �
�� � 	 ��
��

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�	��� �
���� �  /#!#0" 2

 ��#1� #1����'%��������
� /--! 34 2 /4�!3+#2 /3!##12 /# �!3++2
	��
��	
����
�	�	��
��	
���
�#��$���#��
�� ������� ������ � ��		� �
	�����

	��
��	
����
		�	��
��	
���
�)����%�
� ����
�� ������ � 	 ����		 �

	��
��	
�����		�	��
��	
��*��)��
��#��7� ���			� 	 �
��		� 	

	��
��	
����

��	��
��	
��
��*��&�+��� ��
���
� ������� � ����
�� ������	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	��� ������
 � /3!##12 /# �!3++2

 ��#1� �#���������5<��C /01!-�+2 /3"! #0 2 /"# 2  
	��
��	�
���
		�	��
��	�
��
�)����%�
� �
����	� ������� � 	 	

	��
��	�
����		�	��
��	�
�*��)��
��#��7� ��		� ��		 � 	 	

	��
��	�
���

��	��
��	�
�
��*��&�+��� �
������� �
������ � ��
	� 	

	��
��	�
���

��	��
��	�
�5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� �	���� �
���
 	 	

	��
��	�
���
���	��
��	�
��
�#��$��5�)�� ����
�� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ����	
� � /"# 2  

 ��#1� �"���>%���
��'���
�� /0!�442 /�!1  2 /#!#  2 /�!0  2
	��
��	�����
		�	��
��	����
�)����%�
� ���	�	� ���			 � 	 ����		 �

	��
��	������		�	��
��	���*��)��
��#��7� �
��		� �
��		 � �
�
		� �
�
		 �

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
��*��&�+��� �
��� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� ����		 � /#!#  2 /�!0  2

 ��#1� �0����
���9�	)	�	'��>�
	�� /"!+-# 2 /1!- 1 2 /40- 2 /�!31 2
	��
��	�����
�	�	��
��	����
�#��$���#��
�� �
���
� ����	� � ��
�� ���	�

	��
��	������		�	��
��	���*��)��
��#��7� �
�

	� ����		 � �
�	� �
�			 �

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
!,4!.-�+��" 	 	 	 ����		 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
� ����	� � /40- 2 /�!31 2

 ��#1� �3���$�������
'

��� /- !0 - 2 /3+!13�2 /+ ! 0# 2 /-"!+#+ 2
	��
��	�����
	��	��
��	���7�)����)� ��		� 	 	 	

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
��*��&�+��� �����	�� ������� � ��	�	�
� �����
��

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	��	�� ������� � /+ ! 0# 2 /-"!+#+ 2

 ��#1� 04���(�������(��� /0"1 2 /4!4-" 2  /"!3  2
	��
��	�����
		�	��
��	����
�)����%�
� 	 ���			 � 	 ���			 �

	��
��	������		�	��
��	���*��)��
��#��7� ��		� ���			 � 	 	

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
��*��&�+��� �
��� ���� � 	 ��		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ������ �  /"!3  2

 ��#1� 03���>���	����=���� /"!"13 2 /#! �12 /#!4#- 2 /�!1  2
	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
��*��&�+��� ������� �
�	�� � �
��
�� ����		 �

��
� 0

253



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������0
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 ��#1� 43���?��*������ /"41! "- 2 /"- !03- 2 /+!�  2 /#-1! -3 2
	��
��	�����
		�	��
��	�����)��$��)#�&� �����	� ������
 � ����		� ���			 �

	��
��	���������	��
��	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� ������� ������ � 	 ���	�� �

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���
��*��&�+��� ������	�� ��
����� � 	 �����	�� �

	��
��	�����

��	��
��	���5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� �����
� ������� 	 ��
�	��

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����	��� ���	���� � /+!�  2 /#-1! -3 2

 ��#1�#+ ����
	�������� /3! -3 2 /0!#-�2 /+!1+42 /-!334 2
	��
��
�	����		�	��
��
�	�*��)��
��#��7� 	 ���	 � 	 ���	�

	��
��
�	���

��	��
��
�	�
��*��&�+��� ���	��� ������ � ������� ������ �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	��� ���
�� � /+!1+42 /-!334 2

 ��#1�#+#�����������
<'
����� /0!�012 /3!"1 2 /"!�412 /##!##- 2
	��
��
�
���
		�	��
��
�
������)���#;�����$�� 	 	 	 ����		 �

	��
��
�
���
�	�	��
��
�
��
�#��$���#��
�� 
	 	 	 �����

	��
��
�
����		�	��
��
�
�*��)��
��#��7� ���			� ���			 � �����	� ���			 �

	��
��
�
���

��	��
��
�
�
��*��&�+��� ������� �����	 � �
��� ������ �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� �����	 � /"!�412 /##!##- 2

 ��#1�#+����5���
��%��%
����
����
'

��� /"1!#-�2 /"+!-1+ 2 /3!+032 /�"!+�12
	��
��
������		�	��
��
���*��)��
��#��7� ����		� ����		 � �
�
��� �
��		 �

	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���
��*��&�+��� �����
�� ����		� � ����
�� ��������

	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� 
���� ��	 ��� ��			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����
��� ������� � /3!+032 /�"!+�12

 ��#1�#+0���5���
��������
'

��� /3!"4+ 2 /#4!++#2 /+!1 4 2 /#1!#+ 2
	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���
��*��&�+��� ������� �
����
 � ����	�� �
��
�	�

 ��#1�#4 ����C���8� /�!#"12 /�!��"2  /041 2
	��
��
�	���
		�	��
��
�	��
�)����%�
� 	 ��		 � 	 	

	��
��
�	����		�	��
��
�	�*��)��
��#��7� ���			� �
���	 � 	 	

	��
��
�	���

��	��
��
�	�
��*��&�+��� �
�
��� �
���� � 	 �����

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
��� ������ �  /041 2

 ��#1�#4"�������	�
�D	������,6'���
'� /#1!�"-2 /# !-40 2 /#41 2 /#4!   2
	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���
��*��&�+��� �
������ �
	���� � �
��� �
��			�

 ��#1�#4�����

�:%��� /#!-1 2  /"01 2  
	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���
��*��&�+��� �
���	� 	 ����� 	

 ��#1�#4+���:���'7����(%�<���   /#!   2  
	��
��
�����
		�	��
��
����1,�",!":31" 	 	 �
�			� 	

 ��#1�#44���>�
���<����/6%�	��(���2 /# ! �12 /"!101 2   
	��
��
�����
		�	��
��
����
�)����%�
� �
	�			� ����		 � 	 	

	��
��
�����

��	��
��
���
��*��&�+��� ���� ��� � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
	�	��� ������ �   

��
� 4

254



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������4
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 ��� � #-����'���
8,���8�>�%�	' /�+!04"2 /+#!+-# 2 /""!#4+ 2 /+3!+" 2
	���	�	
����
�	�	���	�	
���
�#��$���#��
�� ��
�� �
���	 � 	 �
�
�	 �

	���	�	
�����		�	���	�	
��*��)��
��#��7� �
���	� ���	�	 � ���			� �
��		 �

	���	�	
����

��	���	�	
��
��*��&�+��� �������� ����
�
 � �
��
��� ������	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ��
���
 � /""!#4+ 2 /+3!+" 2

 ��� � � ���>�
	�
�
��%��%
��������
 /+3 2 /4-1 2   
	���	�	�	���
		�	���	�	�	���)��$��)#�&� ���	� ���� � 	 	

 ��� � 43���?��(��	�	�	�� /1!14" 2 /1!"�32 /#34 2 /4!0412
	���	�	�����	�	�	���	�	����)������ �
��� �
� � 	 �
���

	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	������ ./���2,-� 	 	 ��� 	

	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����
�#��$���#��
�� �����
� 	 ��� ����		 �

	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	����
�)����%�
� 	 ���			 � 	 ���			 �

	���	�	�����


�	���	�	�����" ,!. 3,��+�� 	 ��� � �
��� 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� �
��
�� �
�� � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� ������ � /#34 2 /4!0412

 ��� � -1����
�	
	��(�
� /#"!4-1 2 /##! 11 2 /-04 2 /#�!--42
	���	�	�����
�	�	���	�	����1�23./���2�31 " 	 	 	 ���			 �

	���	�	���������	���	�	���7�)����)� ������� ������ � ����� �
��		 �

	���	�	���������	���	�	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� ��	� 	 	 �
�	�

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
��*��&�+��� �����	� ������ � 	 ������ �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������ �

�	�� � /-04 2 /#�!--42

 ��1 � ������
��>��
��;	�� /##!�4"2 /4!--0 2 /#+ 2 /4!3002
	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
��*��&�+��� �

����� ������ � �
�� ������ �

 ��1 � �+����
���	=��;	�� /30!4142 /3�! +�2 /#0!#�"2 /1-!�  2
	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
��*��&�+��� �������� ����	�� � �
��
��� �����		�

 ��0 � 43���?��(	��� /+�!0-+2 /"+!1- 2  /#"!1� 2
	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���
��*��&�+��� ����	��� ����	�� � 	 ��	�	�	�

	���	�	�����

��	���	�	���5��0,!�
,! 3,���6���2,-� ���	� 
���� 	 ���		

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ������	 �  /#"!1� 2

 ��0 � --���>�'7�')	�� /##!+012 /#�!" 12 /33 2 /# !   2
	���	�	�����
		�	���	�	�����)��$��)#�&� �

����� �
���	� � ���	� �
	�			�

 ��03� 43���?��:'%����=���� /+" !1 # 2 /#11!0#- 2  /� #!"1 2
	�����	���������	�����	���&��#%�)7����+�������$� �����
� ��
� � 	 �
���	 �

	�����	�����

��	�����	���
��*��&�+��� ��
��
�	� �
����	� � 	 ��		�			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	��	
� �
����
� �  /� #!"1 2

 ��0-� 43���?���'�����	'�� /# 0!4#- 2 /43! +3 2 /"!��"2 /40!   2
	�����	�����
�	�	�����	����1�23./���2�31 " 	 	 ���� 	

	�����	�����
		�	�����	���#�)#�����)���5�)(� �
	���
�� ����	�� � ������� ����			�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
	���
�� ����	�� � /"!��"2 /40!   2

��
� 3

255



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������3
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 +� #�  #������%
������	�)	�	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� /�+ !4 -2 /�4-! ""2 /�13!3 "2 /�+"!+- 2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� ������
�� �������
 � ������	�� ������		 �

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ �
	����� ������ � �
��		� �
�	�

	��	
�		
���
�	�	��	
�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� 	 ����	�� � 	 	

	��	
�		
���

��	��	
�		
�
��*��&��)#�&� �	 ��	 � 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	��	�� �����	�� � /�13!3 "2 /�+"!+- 2

 0� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� /��3!1#�2 /�"0!-412 /"40!�""2 /"3"!#- 2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� ���
�	��� ��
���
� � ��������� �����			 �

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ ������� �����
 � ��		� �
�	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������
�� �������� � /"40!�""2 /"3"!#- 2

 3� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� /"#!40+ 2 /"�!-302 /"+!""�2 /"+!+ 1 2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� ��
����� �����
� � ����
��� �����		�

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ ���	� ���
 � ���� �� �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
����� ������� � /"+!""�2 /"+!+ 1 2

 -� #�  #�����=	�
�E��	
��	�
�(%��������	�	��
��	'� /- !101 2 /-1!  + 2 /-�!+4�2 /-1!"  2
	��	
�		
��
	
	�	��	
�		
�
��
���������� �������� ��
���� � ����	��� ����			�

	��	
�		
���	�	�	��	
�		
��)������ ����
�� �����
 � ���	� ��		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	����� ����		� � /-�!+4�2 /-1!"  2

##�3 �  #������	=	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� /-!�4"2 /##!0 �2 /#" 2  


��	�		
���	�	�

��	�		
��)������ ����� 	 �
�	� 	



��	�		
���
�	�

��	�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� ������� ������ � 	 	



��	�		
���
�	�

��	�		
���%������&'(���&�)�� ����� �����	 � 	 	



��	�		
���
�	�

��	�		
�5�)7�)*�&�#%�)����$�� ���
�	� ���	�� � 	 	

+30�2.!<�+��0" ������� �

��	� � /#" 2  

#"� #�  #���>���	����'���	'���(%��������	�	��
��	'� /00! 1 2 /43! �+2 /+3!0 - 2 /"4!"10 2

��	
�		
���	�	�
��	
�		
��)������ ������� ������ � ��	�� ��	 �


��	
�		
���
	��
��	
�		
�7�)����)� ������� �����
 � �����
� ���
�� �


��	
�		
���

��
��	
�		
��#%�$���%�
�7�)����)� �������� ����
�� � ����
	�� ��	�			�


��	
�		
���

��
��	
�		
�#(����#%�$���%�
�7�)����)� ���	
�� ���	�� � ����� ���			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	�	� ����	�� � /+3!0 - 2 /"4!"10 2

#+� #�  #���>'�	���>��%
	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� /�14!3042 /�11!+#+2 /�-#!#+�2 /�-#!�# 2

��	
�		
��
	
	�
��	
�		
�
��
���������� �������	� �����
�	 � ���	����� ���
��		 �


��	
�		
���	�	�
��	
�		
��)������ ������� ������ � ���	� �

	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��������� ������
� � /�-#!#+�2 /�-#!�# 2

#1�"1�  #����C>*������	�	��
��	'� /-4#!"04 2 /--4!0+4 2 /#!   !-44 2 /#! #�!10 2

�����		
��
	
	�
�����		
�
��
�������������#
7��
�����)* �������
� �������� � ��	���		� ��	��			 �


�����		
��
	

�
�����		
�
��
�������������#
7��&�+9+�#� ������
� ������� � �
��


� ����			�


�����		
��
	
��
�����		
�
��
�������������#
7��7� ��	������ ��
���
� � ��������� ������		 �


�����		
���	�	�
�����		
��)������ ������	� ����	�� � ������� ���			 �


�����		
���
�	�
�����		
��
�#��$���#��
�� �
��		� ��		 � ������� ��		�


�����		
���
�	�
�����		
���%������&'(���&�)�� 	 	 �
��� 	


�����		
���
	��
�����		
�#�)���'(���)��(
7�#(����
�����)* �������� �
	����� � �

������ �

��			 �


�����		
���
	��
�����		
�#�)���'(���)�=(
7�#(����
�+�#�9�&�+ ����

�� ��
���� � �
��
��� ����			�


�����		
���
	��
�����		
�#�)���'(���)��(
7�#(����7��
�����) ����
��� ������� � �
	������ �
	����	 �

��
� -

256



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������-
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""


�����		
���
	��
�			��
�����		
�7,�. 3,�" 	 	 ���			� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
����� �������� � /#!   !-44 2 /#! #�!10 2

#1�"1� 1 �����8��5%���
'

��� /�!00-2 /#!3"3 2 /#!   2 /�!#" 2

�����	�	���

��
�����	�	�
��*��&�+��� ������� �
���� � �
�			� ���
�	 �

#1�"1� 1#�������,�����>�	
	� /"1!"-# 2 /"#!#0# 2   

�����	�
���

��
�����	�
�
��*��&�+��� ������
� ��
�
�
 � 	 	

#1�"1� 1"����
����'
���	'� /3!13- 2 /0! � 2  /3!#+ 2

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� ������� ���	�	 � 	 ���
�	 �

#1�"1� 1+����'%��,������
'

��� /1!4002 /+!+012 /#!+4�2 /3!3 3 2

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� ������� ������ � �
����� ����	� �

#1�"1� 10���>���	����=���� /-!-1# 2 /#1!# + 2 /+!+4 2 /3!#1 2

�����	�����
		�
�����	����
�)����%�
� �
�			� �����	 � ��
�� ��		�


�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� �����
� ����
� � ������� �����	 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
� �
��
	� � /+!+4 2 /3!#1 2

#1�"1� 13�������� /0!4"" 2 /"!��-2 /4 2 /0!10 2

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� ������� ������ � ��	� �����	 �

#1�"1� 1-�����%����
'

��� /" !�- 2 /#0!#1+2 /#!"## 2 /#-! 1 2

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� ��	���	� �
��
�� � �
��

� �
��	�	�

#1�"1� 0 ����<��
���''���
'

�� /""!#1# 2 /"1!+#+ 2  /"4!   2

�����	�	���
	��
�����	�	�7�)����)� 	 ��		 � 	 	


�����	�	���

��
�����	�	�
��*��&�+��� ����
�
� ����

� � 	 ����			�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����
�
� �����
� �  /"4!   2

#1�"1� 0#���5=�
�	
����
	�� /##!43 2 /0!1# 2  /3!40 2

�����	�
���

��
�����	�
�
��*��&�+��� �

���	� ����
	 � 	 �����	 �

#1�"1� 0"���>���	���5�8��	�� /#"!014 2 /-!-4�2  /#�!1"+2

�����	�����
�	�
�����	����
�#��$���#��
�� 	 �
		 � 	 	


�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� �
������ ������ � 	 �
������

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������ ������ �  /#�!1"+2

#1�"1� 0����>�'
���E�(	����� /�!#--2 /"!+44 2 /#1 2 /#!4++2

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� ���
��� ������ � �
�	� �
���� �

#1�"1� 0+���('
�;	���5��8����� /#0!4 �2 /#1!#132 /"13 2 /��!+"12

�����	�����

��
�����	���
��*��&�+��� �
���	�� �
��
�� � ����� ��������

#0� #�  #������	�������
'=������(%��������	�	��
��	'� /#!�4"!"#-2 /�!0#0!#�12 /"! ##!+04 2 /#!0 3!3�12

��
� # 

257



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������# 
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""


��	
�		
��
	�	�
��	
�		
���
$�#�&�)������� ������		� ���
���
 � ���	�	
�� ��		�			 �


��	
�		
���	�	�
��	
�		
��)������ �������� ����
�
 � ���			� �
�			 �


��	
�		
���
�	�
��	
�		
��
�#��$���#��
�� ��
��	��� �
������ � �
�	����� ��	�	���


��	
�		
����		�
��	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� ���	�			� �����	�			 � �����			� 	


��	
�		
���
	��
��	
�		
�7�)����)� 	 ��		�			 � 	 	


��	
�		
����	��
�			��
��	
�		
�*!.� �
!,2��0"�� . ��#.13 ./ 	 	 	 ��		�			 �


��	
�		
����	��
�		
��
��	
�		
�*!.� �
!,2��0"�� . ��#.13 ./ 	 	 ���	�			� ������	
 �


��	
�		
����	���			
��
��	
�		
�*��)��
��#��7��������#�
���$ 	 �����
� � 	 	


��	
�		
����	���
		�
�
��	
�		
�*!.� �
!,2��0"�� . ��#.13 ./ 	 	 	 ���	�			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������
�� ����
��
�� � /"! ##!+04 2 /#!0 3!3�12

#-� #�  #����'�	���(%��������	�	��
��	'� /"+!�032 /"1!#�+2 /#1! +1 2 /"+!++ 2

��	
�		
��
	
	�
��	
�		
�
��
���������� �������� �����
� � �
������ �����		�


��	
�		
���	�	�
��	
�		
��)������ �
��	�� �
��
� � �
�	� ��	 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �������� ����
�� � /#1! +1 2 /"+!++ 2

"#� #�  #���$'�����'
�	F��	'��(%��������	�	��
��	'� /#!#�4!�+12 /#!#41! "0 2 /#!#4+!1" 2 /#!#34!"  2
�
�	
�		
��
	
	��
�	
�		
�
��
���������� �
�
�	����� �
�
����		 � �
�
�����	� �
�
���
		 �

�
�	
�		
���	�	��
�	
�		
��)������ ������� ������ � ���	� �
		�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�
������� �
�
���	�� � /#!#4+!1" 2 /#!#34!"  2

""� #�  #���$'����
'������(%��������	�	��
��	'� /#!#4#! 3# 2 /#!#-0! 31 2 /#!#-+!04" 2 /#!#34!-" 2
���	
�		
���	�	����	
�		
��)������ ������	� ����
�� � ����		� ���	�

���	
�		
����		����	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� �
�
�
�
	
� �
�
����		 � �
�
�
����� �
�
����		 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�
�
�	�
� �
�
���	�� � /#!#-+!04" 2 /#!#34!-" 2

"+� #�  #����������A%	�	�	'��(%��������	�	��
��	'� /#4+!0442 /#-�!+3 2 /#14!"3" 2 /# #!   2
���	
�		
���	�	����	
�		
��)��������)#�&� �
������ �
����� � ���
��� �
�			 �

���	
�		
����		����	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� �
�	�			� �
������ � �
���
	�� �
		�			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
������� �
�����	 � /#14!"3" 2 /# #!   2

"1� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� /##-! �#2 /#" !�#-2 /# "!1  2 /++4!-  2
���	
�		
���	�	����	
�		
��)������ �
��	�
� ��	��
� � ����		� ��		�

���	
�		
����		����	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� �
		�			� �
		�			 � �
		�			� �
		�			 �

���	
�		
����	��
�		
�����	
�		
�*!.� �
!,2��0"�� . ��#.13 ./ 	 	 	 �����			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �

��	�
� �
�	��
� � /# "!1  2 /++4!-  2

"0� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� /# +!-0# 2 /# 0!-� 2 /#  !3 " 2 /#  !�  2
���	
�		
���	�	����	
�		
��)������ �����
� �����	 � ��	�� ��		�

���	
�		
����		����	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� �
		�			� �
		�			 � �
		�			� �
		�			 �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
	����
� �
	����	 � /#  !3 " 2 /#  !�  2

"4� #�  #���6�
����������
�(%��������	�	��
��	'� /"!  +!01+ 2 /#! 1#!134 2 /"! -+!3 4 2 /1!#-+!1+3 2
���	
�		
���	�	����	
�		
��)������ 	 ��
��
� � ���			� 	

���	
�		
���
	�����	
�		
�7�)����)� 
��			 	 	 	

���	
�		
���	�	��			
�����	
�		
��)������ 	 �
�
	� � ��		� 	

���	
�		
���
�	�
�		
�����	
�		
�� :�!���3->�!"�-�� " 	 	 ����
��� 	

���	
�		
����		�
�		
�����	
�		
��!.�"6�!��� ���			�			� 	 	 ����	����� �

���	
�		
���
	��
�		
�����	
�		
�7�)����)� �������� �������
 � �
���	����� �����	�			 �

���	
�		
���
����			
�����	
�		
�#.13 ./�7,�. 3,�" 	 �
����� � �������� ����			�

���	
�		
����	
�
�		
�����	
�		
�*��)��
��#��7����+�7���$�#�
���$ 	 �
����		 � ���		 	

���	
�		
����	���			
�����	
�		
�*��)��
��#��7��������#�
���$ 	 �
��
�	 � ��		�			� ��		�			 �

��
� ##

258



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������##
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���		������ �
�	�
���� � /"! -+!3 4 2 /1!#-+!1+3 2

"4�� �#0#���6�
����������
�(%�����(��	�	�	��  /#1 !   2  /#1 !   2
����	�
�
����		�����	�
�
��!.�"6�!��� 	 �
�	�			 � 	 �
�	�			 �

������'����*�=��%�� /"#!3-#! "" 2 /"�!"-1!4#-2 /" !# #!31- 2 /"1!4#�! ""2

������?1��03 �!�"

GGG�C����	
�������'%����GGG   #1!#"�  
	��	
�		
���		
��

&	��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 
����� 	

	���	�	�
��
		��	���	�	�
�
��
��*��&�7���#���9�(
��5���� 	 	 �� 	

	���	�
�	��
�	��	���	�
�	�
���)���(#��� 	 	 ��� 	

	���	�
�
��
�	��	���	�
�
�
���)���(#���� 	 	 ��� 	

7,��, ��"��6��0" 	 	 3-  

 #� #�  #���&���
������	�	��
��	'� �!�- !# - +!"##!113 #!-##!#43 "!-""!0#"
	
�	
�		
���
���	
�	
�		
�7�� ./���"�!.�2� 
����� 
��	�	 
����� 
���
	

	
�	
�		
���
���	
�	
�		
�&�032./�%�./ :���"�!.�2� �	����� ����	�� ����			 ����			

	
�	
�		
���
���	
�	
�		
�$36����"�!.�2� ����� ����� ���		 ���		

	
�	
�		
���
���	
�	
�		
��-1/,<����""3" .�2��
!,4!.- 
���� 
��	� 
���	 
����

	
�	
�		
����	
�	
�	
�		
�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 ����� ����� ��
		 �����

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��� 
���� ���		 ���		

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�� .66�&�� 3�4" ��� 
�� �	 
�	

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 
���� ���
� ���		 �����

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
��	� 
�	�� ��� 
�	��

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 ��	
� ��	�� ��
	� ��			

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
���
� 

��
� 
����	 
��			

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 

��
� ����� ��

� ���		

	
�	
�		
����
	�	
�	
�		
�',.!0��?1��"� ����� ����� �		 ���		

	
�	
�		
����
��	
�	
�		
��  ,!��<�+��" 
�	���� ������ 
����		 
���			

	
�	
�		
����
��	
�	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" �
���	 �
���	 �
��		 �
��		

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
��� ,��//,@.�2� 
	� �� �	� ��

	
�	
�		
�����	�	
�	
�		
��A�31-�� ���� ./ �	 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
���!�32��#,� !.2 " �	���� ������ ����		 ����		

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
�$32��"����0�+��" 
���
� 
����� ���
�� 
��			

	
�	
�		
�����	�	
�	
�		
�
�!",���/�#," " ������ �
���� 
��			 �����


	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
�%�./ :���0�B�//��"" ���
	 ���	� 
��
	 �����

	
�	
�		
�����	�	
�	
�		
�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ����� ����� ��			 ��			

	
�	
�		
�����
�	
�	
�		
�
.!C���0���2!�. 3,���?2�//��2� 
�
�� ��	 ����� 
��		

	
�	
�		
����	
�	
�	
�		
��6632����11/3�" ����
 ��

� ��			 ��			

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�����/,1�"���0�� . 3,�.!< ��� ��� �		 �		

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 
��
� 
���� 
�			 
��		

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�#:�2C"���0�'.�C���11/3�" 
���� 
���� 
���� 
��		

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
�',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " ��� 	 �

 �		

	
�	
�		
����
��	
�	
�		
�� .66�(�36,!-" ����� ���
� ���		 �����

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 �� 	 	 �		

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
�+/,@�!"���0�#.!0" ��� ��
 
�	�	 �		

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
�
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� ��� �		 ���

	
�	
�		
�����	�	
�	
�		
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�
��  	 	

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
�+,,0���11/3�" ��	�� ��� 
�	 �		

	
�	
�		
�����
�	
�	
�		
�*."���0��/�2 !323 < ������ 
����
 
��			 ���			

	
�	
�		
�������	
�	
�		
���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ����	� ������ ���			 ���			

	
�	
�		
���		��	
�	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ��	 	 
	
 	

	
�	
�		
����	��	
�	
�		
��!.�"6�!"��,�� :�!�+��0" 
��		�			 ����	�			 �		�			 
��		�			

��
� #"

259



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#"
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
�	
�		
����
��	
�	
�		
�
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ��	 ��	 
�� ���

	
�	
�		
����
��	
�	
�		
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" �	
 �	� �
� �		

	
�	
�		
��			
�	
�	
�		
��?�2� 3���73!�2 ,! 
���
�
 
���	�� 
	����	 	

	
�	
�		
��	
	
�	
�	
�		
�7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ������� ��	���� �	����� 	

	
�	
�		
��	�	
�	
�	
�		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
����		 ��	�			

	
�	
�		
��	�	��	
�	
�		
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 
���		 �����	

	
�	
�		
��	�	
�	
�	
�		
��6632��� .669��11,! �	����
 �
��	�� 
������ 	

	
�	
�		
��	�	
�	
�	
�		
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
������ 
�	���� 

����	 	

	
�	
�		
��	�	
�	
�	
�		
�'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! �	���
 ������ ����
� 	

	
�	
�		
��	�	��	
�	
�		
�
���6632��� .669��11,! �
�
�� ����		 ������ 	

	
�	
�		
��	�	��	
�	
�		
�
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! ��� ��� �� 	

	
�	
�		
���		��	
�	
�		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ������ �	���� �����	 �	�			

	
�	
�		
��				�	
�	
�		
��? !.,!03�.!<�$,""�����" -�� 	 �
��
�� � 	 	

	
�	
�		
����	��
�		
��	
�	
�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 
�� ��

	
�	
�		
�������
�)#	
�	
�	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 �	��	� 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
�������
�)#	��	
�	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 ����	 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
�������
�)#	��	
�	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 
	���
 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
��������	)#	
�	
�	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 	 ����	 	 	

	
�	
�		
���		
�
�
&	��	
�	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 

�			 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
���		
�
�
&	��	
�	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 
�			 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
���		��
���#%�	
�	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ������ 	 	 	

	
�	
�		
���		���	��#%�	
�	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 ���
�� ��� 	

	
�	
�		
���		���
��#%�	
�	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ���
�	 	

	
�	
�		
���		������#%�	
�	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 ���			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	�
	� ���

���� #!-##!#43 "!-""!0#"

 #�# �  0���?'�%����
� 0!��� 1!1�4 �!33" +!341
	
�
	�		�����	��	
�
	�		��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 	 
�	

	
�
	�		�����	��	
�
	�		���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
	 	 	 
		

	
�
	�		�����
��	
�
	�		��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ����� 
���	 	 ���

	
�
	�		��������	
�
	�		��
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� ��� 	 �		

	
�
	�		������	�	
�
	�		����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 	 �
� 
�	

	
�
	�		��������	
�
	�		��+,,0���11/3�" �	 �� 	 �		

	
�
	�		���	�	
�	
�
	�		��+�//��3-���./.!3�"�.�0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���		

	
�
	�		���
		
�	
�
	�		��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� ����� ����	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����� �!33" +!341

 #�# � 0-���6�
���	�
 #�#!1-4 #"0!- - ##"!�43 #�#!+#3

	
�
	�	������	
�	
�
	�	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 	 
�� 	 
�	

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��
�
 
���� ��
 
���	

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���� .66�&�� 3�4" �� 	 	 	

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �
���� 
���	� 

���� 
��			

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 �	 
�� 	 �		

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
���� ��� 
���� 
���	

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���� 
��	� 	 ���		

	
�
	�	������
��	
�
	�	���
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 

��	� 
��
	� 
	�	�� 
��	�	

	
�
	�	���������	
�
	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 " 	 	 
��		 ���		

	
�
	�	���������	
�
	�	���$32��"����0�+��" 
���	 
���� ��� 
���	

	
�
	�	���������	
�
	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" ��� ��� 
�	�
 
�	�	

	
�
	�	������	
�	
�
	�	����6632����11/3�" 
��
� ��� ��� �		

	
�
	�	������	��	
�
	�	���
:, ,4!.1:32���11/3�" 
�� 
	� 	 
	�

	
�
	�	���������	
�
	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��
�� ��	 ��� ���

	
�
	�	�������	�	
�
	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��		
 ����� ��� �����

	
�
	�	���������	
�
	�	���+,,0���11/3�" 
�	 ��� 	 ���

	
�
	�	����	
	
�	
�
	�	���7�1.! -�� �%�.0 �
���� �����
 ������ 	

	
�
	�	����	�	
�	
�
	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���			 ����		

	
�
	�	����	�	
�	
�
	�	����6632��� .669��11,! 
��	�� 
����� ����� 	

��
� #�

260



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#�
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
�
	�	����	�	��	
�
	�	���
���6632��� .669��11,! 
	���	 ���
� 	 	

	
�
	�	�����		��	
�
	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��� ��� �	� ��	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�
���� 
����	� ##"!�43 #�#!+#3

 #�" �  #���5��
��	'������	�	��
��	'� ""-!##- "�+!#"" "++!#3" #1#!#1-
	
��	�		
����	
�	
��	�		
�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 �
 
	   
		

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �	� 
�
 ��	 
		

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 
�� 

� 
		 
��		

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 	 
�� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� 	 ��� ���

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ ��	�� 
���	 �

 
��		

	
��	�		
����
��	
��	�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 
�	�� �� 	 	

	
��	�		
�������	
��	�		
���!�32��#,� !.2 " ����� ����� ����� ����	

	
��	�		
�����	�	
��	�		
���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ��	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	
��	�		
�������	
��	�		
�#�//�
:,����?1��"� ��	�� ����� ����� ���		

	
��	�		
�����	�	
��	�		
�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" �
� 
�� 	 ��
		

	
��	�		
����	
�	
��	�		
��6632����11/3�" 
���� 
���� ��� 
�			

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 	 �� 	 
		

	
��	�		
����	��	
��	�		
�
:, ,4!.1:32���11/3�"  � 	 	

	
��	�		
����
��	
��	�		
�� .66�(�36,!-" ��
�� ����� ���	
 ��			

	
��	�		
����
��	
��	�		
�&,� :/<�����3�4�5��0,!��?1��"�" �
�	��� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
�����	�	
��	�		
��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" ��
�	 ��� 
��		 ��			

	
��	�		
�����
�	
��	�		
�*."���0��/�2 !323 < ����� ���	� ��			 ��			

	
��	�		
�������	
��	�		
�B. �! ����	 ��		� ����	 ���		

	
��	�		
�������	
��	�		
���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 	 ��� 	 �		

	
��	�		
���		
�	
��	�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 
	� 	

	
��	�		
���		��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 � 	 	

	
��	�		
��	
	
�	
��	�		
�7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ����
	 ���	�� ����
� 	

	
��	�		
��	�	
�	
��	�		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���			 ����		

	
��	�		
��	�	
�	
��	�		
��6632��� .669��11,! ���
�� ������ 
���
� 	

	
��	�		
���		��	
��	�		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ����� ��	�	 ��	�� ��			

	
��	�		
����	��
�			��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�			��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�			��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�		
	�	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�		

�	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" ��� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�		
��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
��&	��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	��
�5�	��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���				��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���				��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 
�� 	

	
��	�		
����	���			
	�	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���			
��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���			
��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���			
��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���	�&	��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
����	���
�&	��	
��	�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 	 
�
 	

	
��	�		
����
��
�		

�	
��	�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 

���� ����

 	 	

	
��	�		
���		
�
�
&	��	
��	�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ���
� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
���		
�
�
&	��	
��	�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ��
 	 	 	

	
��	�		
���		
��

&	
�	
��	�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ���	
 	

	
��	�		
���		
��

&	��	
��	�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ��

� 	

	
��	�		
���		��
��&	
�	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ��
�
 	 	 	

	
��	�		
���		��
��&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ���	
� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
���		��
��&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 

��
� 	 	 	

	
��	�		
���		��
��&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ����� �� 	 	

	
��	�		
���		���	�&	
�	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 ��
�� 	 	

	
��	�		
���		���	�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 
����� 	 	

��
� #+

261



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#+
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
��	�		
���		���	�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 
��
�� 	 	

	
��	�		
���		���	�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� �
� ���	� 	 	

	
��	�		
���		���
�&	
�	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ����� 	

	
��	�		
���		���
�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ����		 	

	
��	�		
���		���
�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ���	�� 	

	
��	�		
���		���
�&	��	
��	�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ��			 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����

� ����
�� "++!#3" #1#!#1-

 #�" � 4 ���>�<��8 #3!014 #0!+++ #4!+�+ #-!-1 
	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�� .66��!.3�3�4 ��
 
�� 	 ��	

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 " 	 ��			 ��			 ��			

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�$32��"����0�+��" ��� ��� ��� ��	

	
��	�	�	����	
�	
��	�	�	��6632����11/3�" 	 ��� �� ��

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�+3!" ��309&�032./���11/3�" ����� ����� ��� ���		

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	��.6� <���11/3�" ��		� ����� 
	�
�� ��			

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ��� ��� ��� ���

	
��	�	�	�������
�
&	��	
��	�	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 " ��			 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
����� #4!+�+ #-!-1 

 #�" � 4#�������������6�	�������� 10 !34# 1- !+-0 14-!11- 0#-!"" 
	
��	�	�
����	��	
��	�	�
�� .66��!.3�3�4 	 ��� ��� �		

	
��	�	�
����	��	
��	�	�
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��	 ��	 ��� �		

	
��	�	�
����	��	
��	�	�
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���
 ��� 	 �		

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�$.�063//�+��" �
�	
	 
����	 
����� 
��			

	
��	�	�
�����
�	
��	�	�
�5�:32/����1.3! 
	���� ��
�� ����	 ��			

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
��A�31-�� ���1.3! ��
�	 ��

� 
���� ���		

	
��	�	�
�����	�	
��	�	�
��A�31-�� ���� ./ ����� ����� ��			 ��			

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�
�" �#,� !,/ 
���	 
�� �� �		

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�$32��"����0�+��" 	 ��� �	
 
		

	
��	�	�
�����
�	
��	�	�
���!�32��#,� !.2 "�*!,��0" 
��		� 
���
� 
����� 
��			

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�#,� !.2 �./�&,@3�4 
�����
 
����	
 
����	� 
���			

	
��	�	�
�����	�	
��	�	�
�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ����� 	 	 	

	
��	�	�
����
��	
��	�	�
�� .66�(�36,!-" ��� ��� ��� �		

	
��	�	�
�����
�	
��	�	�
�$.�0"2.1����11/3�" ����� 
���
 
���� ���		

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
��A�31-�� ���0��,,/" ��� ����� ��
�� ��			

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " 
����� 
����� ������ 
��			

	
��	�	�
�����	�	
��	�	�
�*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ �	��
� ������ 
����� ���			

	
��	�	�
�����
�	
��	�	�
�#:�-32./" 

�	�� ����� ��	�� ��			

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�
.3� " �� 
� 
� 
		

	
��	�	�
�������	
��	�	�
�
/.� �&. �!3./" 
����� 
��
�� ����� 
���		

	
��	�	�
��	�	
�	
��	�	�
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����		 �����		

	
��	�	�
��	�	��	
��	�	�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ���		 ���			

	
��	�	�
��	�	
�	
��	�	�
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ����	� ������ �����	 	

	
��	�	�
��	�	
�	
��	�	�
��1�!. 3,�"�� .66 ������� ��	��

 
������ 	

	
��	�	�
����	��	
��	�	�
�
����.",�./�� .66 ����	
 ����	� ���
�� 	

	
��	�	�
���		��	
��	�	�
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 	 	 
���� ����	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	���
 ��	���� 14-!11- 0#-!"" 

 #�" � 4"���(��	�	�	���E��A%	����� ++#!4  ++3!+-3 +"�!"# +0�!## 

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 �� 	 	 
�			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$.�063//�+��" ����� 
	���� 

���� 

�			

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���5�:32/����1.3! ��
�� ����� ��
�� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! ��	�� 
�
�� ��� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 
���� 
���	 ���
� ��			

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 	 	 ��	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ �	� �	� ��� �		

��
� #1

262



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#1
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$32��"����0�+��" 
���� 
��
	 
���	 
��		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ��		� 
���� ����� ���		

	
��	�	������
��	
��	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� �
� 
�	 �		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ����� ����� 
	���� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ���	� ����� ���
	 ���		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���0��,,/" ����� ����� ����� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����:,1��A�31-�� ���0���11/3�" ���
� ��
�� ����� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ���	� ��	�� 
��
� ��			

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ 
����� 

�
�� ����� 
��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
.3� " �� 
�� �� 
		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
���	 ��� 
��
� ��			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �	�			 ������	

	
��	�	����	�	��	
��	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ����	
 ������ ������ 	

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 �
����� ��	���� ������� 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 ���	
� ����
	 ����� 	

	
��	�	�����		��	
��	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " �
� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
��		 ������� +"�!"# +0�!## 

 #�" � 4������
��6�	�������� #+1!-+" #+�!433 #�1! -1 #4�!3  

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! ��	

 ����� ��� ���		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ ����� 
���� ��	�� ��			

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�*!,��0" 
��	�� 
����� 
����� �	�			

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ����	 ��	�
 

���� ��			

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���$.�0"2.1����11/3�" ���
� ����
 ����� ���		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� 
�	�� �
 
��		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ �	� 
�� 

� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
.3� " 
� �� 
� 
		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" ����� ����� ����
 ��			

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < �
��	� 
����� 
��
	� 
���		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���B. �! ������ ������ �����	 ���			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 
�		� ����� ��
�� ��			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���		 ����		

	
��	�	����	�	��	
��	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
��			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 �
��	� �����
 ������ 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 ����� 
	�	�
 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
������ 
������ #�1! -1 #4�!3  

 #�" � 4+���(�'7�
�������� #0-!40" #0"!"0+ #31!- 1 #3"!341
	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �	
 ��� 	 �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$.�063//�+��" 
�	 ��	 �
� ��	

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���5�:32/����1.3! ��� 	 	 
�			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 
�� �� 
		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 

� 	 	 
		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�*!,��0" �	� ��� 	 	

	
��	�	������	
�	
��	�	����6632����11/3�" �	 	 �� ��

	
��	�	������
��	
��	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" ��� 	 
�� ��	

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���$.�0"2.1����11/3�" ��	�� ����� ����	 ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���0��,,/" ��� ��� ��� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " �� 
�	�� 
�
�
 
��		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ����	 ���
� ��
�	 ���		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���#:�-32./" ��� �� �
� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
/.� �&. �!3./" ������ ���

� ����	� ���			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���B. �! ��
�� ��	�� ����	 ���		

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �
�			 ����		

	
��	�	����	�	��	
��	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��
		 ���			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
���

 
��	
� 
����� 	

��
� #0

263



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#0
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 �����	 ������ ���
�� 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 �����	 ������ 
���
� 	

	
��	�	�����		��	
��	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 
�� �� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
������ 
������ #31!- 1 #3"!341

 #�" � 41�����
��(�'7�
� "- !1-1 "+-!-1+ " +!30+ "0"!4-1
	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 
�
�	 
�	 
�� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$.�063//�+��" �	� ��� ��� ��	

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���5�:32/����1.3! 
���� 	 	 
��		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! � ��� �� �		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
�	 	 	 �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$32��"����0�+��" 
�� 
	� 
�� 
		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�*!,��0" ��� ��� 	 	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" 	 �� 	 ��

	
��	�	������	
�	
��	�	����6632����11/3�" ��� �
 
�� 
		

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
:, ,4!.1:32���11/3�" �	 	 	 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " �� 	 	 
		

	
��	�	������
��	
��	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" ��� ��� ��� �		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���$.�0"2.1����11/3�" ���	� ����
 ���
� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���0��,,/" 
���� 
��	� 
�	�� ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ��	 
���� 
�
�� ��			

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ����	 ����� ����� ���		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���#:�-32./" 
���� �� ��� 
�			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
/.� �&. �!3./" ����
� ������ ���	�	 ���			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���		 
�	�			

	
��	�	����	�	��	
��	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �	�			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ���

� 
����� 
���
� 	

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 
	����
 
	���
� �	���� 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 ������ ������ ������ 	

	
��	�	�����		��	
��	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 
�� �
 �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	���� ������� " +!30+ "0"!4-1

 #�" � 4-���>���	����
'.���� #-3!31# #"+!1"4 #+ !4"1 #+"! 01
	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 	 
�	 �� 
�	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
� 	 	 	

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���5�:32/����1.3! 
���� ��		� 	 ��			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! ��� ��� ��� 
�			

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ �	� 	 	 ��	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���$32��"����0�+��" 	 	 	 
�	

	
��	�	������
��	
��	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 	 �
� �
	 ��	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��	 ��� 
���
 ���		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �� �� ��� �	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
/.<4!,��0�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ����� 
�	�� ����� ���		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���0��,,/" ����� 
���� �

 
�			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ��� 
�	�� 
�

� 
�			

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	����-��3 <�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ���		 ����� ����� ���		

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ��	�� 
��
� ����� ��
		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���#:�-32./" ��� 
�� �	� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
.3� " ��� �
 

� �		

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" �� ��� ��� ���

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
��			 ����		

	
��	�	����	�	��	
��	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �
�			

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" �����
 ����	� ������ 	

	
��	�	����	�	
�	
��	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 


���
 ���	�� ������ 	

	
��	�	������	��	
��	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 �
��	� 
���� 	 	

	
��	�	�����		��	
��	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " �

 �
� 
�� 	

	
��	�	�����		��
��&	��	
��	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 
���		 	 	 	

��
� #4

264



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#4
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
��	�	�����		���	�&	��	
��	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 
����	 	 	

	
��	�	�����		���
�&	��	
��	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 �����	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�����
 
������ #+ !4"1 #+"! 01

 #�" � 3 ���H��%
����
��� # 3!0"� 33!--+ 04!1-1 43!11 
	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�� .66��!.3�3�4 ��� �� �	 	

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
�			 
�			 	 
�			

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
� 	 	 	

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�$.�063//�+��" 
�	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	��A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 	 	 
		

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�$32��"����0�+��" 	 	 	 
		

	
��	�	�	����	
�	
��	�	�	��6632����11/3�" 	 
� 	 	

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " �� 	 	 	

	
��	�	�	����
��	
��	�	�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� 	 	 	

	
��	�	�	�����
�	
��	�	�	�$.�0"2.1����11/3�" ��	 
�	 

� 
�			

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�
!�"2!3>�0�'�!����11/3�" ��
 ��
 	 �		

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	��A�31-�� ���0��,,/" �	� ��	 
���	 
�			

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ��� ��� 	 �		

	
��	�	�	�����	�	
��	�	�	�*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ 
��
� 
��	� 
�	�� 
�
		

	
��	�	�	�����
�	
��	�	�	�#:�-32./" 
��	� ��� ��� 
�			

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�
/.� �&. �!3./" ����� ����� ����� ���		

	
��	�	�	�������	
��	�	�	�+3":���" ,2C3�4 ��			 ��			 
���� 
��		

	
��	�	�	��	�	
�	
��	�	�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� ����		

	
��	�	�	��	�	��	
��	�	�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��
 ���			

	
��	�	�	��	�	
�	
��	�	�	�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
��
�� 
	���� 

�	�� 	

	
��	�	�	��
		
�	
��	�	�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ������ ������ ������ 	

	
��	�	�	����	��	
��	�	�	�
����.",�./�� .66 ������ �
���
 ����	 	

	
��	�	�	���		��	
��	�	�	��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 
�� �� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
	����� ������ 04!1-1 43!11 

 #�" ��  ��������	�
 #41!�-" #4 !+01 #+-!##1 " +!�- 

	
��	��		����	
�	
��	��		�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 �� 	 � �	

	
��	��		����	��	
��	��		�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
��
� ��� 
�� 
�			

	
��	��		����	��	
��	��		�� .66�&�� 3�4" �� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	��	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� �	 �		

	
��	��		����	��	
��	��		�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� ��� 
���� 
��		

	
��	��		����	��	
��	��		�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���
 ��� ��� 
��		

	
��	��		����
��	
��	��		��!2:3 �2 ���0���43���!3�4�+��" 
	���� 
���� ���
� �	�			

	
��	��		����
��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 ���		 	 �	�			

	
��	��		�������	
��	��		���!�32��#,� !.2 " 	 	 �� 	

	
��	��		�������	
��	��		�$32��"����0�+��" ����	 ��	�	 ����� ����	

	
��	��		����	
�	
��	��		��6632����11/3�" �

 ��� 
�� ��	

	
��	��		��	
	
�	
��	��		�7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ���	�� �����	 ����

 	

	
��	��		��	�	
�	
��	��		�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����		 

	�			

	
��	��		��	�	
�	
��	��		��6632��� .669��11,! ������ �	���� ����
� 	

	
��	��		���		��	
��	��		��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��
 ��	 �	� ��	

	
��	��		����	��
�		

�	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 
�� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	��
�		�
�	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	��
�			��	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	��
�			��	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	��
�			��	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����	���			

�	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	
��	��		����	���			
��	
��	��		�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� �	 	

	
��	��		����
��
�		
��	
��	��		��!2:3 �2 ���0���43���!3�4�+��" 
	�			 	 	 	

	
��	��		����
��
�		
��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ��� 	 	 	

	
��	��		����
��
�		�
�	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ���		 ����	 ������ 	

	
��	��		����
��
�			��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" �� ��� 	 	

��
� #3

265



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#3
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	
��	��		����
��
�			��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 �		 	 �	�			

	
��	��		����
��
�			��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ���		 	 	 	

	
��	��		����
��
�		
��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 
���� 	 ����		

	
��	��		����
���				��	
��	��		�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 	 ����� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
������ 
�	���� #+-!##1 " +!�- 

 #�� � 44���>�������
� # "  "!34"  
	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���'(�$7�)*���
��� 	 	 ��	�	 	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 	 �
� 	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
	� 	 �
� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
	� 	 "!34"  

 #�� � -#���>����	�
���
� #!+43 /#!�-�2   
	
��	�	�
�����
�	
��	�	�
�*."���0��/�2 !323 < 
���� �
���� � 	 	

 #�� � -3����'%
�����$
������	)
�
8 #1!""� -!111 3! 3#  
	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 
���� �� ��
 	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ ��	 ��	 ��	 	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "���+.23/3 3�" ����� ��
�� ���	� 	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��	�� ��
 
	� 	

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" �
	 �� ��� 	

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 
���� 
���	 
���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� ����� 3! 3#  

 #�0 � -0������	����)�
��&�
���� "!"4+ "!13+ "!44 �!1"1

	
��	�	�������	�	
��	�	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 	 	 	 �		

	
��	�	�������
�	
��	�	���$.�0"2.1����11/3�" 
�� 
�� 
�
 ���

	
��	�	���������	
��	�	���B. �! ��
�	 ����� ����� ���		

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����� "!44 �!1"1

 "� #�  #���*��
���	'�����	�	��
��	'� #!�0+!3�4 3 4!30# 0-�!+#0 "!"-0!0-3
	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�7�� ./���"�!.�2� ����� ��
�� ���		 ���		

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�&�032./�%�./ :���"�!.�2� 
������ 
������ 
�	���� 
���			

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�$36����"�!.�2� ���	� 
���� 
��

 
���	

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
��-1/,<����""3" .�2��
!,4!.- �	� ��� ��	 �		

	��	
�		
����	
�	��	
�		
�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4��?1��"� 
����� 
����� �
	 ���		

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �	�	�� �����
 
� 
�			

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�� .66�&�� 3�4" 
�
 � 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" �� �� �� �		

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 
��

 
�	�� ��	 
�			

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ����	 ����� ����� ����	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ ��	�� 
���	 ��� ��			

	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 ���		 	 	

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
��� ,��//,@.�2� �
� 
�� 
� 
�	

	��	
�		
�����
�	��	
�		
�5�:32/����1.3! ����� ��	�	 	 ��			

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�#�//�
:,����?1��"� 	 	 
���� 
���	

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�
�!",���/�#," " 	 	 ����	 �	��		

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ��	 	 	 	

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
��� �!��� 31��0 	 	 
��		 ���		

	��	
�		
����	
�	��	
�		
��6632����11/3�" 
�
 
	 ��� �		

	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
�� .66�(�36,!-" ���� ��� � 	 	

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�5�:32/�9�A�31���1.3!�
.! " ��� ���    �		

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�+��/�
�!2:."�" ���		 
���� 
�� 
��		

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
� 	 	 	

��
� #-

266



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������#-
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��	
�		
���		
�	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 �� 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
��!.�"6�!"��,�� :�!�+��0" 
�			�			 �		�			 �����		 
��������

	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ������ ����
� 
���	� �	�			

	��	
�		
��	
	
�	��	
�		
�7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ������ �
���� ���
�� 	

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���
�� �		�			

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
��6632��� .66 ������ ������ ���	�� 	

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ������ ������ ������ 	

	��	
�		
��
�	��	��	
�		
�
��*���!./�� .66 	 ��� 	 	

	��	
�		
���		��	��	
�		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 
����� 
���	� 
��	�
 
��			

	��	
�		
���		
��				��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 
����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�������� �	����
 0-�!+#0 "!"-0!0-3

 "�� � " ����'%
���������9 #+!�03 # !#3" 4! #1 #+!4 1
	���	�	�	����	��	���	�	�	�� .66��!.3�3�4 	 	 	 ��	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�'�3/03�4���1.3! 
�� �	� 	 ��	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�
�" �#,� !,/ �		 �		 �		 �		

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ���	� 
���� 
���� 
�
		

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ��	 	 	 �		

	���	�	�	����	
�	���	�	�	��6632����11/3�" 
�	�
 ��	 �� 
��		

	���	�	�	����
��	���	�	�	�� .66�(�36,!-" ���� 	 	 
		

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��� 
�		� �	� 
�			

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� ��� �� ���

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" �� �� �	 
�	

	���	�	�	�����
�	���	�	�	�*."���0��/�2 !323 < ���	� ����
 ��	�� ��			

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�B. �! ��� �	� ��
 ��	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 
���� 
���	 
�	�	 ��			

	���	�	�	��
�	��	���	�	�	�
��'�3/03�49
.!C��1���!" �	� 
�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
	�
�� 4! #1 #+!4 1

 "�� � "#���:�8�������
 "3!"#- "�!3#4 #+!01+ �+!3"1

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
�$.�063//�+��" ��� ��
 ��� �		

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
�'�3/03�4���1.3! �� ��� 	 ��			

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
�
�" �#,� !,/ ��� ��� ��� ���

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
���!�32��#,� !.2 " �	 �� 	 
		

	���	�	�
�����	�	���	�	�
���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ��� ��� 
�	�� 
�			

	���	�	�
����	
�	���	�	�
��6632����11/3�" ��� �
� ��� 
�			

	���	�	�
����	��	���	�	�
�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 
�� 	 	 �		

	���	�	�
�����	�	���	�	�
�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
�	
� 
��	
 
	� 
�			

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� 
�	�� ��	 
�			

	���	�	�
�����	�	���	�	�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 
		 	 ��			

	���	�	�
�����	�	���	�	�
��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" ��� 
�� �� �		

	���	�	�
�����
�	���	�	�
�*."���0��/�2 !323 < ����� ���
� ���	� ��			

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
�B. �! 
�	�� 
�	�� �
� 
�
		

	���	�	�
�������	���	�	�
���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ����� ����� ����	 ���		

	���	�	�
��	�	
�	���	�	�
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��� �		

	���	�	�
��	�	��	���	�	�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��
 ���		

	���	�	�
��	�	��	���	�	�
�
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! ����� ����� 
�	�� 	

	���	�	�
��
�	��	���	�	�
�
��'�3/03�49
.!C��1���!" ����� 
���� 
�
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����
� ����
� #+!01+ �+!3"1

 "�� � 40���$����(	���� "30!31� "33!440 "4+!- 4 "-#!-1 
	���	�	������	
�	���	�	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 	 	   	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 	 ��� �	 ��	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
�� ��
 �	 ���

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
�� �� 	 �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���5�:32/����1.3! ��� 	 	 	

��
� " 

267



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������" 
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! ��
�� ��
�� ��� ��
��

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! ����� 
���� �� 
����

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
���� 	 
�
		 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���$32��"����0�+��" 	 
	� �	 
�	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�*!,��0" 
���� ����� ��	�� ����	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� ��� 	 ��	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ���
� ���
� 
	���� ���		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���$.�0"2.1����11/3�" 
	���� 
	�	

 ��
�� 
	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���0��,,/" ���
� ����� ��� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ����� ����� ����� ���		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ����� ����� ����� ���		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#:�-32./" 

���� 
	�

� 
	���� 
	�
�	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
.3� " ���
� 
	�
�� ����� 
	�
�	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.� �&. �!3./" ���		 ����� ��� ����	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
��
	 ���� � ��� 
�
		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < �	��
� ������ �����
 ���			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! ���
�� ���
�� ����
� ����		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �
���� ����		

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ����� ���			

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���'.//�+3�/0�&4!H9��1�H �����	 ����	� �����
 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	����1�!. 3,�"�� .66 ������ ����	� ������ 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
����.",�./�� .66 �
�
�� ������ 
����� 	

	���	�	�����		��	���	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " �
	 �

 
�� 	

	���	�	�����		��
��&	��	���	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 
����� 	 	 	

	���	�	�����		���	�&	��	���	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 ���		 	 	

	���	�	�����		���
�&	��	���	�	����,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 

���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� ������� "4+!- 4 "-#!-1 

 "�� � -#���>����	�
���
� #�-    
	���	�	�
�����	�	���	�	�
�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
�� 	 	 	

 "�� � -"����'%
������'��%�	�8������
 " "!#31 #04!+11 #"�!�33 #40! 11
	���	�	������	
�	���	�	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 	 � 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 
� 	 
�	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �� � 	 �	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 �� � 
� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" �		 �� 	 �	

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 	 	 ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 
���� ����	 
��
� ��			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ �		 �		 �		 �		

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 " 
�	�� ��
 ��� �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ����� 
���� ����� ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#�//�
:,����?1��"� 	 
� �
� 
�	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" 	 �		 �� �	

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" ��� ��� 
	� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 �		

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" ��� ��� ��� �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ����� ����� ��		� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ����� ��

� ��� 
��		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� �� 
�� 
�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" 
� 	 	 �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" �
	 �	� ��� �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < ���	�	 
����� 
����� ���			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! 
�
�
 
���� 
���� 
��		

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ����� 
��	� 
���� �����

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
����� ���			

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 
���� �
����

��
� "#

268



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"#
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	����6632��� .669��11,! �	���� �
���� �
���	 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ����
� ���
�	 ������ 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H �
���� 	 	 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
���6632��� .669��11,! 
����� 
����� �	 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! ���	
 
����� ��

� 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 
���� �� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
���3 ����1�!�3",! 
����� 
����� ����� 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��'�3/03�49
.!C��1���!" ����� 
�
�� 
�	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �	��
�� 
������ #"�!�33 #40! 11

 "�� � -��������$	�������	��������
 -34 "!+"� -!#3+  
	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ 	 �	 �
� 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" �� �� ����	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 	 	 
��	� 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" �� ���� � ��� 	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < ��� ����	 ��		� 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! ��� ��� ��� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��� ����� -!#3+  

 "�� � -+���;�%<�������� 0!101 1!0+ 1!#"# 1!33 
	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ ��	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" �� 	 �� 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" �� 	 �	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �� 	 	 �	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" ��	 ��� �
� �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < ����	 ����� ����� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! ��� ��� ��� ��	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 
���	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �		

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
���� 
��
� 
���� 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 ��
 ��� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����	 1!#"# 1!33 

 "�� � -4���$6�,��=	�	'��*�����   "!4"" #0!33 
	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 	 ��� �		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���		 
����	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 	 	 "!4"" #0!33 

 "�� �#11����'
���
� �!-"1 +!""- 3!"14 "#!4  
	���	�
������	��	���	�
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 
�	

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��� ��� ��� 
�			

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� ����� ����	

	���	�
�������
�	���	�
���*."�.�0��/�2 !323 < 	 ��� ��� �		

	���	�
���������	���	�
���B. �! ��� ��� ��� 
��		

	���	�
���������	���	�
�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 	 ��	 
���	 
���	

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��� 
����	

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 
�	�	 
���� 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ��
�� 
��	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����� 3!"14 "#!4  

 "�� �#0 �����'���
��*��
���	'�������
 �� !�0# �"4!1-- "01!  # �+3! 3"

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��	 ��	 
�� ��	

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	�� .66�&�� 3�4" �� 	 	 	

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� ��	 �	� 
��		

��
� ""

269



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������""
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	��A�31-�� ���1.3! 
�	 ��� �
� ��	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�'�3/03�4���1.3! ����� ��	
� ��


 ���		

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�
�" �#,� !,/ ��	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	���!�32��#,� !.2 " ���	� 
	���� 
����
 
	��		

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ����� ���	� ���	� �����

	���	�
�	����	
�	���	�
�	��6632����11/3�" ��� �
� ��	 �		

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" ��� ��� �� �		

	���	�
�	����
��	���	�
�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� �
	 	 

�

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ���	� ���	� ����� ���		

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ����� ����� ��		� ����	

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ����� ��			 
	����

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��
 	 ��	

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" ��� ��� ��� �		

	���	�
�	�����
�	���	�
�	�*."���0��/�2 !323 < �	��
� ����	� �	��
� ���			

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�B. �! ��
�� ��	�� ����� ��			

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ���	� ����	 ����	 �����

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �	�			 
�	��



	���	�
�	��	�	��	���	�
�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ���			 
���		�

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	��6632��� .669��11,! ������ �
��	� ����
 	

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ������ 
����� 
����� 	

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�#�" ,03./ ������ ������ ������ 	

	���	�
�	��
		
�	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ��
�
 ���	�� ������ 	

	���	�
�	��	�	��	���	�
�	�
���6632��� .669��11,! ���
�� �����	 
����� 	

	���	�
�	��	�	��	���	�
�	�
��#�" ,03./ �
��

 �	���� ����
� 	

	���	�
�	��
�	��	���	�
�	�
���3 ����1�!�3",! 
���	� 
���	� ��� 	

	���	�
�	�������
�)#	��	���	�
�	��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 	 
��			 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	���
 ������� "01!  # �+3! 3"

 "�+ � "1����'��������	�������
 "3 !14+ "14!3#" #3�!1++ "43!#� 

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� �� 	 �	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���� .66�&�� 3�4" � �� � 	 �	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 
	 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" �	� 
�� 
�� ���

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���� ��� 	 
�	��

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 	 	 �
�

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! ��� 	 	 �		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ ��	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 " ��	 �
� 
�� �
	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ����
� ����	� 
��
�
 ����		

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" 
�� 
�� 	 	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#�)���#�(�$�
����))�$ 	 ��	 ��� �		

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" �� ��� 
�� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 
�� 
�� 	 
�	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
�	�� ��� 	 �
	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" �	� ��� 
�	�� 
�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" 
�	�
 
���� ��� 
��		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 
�	�� ��� ��� ���

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ����
 ���	� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" �

 ��� � ��	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� ����� ����� 
�	�� ���		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��" 
���� ��� �� ��	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < ������ �	���� ����
 �	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! 
���� 
�
�� ��� 
���	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ���		 ���	� ����� ��	��

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ��� ��� �� ���

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���			 

��	��

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 
���		 ���	��

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
���� 
����� ����
� 	

��
� "�

270



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"�
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!�2 ,! ������ ������ ������ 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
���6632��� .669��11,! �����	 ������ ��
�� 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! 	 	 ����
 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
����" !�2 ,! ����
� �����	 
���
� 	

	���	�	�����		��	���	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��
 ��� ��
 ��	

	���	�	�����		
�
�
&	
�	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ����� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	���� �����
� #3�!1++ "43!#� 

 "�+ � 01���(	�������=���� #0!4#� #�!443 1!0"- 1!��1

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �	� ��� 	 �	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� ��� 

� �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
�	 �		 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
��		 ��			 	 ���

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��
�
 ����
 
�
�� 
��		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ��� 	 �		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���	�

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �		 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
���� ��	�� ���	� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� 	 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 �� �� 	 	

	���	�	�����		��	���	�	����//,@.�2�" 	 	 
�� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
���
� 
����� 1!0"- 1!��1

 "�+ � 3"�����%���>'<�)��� 03!+-" 1"! #0 "4!#"4 ++!4+ 
	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 
� 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��	 �� �� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
�
�	 ��� 

� ���	�

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#�//�
:,����?1��"� 
�� ��� 
�� 	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ������ 
����� ���
� 
�����

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" �� ��	 	 

�

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� 	 �

 ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ����� ��	�� 	 ��
�	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
�� ����� ���	� �����

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��
�� 
	��



	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �� 
���
�

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ���
� ����� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 

�	�
 ���
� 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��	�� ����� ����� 	

	���	�	����

	��	���	�	���
���1,! "��66323./ 
��	�� ����� 
�
�� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ���	
� "4!#"4 ++!4+ 

 "�+ � 3������%���?'���8)��� #+!101 #�!4#- +! "#  
	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� 	 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� �

 	 	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ��	�� ���
� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� �� 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� �
� 	 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 
���� ����
 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� 
���� 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
 �
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 	 	 
		 	

	���	�	����

	��	���	�	���
���1,! "��66323./ ����� ���	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
���
� +! "#  

��
� "+

271



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"+
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�+ � 31����'%���$�����)��� #-! 4� #4!1#� +!04+ "+!"1�

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 
�	 �� 
�	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �
� 
�
 	 �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ��
�� ��
�� 	 �����

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" �� �� 	 ��

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ���
� 
���� 	 ���		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 �
�

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
���� �����

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� �����

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ����� ����� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ���
� ��	�� ��� 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ���
� ����� 	 	

	���	�	����

	��	���	�	���
���1,! "��66323./ 
���� 
���� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
��	�� 
���
� +!04+ "+!"1�

 "�+ � 30����'%���>'<�)��� 0!#-+ 1!0�� +!1 1 3!+1�

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 �
 
		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�	 � 	 
		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" �		 �		 	 �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 	 �

 	 
����

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ��
 	 	 ���

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �

 
�� 
�	�� ��	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����


	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �
� 
����

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 
���
 ����
 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� ����	 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��� �
	 	 	

	���	�	����

	��	���	�	���
���1,! "��66323./ 	 
�� � 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
 ���" !�2 ,! 	 	 ��	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
�� ����� +!1 1 3!+1�

 "�+ � 33����'%���>'���
 "-!+30 #3! "� #"!33- � !1"-

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �	� 
	� �
 
�	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��	 �	 �� �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� ����� 	 ��	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" �� �� 	 ��

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ����
 ���
� ����
 �����

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �	� �� 	 �	�

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����	 	 	 ��			

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,-- 	 	 
�
 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��� 

��	�

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� ���
�

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��	�� ����� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
����� ��
�� 
�� 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��� ��� ��
 	

	���	�	����

	��	���	�	���
���1,! "��66323./ ����	 ��� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
����" !�2 ,! �� 
	 ��
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ 
��	�� #"!33- � !1"-

 "�+ �#1 ���&
'%��(	�������
'

��� #4!�+4 #-!314 #+! 04 #+!"�"

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� �	 �	 �		

	���	�
�	�����
�	���	�
�	�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
�� 	 	 	

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
���� �	� 	 
�			

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
�
�� ���
�

	���	�
�	��	�	��	���	�
�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �	� ����	

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��

� ���
� 	

��
� "1

272



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"1
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�
�	��
		
�	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� ��
�� 	 	

	���	�
�	��
�	��	���	�
�	�
����" !�2 ,! 
	���� 

���� ����� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
����� #+! 04 #+!"�"

 "�+ �#1+���>�
	�
�
�(	����� "#0 +!-+# +14 0!��+

	���	�
������	��	���	�
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 ��� 
�� ��	

	���	�
������
��	���	�
���� .66�(�36,!-" 	 	 	 ��

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 �� 	 ��	

	���	�
����	�	��	���	�
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �	� ���
	

	���	�
����
�	��	���	�
���
����" !�2 ,! �
� ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
� ����
 +14 0!��+

 "�+ �#-1���6'�'
�>�	������=��'����� 0!+33 1!"3 "!0++ #"!4�3

	���	�
������	��	���	�
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 
� �		

	���	�
������	��	���	�
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� �� 	 �		

	���	�
������
��	���	�
���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" �	� ��	 	 ��	

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
���
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��	 	 	 ���

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 

� ��		�

	���	�
����	�	��	���	�
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 
�	�� ����� 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ���	� ��	�	 ��� 	

	���	�
����
�	��	���	�
���
����" !�2 ,!" 
�� ��� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����	 "!0++ #"!4�3

 "�+ �#-0���>�'
�������� �!4- �!0"- 1! 4�  
	���	�
������	��	���	�
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �� ��� �	 	

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
���
!,4!.-���11/3�" �� 
� 	 	

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� 	

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 �
� 
���� 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� 
���� ��� 	

	���	�
����
		��	���	�
���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��� ��� �		 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	 ����� 1! 4�  

 "�+ �#-4����'����>'���
�*������ +!+ 3 �!1-# "!1++  
	���	�
�������	�	���	�
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 ��� 	 	

	���	�
���������	���	�
�����/�2,-- 	 	 
�
 	

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 �
� 
���� 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����� 
���
 �
� 	

	���	�
����
�	��	���	�
���
���3 ����1�!�3",! �
� ��� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	� ����
 "!1++  

 "�+ �#-3���$����(	����*����� "�!+ " #1!-4 #+!4"� � !000

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
����A�31-�� ���� ./ �� 	 ��� 	

	���	�
���������	���	�
���#/�.�3�49G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �	� �� ��� �		

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� 
�� 
��
� ��			

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� 
�����

	���	�
����	�	��	���	�
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �
� 
�����

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 
���
 ���	
 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����
 ����� ����	 	

	���	�
����
		��	���	�
���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��
	� ����	 ��� 	

	���	�
������	��	���	�
���
����.",�./�� .66 ����� ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	� 
����	 #+!4"� � !000

��
� "0

273



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"0
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�+ �"  ����'%���?'���8)��� �!�3# �!1�4 "! -+ "!+0 
	���	��		����	��	���	��		��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �� 	 	 
�	

	���	��		��	�	
�	���	��		�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���
	

	���	��		��	�	
�	���	��		�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 �
� 
���� 	

	���	��		��
		
�	���	��		�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
��	� 
�	
� 
�� 	

	���	��		��

	��	���	��		�
���1,! "��66323./ � �� 	 	

	���	��		��
�	��	���	��		�
����" !�2 ,! 
��
� 
���
 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����
 ����� "! -+ "!+0 

 "�+ �" "�����%���>'���
 4!3## +! �3 0# #!10"
	���	��	�����	��	���	��	���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�
 ��
 	 
		

	���	��	�����	��	���	��	��&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" �� 	 	 ��

	���	��	������
�	���	��	��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� 
�� 	 	

	���	��	��������	���	��	��
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" �� 	 	 ��

	���	��	������	�	���	��	����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�� �� 	 �		

	���	��	���	�	
�	���	��	��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���

	���	��	���	�	��	���	��	��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���

	���	��	���	�	
�	���	��	��&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 �	� �
	 	

	���	��	���
		
�	���	��	��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ��
�� 	 	

	���	��	���
		��	���	��	��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! �

 �
 	 	

	���	��	���

	��	���	��	��
���1,! "��66323./ ��� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���

 ��	�� 0# #!10"

 "�+ �" �����'%
������'%�� -!133 1!104 #!+3+ #+!31 
	���	��	�����	��	���	��	��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 �	 	 �	

	���	��	�����	��	���	��	���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �
� �
 	 
��

	���	��	�����	��	���	��	��&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
��
	 	 	 	

	���	��	������
�	���	��	��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 	 	 
�	 ��	

	���	��	��������	���	��	��+3�/09�1�2.3/��!31" ���	� ��	 	 	

	���	��	�����
��	���	��	��� .66�(�36,!-" 	 	 	 �	

	���	��	�����
��	���	��	��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
���� ��� 	 �
	

	���	��	��������	���	��	��
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 
�� 
�� 	 ��	

	���	��	������	�	���	��	����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�	�� 	 
�
�	

	���	��	��������	���	��	��+,,0���11/3�" ��� 	 	 �		

	���	��	������	�	���	��	��&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� ��� ��� 	 
�			

	���	��	�����
��	���	��	��
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? �
 
�� 	 	

	���	��	���	�	
�	���	��	��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	���	��	���	�	��	���	��	��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ��	

	���	��	���
		
�	���	��	��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H �� 
���� 
���� 	

	���	��	���

	��	���	��	��
���1,! "��66323./ � 	 	 	

	���	��	���
�	��	���	��	��
����" !�2 ,! ��� 
�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����� #!+3+ #+!31 

 "�+ �" +����'%
�������%�� "+  +!� "  
	���	��	������
�	���	��	��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 	 	 
�	 	

	���	��	��������	���	��	��
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 	 	 �� 	

	���	��	������	�	���	��	����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��	 	 	 	

	���	��	���
		
�	���	��	��
��*��&9+�#�$����7��H 	 	 ��	
� 	

	���	��	���

	��	���	��	��
���
������++�#��$ 	 	 
�	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	 	 +!� "  

 "�1 �  +����'%
������<��
���''� #4!#"1 � !#�# #�!4"3 1#!��4

	���	�		�����	��	���	�		��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 �� 	 
�	

	���	�		�����	��	���	�		���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �� 
	 �� ��	

	���	�		��������	���	�		��#�//�
:,����?1��"� 
�� 
�� 
� �	

��
� "4

274



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"4
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�		������	�	���	�		��� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
�	 
�� 	 ���

	���	�		�����	��	���	�		��',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " �	 �	 	 
�	

	���	�		�����
��	���	�		��� .66�(�36,!-" 	 �� 	 	

	���	�		������	�	���	�		����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�	�
 
���� 	 
����

	���	�		��������	���	�		��+,,0���11/3�" �	� 
�	�� 	 
���	

	���	�		���	�	
�	���	�		��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����	 ���	�

	���	�		���	�	��	���	�		��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ������

	���	�		���
		
�	���	�		��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ��� ����� ����
 	

	���	�		���
		��	���	�		��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����
 ����� 	 	

	���	�		���
�	��	���	�		��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����
 
	���� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
��
�� �	�
�
 #�!4"3 1#!��4

 "�1 �  1���&	
����9��'
� #3! 1" #3!#03 +! -"  
	���	�		�����	��	���	�		��� .66�&�� 3�4" �� 	 	 	

	���	�		�����	��	���	�		��� .66��!.3�3�4 �� 
�
 	 	

	���	�		��������	���	�		��#�//�
:,����?1��"� �� 
	� 	 	

	���	�		������	�	���	�		��� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ��			 	 	 	

	���	�		��������	���	�		��+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
���� 
�

� 	 	

	���	�		�����
��	���	�		��� .66�(�36,!-" �� 	 	 	

	���	�		�����
��	���	�		��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
�� �
� 	 	

	���	�		������	�	���	�		����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �	� ��� 	 	

	���	�		��������	���	�		��+,,0���11/3�" 
�� �� 	 	

	���	�		���
		
�	���	�		��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
�
 ����	 ��	�� 	

	���	�		���
�	��	���	�		��
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ���	� ����
 	 	

	���	�		���
�	��	���	�		��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����� ����
 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
��	�� 
��
�� +! -"  

 "�1 �  0����'%
�����>��''�@��5%����8� �! 4" 0!#-3 "!41� #!03-
	���	�		�����	��	���	�		���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 

� 

	 �� 
	�

	���	�		��������	���	�		��+3�/09�1�23./��!31" ��� �
� 	 	

	���	�		������	�	���	�		����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
 �	� 	 
����

	���	�		��������	���	�		��+,,0���11/3�" 
�� �� 	 
	�

	���	�		���
		
�	���	�		��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! �� ����� ����� 	

	���	�		���
		��	���	�		��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�		���
�	��	���	�		��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ��	 ��� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� ��
�� "!41� #!03-

 "�1 �  -������������ #!434 #! 04   
	���	�		��������	���	�		��#�//�
:,����?1��"� � 	 	 	

	���	�		���
		
�	���	�		��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
���� 
�	�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
���� 
�	��   

 "�1 � ##���$%�8)���,>7	�
�����
 -�!1 # # "!"+4 +0!4"" -�! 04

	���	�	

����	��	���	�	

�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 � 	 	 ��

	���	�	

����	��	���	�	

��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� �� 	 
��

	���	�	

����	��	���	�	

�� .66��!.3�3�4 
�� 	 	 ��


	���	�	

�������	���	�	

�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 	 	 	 
��

	���	�	

����	��	���	�	

�',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " 	 �� 	 ��

	���	�	

�����	�	���	�	

���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ����� 
�� ��
��

	���	�	

�������	���	�	

�+,,0���11/3�" ��� �
	 �
 ��	

	���	�	

��	�	
�	���	�	

�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� ������

	���	�	

��	�	��	���	�	

�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 
���� �
�
		

	���	�	

��
		
�	���	�	

�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ���	�	 ������ �
�

� 	

	���	�	

��
�	��	���	�	

�
����" !�2 ,! ������ ������ 
��
�� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	
 
	����� +0!4"" -�! 04

��
� "3

275



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"3
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�1 � #"�����'���
����8����� #0+!10# #0+!4 0 "+!1 1 34!+-4
	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��� .66��!.3�3�4 ��� 
���� 	 	

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��#�//�
:,����?1��"� ��� ��	 ��� �	�

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
����>"2!31 3,�" �� ��	 �� 	

	���	�	
������
�	���	�	
��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
�� �	� 	 �		

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+3�/09�1�23./��!31" ���
� ��
�	 	 ��			

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " 
		 	 	 	

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��� .66�(�36,!-" ��� 
�	�� �
�	� ���

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" �	� ��	 	 	

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ���	� ��
�
 ��� 
���	

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��
 	 ���

	���	�	
���	�	
�	���	�	
��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� �����

	���	�	
���	�	��	���	�	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ������

	���	�	
���	�	
�	���	�	
��&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��
�� 
	���	 	

	���	�	
���
		
�	���	�	
��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
����� ���
� 	 	

	���	�	
���
		��	���	�	
��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����	 
	��	� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 
����� 
����� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
��*���!./�� .66 ����	 ����� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 

	�	�� 
	���
� ����� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�����
 
����	� "+!1 1 34!+-4

 "�1 � #�����'%
�������8����� 11!�3# 1-!-"# #-!434 ��!-3�

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 	 �� ��

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 �� ���

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��� .66��!.3�3�4 ��	 ��� 	 	

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��#�//�
:,����?1��"� �	� ��� ��� ��	

	���	�	
������
�	���	�	
��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ �� �	 	 
		

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+3�/09�1�23./��!31" ��
�� ����� ��	� 	

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� ��� 	 �	

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
���� ��� 
�	

 ��	

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��
 
� 	

	���	�	
���	�	��	���	�	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����	

	���	�	
���
		
�	���	�	
��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ��� ����� ����
 	

	���	�	
���
		��	���	�	
��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����
 ����� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 �����	 ���
�� 

���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
 �����
 #-!434 ��!-3�

 "�1 � #0����'��%�	�8�6����
��&
��� "! 43 #!"1" +!#3� �!-- 

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 �� 	

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
��� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 	 �		 	 	

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
��
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ���� � ����� ���		

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+,,0���11/3�" 
� �� 
�� 
�	

	���	�	
���	�	��	���	�	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
�			

	���	�	
���
		��	���	�	
��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ��� �	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� 
���� +!#3� �!-- 

 "�1 � #4�����'���
���<��
���''� 1"! �4 +-!010 #4!34� +3!10"
	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 
� 	 	

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 ��	

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��#�//�
:,����?1��"� ��� 
�� �
� ���

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
����>"2!31 3,�" 
�� ��	 	 	

��
� "-

276



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������"-
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " 
		 	 	 	

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��� .66�(�36,!-" �� ��	 �

�� ��

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� 
���� ��	� �����

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
��+,,0���11/3�" ����� 
��	� 	 
��
�

	���	�	
���	�	
�	���	�	
��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� �����

	���	�	
���	�	��	���	�	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����	�

	���	�	
���	�	
�	���	�	
��&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ����� 
����� 	

	���	�	
���
		
�	���	�	
��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ���

 	 	

	���	�	
���
		��	���	�	
��
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ������ ���	�� � 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	�� ������ #4!34� +3!10"

 "�1 �#++����
����''������� "!-1- +! "" "!+ 0 +!- �

	���	�
������	��	���	�
���',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " ��� �
� �� ���

	���	�
�������	�	���	�
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� �
 ��


	���	�
���������	���	�
���+,,0���11/3�" �� �
 	 �
�

	���	�
����	�	
�	���	�
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �
� ����


	���	�
����	�	��	���	�
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �	 	

	���	�
����
		
�	���	�
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
�� 
�� �	� 	

	���	�
����
�	��	���	�
���
����" !�2 ,! ��	�� ���	� 
��	� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ��	�� "!+ 0 +!- �

 "�0 � "0���>�'����>7	������ #-!+03 ""!### #!3 +  
	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� 	 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 ��	 	 	

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" �� 
�� 	 	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��	 ����� 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" �
� �		 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� 	 
��
	 	 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ��� ��	�� 
��	� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
���� 	 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 
���� ����� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����
 ����
 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����	 ����	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� ���


 #!3 +  

 "�0 �#� ����'%
�����>��	'
� -0!1"3 3"!41 -!-�1 # -!1# 
	���	�
�	����	
�	���	�
�	�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 	 �� 	 ��

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �
� 

� 	 ��	

	���	�
�	����	��	���	�
�	��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 �		

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	��� ,��//,@.�2� ��� 
�
 	 �		

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	��A�31-�� ���� ./ ��� ��� 	 
�	��

	���	�
�	�����
�	���	�
�	���� ./�+.23/3 3�" ��	�
 ����� 	 ����	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	���>"2!31 3,�" �
� �
� 	 ��	

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 	 	 	 �		

	���	�
�	�����
�	���	�
�	�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� ����� 	 ��
�	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" �����
 �����
 	 ���			

	���	�
�	����
��	���	�
�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� 	 	 �		

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�+/,@�!"���0�*36 " �� �� 	 �	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 
���� ��� 	 
���	

	���	�
�	�����	�	���	�
�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ��		� 
	� ����	

	���	�
�	�������	���	�
�	�+,,0���11/3�" ����� ���	� 	 ��
�	

	���	�
�	��	�	
�	���	�
�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���			

	���	�
�	��	�	��	���	�
�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
���		

��
� � 

277



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������� 
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�
�	��
		
�	���	�
�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!�2 ,! �	��
� �����	 ����
 	

	���	�
�	��
�	��	���	�
�	�
��*���!./�� .66 
��	
	 

�
�� �
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ �����	 -!-�1 # -!1# 

 "�0 �#�#���:�8��>��	'
� #0! 4� # !3 � 03- #4!-"1
	���	�
�
����	��	���	�
�
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 
� ��

	���	�
�
����	��	���	�
�
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 �		

	���	�
�
�����	�	���	�
�
��A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 	 	 �		

	���	�
�
�������	���	�
�
���>"2!31 3,�" 
�� 
�� 	 �		

	���	�
�
�������	���	�
�
�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
���� ��
 	 
��		

	���	�
�
�������	���	�
�
�
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" �	� �	� 	 �		

	���	�
�
�����	�	���	�
�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�� �� 
��		

	���	�
�
�������	���	�
�
�+,,0���11/3�" ��		� ����� � 
�			

	���	�
�
��	�	��	���	�
�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �	� 
���		

	���	�
�
��
�	��	���	�
�
�
��*���!./�� .66 
	��
	 ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
��	�� 
	��	� 03- #4!-"1

 "�0 �"+#���>��''�@��5%����8� #+!+1" ##! �- 1!+1# ##!3"+
	���	���
����	��	���	���
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 �	

	���	���
�������	���	���
�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
��	� ��� 	 ��	

	���	���
����
��	���	���
�� .66�(�36,!-" �� �� 	 	

	���	���
�����	�	���	���
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�
 
�� ��	

	���	���
�������	���	���
�+,,0���11/3�" 
�� 
�� �� 
�


	���	���
��	�	
�	���	���
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��� ���
�

	���	���
��	�	��	���	���
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��	 �����

	���	���
��	�	
�	���	���
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��	�	 ����� 	

	���	���
��
		
�	���	���
�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ���
� 	 	

	���	���
��
�	��	���	���
�
��*���!./�� .66 ���
� ��
�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 

�	�� 1!+1# ##!3"+

 "�01�#"����������������	'� +!1�0 +!#-4 #!4"0  
	�����
������	��	�����
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��� 	 	 	

	�����
�������
�	�����
���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ �		 	 	 	

	�����
�������	�	�����
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
	
 �� 	 	

	�����
���������	�����
���+,,0���11/3�" 
�� 	 	 	

	�����
����
		
�	�����
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ��
�� 
���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ��
�� #!4"0  

 "�03� -"����'%
������'��%�	�8������
 1!4# 4!-40 �!040 ##!4 4
	�����	������	��	�����	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
�	 	 	 ��	

	�����	������	��	�����	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� �	 	 �		

	�����	���������	�����	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� �		 �		 	 
��		

	�����	���������	�����	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 
	
 ��� 
� ��	

	�����	�������	�	�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ����
 ��� ��

�

	�����	���������	�����	���+,,0���11/3�" 
�
�� ��� 	 ��
	�

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	�����	����	�	��	�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
��	�

	�����	����
		
�	�����	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H �� ����� ����� 	

	�����	����
�	��	�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 ��� �
� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
	 ����� �!040 ##!4 4

 "�0-� "+���>�'�����A%��	�������
 43!0 4 43!3-" 1! +- 43!�+#

	�����	���������	�����	�����!�32��#,� !.2 " 	 	 �� 	

	�����	���������	�����	���$32��"����0�+��" ��	 ��� �� �		

��
� �#

278



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������#
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	�����	������	
�	�����	����6632����11/3�" 
		 
�� 	 �	

	�����	�������	�	�����	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��� �	� 	 ��	

	�����	���������	�����	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� �� 	 ��	

	�����	�������	�	�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �� 
�	 	 �		

	�����	�������	�	�����	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� �
��
� ������ ��	�� ���			

	�����	������
��	�����	���
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ����� ����� 	 ���	�

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���
�

	�����	����	�	��	�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ������

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ��� ��	�� ���

 	

	�����	����
		
�	�����	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
���� 	 	 	

	�����	����
�	��	�����	���
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ����
 	 	

	�����	����
�	��	�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 �
���� 
����
 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	� ������ 1! +- 43!�+#

 "�0-� +#���B�������
� 0! +� #!4"- "!0"1 #�!1#1

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
��A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 	 	 �	

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
�'�3/03�4���1.3! 	 
	� 	 
		

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
�
�" �#,� !,/ 
		 	 �	 
��

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
�$32��"����0�+��" �	 	 ��� �	

	�����	�
�����	�	�����	�
���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" �� 	 �
 	

	�����	�
�����	�	�����	�
�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 

� 
�� �� 
�	

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" 	 	 	 
		

	�����	�
�����	�	�����	�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�� �	 	 �		

	�����	�
�����	�	�����	�
�&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� 
��	� 	 ��� ���		

	�����	�
�������	�����	�
���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ��� 
�� 	 �		

	�����	�
����
��	�����	�
�
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? �	� 	 	 
�	�	

	�����	�
����
��	�����	�
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" �� �

 	 �		

	�����	�
��	�	
�	�����	�
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����	

	�����	�
��	�	��	�����	�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����	

	�����	�
��	�	
�	�����	�
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��
 
���� 	

	�����	�
��
		
�	�����	�
�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
���� 	 �	 	

	�����	�
��
		��	�����	�
�
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! �� 	 	 	

	�����	�
��
�	��	�����	�
�
��*���!./�� .66 
�	
� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� 
���� "!0"1 #�!1#1

 "�0-� 3 ����'������
� �+!#- "1!0�+ -!-0 ��!3 0

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	��A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 	 	 ��	

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	�'�3/03�4���1.3! �	� 
	� 	 �		

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	�
�" �#,� !,/ 
		 
�	 �	 
�	

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	�$32��"����0�+��" �	 ��� �
� 
����

	�����	�	�����	�	�����	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" �� 	 
�� 	

	�����	�	����
��	�����	�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 	 	 	 �	

	�����	�	�����	�	�����	�	�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ��� � ��� �		

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �� 	 	 
		

	�����	�	�����	�	�����	�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
	� 
�� 
���� �		

	�����	�	�����	�	�����	�	�&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� 

��
� 
	���
 
�
	� 

�			

	�����	�	�����	�	�����	�	��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
�
�� 
��
� ��� 
��		

	�����	�	�������	�����	�	���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" �
� 

� 	 �		

	�����	�	����
��	�����	�	�
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ����� 
���� �� ����


	�����	�	����
��	�����	�	�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ��� �	� �		 �		

	�����	�	��	�	
�	�����	�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���		

	�����	�	��	�	��	�����	�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �� ����


	�����	�	��	�	
�	�����	�	�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ����� ���
� 	

	�����	�	��
		
�	�����	�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����	 ����	 �� 	

	�����	�	��
		��	�����	�	�
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� 	 	 	

	�����	�	��
�	��	�����	�	�
��*���!./�� .66 ����� ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
�	 ������ -!-0 ��!3 0

��
� �"

279



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������"
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

 "�0-� 33����'����>'���
��'����9 3!#-0 "!140 #!-4# +  
	�����	���������	�����	���'�3/03�4���1.3! ��� 
	� 	 	

	�����	���������	�����	���
�" �#,� !,/ 
		 	 �	 	

	�����	���������	�����	���$32��"����0�+��" 	 �� 	 	

	�����	�������	�	�����	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
�� 	 �� 	

	�����	�������	�	�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�	 �	 	 	

	�����	�������	�	�����	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� ��

� 	 	 	

	�����	�������	�	�����	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" �	� 
	
 �� 	

	�����	���������	�����	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ��� ��	 �� �		

	�����	������
��	�����	���
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ��	 	 	 	

	�����	������
��	�����	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" 
	� ��� 	 	

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ��
 
���� 	

	�����	����
		
�	�����	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
���� 	 �	 	

	�����	����
		��	�����	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! �	 	 	 	

	�����	����
�	��	�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 ��� 
� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
�� ����� #!-4# +  

 "�4 � ""���>�'�����A%��	��������
 1-+!--+ 1 +!3+ 3�!0-" 4  !�0+

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��
 ��� �
 �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
���� ��	 
�� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 

���	 
	�	�	 
�
�� 
�����

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� 	 ��� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���� ��� 
�� 
��		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���$.�063//�+��" ��� ��� 	 ���

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! ��	�� 

���� ����� 
	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 
���	� ����	 
���� 
��			

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 	 
���� ��		�

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	������ ./�+.23/3 3�" 	 	 	 
����

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ �	 �	 	 �	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ���	� 
���� ����� �����

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" ��	 ��	 	 	

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" �
� ��� ��� �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 	 	 	 
		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���+3!" ��309&�032./���11/3�"�
,,/��1�23632 ����
 ����� 
�� ���
�

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 
	�
�� ����� 	 
���	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
����� ����� 
�
�� 
��			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" 
���� 
���	 �� ��	��

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ��
 
�	 �� ��	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���#:�-32./" ������ ������ ��
	
 ���			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" �� 	 	 �	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ���
	 ���
� 	 ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� 
�� 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
���� 
���� �	� 
���	

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < �	���
 ������ 
����� �	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! ����	� ������ 
����
 �	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ��	�	 ��		� ��	�� ���		

	���	�	�����		
�	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 �	�			

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ����� ����� �
� ���		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����� ����
	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� �������

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ��	�� ����	� 
��	�� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ������ ��
�� 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 
��	�� 

���� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ���	�� ������ 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
����" !�2 ,! ����	� ����
� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 ������ ������ ��� 	

��
� ��

280



������	
����
���	��
	�� ��������������
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 
������ 
������ 	 	

	���	�	�����		��	���	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 	 	 �� 	

	���	�	�����		
�
�
&	��	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ����� 	 	 	

	���	�	�����		
�
�
&
	�	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ����� 	 	 	

	���	�	�����		
��	
&	��	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 
����	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� �	����	 3�!0-" 4  !�0+

 �� #�  #���6%��%��(%��������	�	��
��	'� 10#!1"- 1 "!44" 1"4!+-4 "##!4+�

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�7�� ./���"�!.�2� ��
�� ��

	 ��		� ��			

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�&�032./�%�./ :���"�!.�2� ������ �	���� �	���� ���			

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�$36����"�!.�2� 
���� 
���� 
���� 
���	

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
��-1/,<����""3" .�2��
!,4!.- �	� ��� ��	 ���

	��	
�		
����	
�	��	
�		
�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 
	���� ���
� �	 ���
�

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
����� 
����
 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�� .66�&�� 3�4" �� 	 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 �	 �	 ��� 
�			

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� 
�
�� 
���� 
���	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 
���� �
� 	 	

	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 �		 	 	

	��	
�		
�����
�	��	
�		
�5�:32/����1.3! 	 ��� 	 	

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�#�//�
:,����?1��"� 	 �� 	 	

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�
�!",���/�#," " 	 	 ��� ���		

	��	
�		
����	
�	��	
�		
��6632����11/3�" ��� �� 
� 
		

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ 
���� 
��	� �� 
�
		

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�+,,0���11/3�" 
�
 	 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
��!.�"6�!"��,�� :�!�+��0" ��	�			 ��	�			 �����		 	

	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ����� ��
�� ����	 ��			

	��	
�		
��	
	
�	��	
�		
�7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ������ ������ ���	�� 	

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���			 ���			

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
��6632��� .669��11,! 
���
� 
����� 

���� 	

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 
����� 
����� 

���� 	

	��	
�		
���		��	��	
�		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��		� ����� ���
� ��			

	��	
�		
���		
��	
&	��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 
	�			

	��	
�		
���		
��	
&	��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 ���		 	 	

	��	
�		
���		
��

&	��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 
��			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
���� �	����� 1"4!+-4 "##!4+�

 ��#1� #+���$���@���%��� �! 31 "!4"+  �!43 

	��
��	
�����	��	��
��	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� �� 	 

�

	��
��	
�����	��	��
��	
���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
���� 
�	�� 	 
����

	��
��	
������	�	��
��	
��� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" �	 	 	 
�	

	��
��	
��������	��
��	
��#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� 
��		 
��		 	 
��		

	��
��	
��������	��
��	
��+,,0���11/3�" �� 
�� 	 �
�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� �����  �!43 

 ��#1� #1����'%��������
� 3�!100 44!"0+ "-!""0 --!+4 
	��
��	
�����	
�	��
��	
��
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 �� �� 	 ��

	��
��	
�����	��	��
��	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
��
� ��

� 	 ���

	��
��	
�����	��	��
��	
���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ���	� 
���� 
� ���		

	��
��	
������	�	��
��	
���A�31-�� ���� ./ 
���� 
�
�� 	 
��		

	��
��	
������
�	��
��	
����� ./�+.23/3 3�" ����� ����
 ����	 
����	

	��
��	
��������	��
��	
��$32��"����0�+��" ����� ����� 
���� ����	

	��
��	
������	�	��
��	
��� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 	 	 	 �	����

	��
��	
������
�	��
��	
��#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
��		 
���	 	 
��		

	��
��	
�����	��	��
��	
��',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " �
� 
���	 ��
 ��	

	��
��	
�����
��	��
��	
��� .66�(�36,!-" 
	
 �� 	 ��

��
� �+

281



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������+
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��
��	
�����
��	��
��	
��
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
��
� �	� 	 ���

	��
��	
������	�	��
��	
����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 

��	� ����	 �� �����

	��
��	
��������	��
��	
��+,,0���11/3�" �� 	 	 	

	��
��	
������
�	��
��	
��*."���0��/�2 !323 < 
���� 
���� 
���� 
��		

	��
��	
��������	��
��	
��B. �! ��� ��� �	� ���

	��
��	
���	�	
�	��
��	
��+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��			 ����		

	��
��	
���	�	��	��
��	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
����	

	��
��	
���
		
�	��
��	
��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ������ ���
�� ���
� 	

	��
��	
���
�	��	��
��	
��
��*���!./�� .66 �	���� 
��
�� 	 	

	��
��	
����		��	��
��	
���//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 	 	 ��� ��			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ������ "-!""0 --!+4 

 ��#1� �#���������5<��C 40!+�4 3-!-3� 4!�#0  
	��
��	�
����	��	��
��	�
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ���	� ���
� 
�� 	

	��
��	�
����	��	��
��	�
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ����� ����� �	 	

	��
��	�
�������	��
��	�
�$.�063//�+��" 
�		� 
���� 	 	

	��
��	�
�����	�	��
��	�
��A�31-�� ���� ./ ������ ������ 	 	

	��
��	�
�������	��
��	�
�$32��"����0�+��" ��	 ��	 	 	

	��
��	�
�����
�	��
��	�
�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
	�	�� 
����� 	 	

	��
��	�
�������	��
��	�
�#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ���		 
	���
 	 	

	��
��	�
�����	�	��
��	�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��	�� ����
 
� 	

	��
��	�
�������	��
��	�
�+,,0���11/3�" 
���� ���
� 	 	

	��
��	�
�����	�	��
��	�
�&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� ����� 
	���� 	 	

	��
��	�
����
��	��
��	�
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ��� 
��
� 	 	

	��
��	�
��
		
�	��
��	�
�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ��
�
 	

	��
��	�
��
�	��	��
��	�
�
��*���!./�� .66 ����
 ��	�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ������ 4!�#0  

 ��#1� �"���>%���
��'���
�� #�!"#+ #�!--+ +! �- #1!-1 
	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��� 	 	 ��	

	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < � 	 �		 �		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	����A�31-�� ���� ./ �
� ��� �
 ��	

	��
��	�������
�	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 	 	 	 
�			

	��
��	���������	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ��
		 ����	 �		 ��			

	��
��	����	�	
�	��
��	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����	

	��
��	����	�	��	��
��	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���		

	��
��	����
		
�	��
��	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ����� 	

	��
��	����
�	��	��
��	���
��*���!./�� .66 ��	�� ����	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
���
� 
����� +! �- #1!-1 

 ��#1� �0����
���9�	)	�	'��>�
	�� 4!10" -!-3" �!#+3 #�!+ -

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �	 ��� 	 ���

	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� ��� 	 �
�

	��
��	�������
�	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� ����
 ����� ����	

	��
��	���������	��
��	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� �	� 
�� ��


	��
��	�������	�	��
��	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ����� �� �����

	��
��	���������	��
��	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� �
� 	 �	�

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ����� �!#+3 #�!+ -

 ��#1� �3���$�������
'

��� 4�!+4- 3#!##3 +4!43 - !#"4
	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
	
 	 
� ��


	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
	 	 	 ��

	��
��	���������	��
��	����A�31-�� ���1.3! 	 �� 	 ��	

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
���	 
��	� 
���	 ���		

	��
��	���������	��
��	�����>"2!31 3,�" 	 �� 	 ��

��
� �1

282



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������1
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
�	 �	 �� 
�	

	��
��	�������
�	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 	 	 	 
��		

	��
��	������
��	��
��	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 	 	 	 
	�

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �
� ��� 	 
�			

	��
��	���������	��
��	���+,,0���11/3�" �	 	 	 ��

	��
��	����	�	
�	��
��	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
� �����	

	��
��	����	�	��	��
��	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ���
� ����
�

	��
��	����
		
�	��
��	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
����� 
��
�� 
	�		� 	

	��
��	����
�	
�	��
��	�����" !�2 ,! ���
�� ������ ������ 	

	��
��	����
�	��	��
��	���
����" !�2 ,! �	�
�� ������ ���	� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ �
�

� +4!43 - !#"4

 ��#1� 04���(�������(��� 4! 4- #+!0   #4!311
	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 
�� 	 �		

	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� �
� 	 
��		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 
��		 	 
��		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���$32��"����0�+��" 	 
�� 	 
��

	��
��	���������	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ��
�� 
	�	�� 	 

��		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" �
 ��� 	 
��		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 �		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���+,,0���11/3�" 
� 	 	 
		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� 	 �
� 	 	

	��
��	����	�	��	��
��	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �		

	��
��	����
�	��	��
��	���
 �*���!./�� .66 	 ��� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� 
���		  #4!311

 ��#1� 03���>���	����=���� 0 !01+ 1+!4- 0-!034 3+!+""
	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
�	
� ��� ��� ���		

	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�� ��� �� ���		

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
�� 	 
� �		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
�	�� 
	� 	 ���		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
�		� 	 	 
��		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� 
���	 
���	 �		 ��			

	��
��	������	
�	��
��	����6632����11/3�" 

� 

� 
�	 �		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" 	 
�
 	 �		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ��� 

��	� 
���		

	��
��	���������	��
��	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� 

� �
� �		

	��
��	����	�	
�	��
��	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
����� �
��		

	��
��	����	�	��	��
��	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
����

	��
��	����	�	
�	��
��	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ������ ���
�� ������ 	

	��
��	����
		
�	��
��	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ����� 	

	��
��	����
�	��	��
��	���
��*���!./�� .66 
��	� ��	 �		 	

	��
��	�����		��	��
��	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��� ��� �	� ��	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �	���� �����	 0-!034 3+!+""

 ��#1� 43���?��*������ #3-!+#3 #10!+"# 3!313 #"1!3�0

	��
��	������	
�	��
��	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 �	 
�
 	 ��

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 	 	 ��

	��
��	������	��	��
��	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
	���� 
��
�� ��		� �����

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ �� 	 	 	

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	����A�31-�� ���� ./ ����	� 
����� 	 
	�			

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ����
� ������ ��� 
�����

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �	� ��� 	 ���

	��
��	���������	��
��	���+,,0���11/3�" 
���
� 

��	� 	 
���		

	��
��	�������	�	��
��	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� �� 	 	 
�

	��
��	������
��	��
��	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" �
���� 
����� ��� 
�����

��
� �0

283



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������0
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��
��	����	�	
�	��
��	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	��
��	����	�	��	��
��	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ������

	��
��	����
		
�	��
��	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ���
� ���	� ����� 	

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
��5����� ./�� .66 ������ �	��
� �� 	

	��
��	������	��	��
��	���
��5����� ./�� .66��� 
��	

 ���
� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����
� 
�����
 3!313 #"1!3�0

 ��#1�#+ ����
	�������� 4!"#0 �!### "!��# 4! 04
	��
��
�	����	��	��
��
�	�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 � 	 	 
�


	��
��
�	����	��	��
��
�	��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 �


	��
��
�	�����
�	��
��
�	�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
���� 	 	 	

	��
��
�	����
��	��
��
�	�
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 	 	 	 ���

	��
��
�	�����	�	��
��
�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
 	 	 �
�

	��
��
�	��	�	
�	��
��
�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	��
��
�	��	�	��	��
��
�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� ����


	��
��
�	��
		
�	��
��
�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
���� 
��
� ��	 	

	��
��
�	��
�	
�	��
��
�	���" !�2 ,! ��� 	 	 	

	��
��
�	��
�	��	��
��
�	�
����" !�2 ,! ����� 
���� ��� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���
� ��


 "!��# 4! 04

 ��#1�#+#�����������
<'
����� #-!"�0 #�!343 "!"-0 � !#�+

	��
��
�
����	��	��
��
�
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
�	�� �
� 	 
�
��

	��
��
�
����	��	��
��
�
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� 
�� 	 ���

	��
��
�
�����	�	��
��
�
��A�31-�� ���� ./ ��
 ��
 ���
� 
����

	��
��
�
�����
�	��
��
�
�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ��
�	 �		 	 ���		

	��
��
�
����
��	��
��
�
�
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
�� 	 	 ��


	��
��
�
�����	�	��
��
�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ����� ���		 	 ���
�

	��
��
�
�������	��
��
�
�+,,0���11/3�" �� 	 	 �


	��
��
�
��	�	
�	��
��
�
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
� 
	���	

	��
��
�
��	�	��	��
��
�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���		

	��
��
�
��
		
�	��
��
�
�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����	 ����
 ����� 	

	��
��
�
��
�	
�	��
��
�
���" !�2 ,! ����� ����� 	 	

	��
��
�
��
�	��	��
��
�
�
����" !�2 ,! ���	� 
���� �� 	

	��
��
�
���		��	��
��
�
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 	 	 ��� ��			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
����� "!"-0 � !#�+

 ��#1�#+����5���
��%��%
����
����
'

��� "4!344 "4!1#0 #"! 00 �+!-1 

	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
� �� 	 �	

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 ��


	��
��
�������
�	��
��
���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
����� 
���

 ����� 
�����

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�� 	 
�
��

	��
��
����	�	
�	��
��
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
�� 
��	��

	��
��
����	�	��	��
��
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� ����


	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
����� 
����� ����	 	

	��
��
����
�	��	��
��
���
����" !�2 ,! ��
 ��� ��� 	

	��
��
����
�	��	��
��
���
��*���!./�� .66 
� 	 �
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ����
� #"! 00 �+!-1 

 ��#1�#+0���5���
��������
'

��� �!+1" 0!" 0 "!#1- -!10 
	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 	 
�	

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 ��

	��
��
���������	��
��
���+,,0���11/3�" �� 	 	 ��

	��
��
����	�	
�	��
��
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���

	��
��
����	�	��	��
��
���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��� �����

	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ��� ��� ��� 	

��
� �4

284



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������4
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��
��
����
�	��	��
��
���
����" !�2 ,! ����� ����� 
��	� 	

	��
��
����
�	��	��
��
���
��*���!./�� .66 �� �� �
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ���	� "!#1- -!10 

 ��#1�#4 ����C���8� 3!++3 #0!40- "!4"3 " !+�1

	��
��
�	����	��	��
��
�	��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��	 ��� 	 �
	

	��
��
�	�������	��
��
�	�$.�063//�+��" ��� ��� 	 ���

	��
��
�	�����	�	��
��
�	��A�31-�� ���� ./ �� 
��
� 	 
����

	��
��
�	�������	��
��
�	�#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ���		 ����	 	 ����	

	��
��
�	����
��	��
��
�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 	 
�� 	 
��

	��
��
�	�����	�	��
��
�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� �	� 	 ��	

	��
��
�	�������	��
��
�	�+,,0���11/3�" �� � 	 
		

	��
��
�	��	�	
�	��
��
�	�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ����


	��
��
�	��	�	��	��
��
�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	��
��
�	��
		
�	��
��
�	�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H �� ����� ����� 	

	��
��
�	��
�	��	��
��
�	�
��*���!./�� .66 ����� ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� 
����� "!4"3 " !+�1

 ��#1�#4"�������	�
�D	������,6'���
'� #4!-1- #4!333 +!+1# " !01 
	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��
 ��� 	 �		

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� �� 	 �		

	��
��
�������
�	��
��
������ ./�+.23/3 3�" 
	���� ����� 	 
��			

	��
��
���������	��
��
���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� 
��	� ����� �		 ��			

	��
��
���������	��
��
���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� 
��	
 	 
��		

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��	 �	� �		

	��
��
������
��	��
��
���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" 
	� �� 	 
�	

	��
��
����	�	
�	��
��
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���		

	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ����� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� 
����� +!+1# " !01 

 ��#1�#4�����

�:%��� 0!+4" +!- � 1! -�  
	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
�� 	 	 	

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� 	 ��	 	

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
����A�31-�� ���� ./ 	 	 ��� 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���
/.A��"��@.!0"�
!3F�" 
���� 	 	 	

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� �	 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���+,,0���11/3�" ��� 
�

� 	 	

	��
��
����	�	
�	��
��
���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��	 	

	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ����� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ���	� 1! -�  

 ��#1�#4+���:���'7����(%�<��� +!�4# �!3# �! 34  
	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 �� 
�� 	

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� 	 	 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ��	 ��	 	 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���
/.A��"��@.!0"�
!3F�" �	
 
�� �
� 	

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�
�� 
��
� 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���+,,0���11/3�" 
��	� 
�	 	 	

	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-�+.23/3 <�73! 
���� 
��
� 
���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����
 ���
	 �! 34  

 ��#1�#44���>�
���<����/6%�	��(���2 #�! -1 "#!43# "!3+3  
	��
��
������	��	��
��
���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� �� 	 	

	��
��
������	��	��
��
����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ��� 
�	�	 	 	

��
� �3

285



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������3
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��
��
���������	��
��
���$.�063//�+��" 	 ��� 	 	

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
����A�31-�� ���� ./ ���		 ����� 	 	

	��
��
�������
�	��
��
���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� ����	 	 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ����� ���
� 	 	

	��
��
�������	�	��
��
�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 ��� 	 	

	��
��
���������	��
��
���+,,0���11/3�" 	 �� 	 	

	��
��
����
		
�	��
��
���
!,4!.-�+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ����� ����� 	

	��
��
����
�	��	��
��
���
��*���!./�� .66 ��� 
�

� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
��	�� �
���
 "!3+3  

 ��� � #-����'���
8,���8�>�%�	' ��!1-1 +4!0 3 "1!10 1"!4�4

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
��
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 
� 
� ���

	���	�	
�����	��	���	�	
���0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 
		 	 �		

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
���A�31-�� ���1.3! ��� 	 	 �		

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
����>"2!31 3,�" 	 	 	 
��

	���	�	
�����
��	���	�	
��� .66�(�36,!-" �� 	 	 ��

	���	�	
��������	���	�	
���6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 ����	 ����� 	 
��		

	���	�	
������	�	���	�	
����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
�� ���	� 
���� �����

	���	�	
���	�	
�	���	�	
��+�//��3-���./.!3�"�.�0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ��
	�

	���	�	
���	�	��	���	�	
��
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ����� �����


	���	�	
���
		
�	���	�	
��
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ����	 ���	� ���
� 	

	���	�	
���
�	��	���	�	
��
����" !�2 ,! 
����� ������ 

���� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ����	� "1!10 1"!4�4

 ��� � � ���>�
	�
�
��%��%
��������
 "��!041 #-�!--  0!   
	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�$.�063//�+��" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	��A�31-�� ���1.3! ��	 �� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�'�3/03�4���1.3! ��	�� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����
�	���	�	�	���� ./�+.23/3 3�" ��	�� ��	�� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�
�" �#,� !,/ ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 " ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	���!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	����	
�	���	�	�	��6632����11/3�" 
�	�� ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	����	��	���	�	�	�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" ��
 ��
 	 	

	���	�	�	����
��	���	�	�	�� .66�(�36,!-" �
 �� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	�'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�+,,0���11/3�" �� 
�� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����	�	���	�	�	��.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
�
�	 ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	�����
�	���	�	�	�*."���0��/�2 !323 < ����

 ���	�� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	�B. �! ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	�������	���	�	�	���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ��		� ����� 	 	

	���	�	�	��	�	
�	���	�	�	��6632��� .669��11,! �	���� ������ 	 	

	���	�	�	��	�	
�	���	�	�	�#�" ,03./ ������ �����
 	 	

	���	�	�	��	�	��	���	�	�	�
���6632��� .669��11,! �����
 ����
� 	 	

	���	�	�	��	�	��	���	�	�	�
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! ����� ��		� 	 	

	���	�	�	���		��	���	�	�	��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	�	���		
�
�
&	��	���	�	�	�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ����	 	 	 	

	���	�	�	���		
�
�
&	��	���	�	�	�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 
��
�� 	 	 	

	���	�	�	���		
�
�
&	��	���	�	�	�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� ����� 	 	 	

	���	�	�	���		
���
&	
�	���	�	�	�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 ��			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� 
�����	  0!   

 ��� � 43���?��(��	�	�	�� +"+!0#0 �-+!# - "3"!##+ �31!330

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 ����� ����� �	� ����	

��
� �-

286



������	
����
���	��
	�� �������������-
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ����� 

���� 	 ��			

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ���	� ����� 
���
 ���		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" 
�	�� 
���� ��� 
��		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ ��		� ��
�� 	 
�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���$.�063//�+��" ����� ����
 ���	
 ����	

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! ��� 
���� ��� ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 
����	 ��	�
 
���� ���		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	������ ./�+.23/3 3�" ����� ����� ����� �����

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ ��	 ��	 ��	 ��	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 " ����� ��
�� ��
	� ���		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ���	�� �����	 
����� ����		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���
�!",���/�#," " 	 	 �
� 
��		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
��		 	 	 	

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" �	� ��	 �� ��	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	�������/,1�"���0�� . 3,�.!< ��
 
� 	 �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" 
�� ��� 	 �		

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 	 	 	 ��	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" ���	
 ����� ����� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ����� ����� �	� ��			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+/,@�!"���0�#.!0" 
� 	 	 
	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
���� ��	�� 
�� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" 
�� 	 	 
�	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��"���0�#:.!4�" 
���� �	� ��
 
�			

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < �	���� ������ ���
�	 ���			

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! ����� ���		 ��	�� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" ����	 ���	� ����� ��			

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ��	 �
	 ��� ��	

	���	�	����	
	
�	���	�	���7�1.! -�� �%�.0 ������ ���
	� �����
 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ����		 
����		

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �
�			

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	����6632��� .669��11,! ������ ����
� ������ 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ������ ���
�� ������ 	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! �� 	 	 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 

���� 
��		� ����� 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
���6632��� .669��11,! ����	� �����	 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 
���� ��� 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
��5����� ./�� .66 	 ��� 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
��5����� ./�� .66��� 	 � 	 	

	���	�	�����		��	���	�	����//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ���
� ����� ��
�� ����	

	���	�	������	���			
��	���	�	���$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 	 �� 	 	

	���	�	�����		
��	
&	��	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 
�����

	���	�	�����		
��

&	��	���	�	���
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ���		 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
� ����
	� "3"!##+ �31!330

 ��� � -1����
�	
	��(�
� -"!-�# -3!14 #1!4-+ ##4!141
	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 	 
�	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 	 	 	 �	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ����	 ��	�
 	 
�			

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����"�!.�2���?1��"� ��� ��� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���$.�063//�+��" ��� ��� 	 
�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	����A�31-�� ���1.3! �	� �
� 	 �		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���'�3/03�4���1.3! 	 	 	 �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
�
�� 	 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���
�" �#,� !,/ 

� �	 	 �	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���$32��"����0�+��" ��� ��� 	 �	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "�+.23/3 3�" ��� 	 �� 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����>"2!31 3,�" �	 	 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ���		 ���		 	 ��			

��
� + 

287



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+ 
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	������	
�	���	�	����6632����11/3�" �	� 
�	 	 �		

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
:, ,4!.1:32���11/3�" � � 	 ��

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���+3!" ��309&�032./���11/3�" 
�
�� 
���� 	 �		

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 
�	 
�
 	 
�	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ��� �	� 	 �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 
���� 
���� �		 ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" ��� �
� 	 �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�	�� 	 
�			

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	�����3-./���11/3�" ��	�� 
���� 	 ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� �

 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����3-./�+��0 ����
 ����� 
�� ��			

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����.�3 .!<�+��" �		 
	
 �		 �		

	���	�	�������
�	���	�	���*."���0��/�2 !323 < ���	� ����� ����� ���		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���B. �! 
����
 ����� ����	 
	�			

	���	�	���������	���	�	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 	 �		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 
����	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����	

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" 	 ���	� ���	� 	

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! ��	 ����� 	 	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ��	
� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! �	���� ���	�� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 
����
 ���	�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
 �����	 #1!4-+ ##4!141

 ��1 � ������
��>��
��;	�� 4! �- 0!013 "1# 0!014
	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 � 	 	 �	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��
 	 �		

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" �� �� 	 
		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"�.�0�B.4�" 	 	 	 
���	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73! 
��
� 
���
 ��
 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
����" !�2 ,! ��
�
 ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��	�� ����� "1# 0!014

 ��1 � �+����
���	=��;	�� 00!"-0 1+!+#0 #"!�4 1 !���

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�4�.�0�
�>/323 < 	 	 �� 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���� .66��!.3�3�4 �	� ��� 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" ����� ����� 	 ��			

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� ��� 	 
�	

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" ��� ��	 	 ��	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
���� 
��

 ��	 
����

	���	�	���������	���	�	���+,,0���11/3�" �

 
�� 	 ���

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����	

	���	�	����
		��	���	�	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ���
� ����
 
		 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
���""3" .� �73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ����� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 
���	 ���	� 	 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 �����	 ������ 

��
� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ����
� #"!�4 1 !���

 ��0 � 43���?��(	��� 1#!0#1 + !-3- # ! -- #-!330
	���	�	������	
�	���	�	���
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 ��� �	� 
� ��	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 �� 	 	 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �	� 

� 
�� �		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	����A�31-�� ���� ./ 
���	� 
����� 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ����� ���	� 	 
��		

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ���	� 
� 	 ��	

��
� +#

288



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+#
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	���	�	������
��	���	�	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" 
���
 ��
		 �� 
��		

	���	�	����	�	
�	���	�	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ��	 
	����

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ��
		

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 

���	 
��		� ����� 	

	���	�	������	��	���	�	���
��5��%,�"��� .66 ����� ����� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
��
� �	���� # ! -- #-!330

 ��0 � --���>�'7�')	�� -!+ + 0!#�4 #!+"+ 1!   
	���	�	���������	���	�	���#/�.�3�4�9G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �� 	 	 	

	���	�	���������	���	�	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ����
 ��� 	 	

	���	�	�������	�	���	�	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�
 	 	 	

	���	�	����	�	��	���	�	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ��			

	���	�	����
		
�	���	�	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H 
���� 
��
� 
���� 	

	���	�	����
�	��	���	�	���
��*���!./�� .66 ����� ��
�� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	� ��
�� #!+"+ 1!   

 ��03� 43���?��:'%����=���� +31!"40 #30!"30 "1!#  ��3!-"3

	�����	������	��	�����	���
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ��� 	 	 ��	

	�����	������	��	�����	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < ���		� 
����� �		 
��			

	�����	�������	�	�����	����A�31-�� ���� ./ ������ ����� 	 
���		

	�����	�������	�	�����	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
����� ����� 
�
�� 
	�			

	�����	���������	�����	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� ������� 

����� ��			 ����			

	�����	�������	�	�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
���
 �	 	 �		

	�����	���������	�����	���+,,0���11/3�" 

�
�� ����� 	 ���		

	�����	������
��	�����	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" 
����� 
��	�� ��� 
���		

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 ���		 ���
�

	�����	����	�	��	�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 ��	 �����


	�����	����
		
�	�����	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ����� ���	� ����� 	

	�����	������	��	�����	���
��5��%,�"��� .66 ������ 
����� 
�
�� 	

	�����	������	��	�����	���
��5��%,�"��� .66��� ��	�� ��

� 	 	

	�����	������	��	�����	���
��5����� ./�� .66 
�	�
 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������� 
������ "1!#  ��3!-"3

 ��0-� 43���?���'�����	'�� 00!31# 1+!41+ 4!4+� +4!11+
	�����	���������	�����	����A�31-�� ���1.3! 
�	 
�	 ��� ��	

	�����	���������	�����	���$32��"����0�+��" 
��
� ���
� 	 ���		

	�����	�������	�	�����	���
!,4!.-9��2!�. 3,����11/3�" ��� �� �� 	

	�����	�������	�	�����	���&�!2:.�03"��+,!���"./� �����
 
����� ��� 
�����

	�����	������
��	�����	���
!,1�! <9�./�"��.? ��	
� ����� ��	 �����

	�����	������
��	�����	���#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ����	 ��
�� ��� ��	��

	�����	����	�	
�	�����	���+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 	 ��			

	�����	����	�	��	�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
��
��

	�����	����
		
�	�����	���
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!H ���
� ���	� ����� 	

	�����	����
�	��	�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 
��
�� 
���
� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
 ������ 4!4+� +4!11+

 +� #�  #������%
������	�)	�	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� ��3! 34 �# !1-- �01! 3- �+ ! �"

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�7�� ./���"�!.�2� ��� ��
 �	� �		

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�&�032./�%�./ :���"�!.�2� ����� ��
�� 
����	 
����	

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�$36����"�!.�2� 
�	 �� �	 �	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 
���	 
�
�� 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ 	 
���� 	 	

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�$32��"����0�+��" 
�
�� 
���	 
� 	

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�
�!",���/�#," " 	 	 �� ���

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�#
��',,C"���0���11/3�"���,! �+��0� ����� ����� ����� ���		

��
� +"

289



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+"
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
�',,C"���0�&.��"2!31 " ��� 	 	 	

	��	
�		
����	��	��	
�		
��.6� <���11/3�" ��� �� 	 
�			

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 ����
 
�	�� 
��	� ���		

	��	
�		
���
�
�	��	
�		
�B,!C�!"�#,-1��". 3,� ����	� ������ �����
 ���
		

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
�(��-1/,<-�� �
!�-3�- ���	� ��		� ���		 ���		

	��	
�		
�����	�	��	
�		
�$3.>3/3 <���"�!.�2� �����	 ����	� ������ ���			

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
��-1/,<-�� �
!.2 32�" 
��	�� 
����� 
��
�� 
���		

	��	
�		
�������	��	
�		
�
!,1�! <���"�!.�2� ������ ������ ������ ����		

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 
��			 ����		

	��	
�		
��	�	
�	��	
�		
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" ������ ������ ����	� 	

	��	
�		
���		��	��	
�		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " ��� 
���� ��	 ��	

	��	
�		
��
�
��
�			��	��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "���0��A�31-�� ������ 	 	 	

	��	
�		
��
�
��
�			��	��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "���0��A�31-�� 
����� ����� 	 	

	��	
�		
��
�
���				��	��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "���0��A�31-�� 	 ����	 �����	 	

	��	
�		
��
�
���
			��	��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "�.�0��A�31-�� 	 	 ������ 
����

	��	
�		
��
�
����			��	��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "�.�0��A�31-�� 	 	 	 ����		

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����	�� �
	���� �01! 3- �+ ! �"

 0� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� "44!  4 "# !1#1 ++#!1"3 "� !   

	��	
�		
���
���	��	
�		
��&�+�
.<-�� " ����		� �
	��
� �
	�			 ��	�			

	��
	�	�����
���	��
	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ���		 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����		 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
���		 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
	���	 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
����	 	

	���	�	�	���
���	���	�	�	��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����	 	

	���	��		���
���	���	��		��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
����	 	

	���	�	�	���
���	���	�	�	��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����	 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��	�	 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
����� 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
����	 	

	���	�
�	���
���	���	�
�	��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����� 	

	��
��	�����
���	��
��	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ���
� 	

	��
��	�����
���	��
��	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
���	 	

	���	�		
���
���	���	�		
��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 �����	 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����� 	

	���	�	

���
���	���	�	

��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ����� 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��� 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��	 	

	���	�
�	���
���	���	�
�	��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��	
� 	

	�����	�����
���	�����	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 
���� 	

	��	
�	�����
���	��	
�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��� 	

	���	�	�
���
���	���	�	�
��&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 �����	 	

7,��, ��"��6��0" 	 	 ""3!��  

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 ��
�	 	

	���	�	�����
���	���	�	����&�+��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 �� 	

 3� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� "#!1  ""!�  "�!43 "0!1# 
	��	
�		
����
��	��	
�		
���03 ��?1��"�" �
��		 ����		 �����	 ����
	

 -� #�  #�����=	�
�E��	
��	�
�(%��������	�	��
��	'� +3!003 4 !1+ "!0�" 4#!   
	��	
�		
���		
�
�
&	��	��	
�		
�
�!3,032�&.3� ��.�2� 
	���� 	 	 	

	��	
�		
���		��
��&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ����	 	 	 	

��
� +�

290



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+�
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

	��	
�		
���		��
��&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� ����� 	 	 	

	��	
�		
���		���	�&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 
����� 	 	

	��	
�		
���		���	�&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 ����� 	 	

	��	
�		
���		���
�&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ��� 	

	��	
�		
���		���
�&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 ��	�� 	

	��	
�		
���		�����&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 �	�			

	��	
�		
���		�����&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 ��			

	��	
�		
���		�����&	��	��	
�		
��,� 3���&.3� ��.�2� 	 	 	 ���			

	��	
�		
��
�	��
�		
��	��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " �����
 	 	 	

	��	
�		
��
�	���			
	�	��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 �	�			 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ �	���	 "!0�" 4#!   

##�3 �  #������	=	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� 0!-10 #3!00   


��	�		
�����	�

��	�		
��A�31-�� ���� ./ ��� �
	 	 	



��	�		
����	��

��	�		
��.6� <���11/3�" 
�	 
��			 	 	



��	�		
�������

��	�		
�+/,@�!"���0�#.!0" ��	 �	� 	 	



��	�		
�������

��	�		
�
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ��� �� 	 	



��	�		
�����	�

��	�		
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�

� 
�� 	 	



��	�		
�������

��	�		
�+,,0���11/3�" ����� ����
 	 	

+30�2.!<�+��0" ����� 
����	   

#"� #�  #���>���	����'���	'���(%��������	�	��
��	'� 13!--+ 10!"0" #�!+3 11!#-0

��	
�		
�������
��	
�		
��2:,/.!":31" ������ �	��	
 ����� �	�			


��	
�		
����
��
��	
�		
��!.�"6�!��,�
.!C"�+,��0. 3,����" !32 �0 ����� ����
 ��
�� ��
��

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ������ ������ #�!+3 11!#-0

#+� #�  #���>'�	���>��%
	�8�(%��������	�	��
��	'� +  !� # �-1!+ 1 � 3!   �-1!   


��	
�		
���
���
��	
�		
�+�#��
.<-�� " �		��	
 �����	� �	��			 ����			

#1�"1�  #����C>*������	�	��
��	'� 1#0!1#1 4-�!1 0 #!"#-!0#" #! 4�!33"


�����		
���
���
�����		
�7�� ./���"�!.�2� 
���� 
�
�	 
���	 
���	


�����		
���
���
�����		
�&�032./�%�./ :���"�!.�2� ������ �	�	�	 ���	
� ����		


�����		
���
���
�����		
�$36����"�!.�2� ��� �	
 �	� ��	


�����		
���
���
�����		
��&�+�
.<-�� " 

���� 

�
�	 ���		 
��			


�����		
���
���
�����		
�+�#��
.<-�� " �	���� ���
	� 
��			 ���			


�����		
���
���
�����		
��-1/,<����""3" .�2��
!,4!.- 
�� 
�
 
�	 
��


�����		
����	
�
�����		
�
," .4����0�&.3/3�4 ��	�� ��	�� �		 ��			


�����		
����	��
�����		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 ����� ����	 �		 ��
		


�����		
����	��
�����		
�� .66�&�� 3�4 �
� 	 	 	


�����		
����	��
�����		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"9), 32�" 
��	� 
�� 	 �		


�����		
����	��
�����		
��0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < �	 ��� 	 �		


�����		
����	��
�����		
�� .66��!.3�3�4 ��	�� 
�
	� ��� 
��		


�����		
����	��
�����		
�&�->�!":31"��7��"���0�+��" ��� 
�
�� ��� 
��		


�����		
����	��
�����		
�#,�6�!��2����0��!.��/ ��
�
 �	� 	 ��			


�����		
�������
�����		
��� ,��//,@.�2� ��� 	 	 	


�����		
�����
�
�����		
���� ./�+.23/3 3�" 
���		 �
�			 	 	


�����		
�������
�����		
���!�32��#,� !.2 " ����� ����� �		 ���		


�����		
�������
�����		
�$�#�)����)7�+��� 	 
� 
� �	


�����		
�������
�����		
�#�//�
:,����?1��"� �	� �
� ��	 ��	


�����		
�����	�
�����		
�
�!",���/�#," " 	 	 �
	 
��		


�����		
�����	�
�����		
�� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" 
���� 	 	 	


�����		
����	
�
�����		
��6632����11/3�" ��� ��� �		 �		


�����		
����	��
�����		
�����/,1�"���0�� . 3,�.!< ��� 	 	 ��	


�����		
����	��
�����		
�7�1/32. 3�4���11/3�" �
	 ��� �� �		


�����		
�������
�����		
��6632�9��A�31-�� �5./���DE
				 	 ���
� ����� 	

��
� ++

291



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������++
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""


�����		
�������
�����		
�+/,@�!"���0�#.!0" � 	 	 	


�����		
�������
�����		
�
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" �
� �	� �� �		


�����		
�����	�
�����		
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��	 ��� �	� �		


�����		
�������
�����		
�+,,0���11/3�" �� � 	 	


�����		
���
�
�
�����		
�B,!C�!"�#,-1��". 3,� ����� ��	�� ���

 
��		


�����		
�����	�
�����		
�$3.>3/3 <���"�!.�2� ����� ���
� ���		 ���		


�����		
�������
�����		
��-1/,<-�� �
!.2 32�" �
� ��� �
	 ��	


�����		
�������
�����		
�
!,1�! <���"�!.�2� ����� ����� ��			 ���		


�����		
���		��
�����		
��7��),��#.13 ./��?1��03 �!�" 
����� �����	 ����		 ���			


�����		
����
��
�����		
�#!�03 �#.!0�+��" ��	�
 
���� ��� 
��		


�����		
��
�	��
�����		
�#
7����7� �� �� 	 	


�����		
��
�	��
�����		
�(
7�#.13 ./��7� 
�
��	� 
������ ���
�� ��	�	��


�����		
��	�	
�
�����		
�+�//��3-���./.!3�"���0�B.4�" 	 	 �	�			 
�����	


�����		
��	�	��
�����		
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���			


�����		
��	�	
�
�����		
��6632��� .669��11,! �����
 �
��	� �	��

 	


�����		
��	�	
�
�����		
�&.�.4�!"9��1�!�3",!" �����	 ������ �	�
	� 	


�����		
��
		
�
�����		
�
!,4!.-9+.23/3 <�73!�2 ,! 
	����� ������ ������ 	


�����		
��	�	��
�����		
�
���6632��� .669��11,! ��� 	 	 	


�����		
��
�	��
�����		
�
������2/�"3,���30"��7� ������ ������ ��			 	


�����		
���		��
�����		
��//,@.�2�"9��3->�!"�-�� " 
���� 	 ��	 	


�����		
����	��
�			��
�����		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"�.�0�), 32�" 	 	 
�� 	


�����		
����	���
			��
�����		
�$�4./�
�>/32. 3,�"�.�0�), 32�" 	 	 
�� 	


�����		
����
��
�			��
�����		
��!2:3 �2 ���0���43���!3�4�+��" 	 ���
�� 
����� 	


�����		
����
��
�			��
�����		
�
!,6�""3,�./���!�32�" 	 	 �		 	


�����		
��
�	��
�		
��
�����		
�#
7����7� ����� 	 	 	


�����		
��
�	��
�			��
�����		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ������ 
������ ������ 	


�����		
��
�	��
�			��
�����		
�#
7����7� 
����� 	 	 	


�����		
��
�	��
�			��
�����		
�#
7����7� 	 �
���� �
����
 
���			


�����		
��
�	���				��
�����		
�#
7����7� 	 ���
�� 	 	


�����		
��
�	���
			��
�����		
�#
7����7� 	 	 ���			 ���
�


�����		
��
�	����			��
�����		
�#
7��7� 	 	 	 �

��		

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
���
� �����	� #!"#-!0#" #! 4�!33"

#1�"1� 1 �����8��5%���
'

��� 0!4 1 3!  3 +4" �!"03


�����	�	�������
�����	�	�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" �
� �
 	 
�	


�����	�	�����	�
�����	�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� ��� �� ��	


�����	�	�������
�����	�	�+,,0���11/3�" ��� �� �� �	


�����	�	��	�	��
�����	�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �
� �����


�����	�	��
		��
�����	�	�
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 
���� ��
 	 	


�����	�	��
�	��
�����	�	�
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����	 ���	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ���	� ��		� +4" �!"03

#1�"1� 1#�������,�����>�	
	� 14!+- 1�!3"+   

�����	�
����	��
�����	�
�� .66��!.3�3�4 �	� 
�� 	 	


�����	�
�������
�����	�
�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
���� 
���
 	 	


�����	�
����
��
�����	�
�� .66�(�36,!-" 	 ��� 	 	


�����	�
����
��
�����	�
�
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
�� �� 	 	


�����	�
�����	�
�����	�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��	 ��� 	 	


�����	�
�������
�����	�
�+,,0���11/3�" �
	 ��
 	 	


�����	�
��
		��
�����	�
�
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ��
�� ��
�� 	 	


�����	�
��
�	��
�����	�
�
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ������ �
���� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����	 ������   

#1�"1� 1"����
����'
���	'� ##!-�3 -!1-" 334 "�!4-+


�����	�������
�
�����	���5�:32/����1.3! ��� 	 	 ��			


�����	���������
�����	���5�:32/�9�A�31-�� ���1.3!�
.! " ��
 
�� ��	 
�			

��
� +1

292



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+1
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""


�����	�������	�
�����	���*."�+��/�*!�."����0��3/ ����� ����� �� ��			


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 

����


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 
��	� 
���� 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����� ���	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 

���� ����� 334 "�!4-+

#1�"1� 1+����'%��,������
'

��� +!-"0 +!4 # #! 1# -!3+"

�����	�������
�
�����	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ ����� ���
� ��
 �����


�����	���������
�����	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 	 	 	 �		


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 

� �� �	 ��	


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� 	 �	 ��	


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���
�


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 
�� 
�	 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 �	� 
��	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ���	
 #! 1# -!3+"

#1�"1� 10���>���	����=���� 3!#0" #"!"30 +!+4 3!#1 

�����	������	��
�����	����0��! 3"3�49
�>/323 < 
�
	� ��� ��
 
��		


�����	�������	�
�����	����A�31-�� ���� ./ �� 
�	 	 ��	


�����	�������
�
�����	������ ./�+.23/3 3�" ��� 	 	 ��	


�����	�������	�
�����	���� :�!�#,� !.2 �./���!�32�" ����� ����	 ����� ��


�����	���������
�����	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� �		 	 	 �		


�����	������
��
�����	���� .66�(�36,!-" 	 	 	 
�	


�����	���������
�����	���
/.A��"���@.!0"���0�
!3F�" ����� ��	�
 
�	�� �����


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
�� �� ��	


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��� �
 ��	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��
�� 
����� +!+4 3!#1 

#1�"1� 13�������� #!��1 #!+-# " � +!�4 


�����	���������
�����	���#,� !.2 �./��� �! .3�-�� �		 ��	 	 �		


�����	���������
�����	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" �� �
 	 ���


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��
 ��� �	� ��	


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��
 	 ��	


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �����


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 �� �	 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 �� �� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
���� 
���
 " � +!�4 

#1�"1� 1-�����%����
'

��� "0!00 "#!3"+ #!�40 ""!�30


�����	�������
�
�����	���#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
��		 
��		 	 
��		


�����	���������
�����	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
	�	�	 ����� 	 ��
��


�����	������
��
�����	���� .66�(�36,!-" ��� ��	 	 ��	


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" ��� 
���� ��� 
����


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" ��	�� ��	�� �� �����


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 �		 �����


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 ��		� ����
 �� 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����� ����� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����	 �
���� #!�40 ""!�30

#1�"1� 0 ����<��
���''���
'

�� 1 !+00 03!000 "1!01 01!0-1

�����	�	����	��
�����	�	�� .66��!.3�3�4 �� 	 	 �	


�����	�	�������
�����	�	�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" �� 	 	 ��


�����	�	����
��
�����	�	�� .66�(�36,!-" 
�� 
�� 	 
��


�����	�	�������
�����	�	�#/�.�3�49G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" � 	 	 
		

��
� +0

293



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+0
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""


�����	�	�����	�
�����	�	���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �
� 
�	�� 	 
���	


�����	�	�������
�����	�	�+,,0���11/3�" 
�
�� �
� 	 �		


�����	�	��	�	��
�����	�	�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ������


�����	�	��
		��
�����	�	�
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! ����� ���	� ����	 	


�����	�	��
�	��
�����	�	�
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 �	�	�� ���	�� 
��			 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �	���� ������ "1!01 01!0-1

#1�"1� 0#���5=�
�	
����
	�� #"!""- 3!�-3 "  #�!34-


�����	�
�������
�����	�
�+3�/09�1�23./��!31" ����	 ����� 	 �����


�����	�
�����	�
�����	�
���2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�	

 �� �		 
��




�����	�
�������
�����	�
�+,,0���11/3�" ��	
� 
���
 	 ����	


�����	�
��	�	��
�����	�
�
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
����


�����	�
��
�	��
�����	�
�
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 
���� �	� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
����� ����� "  #�!34-

#1�"1� 0"���>���	���5�8��	�� #-!0 0 "#!"3# "1- �3!"13


�����	�������
�
�����	������ ./�+.23/3 3�" ����� ����� 	 ����	


�����	���������
�����	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" 
���� ���
� 	 ��			


�����	������
��
�����	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 	 ��� 	 
�
		


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" �
� 
	� �		 �		


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" 
�� ��� 	 ��	


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 ���
��


�����	����
�	��
�����	�����" !�2 ,!"9���!�34: �� .66 
�
�� ��
�	 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��*���!./�� .66 ����� 
���� 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ����� ����� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
���	� �
���
 "1- �3!"13

#1�"1� 0����>�'
���E�(	����� +1" 0 " #"� #!+-1

�����	������
��
�����	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 	 ��� 	 �		


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 	 �
�
 � 	 
��


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 
		 
�	�	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ��� �	� �� 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��� �	� #"� #!+-1

#1�"1� 0+���('
�;	���5��8����� 1�!�4# +3!"-0  4-!#"0

�����	������	��
�����	���� .66�&�� 3�4 
�� 	 	 �
	


�����	������	��
�����	���� .66��!.3�3�4 ��� 
�	 	 ��	


�����	���������
�����	���+3�/09�1�23./��!31" �
� ��� 	 �����


�����	������
��
�����	���� .66�(�36,!-" 	 ��� 	 �	�


�����	������
��
�����	���
.! 3231.� �(�36,!-" 
�	 �� 	 ���


�����	���������
�����	���#/�.�3�49G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" �	 	 	 
�	


�����	�������	�
�����	�����2!�. 3,�9
!,4!.-���11/3�" 
�	�� 
���� 	 ��
		


�����	���������
�����	���+,,0���11/3�" ��� ��� 	 
�
�	


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 �
�	
�


�����	����
		��
�����	���
��
!,4!.-�73!�2 ,!9��1�!�3",! 
	���� ����	 	 	


�����	����
�	��
�����	���
��7.<�#.-1�� .669$36��*�.!0 ���	�� ����		 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �����
 ������  4-!#"0

#1�"1� -#���>����	�
�*��
���	'�������
 13-    

�����	�
�����
�
�����	�
�*."���0��/�2 !32 3< ��� 	 	 	


�����	�
�������
�����	�
�B. �! 
	� 	 	 	


�����	�
�������
�����	�
���/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" � 	 	 	


�����	�
��	�	��
�����	�
�
��'�3/03�4���!�32��B,!C�! �� 	 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ��� 	   

��
� +4

294



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+4
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

#1�"1� -�����C>*�(��	�	�	�����$	�������	��������
   -01 +1!�" 


�����	���������
�����	���
�" �#,� !,/ 	 	 	 ��	


�����	�������	�
�����	�����!�32��#,� !.2 "���+.23/3 3�" 	 	 	 
���	


�����	�������	�
�����	���'�3/03�4�&.3� ��.�2����11/3�" 	 	 	 
�			


�����	���������
�����	���#/�.�3�4�9�G.�3 ,!3./���11/3�" 	 	 ��� ���		


�����	�������	�
�����	����.�3 .!<�+��"�.�0�#:.!4�" 	 	 	 �		


�����	�������
�
�����	���*."�.�0��/�2 !323 < 	 	 	 ���			


�����	���������
�����	���B. �! 	 	 	 
��		


�����	���������
�����	�����/�2,--��?1��03 �!�" 	 	 	 ����	


�����	����	�	��
�����	���
.! ��3-����.",�./�B.4�" 	 	 	 
����	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 	 	 -01 +1!�" 

#0� #�  #������	�������
'=������(%��������	�	��
��	'� #!#13!-34 �!-3�!"4# #!" #!-+- "!34#!140

��	
�		
����	��
��	
�		
��!.�"6�!"��,�� :�!�+��0" �	�			 ������ ���
	� 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 
����	 ��	 	 	


��	
�		
����	��
�		

�
��	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 
���� 	 	 	


��	
�		
����
��
�		

�
��	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ���	� 
	���� 	 	


��	
�		
����
��
�		
��
��	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 	 
��			 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�5�	
�
��	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� ������ 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�5�	��
��	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� ����	� 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���			
��
��	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 ������ 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		

�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ������ ����� 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		
��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ��
�� 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		�
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " �����	 ��	�
�� �	�			 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ����� 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 
	��	
	 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ������	 
��


 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ���
�	 	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " �		 ��			 	 �
���		


��	
�		
��
�	��
�			��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ���	�� 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		
	�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ���


 ������� 
	���� 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		

�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ��
���� ��������	 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		
��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 
����	 	 
���		


��	
�		
��
�	��
�		
��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ��	 
����� �
����� 
���
�


��	
�		
��
�	���				
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ������ ����� �����


��	
�		
��
�	���				��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ����� ����� 	


��	
�		
��
�	���				��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 �	�			


��	
�		
��
�	���				��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ����		 

��			 �		�			


��	
�		
��
�	���			
	�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ����
� 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���			

�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ������ 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���			
��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ������ 	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���
			
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 �����	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���
			��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 �
���	 	


��	
�		
��
�	���
		
	�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 �	�			


��	
�		
��
�	���
		
��
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 ��
�			


��	
�		
��
�	���
		�	�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 ���			 	


��	
�		
��
�	���
		�
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
	����� 
��		�			


��	
�		
��
�	����			
�
��	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 �	�			


��	
�		
��
�
���			
��
��	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "���0��A�31-�� 	 ������ 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�
������ ��������
 #!" #!-+- "!34#!140

#-� #�  #����'�	���(%��������	�	��
��	'� #1!14- #0!#+# #1!1 3 � !   


��	
�		
�����
�
��	
�		
�#,� !.2 �./�
�!",���/ 
����� 
��
�
 
���	� �	�			

��
� +3

295



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+3
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

"#� #�  #���$'�����'
�	F��	'��(%��������	�	��
��	'� #!#+#!# # #!#04!-  #!#-#!"4" #!#34!"  
�
�	
�		
����	���
�	
�		
��!.�"6�!"��,�� :�!�+��0" 
�
�
�
	
 
�
����		 
�
�
���� 
�
����		

""� #�  #���$'����
'������(%��������	�	��
��	'� #!#"�!1�1 #!  0!3+4 #!#- !-+3 #!-#�!1�0

���	
�		
����
�����	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ����� ����� ����� �����

���	
�		
����	�����	
�		
�',�0���0�-1 3,� ����			 ����			 ��	�			 ��	�			

���	
�		
����	�����	
�		
��� �!�" ��?1��"� 
�	���� 
	����� �����	 ���			

���	
�		
��
�	�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
����	 �	��			

���	
�		
��
�	��
�5�	
����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� ����	� 	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�5�	�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 
�����
 	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	���				�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 
����� 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	���			
�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 �����	 ����

 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
			�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 	 
���
� 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 	 	 
��			

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 	 ������ 	

���	
�		
��
�	����			�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 	 	 
��			

���	
�		
��
�	����			�����	
�		
�5�:32/�"�9��A�31-�� 	 	 	 ���			

���	
�		
��
�	��
�		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ��
�� 	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 
��		� 	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ���		 
�����	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " �	����� ��	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ���	�� 	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ������ 
���� 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 
	���	� 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�		
	����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 
�	�			 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	���				�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ����� 
������ 	

���	
�		
��
�	���				�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 
��	�	 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 ���			 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
	����	 �	�			

���	
�		
��
�	���
			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
��
�� ���
	�

���	
�		
��
�	���
		

����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 ������ 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 
		�			

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 

	�			

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 ������ 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
���		 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
��			 	

���	
�		
��
�	���
		������	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
���		 
�	�			

���	
�		
��
�	���

&	�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 �	�			

���	
�		
��
�	����			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 	 �	�			

���	
�		
��
�
���			
�����	
�		
���1.3!�
!,I�2 "���0��A�31-�� 	 
����� ��
 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 
�
������ 
�		����� #!#- !-+3 #!-#�!1�0

"1� #�  #������	�	��
��	'� "+!1   #"!""3 013!   
���	
�		
��
�	��
�		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " ����		 	 
����� ����			

"0� #�  #������	�	��
��	'�  1�!1  "-!01 1 !   
���	
�		
��
�	��
�			�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 ����		 	 	

���	
�		
��
�	���			
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 �����	 �	�			

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" 	 ����		 "-!01 1 !   

"4� #�  #���6�
����������
�(%��������	�	��
��	'� 4!--- 1�4!�4� "!�30!�++ 4!+4-!1  
���	
�		
����
�����	
�		
��  ,!��<�+��" 	 �
���� ���	
� 
��			

���	
�		
����	
��			
�����	
�		
�
," .4��.�0�&.3/3�4 	 	 �� 	

���	
�		
����	��
�		
�����	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 
�
�	 
�			

���	
�		
����	���			
�����	
�		
�
!3� 3�4���0�7�1/32. 3�4 	 	 ��
 	

��
� +-

296



������	
����
���	��
	�� ������������+-
���
��������
	��� !�" "#

�$�$%�
���&
'%�	�
��'���������(%�����'�)	���

���'%�� *��� +,#- *��� +," �
'.������ +,"# �
'�'���� +,""

���	
�		
����
��
�		
�����	
�		
��!2:3 �2 ���0���43���!3�4�+��" 	 ����		 	 	

���	
�		
����
���			
�����	
�		
��!2:3 �2 ���0���43���!3�4�+��" 	 �	���	 ������ 	

���	
�		
����
��
�		
�����	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" ���		 �	� 
���			 �	��		

���	
�		
����
���			
�����	
�		
�
!,6�""3,�./�+��" 	 �
� ����� ���			

���	
�		
����	
��			
�����	
�		
��6632����11/3�" 	 	 �	 	

���	
�		
����
��
�		
�����	
�		
�
!,1�! <�9��./�"��.? 	 ����� ����	 	

���	
�		
��
�	��
�		
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 
���
���� ��			�			

���	
�		
��
�	���			
�����	
�		
�
.!C�#,�" !�2 3,�9�-1!,��-�� " 	 	 �
	���� ����			

���	
�		
��
��	�
�		
�����	
�		
�$.�0��2A�3"3 3,�97���/,1-�� 
�� ����	
� 	 	

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" ����� ������� "!�30!�++ 4!+4-!1  

������'�����9����	�%
�� #4!-41!"- " !-0#!-#3 #1!4#�!�33 "3!310!43 

�����)� ���������!��(�0�!��?10 /�!-#1!4�"2 /"!���!3 #2 /+!�3"!#+42 �!"34!#+-

GGG�C����	
�������'%����GGG /#1!- -!� "2 /#-!##"!303 2 /" !3 4!1��2 /"+!-+0!�112
	
�		�			��

		�	
�		�			�(�.""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� ����������� ���������� � ����	��
��� ����
����� �

	
�		�			��

���	
�		�			���"30�./��A�3 <��!.�"6�! ����	� 	 	 	

	��		�			��	�		�	��		�			��""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� ����
������ �����
���	 � ����
	�		�� ���������� �

	��		�			��	
		�	��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� ������	�� �������� � ��
������ ��	����
 �

	��		�			��	
		�	��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� ��������� �������� � ��	������ �������� �

	��		�			��	
		�	��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �
������ �
��	�� � �
������ �
��
���


��		�			��	
		�
��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �
����
�� �
������ � �
�
����� �
������ �


��		�			��	
		�
��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �
���
��� �
������ � �

������ �
�����	 �


��		�			��	
		�
��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �������� ������� � ������
� ��������

	��		�			��	
		�	��		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �
���	�
� �
������ � �
������� �������� �


��		�			��	�		�
��		�			��""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� ����	
���
� ����
��
�� � �������	��� ���
������ �

�
�		�			��	
		��
�		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� �
������ ������ � �
������ 	

���		�			��	
		����		�			���" !32 �0�+��0�'./.�2� ��������� �����	
� � ���
���
� �������� �

���		�			��	�		����		�			�#,--3  �0�+��0�'./.�2� ��

����� �������� � ��������� �
�
������ �

���		�			��	�		����		�			�#,--3  �0�+��0�'./.�2� ��
���	�� ��	����� � �
�	������� �
�

����� �

���		�			��	�		����		�			�#,--3  �0�+��0�'./.�2� ��	������ ��	����� � ���	��
�� �����	�� �

���		�			��	�		����		�			�#,--3  �0�+��0�'./.�2� 	 �
�������� � �����	����� ���������� �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
�������	�� �
����	���� � /" !10"!#40 2 /"+!0-0!�112



�		�			��

		�

�		�			�(�.""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� 	 ����	
 � ����� 	

	��		�			��				�	��		�			�),�"1��0.>/��+��0�'./.�2� ���	�			� ���	�			 � ���	�			� ���	�			 �

 ��  �   /"!0� !4"32 /"!--1!#-- 2 /�!10"!10"2 /+!"-"!�" 2
	��		�			��	�		�	��		�			��""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� �����	����� �������
�� � ����������� ���������	 �

#1�  �   ����C>* /#!0 0!#"+ 2 /#!-1�!3#-2 /"! "1!1-" 2 /#!4--!-��2

��		�			��	
�	�
��		�			���" !32 �0=(
7��7� ������	� ������� � ����	�
� �
���
�� �


��		�			��	
�
�
��		�			���" !32 �0=#
7��7� ������
�� �
�
�	���� � �
�
�����
� �������� �


��		�			��	�		�
��		�			��""34��0�+��0�'./.�2� ��
	�
�
� �������� � ���
�
�	� �
�	������ �

*,��!�-�� ./�+��0" �
��	��
��� �
������
� � /"! "1!1-" 2 /#!4--!-��2

�����$�
	��	�
�(%���$������ /" !#+0!#1+ 2 /"+! 0#!330 2 /"0!�-1!0342 /�#! �3!0 32

��������	�
�(%���$������ /"+! 0#!330 2 /"0!�-1!0342 /� !444!3�+2 /"4!41#!+1- 2

��
� 1 

297



GLOSSARY
ABATEMENT – A partial or complete cancellation of a tax levy imposed by the Park District.

ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES – All processes that discover, record, classify and
summarize financial information to produce financial reports and to provide internal
controls.

ACCRUAL BASIS – The basis of accounting under which transactions are recognized when
they occur, regardless of the timing of the related cash flow.

ACTUAL – The actual figures in the budget document are year-end totals for fiscal years
preceding the current year.

ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.

ADOPTED BUDGET – This is the budget, which consolidates all beginning of the year
appropriations, building upon prior budgets, Park District goals, staff objectives, citizen
feedback and experience over the past year. The Board of Commissioners approves the
budget no later than 90 days after the beginning of the fiscal year.

AMENITIES – Items in the parks such as picnic tables, bollards, trash cans, park grills, bike
racks, etc.

APPROPRIATION – An authorization made by the Board of Commissioners, which legally
permits the Park District to incur obligations and to make expenditures for purposes
specified in the Budget and Appropriation Ordinance.

APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE – The ordinance adopted by the Board of Commissioners
establishing the legal authority to obligate and expend resources.

ASSESSED VALUATION – Basis for determining property tax. Assessed valuation
determines the value of real (land & buildings) property. Real property is appraised at
100% of the fair market value, and the assessed value may not exceed 1/3 of the
appraised value.

BALANCED BUDGET – A balanced budget is a budget where revenues meet or exceed
expenditures, and reserve balances are not considered a revenue source.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS – An independent board of five individuals elected at-large
for six-year terms by the citizens of the Park District.

BOND – A written promise to pay a specified sum of money, called principal, at a specified
maturity date along with periodic interest paid at a specified percentage of the outstanding
principal. They are usually used for long-term debt.

BOND REFINANCING – The payoff and reissuance of bonds in order to obtain a better
interest rate or bond conditions.

BUDGET – The financial plan for a specified period of time for the operation of a program or
organization, or for the completion of a given project.

298



BUDGET ACTIVITY – A group of expenditures that provides for the accomplishment of a
specific program or purpose.

BUDGET AMENDMENT – After adoption, the annual budget may be revised through a
budget amendment. Any change in the budget that would decrease contingencies or
increase total expenditures for any fund must be made through a budget amendment,
which requires the affirmative vote of three of the five members of the Board of
Commissioners.

BUDGET MESSAGE – Included in the opening section of the budget, the Director of
Finance’s Letter of Transmittal provides the Executive Director and the Board of
Commissioners with a general summary of important budget issues.

BUDGETARY CONTROL – The control or management of a governmental unit or enterprise
in accordance with an approved budget for the purpose of keeping expenditures within the
limitations of available appropriations and available revenue.

CAFR – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report awarded by the Government Finance
Officers’ Association

CAPITAL BUDGET – A plan of proposed capital expenditures and the means of financing
them. The capital budget is usually enacted as part of the complete annual budget, which
includes both periodic and routine maintenance/repairs and capital outlays.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS – A nonrecurring project including, but not limited to,
construction of, and major alterations, remodeling of repair of physical facilities, buildings,
structures, landscaping and fixed equipment.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUNDS – Funds established in order to account for the financial
resources and costs associated with the construction of major capital facilities and
improvements.

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN – The plan for the development of capital improvements
with the Park District’s jurisdiction. The plan includes a capital improvement budget for the
current fiscal year and proposal for a capital improvement budget for four fiscal years
subsequent to the current fiscal year.

CENSUS – An official population count of all or part of a geographic area conducted by the
federal government. This data is published online at www.census.gov

COMMODITIES – Items which, after use, are consumed or show a material change in, or an
appreciable impairment, of their physical condition, and which are generally of limited
value and characterized by rapid depreciation.

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES – Services provided by another individual, (not on Park District
payroll) agency, or private firm.

COTERMINOUS – Having the same boundary or covering the same area.

CPI – Consumer Price Index

DEBT – A financial obligation from the borrowing of money.

299



DEBT SERVICE – Includes principal and interest payments and handling charges on general
obligation bonds.

300



DEBT SERVICE FUND – A fund established to account for the accumulation of resources
for, the payment of, general long-term debt principal and interest.

DEPARTMENT – a major organizational unit of the Park District which has been assigned
overall management responsibility for an operation or a group of related operations within
a functional area.

DEPRECIATION – The decrease in value of physical assets due to use and passage of time.

ENCUMBRANCES – These are obligations in the form of purchase orders or contracts which
are chargeable to an appropriation and for which a part of the appropriation is reserved.
The use of encumbrances is designed to prevent overspending and permit officials to be
certain of how much money is available for new commitments.

ENTERPRISE FUND – A fund to account for operation that financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises – where the costs of providing services are
financed or recovered primarily through user charges.

ESTIMATE – Revenue and expenditure estimates for the current fiscal year, which are
developed as part of the budget preparation process.

EXPENDITURE – Payment by the Park District for goods or services that the Park District
has received or will receive in the future. All payments to vendors, personnel and any
other government agencies are considered expenditures.

EXPENSE CODE – Set of numbers which, in accordance with an overall system for
classifying accounts, indicates the fund, department, program and category to which a
good or service is expended

FINANCIAL POLICIES – General and specific guidelines adopted by the Park District on an
annual basis that govern budget preparation and administration

FISCAL YEAR – The time period designated by the Park District identifying the beginning
and ending period for recording financial transactions. The Park District’s fiscal year is
from May 1 to April 30.

FISCAL YEAR END – The year that the fiscal year ends for recording financial transactions.
The Park District’s fiscal year crosses over calendar years ending in April.

Full-Time I (FT1) – Employee that works a minimum of 37.5 to 40.0 hours per week and
receives full benefits from the Park District.

Full-Time II (FT2) – Employee that works a minimum of 30 hours up to 37.0 hours per week
and receives health insurance, IMRF benefits and one-half of paid leave earned by a FTI.

FUND – A fund is the basic accounting unit: it is a self-balancing accounting entity with
revenues and expenditures which are segregated for the purpose of carrying out specific
programs in accordance with Park District policies, and certain applicable State and
Federal laws. For fund types, see the Budgetary Basis and Accounting information section
of this document.

FUND BALANCE – The excess of current assets over current liabilities, it represents the
cumulative effect of revenues and other financing sources over expenditures and other

301



financing uses.

GASB – The Governmental Accounting Standards Board is an independent organization
which has ultimate authority over the establishment of Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) for state and local governments.

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS – When a government pledges it full faith and credit to the
repayment of the bond it issues, then those bonds are general obligation (GO) bonds.
Sometimes the term is also used to bonds, which are repaid from taxes.

GFOA – Government Finance Officers Association is an organization representing public
finance officers.

GOAL – A long-term or short-term desirable development.

GOVERNMENT FUND TYPES – Funds that account for a government’s government type
activities.

GRANTS – Funds received by the Park District that are designated for specific purposes.
Many grants come from the State of Illinois to reimburse the Park District for construction
costs.

IAPD – The Illinois Association of Park Districts is a statewide organization of park districts
that strive to ensure the quality of life through parks and recreation activities.

IMRF – Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund is the retirement system established for municipal
and park district employees in Illinois.

IPRA – The Illinois Park and Recreation Association is a statewide organization of parks and
recreation professionals that advocates the lifetime benefits of parks, recreation and
conservation.

INITIATIVES – Any new programs or services to be undertaken by a department or fund for
the fiscal year and any project or activity which may be unusual or otherwise significant.

INTER-FUND TRANSFER – Transfers made from one fund to another to reimburse or pay
for specific services rendered or to more generally support the activities of another fund.

LEVY – (Verb) to impose taxes for the support of government services. (Noun) The total
amount of taxes imposed by a unit of government.

LINE ITEM BUDGET – A budget that lists detailed expenditure categories separately along
with the budgeted amounts for each expenditure category. The Park District maintains
line-item detail for financial reporting and control purposes.

LONG-TERM DEBT – Debt with a maturity of more than one year from the date of issuance.

MISSION STATEMENT – A broad statement of the overall goal or purpose assigned to a
particular department or fund.

MODIFIED ACCRUAL BASIS OF ACCOUNTING – The accrual basis of accounting adopted
to the governmental fund type. Under it, revenues are recognized when they become both
measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Expenditures are

302



generally recognized when an event or transaction is expected to draw on current
expendable resources.

NRPA – The National Recreation and Park Association is an organization of citizen boards
and professionals interested in the parks and recreation throughout the United States.

OBJECTIVES – A desired accomplishment that can be measured within a specific time
frame.

OPERATING BUDGET – The budget for funds that include recurring revenues sources used
to finance on-going operating expenditures which permit basic government services, e.g.
the General, Recreation, Museum and Special Recreation funds.

OPERATING EXPENDITURES – Day to day costs and expenses of running the Park
District, i.e. personnel, benefits, contractual and supplies, maintenance, etc.

ORDINANCE – A formal legislative enactment by the governing board of the Park District.

OSLAD GRANT – Open Space Land Acquisition and Development grant awarded by the
Illinois Department of Natural Resources. 

PARC GRANT – Park and Recreation Facility Construction Act Grant Program managed by
the Illinois Department of Natural Resources 

PARK FEATURES – Amenities found within a park (flower beds, sport fields, restrooms,
pavilions, etc.)

PERFORMANCE INDICATORS – Statistical measures that are collected to show the impact
of dollars spent on Park District services.

PERSONNEL SERVICES – Salaries and wages paid for services performed by employees
of the Park District, and fringe benefits costs associated with these services.

PROGRAM FEES AND CHARGES – The payment of fees for direct receipt of a service by
the party benefiting from the service.

PROPERTY TAX LEVY – A tax based on the assessed value of a property. Tax liability falls
on the owner of record as of the beginning of the levy year.

PUBLIC MUSEUM GRANT – Grant program awarded by the Illinois Department of Natural
Resources.

REVENUE – Funds that the Park District receives as income. It includes such items as tax
payments, fees from services, grants, donations, sponsorships and interest income.

SERVICE PLANS – Documents drafted by each department that describe the services
provided by that department as well as changes in service levels planned.

SPECIAL EVENT – A large program held in one location over a short period of time that
typically does not require advance registration (Taste of C-U).

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS – Funds used to account for the proceeds from specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditure for specific purposes, e.g.,

303



IMRF, Social Security and Liability Insurance Fund.

STRATEGY – Statement that identifies the specific actions or steps needed to accomplish an
objective.

TAX LEVY – The total amount of money to be raised by property taxes for corporate
operating, special service areas or debt service purposes. The Park District Board of
Commissioners passes a property tax ordinance annually in November.

TAX RATE – The rate of tax levied for each $100 of assessed valuation. 

TRAIL – Linear route that links businesses, parks, schools and other trails. 

VISION – Statement that communicates the desired image for the future.

ACRONYMS
ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act

CAFR – Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is no longer referenced beginning March
2021 as requested by the GFOA.

CAPRA – Commission for Accreditation of Park and Recreation Agencies

CIP – Capital Improvement Plan

CPI – Consumer Price Index

COA - Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting

CY – Calendar Year

DCC – Douglass Community Center

EAV – Equalized Assessed Value

FICA – Federal Insurance Contributions Act

FT – Full-time employee

FTE – Full Time Equivalent

FY – Fiscal Year

FYE – Fiscal Year Ended

GAAP – Generally Accepted Accounting Principles 

GASB – Governmental Accounting Standards Board 

GFOA – Government Finance Officers Association 

HK – Human Kinetics Park

IAPD – Illinois Association of Park Districts

IDNR – Illinois Department of Natural Resources

IMRF – Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

IPRA – Illinois Parks and Recreation Association

304



LRC – Leonhard Recreation Center

MC – Martens Center

NRPA – National Recreation and Park Association

OSLAD – Open Space Land Acquisition and Development

PARC – Parks and Recreation Commission 

PDRMA – Park District Risk Management Agency 

RPT – Regular Part-Time Employee

PT – Part-time employee

PTELL – Property Tax Extension Limitation Law

RY – Revenue Year

SCC – Springer Cultural Center

SEDAC – Smart Energy Design Assistance Center

SYP – Summer Youth Program, formerly known as day camps

TIF – Tax Increment Financing District

TY – Tax Year

305



The mission of the Champaign Park District is to enhance the quality of life through positive experiences in 
parks and recreation in our community. 

 
 

 
 

REPORT TO PARK BOARD 
 
FROM: Joe DeLuce, Executive Director 
 
DATE: July 14, 2021 
 
SUBJECT: OSLAD Grant Application Discussion 
 
Background 
The Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) will accept applications for the Open Space Land 
Acquisition and Development (OSLAD) grant between from July 15, 2021 to September 1, 2021 this year.  
OSLAD funding is limited to outdoor recreation amenities.  Applications including a diversity of amenities are 
typically the most competitive, but a wide variety of project types are awarded.  The grant is a 50% matching 
grant with the maximum award/reimbursement of $400,000.  The time frame for completing an OSLAD grant 
funded project is normally two years from the time of award. 
 
Budget Impact 
The Park District is responsible for funding an entire project—typically up to $800,000—and under the 
OSLAD program would be reimbursed 50% (up to $400,000) from the grant program. 
 
Discussion 
If the District chooses to apply for an OSLAD grant this year, an appropriate project at a suitable park needs 
to be determined. Staff's suggestions include: 
 

1. Clark Park Improvements—add a new playground, new basketball court, seating area around sand 
play area, and an accessible path throughout the park 

2. Dodds 4-plex Softball Fields—add infield artificial turf to the four infields and add LED Lights to the 
four fields 

3. Heritage Park—add a nature playground, path from the parking lot to the playground, bridge over the 
slough and upgrade the parking lot to asphalt or concrete 

4. Kaufman Park—replace existing boathouse with new large shelter and restrooms 
5. Pickleball Complex—20 court complex with lights, shade structures, and restroom 
6. Prairie Farm—build new indoor education/program shelter, concession area and restrooms 
7. Sholem Aquatic Center—add a new lap pool for additional lap swimming, swim lessons, swim team 

practices, where the deep well was proposed. 
 
Direction 
Staff is seeking Board consensus and direction on which amenity to pursue in the OSLAD grant 
application—with that consideration, Planning Staff will present a detailed project scope and cost estimate 
for the potential OSLAD application at the August 11, 2021 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
Prepared by:       Reviewed by:     
Andrew Weiss       Joe DeLuce, CPRP 
Director of Planning      Executive Director 


	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC: Comments must be limited to not more than three (3) minutes.
	C. COMMUNICATIONS
	D. TREASURER’S REPORT
	E. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT
	F. COMMITTEE AND LIAISON REPORTS
	G. REPORT OF OFFICERS
	July 14, 2021
	Page 2
	H. CONSENT AGENDA
	1. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, June 9, 2021
	I. NEW BUSINESS
	J. DISCUSSION ITEMS
	K. COMMENTS FROM COMMISSIONERS
	L. EXECUTIVE SESSION
	July 14, 2021
	Page 3
	M. RETURN TO REGULAR MEETING
	N. EXECUTIVE SESSION ACTION ITEM
	O. ADJOURN
	ADP8D96.tmp
	June 9, 2021

	ADPCA24.tmp
	June 23, 2021
	Mr. Olson presented the report. He reported that the capital improvement plan outlined several disbursements to resurface the most deteriorated sections of Parkland Way on a biennial basis. Mr. Olson noted that the bid process had been competitive wit...
	President Miller requested clarification on the possibility of bidding another section of Parkland Way for repair with the balance of budgeted funds from the FY22 capital improvement plan. Mr. Olson responded that the availability of materials would m...
	Commissioner Kuhl made a motion to approve accepting the low, responsible bid and authorize the Executive Director to enter into a contract with A&R Mechanical for a total of $32,035.73. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, t...
	Vice President Hays made a motion to approve a resolution to commit excess reserves for the construction of the Martens Center totaling $2,709,548. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Solon. Upon roll call, the vote was as follows: Commissioner Ku...
	Vice President Hays made a motion to approve the IGA between the Park District and Unit 4 School District for the construction and ongoing operation of tennis courts at Spalding Park. The motion was seconded by Commissioner McMahon. Upon roll call, th...
	Commissioner Solon made a motion to approve the Subrecipient Agreement between the City of Champaign and the Park District for the Community Matters Program and authorizing the Executive Director to execute the agreement subject to resolution of the i...
	Mr. Bentz presented the report. He stated that the Illinois Department of Natural Resources (IDNR) has announced a grant cycle for the Public Museum Capital Grant program totaling $27 million dollars. He commented that staff has engaged Architectural ...
	Mr. DeLuce added that no matching funds would be required from the Park District if the grant award should be received.
	Commissioner Solon asked if the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency had reviewed the project. Mr. Bentz responded that they had not reviewed the proposed design, but that staff is confident that they would be amenable to the design’s modest changes.
	Commissioner Solon requested staff discuss the changes with potential catering clients. Mr. Bentz responded that several caterers had been contacted for input.
	Vice President Hays made a motion to authorize staff to apply for a Public Museum Capital Grant in the amount of $174,864.48 from the IDNR in support of remodeling the Virginia Theatre front-of-house catering kitchen. The motion was seconded by Commis...

	ADPAC4B.tmp
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD
	Budget Impact
	Since the Virginia’s partnering liquor merchant is responsible for all costs involved in offering the service, expense for the park district is limited to the City of Champaign-mandated purchase of Class T-3 temporary liquor licenses (one per event) f...
	Recommended Action
	Staff recommends the park board authorize the Executive Director to enter into an additional extension of the Park Board’s previous agreement with Farren’s Pub and Eatery to act as sole merchant partner for public alcohol sales, including wine, beer, ...

	ADPEEBA.tmp
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD

	ADP2ACB.tmp
	REPORT TO PARK BOARD

	BUDGET Champaign Park, IL 2022 - prelim 7-9-21.pdf
	Table of Contents
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	CHAMPAIGN PARK DISTRICT
	Board of Commissioners and Administrative Staff 
	Board of Commissioners
	Officers
	Administrative Staff
	Budget Overview 
	Tentative Budget Schedule 
	May 1, 2021
	June 23, 2021
	BOARD ACTION: The date for the Public Hearing is set on the proposed Budget and Appropriations Ordinance. The Ordinance is prepared and made available to the public for inspection at the Bresnan Meeting Center.
	July 28, 2021
	July 30, 2021
	September 8, 2021
	October 1, 2021
	October 13, 2021
	October 30, 2021
	November 1, 2021
	November 10, 2021
	November 30, 2021
	December 8, 2021
	January 12, 2022
	January 26, 2022
	February 9, 2022
	March 9, 2022
	April 13, 2022
	April 15, 2022

	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Financial Structure, Policy & Process 
	Budget Policies & Procedures 
	Overview
	Basis of Accounting & Budgeting
	Budget Timeline and Format
	Budget Implementation, Review and Amendment
	Policies and Assumptions
	Debt Policy
	Fund Balance
	Personnel
	Capital Program


	Org Chart
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Financial Summaries 
	Combined Fund Analysis 
	Budget Analysis
	Carryover/Reserve Balance
	Revenues:
	Expenditures:
	Budget Summary All Funds Combined 

	Champaign park district fund
	Recreation Fund
	Museum Fund
	Liability insurance fund
	Audit fund
	Fund 12 Special Donations Fund
	Fund 14 Social Security Fund
	Champaign park district
	Police protection
	Paving and lighting fund
	Paving and lighting fund
	Capital improvements fund
	Capital improvements fund
	Capital improvements fund
	Capital improvements fund
	Principal responsibilities
	Principal responsibilities
	Principal responsibilities
	Principal responsibilities
	Principal responsibilities
	Principal responsibilities
	Bond proceeds fund
	Bond proceeds fund
	Bond proceeds fund
	Bond proceeds fund
	Land acquisition fund
	Land acquisition fund
	Park development fund
	Park development fund
	Trails and pathways fund
	Trails and pathways fund
	Martens center capital fund
	Martens center capital fund
	Notes to the Financial Statements
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Recreation fund: aquatics
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Champaign park district
	Museum fund: other programs
	Supplemental Information
	Park District Profile
	Assessed Valuation Comparisons
	Tax Rates, Levies, and Collections
	Statistical information
	Employer and employment information
	Budget and Appropirations Totals by Fund
	Ordinance No. 


